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(Note : An-asterisk (*}) denotes Note number)

Accommodations Control Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Sections 12(1 'Ha)
& 12(1)(c) = Landiord — Held — Section 12(1)(a) is not dependent on
the provisions of section 12(1)(c) — Further held — For the purpose of
Section 12(1)(a), it is not necessary that the landlord has to be owner
of property also. [Babu Lal Vs. Sunil Baree] ..2692

TITT [T AR, 7.5, (1961 BT 41), GRIV 12(0)(0) T 12(1)()
— Ffaard ~ affEiRa — arr 12(1)(@), o~ 12(0)R) 3 SuEs’ W
frey =t @ — amt afifefRe - arr 1201)(g) @ woiew Q. @®
s e 2 % qfrwrh st waftw o1 we A e il @
- fa. gfta 9 : ... 2692

. Accommodation Control Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Section 12(1)(a)
& 12(1)(c) and Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 109 —
Original owner sold the property to respondents (Plaintiff) - For purpose
of decree u/S 12(1)(a), appellant being tenant of original owner shall
become tenant of transferee by virtue of Section 109 of the Act of
1882. {Babu Lal Vs. Sunil Baree] « ° . ...2692

.- YT [T SR, A (1961 BT 41), 8T 12(1)(0) T 12(1)(}) o7
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w WU fima 1 — g 12(1)(7) @ Fwla R 3 vatem g, andrameff
o Wl a1 fRIAER 819 @ SRor 1882 @ AffFaw €Y 9RT 100 @ IER
R AR &1 fBRER 99 som) (FEre fa e o) - L..2692

Accommodation Control’ Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Sections
12(1)(a), 12(1)(c) & 13(1) — Title of Landlord & Arrears of Rent —
Concurrent-eviction decree u/S 12(1)(a) & 12(1)(c) — Held — 1t is
concurrently established that there was relationship of landlord and
tenant between parties and appellant was defaulter in payment of
regular rent as even after receiving demand notice and committed error
u/S 13(1) of the Act— Concurrent findings that appellant by denying
title of respondent/plaintiff caused substantial injury to his right and
title in suit property — No substantial question of law requiring
consideration —Appeal dismissed. [Babu Lal Vs. Sunil Baree]...2692

vITT T I wa. (19671 BT 41 SIS 12(7)(%), 12(1)(?#).
7 13(1) — LATHY BT Y97 T HIS BT TP — €T 12(1)(¢) 7 12(1)(%)
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T 9 Tl W W R fear s ot @ — afie @rRen
(sema fa. e &) . . ..2692

Adim Jan Jatiyon Ka Sanrakshan (Vrakshon Me Hit)
Adhiniyam, M.P. (25 of 1999), Section 4 & 9(2) and Land Revenue
Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 253 — Confiscation and Penalty -
Held —As per Section 4 of Adhiniyam of 1999, Bhumiswami belonging
to aboriginal tribe who intends to cut any specified tree in his Iand
shall apply for permission to Collector — Merely belonging to aboriginal
tribe would not entitle him to cut the trees standing on his land on his
own will — Adhiniyam of 1999 not only protects persens of aboriginal
tribe but also protects the trees as well as the same are government
' property. [Samlu Gond Vs. State of M.P.] : ...2684

. T T ot w1 weerr (gai’ @ fR9) affam oy, (1999 &1
25), gIT 4 T 9(2) T 7 wavs wiar Ty (1959 #T 20). T 253 —
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FHER TEl B — 1999 BT FfRIPRH 7 Baa onfaw. Wy @ cafraat
PTG T € Afew gl w1 N wEmer evar @ vty 9% e
woRta &1 (W e fa. 7y, w=w) . ...2684

Adim Jan Jatiyon Ka Sanrakshan (Vrakshon Me Hit) Adhiniyam,
M.P. (25 of 1999), Section 9 and Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1 959),
Section 50 & 240— Suo Motu Revisional Power — Competent Authority —
Held - SDO passed final order whereas as per provisions of Adhiniyam of
1999, only Collector or Additional Collector is einpoweljed to pass final
orderin respect of trees which are standing on land of aboriginal tribe and
have been cut — When initially original order passed by SDO was without
jurisdiction, Collector wrongly exercised its suo motu revisional power v/
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S50 of the Code—-Impugned order quashed — Wnt petition al]owed [Samlu
" Gond Vs, State of MLP.] : ...2684

e w7 wifagl’ &1 gveor (gm‘"#‘)%?r)an‘éﬁwa ny. (1999 &7
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=l @ We" 4 i ey wika a7 5 fag wwew @ — w9 AP
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dfgar @1 a1 50 @ AT Au WV ¥ yedhEer afda e Tad wy
¥ gty frar — snEfim sy Al — Re ofyeT 931 (@ e s
f3. 7.9. ¥=a) ...2684

Arms Act (54 of 1959), Section 25(1-B)(a) & 27— See — P;’nal
Code, 1860, Section 302 & 323 [Deshpal Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2717

ST LT (1959 BT 54), GNT 25(1-H)(7) 7 27 — 3@ — 7%
@fzar, 1860, =vr 302 T 323 (RO 4 A9, W) (DB)...2717

Bhumi Vikas Niyam, M.P., 2012, Rule 25 — Revocation of
Building Permission — Held — Once .it has come to knowledge of
Municipal Corporation that construction has been made in violation of
sanctioned map, it can revoke the permission under Rule 25 of the
Rules of 2012 — Once building permission is granted, it is incumbent
upon builder or owner to make construction in accordance with terms
and conditions of permission — Power of revocation rightly exercised —
Petition dismissed. [Shailendri Goswaml (Smt.) Vs. Indore Mumclpal
Corporation] S : ..*146

qﬁﬁmﬁw 79., 2012 [9% 25 — ﬁwfvraigvﬂwymm.-
— sffEiRa — v IR g7 T o @ e A o we fs R,
o fad T e @ s ¥ faar A 2, a8 2012 @ Pt @ frme
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Sfaa wu & walr fear @ — mﬁ:mmﬁﬁrl(ﬁmﬁ‘tﬁmth(m?ﬁ)ﬁ
g3iv fafige FRUIE) : %146

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 100 — Second Appeal
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e Held — The Court in exercise of power u/S 100 CPC cannot re-
appreciate the evidence even if another view is possible. [Babu Lal
- 'Vs. Sunil Baree] . .. 2692

Rifaa gl=m wfear (1908 @1 5) gRT 100 — BT afia —
affreiRe — <ae RYS. 9 97 100 @ aiefa wfrg @ wabT F
I giewl & waa e W A wiwr @7 yTeaied 9@ o7 waard
(g fa. e a) 2692

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 17 — Amendment :

in Written Statement/Plaint — Principle - Held — Apex Court concluded
that amendment of a plaint and amendment of 2 written statement are not
necessarily governed by exactly the same principle — Courts should be
more liberal in case of an amendment of written statement, than that of a
‘plaint—Application for amendment in written statement filed by petitioner/
defendant allowed. [Ajit Singh Vs. Devesh Pratap Singh]| ...*131.

Rif3er giFar wiear (1908 @1 5) F@E 6 AT 17 — e
TYT/%97 F wenaT — Rigrad — stafeiRe — waf=s <mweg 3
frsfifa far f5 va aus o1 woatem W@ we fafaa sea o wuate,
Fenefa: W Rrgra g, srawas w9 @ Wi =@ shar — <maraat et
wmﬁﬁﬁqw#wfqﬁaaanﬁa}ﬁ!ﬁma%‘umﬂ'm
SR &1 Whe — areht /9 gRT uvga faaw wem & Hened 2g
e w9 (efia Riw B 2dw gamw Rig) - ...*131

Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 17, Proviso —
Amendment in Written Statement — Amendment in Code — Effect -
Held —Proviso to Order 6 Rule 17 was added vide CPC (Amendment)

Act, 2002 and thus would not be applicable to civil suits which are filed -

prior to coming into force of the amendment Act of 2002 — In present
case, suit was filed in 1981 thus proviso will not apply to the suit —
Petition allowed. [Ajit Singh Vs. Devesh Pratap Singh] «.*131

Rifaer a3 wizar (1908 7 5), I 6 a7 17, WgE — fofaa
T A geneT — wizar # wenaT — gwrg — afifEiRe — sy 6,
frm 17 @ wgw #t Rruew. (Fetes) afifee, 2002 grr steT T o
MR safar 97 Rifrer a=t @ fag wep 1 8t R 2002 @ wetee
sfafrs gard 819 @ g wga fear i @ — adue gewr F, 1081
e TR f6d T or I g @ fay wWgs anp = st — et
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Civil Services (C[ass:f ication, Control and Appeal) Ru[es, M.P
1966, Rule 10 & 15(3) — Disciplinary Authority & Inquiring Authority
— Held — If disciplinary authority is not an inquiring authority, it is
incumbent on him to apply his own mind while recording findings prior
to proposing penalty —In subsequent notice, nothing is referred why -
the earlier findings were inappropriate which required to be changed
_ proposing penalty of dismissal — Provision of Rule 15(3) not complied
by Disciplinary Authority. [K.K. Sharma Vs. M.P. Power Management
Co. Ltd.] : . <. 2057

Rifyer War (@favor, Ao aiv gdia) Fras 4.5 1966, 997 10
7 15(3) — FFETAE TSN 7 "ArFHal wifE — sttt — afy
aeTafe Nt ve wigedl witerd T R, e Wi gwnfya
#%4 @ qf Frpsl @ affafeag o0 W@ A9 ARKTS BT Tl
FoT afEr @ — urama Sifew ¥, swer s wed T f gdw
ﬁwﬁaﬁmﬁaﬁh@mﬁraﬁﬁuwﬁamﬁ@m
ITaLS o — ATILCE gterd g FRM 15(3) & SUEH @1 IgIe
8 fear | (3.8, uuf {1 gl ofe Ao €. fa) o ...2657

Civil Services (Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules, M.P.
1966, Rule 15(3) — Competent Authority — Held — The power of the
disciplinary authority conferred under statute to the officer ought not
be exercised by other officer, holding the current charge. [K.K Sharma
Vs. M.P: Power Management Co.Ltd.] . ..2657

. mﬂa’??ar(aﬂaﬂvr f%?favraﬂvm?a')ﬁww 7yH 1966, 47
15(3) — weaw wifrert — affeiRe - SHE @ ofwia sguTaiTe
umﬁummﬁﬁmuﬁwﬁmmmaﬁmﬂmﬁ
far ST Wi or | (@3, wl fa wafl ufeR A= 9. f6)  ...2657

Civil Services (Classiﬁi:'ation, Control and Appeal} Rules, M.F.
1966, Rule 15(3) & 29 — Dismissal — Procedure — Departmental enquiry
— Penalty of withholding three increments inflicted — Lz_iter, again a
notice issued for dismissal — Writ petition filed whereby stay was
granted — Department withdrew the notice for dismissal and maintained
previous penalty — Petition dismissed as infructuous — Agam a notice
issued and petitioner was dismissed — Held — Such order of dismissal
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would be in defiance to order of Court — Such dismissal is arbitrary
and illegal — Provisions of Rule 15 and 29 not complied with - Impugned
orders quashed — Petitioner directed to be re-instated if not attained

age of superannuation, but will have to suffer the earlier penaliy-

imposed — Petition partly allowed. [K.K. Sharma Vs. M.P. Power
Management Co. Ltd.] .-.2657

Refae dar (ffavor, Raar ae sfie) Fram o 1966, T 15(3)
azs-@qﬁ—m—ﬁmm—_?ﬁ?mﬂfﬂaﬁaﬂmﬁﬁ
aferifiT @1 0 — ag ¥, 1 yefr 3g e Afew W far T - Re
mﬁmuﬁaaﬂﬂéﬁmﬁ%mqﬁnﬁaﬁ—ﬁw#mﬁrﬁm
T forr SN g Wi B T v — wfer o e 8 a9
mmw—@:wm‘mmwmwﬁmﬁm
T — sffEiRe — se=gfy o1 e ek, <A @ e 7Y st @
B — e sy, T ud iy @ — Praw 1s 7 20 @ wygat @
IFUreT T fHar mar - anafim kv oty - ar) Bt qEa wet @
forg Frafirr fear 7, af wwrt aferaTifel amg wrar 1 A @ w9 R
aferifie mRa qreht Rt — wfer g R @3, il R o,
tfR e B f) <2657

Civil Services (Classification, Control ahdAppeal) Rules, M.P.
1966, Rule 29 — Power of Review — Procedure - Held — If earlier order
of penalty is required to be changed to enhance penalty, it would amount
to review of earlier order and such power can be exercised by appellate
authority - In present case, subsequent notice or order of penalty has
not been passed by appellate authority reviewing previous order. [K.K.
Sharma Vs. M.P. Power Management Co. Ltd.] .. 2657

Rifaer ar (wfavo, Faaer siv srfie) Frag, 70 1966, Fraw 29
—gaﬁ’afaﬁra?wﬁﬁ—y@fw—srﬁrﬁafﬁa—aﬁmﬁﬁ#’qﬁ;%q,
mﬁaaﬁg&mmﬁmﬁm&ﬂ%@,wqﬁmmwa?gﬁﬁmm
I BfE 7 srqm v vaw wie a1 AT Sua adfid sREN T Ry
S AFA § - AT yer A, afiel wifter g gdar ety w7
AN ST BXd gY WG @1 svarEd e a1 ey wikg T8 far
T R (@8, Tl f . waw dem ¥Ry ...2657

- Civ;'l Services (Pension) Rules, M.P. 1976, Rule 92)(b) (D) —
Disciplinary Proceedings — Sanction of Governor — Jurisdiction — Held
_—Itis not necessary to obtain personal sanction of Governor of M.P.

al
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for taking decision to initiate disciplinary proceedings and if Council
of Ministers have taken such decision, it will serve the purpose and
meet the requirement of Rule 9 of the Rules of 1976 — Charge sheet
served to petitioner in the name of Govérnor of M.P. cannot be said to
be without jurisdiction — Apex Court concluded that such an order
authenticated in name of Governor cannot be questioned in any Court
- on ground that it is made or executed by the Governor and thus is
outside the scope of judicial review — No interference required — Appeal
dismissed. [Shanti Bavaria (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...*148

' RRw dar (@uw) Fam am 1976 Faw sE)@)E) — sqmrafie
FrIIAT — IISTUrd &1 Al — fmERar — afafEiRg — st
FEfEal o ARY o9 & Fvfg dX @ fay w0, @ g o i
el d e T 2 et afy w=ft aReg 7 R Fofa R @, @, 1076
& fmt & e 9 & vatem & gff od sndeEr & QT HRm — T B oA
Y. % T @ 5 | arfie aRiY o fae siftreeRar @ 1l w9 www
— Al = 3 i fFar @ & v=ow @ w9 @ aftwnfa iR
frdY amer R frelt ey F 9 AR R 9 99 SO/r Wl udr 6
9 Usgure g1 99 ar frsnfia fear @ st safa =nfie geffeats
T gRY A arEv 3 — foel sy o) amazasar =8 — anfla @ifRer) @
srafar (shed) fa. 7y, ) (DB)...*148

Class IIT (Non-Ministerial and Ministerial) Jail Service
Recruitment Rules, M.P., 1974, Schedule Sr. No. 7 & 8 — See — Service
Law [State of ML.P. through Secretary Department of Jail/Home, Bhopal
Vs. Rajesh Kumar Shukla] . (DB)...*149

. g 7 (@RifiE Tl aur fifie o). wa dar adf fram
- HH, 1974, FIGAT #. 7 7 8 — @ — Wy fofr (AU, I5T FRT /B
feurda= afw wta /8w, @i 3. ootg §9R gaan) (DB)...*149

Commercial Tax Act, M.P. 1994 (5 of 1995), Schedule II, Part
III, Entry No. 9 — Lubricants — Brake Fluid — Held — Brake fluid is a
different kind of liquid altogether which is never used for purpose of
lubricating either the brake or any part which is under the braking
system —Brake fluid and Lubricants are different and cannot be treated
under one entry for the purpose of taxation — Impugned orders quashed
— Petitions allowed. [Castrol India Ltd. (M/s.) Vs. Commissioner of
Commercial Tax, M.P.] _ (DB)...*133
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T8 W o g — aafia ARy afiwfya ~ e A6 (Fegia
s{ﬁ'ﬂnﬁr @) fa. ofeR afe safdfaa daa, ) (DB)...*133

Companies Act (1 of 1956), Section 22 — See — Companies Act
2013, Section 16 [Satpuda Infracon Pvt. Ltd. (M/s.) Vs. M/s. Satpura
Infracon Pvt. Lid.] ...2645

FayH} Al (1956 @7 1) g 22 — ¥ — m#?an%ﬁw 2013,
grT 16 (GaysT i uifa. (1) A 3. gagRr s=erera unfe) ...2645

Companies Act (18 of 2013), Section 16 and Companies Act (1
of 1956), Section 22 — Rectification of Name of Company — Held —
Central Government can form an opinion for purpose of rectification,
suo motu or on an application filed by aggrieved person — Respondent
rightly held that prior registration of a company is a relevant factor —
No jurisdictional error, procedural impropriety or perversity in
" impugned order and hence upheld — Petition dismissed. [Satpuda
Infracon Pvt. Ltd. (M/s.) Vs. M/s. Satpura Infracon Pvt, Ltd.]...2645

. HEH} AT (2013 BT 18), ST 16 9 S5} 7T (1956 H7
1) GRT 22 — FYAT P 7 7 gare — afatEiRe — 9% WveR wWuon
a7 afi eafRT g AST TR B9 W, YUR @ 9AvdT 2q WA
T wadl 2 — yeaeff ¥ sfaw vy ¥ afufaiRe few 5 sl o1 qd
. WAENFT UF GATd dRG 8 — JEfim arw F s afrefar o
3R, ufrarors smtfe a1 Radwa 9 @ ok sufay sem <@ 7@
— IrfgeT TR | (wgarswamﬂ‘-r (%) fa. 9. wagy gpTHIA UL
fa1) © o ..2645

Constitution — Article 20 & 20(3) — See — Prevention of
‘Corruption Act, 1988, Sections 7, 13(1)(d} & 13(2) [Buddha Sen Kumhar
Vs. State of M.P.] S (DB)...*132

WIETT — S8 20 7 20(3) — ¥@ — gEETHIC fERT AT,
1988, €TIRTY 7, 1.?(1)(@'?) 7 13(2) (35 99 =R 4. 79, w=a) (DB)...*132
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Constitution — Article 21 — See — Criminal Procedure Code,
1973, Section 482 [Prabal Dogra Vs. Superintendent of Police, Gwalior
& State of MLP.] ..2881

- W — T 21 — F@ — TVS FIFAT Gledl, 1973, HINT 482
(e =hRT AL guRese afe qfaw, faax e a9 ) ...2881

Constitution — Article 226 — Selection — Counselling — Selection
of Junior Supply Officer (JSO) & Weights and Measures Inspectors
(WMI) — VYAPAM - Held - Simultaneous counseling cannot be
conducted for both the post by respondents though the select list and
verification of documents were done commonly, because both the post
are different and the department is also different - Procedure adopted
by respondents in selecting candidates is just and proper — Petition
dismissed. [Poornendra Prakash Shukla Vs. State of M.P.] ...*143

afaerT — agw‘a*zzs—a?z? wrowfaT — s gff aftrer
(ﬁwm)aaﬁmmﬁ\ﬁmﬁ(ﬁwmﬁ)mm | —
afifraifa — oy gweffre gro o gt @ ARl & weaT
afufyT v /@ R Tar on, T ga) ?g U@ i sewiaT wartia
8 @ o1 wedl @ty < g B € wer fawmr #ff R & -
qwﬁwmmﬂfﬁ'mwm#mﬂ@ﬁummﬂaw
st @ — mﬁﬁﬂérﬁﬁrl(t[ﬁr—q BT I (4. BE T) ... 5143

Constitation - Arttcle 226 — Selection — Vacant Post — Cireular
of State Government —Applicability —Held — As per the circular dated
07.03.2012, if during validity of wait list, any candidate does not join
on the post or died or resigned, then the said post will be declared as
fallen vacant and same shall not be filled up from candidate of waiting
list — Further, Circular does not refer that it would be applicable only
in case of Class Il employees. [Poornendra ] Prakash Shukla Vs. State
of M.P.] %143

W — 373'59‘?."226‘—5'?7? Raa 9 — TS WY BT TRTT
— gaiogar — afatEiRE — wRyA . 7.3.2012 @ Far, afy gder =
aﬂﬁ&m%ﬂvmmhmaﬁ#wumﬂﬁﬁrm%mﬂﬁ'
9 weE @ R R, e owww u @ Raw e e e feer
ST Stk w9 udear g @ aweff @« ww S - gue afulE,
qﬂqaﬁﬁﬁﬁmaﬁmﬁsﬁms?ﬂﬁ—llaﬁfaﬁma%uwﬁﬁ
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- A w ] (Qofer geTe yEer . Ay, ) _ .. *143

Constitution — Article 226 — Suppression of Material Facts —
Effect —Petitioner suppressed the fact that a civil suit in respect of the
same issue is pending before the trial Court — Conjointreading of writ
petition and civil suit shows direct nexus between both the matter —
Factual background of both matters are similar A ction of petitioner
is deprecated — Serious disputed question of facts are involved in
relation to formation of partnership firm, which cannot be decided in
this writ petition — Petitioner free to establish his rights in pending
civil suit, [Satpuda Infracon Pvt. Ltd. (M/s.) Vs. M/s. Satpura Infracon
Pvt. Ltd.] .+ 2645

WIETT — g7 226 — Tifea® weal” & foUrT — gaTT — Y
#wawaﬁﬁmm%wﬁﬁamwn%ﬁa‘aﬂ'wﬁaﬁamﬁw
W$mﬁdﬁa%—ﬁawﬁmwmﬁaaﬁmwﬂmq€mﬁ
W AT Al B T gws wew <ffd v @ — aat wmat e
AP YN W & — AN B FRAE B Piwr B T — Anfed
qm"rﬁa:nz}Grﬁa%ﬁifsrﬁ‘awfa%ﬁwmﬁmﬁ?ruw:ﬂ'ﬂ#wélm
sﬂﬁzmﬁmﬂ'ﬁﬁﬁﬂaﬁﬁﬁn}mm—uﬁhﬁﬁﬁﬁrﬁamﬁ
I FfteERl B vonfig wxa 2g w@dw @ (FagsT s3I Uiy (1)
fa. }. |aqRT s=THTT wnfi) ..2645

* Constitution — Article 226 — Writ Petition ~ Suppression of
Material Facts — Practice — Held — Apex Court concluded thata litigant
must approach the Court with clean hands, clean mind, clean heart and
clean objective —In cases of suppression of material facts, litigant is
not entitled to be heard on merits. [Satpuda Infracon Pvt. Ltd. (M/s.)
Vs. M/s. Satpura Infracon Pvt. Ltd.] 2645

: I — g 226 — Re mfyer — afegw =g w0 fourr —
q@ﬁ—aﬁrﬁmﬁa-ﬂﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁm%ﬁigﬁﬁm
F AT B GIE GO A, A 7, W g W6 WE Ry
a%mummaﬂ%\r—q“ﬁuaﬂvﬁ‘#‘aﬁmmawfaﬁﬁwmwﬁ,
HEHAN ORI WX GAOE 5 W @1 geErR T8 2 (wagsT
e nfa. (1) R A guge swetT wf) 2645

. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 53-A — See —
Penal Code, 1860, Section 376 [Ramnath Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2706
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§U FiFar WRoL 1973 (1974 @7 2), ST 53—V — 26 — 7ve
gfear, 1860, =T 376 (el fa. w4, xTWa) (DB)...2706

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 118 — Child
Witness — Held — A child witness is competent witness u/S 118 Cr.P.C.
[Vinay Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2752

7vE giyar GiFar, .1973 (1974 &1 2] &I°T 118 — Enaiﬁ el —
afifeiRa — arr 118 <YW, & wla, o well s v we 2
(fra 14 w9, w=7) " (DB)...2752

Criminal Procedure Code, 1 973 (2 of 1974), Section 177 & 178
— See — Penal Code, 1860, Section 498-A [Dushyant Singh Gaharwar
Vs. State of ML.LP.] ...*135

. TUs Hfrar gleal, 1973 (1974 a'g'r'z), GIT 177 T 178 — P& — TS
wiedr, 1860, SIVT 498—F (347 fRiw Tewawr fa. w1y, o) .. *135

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 177, 178
& 179 — Territorial Jurisdiction — Held — Combine/joint search
operation undertaken by Income Tax départment simultaneously at
Bhopal and Aurangabad — Offence can be tried by Courts otherwise
competent at both aforementioned places — Furtherheld — The locker
eventually located, though at Aurangabad, has perceptible co-relation/
nexus with subject of assessment and appellants filed their return at
Bhopal — Complaint lodged at Bhopal is maintainable — Objection
rejected. [Babita Lila Vs, Union of India] ~ (80)...2587

GUS FiHAT G, 1973 (1974 &1 2), €TY 177, 178 T 179 — &7
ferERar — afafaifa — A o AT gv1 Wy whure gd T
# WA /dgaa aarefl srfardl @) ¥ — SuRiad |9 R Il R IR
e ~rErad) g1 SR &1 fmrer fedr o awar & — ot aifiEfRa —
S |y T gdr o T, guafy, e o, faior @ faw @ g
FAPT T de—vadg /A=~ & aom srfrareffaer 3 e 3§ argel faaroft
TR B — A ¥ a9 uRarg vy @ — anety st R ) (i
oftar fa. gf= sife gfean) . (8C)...2587

: Criminbl Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974}, Section 195 — See
— Income Tax Act, 1961, Section 132 & 246 [Babita Lila Vs. Union of
India] o (8C)...2587
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§US FHAT wieal, 1973 (1974 &7 2)- €GNT 195 — 3@ — BV

FRFTE, 1961, IvT 132 T 246 (afan e . gfra &itw sRam)  (SC)...2587

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 218 —
Framing of Charge — Held — Charge is the parameter set by the Court
within which the trial is to be conducted — —Framing of Charge thus gives
a clear understanding and an opportunity to acensed to know the exact
offence for which he is tried. [Krishan Mohan Agrawal Vs. State of
M.P.] ..*140

TUS Af#AT Aledl, 1973 (1974 BT 2), €T 218 —-am‘trf%?ﬁi?rmr
oy — afafreiRa — aRiy, <y gw fEfRa 98 Amrevs 2 fowrs
Hiax faamer warfaa fear s sar @ — @a: aniy fRfr fear s,
frgTa & ade e, Rras fay swer fErer frar o <271 2, %1 9
T @ Y 1T Yo WY U9 ¢e wEex a1 2| (a?mﬂia'rrmﬁ‘f
Y. I54Y) .. %140

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 243(2) &
482 —~ Right of Defence — Counter case lodged between parties —

Accused/pehtmners filed application to call the MLC doctor in defence,

who has been cited as a prosecutlon witness in the counter case —

Application was dismissed — Challenge to — Held — Right to defence is

a valuable right — For ensuring fair trial, opportunity to accused to call
his defence witness is necessary — Trial Court directed to allow
petitioner to summon MLC doctor - Petition allowed, [J ugal Das Vs.
State of ML.P.] . ‘ . «a¥139

a'vr-fm%fzzr WIed], 1973 (1974 BT 2), &RT 243(2) T 482 — 9919 &7 - -

HEFI — TEHRT $ T GR—UFT oof — aifrgaw /arirT F g4 ¥
v W Fafecas & g @ 8 e wwgd e, R gf—geer
¥ sfiraieE wiE & wu A Sfeafaw frar mr @ — amdws @i faar
T — @t gt — ANFETRT — T99 =1 alker ve geET e @
~ frsagr femmor giiia o3 @ fav afrgea s susr 999 well ga
BT JTR AES & — A & 07 v W Rifyreas o 997 s 6@
mﬁre#z’gﬁﬁmwaﬁﬁémﬁﬁmw mﬁmwl
(e T 4 AL wew) - CLL*139

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 397 & 401
— Revision Against Acquittal —Held — Appellants alongwith other group

»
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members were been chased by pohcemen and while running, appellant
suddenly turned around and fired a shot —In such a situation, other
persons cannot be held vicariously liable for such action —No evidence
- whether other accused persons incited appellant or commended him
for shooting the deceased —Trial Court rightly acquitted other accused-
persons — Revision dismissed. [Deshpal Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2717

TUS JiHAT Gledl 1973 (1974 FT 2), GINT 397 401 — TI9YlFT P
favwg gadiaer — affEiRa — gfawshiat R, Wi @ o= et @
wr—mumaﬁmmﬂmﬁ?mwwmammgqmﬁmaﬁ
IamE N8 1 i Mol aad — ¢t gRRkefy ¥, s aafymat ot v
w3 fay gfatifres wu 9 sl 1 gevrar s wear — 1 wew
2 5 s afgarrr @ afieneff o s fear @1 qaw H Ml T
B¢ SHST WIEAT Y — Ener rraw F s afg e 7 s
9 Fiwaa fear — gadie "@Tﬁrrrl(émﬁi 7.4, ¥s9)(DB)...2717 -

Criminal Procedure C‘ode 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 397 & 401
- Revision Against Acquittal — Jurisdiction of High Court — Limited
Powers — Held —In revisionary jurisdiction against acquittal, High Court
is not supposed to enter-into merits of matter and re-appreciate the
evidence and substitute one possible view. for another — High Court
can set aside the ‘order of acquittal even at the instance of private
parties, but this Jurlsdlctlon should be exercised in exceptional cases —
List of such circumstances, enumerated and discussed. [Deshpal Vs.
State of M.P.] : (DB)...2717

. 'TUS ABIT GIEdT, 1973 (1974 BT 2). ST 397 § 401 — FIHlIT
@ fawg g — g ey & GfeiRar — @i afiaar —
afafraiRa — siwfe @ fReg-gman @ afteRar ¥, s=a =
N P @ RIS N AR S0 U9 Wi &7 (A eqieT AT a2
UF Warer gfesin st aru gResior @ wieeif s adfera a& @
— 99 NAIEd YTEde Y@SRT $ Ay W A i 1 e sura
PR GHAT B, I §9 ARBTIRGT T 9HiT uafyd wawen F fpar e
m—ﬁmm‘aﬁ@.unﬁmwmﬁm R 3. 7.9,
we L : (DB)...2717

Criminal Pracedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sectmn 482 —
Circumstancés where jurisdiction u/S 482 Cr.P.C. can be invoked,
discussed and explained, specifying the guidelines of the Apex Court.
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-[Amita Shrivastava (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.] . ...2868

qUS FfFar Wiear, 1973 (1974 &7 2), &INT 482 — ufRkfrafear, et
HRT 482 .9.9. © Jaid Afr&RAr &1 Iqad foR—r & 9@ar £, gaf=a
=Ty @ fewmEw o fafafds ovd gy fafaa @ wse & 0
(afrar sharsag (serdl) fa. .9, /=) : ...2868

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 — Police
Investigation — Scope & Jurisdiction — Held — Court in exercise of
powers u/S 482 Cr.P.C. cannot direct the police to investigate the case
from a particular point of view and cannot supervise investigation by
issuing directions as to in what manner it is to be done, as the
investigation is the domain of police —~ Court can interfere with
investigation where investigating. officer acted in violation of any
statutory provisions of law putting personal liberty of person in jeopardy
or investigation is not bonafide or investigation is tainted being baised.
or malafide — No allegation against any investigating officer —
Application dismissed. [Prabal Dogra Vs. Superintendent of Police,
Gwalior & State of M.P.] ...2881

TUS FIHAT Gleal, 1973 (1974 &7 2), €’ 482 — qlorg J=9vr —
arfia 7 affeRar — afafaifa - =amarew gvs wfear dfedar 9 awx
482 & T Uil & AT ¥ gHeeT @1 a=awvr faf fafdire gfesto
¥ o34 vy gfow & PR 9 sx wear 9er Ry ot eve s
&7 yddge T & W fr aw fow G | fear o 2, w1t s=gaor
ofev @7 AR &89 2 — Arad A9YeT # A& Y GHdl & el
3w RS & wfed @) e wamar # e ¥ e gY Ak @
foeft it ST Suast &1 Sews fear 8t ar Ayt agmTEyef T 8 @
TN QEARIYS] AT JWIANYEdD BT B IRV gfg ' — fed
F_yw Afe % fawg ol afeus @ — adeT @R (gga s
fa. gui¥eTe afw gfaw, wfamr gos 7y, =) ...2881

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 — See
— Negotiable Instruments Act, 1881, Section 138 & 141 [Ganesh Vs.
Chhidamilal] .. *136

TvS FERAT GIRTL, 1973 (1974 &7 2), 8T 482 — 7@ — Gvarg
forea siferfaag, 1881, g 138 7 141 (Ui fa. feafare)  ...*136

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 — See

»
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—.Penal Code, 1860, Sectmn 415 & 420 [Amlta Shrivastava (Smt ) Vs,
State of M.P.] ..2868

FUS HIFAT GIeTr, 1973 (1974 &T 2), 9T 482 — 3@ — gvs widl,
1860, €I%T 415 T 420 (Ffaar sarsa (shadfl) R 79.-w59)  ...2868

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 and
Constitution — Article 21 — Police Investigation — Documents — Held
— Where material produced by accused is such to conclude that his
defence is based on sound, reasonable and indubitable facts and same .
rules out the assertions made in complaint, High Court can always look
into those documents, even at an early stage of trial — Free and fair
investigation is the fundamental right of accused das guaranteed under
Article 21 of Constitution. [Prabal Dogra Vs. Superintendent of Police,
‘Gwalior & State of ML.P.] . ...2881

. TS FISAT GIGT 1973 (1974 &7 2), &NT 482 ¥q WiIgr7 —
FgeBT 21 — glorg F39er — Fwardo — AffEiRa — el alges grr
uﬁmﬂmﬂﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁaﬂﬁﬁq%ﬁfaﬁmmaﬁr qfaga @
freie a2at. w smERa @ gur @ tRaw ¥ Rl T urEm %t i
B ¥, Ied A AR o geard vww w H wda e9 gkl
® AR w) wear @ - @ Y Frog a=awer afteged &1 e
- aftee @ St 5 WfiEE @ o8 21 © siava vwd €1 (vad
st fa guieee afw gfaw, afaaz ws w1y, 31=9) ...2881

Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Sections 126(4) & (5), 135 & 154(5)
— Electricity Theft Case — Civil Liability — Petitioner held guilty for
offence u/S 135 of the Act of 2003 and civil liability was calculated
-applying Section 126 (5) & (6) of the Act —.Challenge to — Held — Trial
Court wrongly applied provisions for calculating the loss cost — It was
obligatory upon trial Court to determine civil liability applying Section
154(5) of the Act of 2003 which prescribes procedure for determination
of civil liability for theft of electrical energy in terms of money —
Impugned order relating to determination of civil liability is set aside —
Revision allowed. [M.P. Rajya Vidyut Mandal (M.P.P.K.V.V. Co. Ltd.)
Vs. Indrajeet Sahu] ' .. *141

faga sfefaas (2003 BT 36). EINTY 126(4) T 5, 135 T 154(5) —
e =iVt a1 g@vor — Rifder @ifies — arefl &t 2003 B ARFEA I G
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_1asa}aaﬁﬂmaaﬂaisﬁmwawafﬁﬁwaﬁm126(5)3
(6) B @ B gY Rf¥w g @ G @) g eoff — Bt gArd —
FfHfEiRa — fEre e 3 w1f @ o @ wTver e 2
"SUHE. # T WU A AT AT — Rawor s 2003 @ arftifa @)
-8RI 154(5), W fagga s @Y W 29, @ @ W F, Rl a i @
gaumer 8 A fafra st ® @ @rp wxa gy fufra wifies @
HFEARYT FY B FAT qreaareds on — Rifte <T@ saeRr @ welta
aefid aRw v frar T - gﬁmqﬁgt(wﬁmﬁqaq@a

(s = € fa) fa ol uy) ' ..*141
Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 6 — See — Penal Code, 1860,
Section'376 [Ramnath Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2706

wrew ST (1872 @1 1) 8T 6 — & — TS WIAdI, 1860, TvT
376 (reTrer fq. 9. =) (DB)...2706

Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 106 — See — Penal Code, 1860,
Sections 302, 364-A, 201 & 120-B [In Reference Vs. Rajesh @ Rakesh]
(DB)...2826

T S (1872 T 1), G 106 — @@ — TvS GRII, 1860, SRIC
302, 364~ 201 T 120-¥ (37 W= fA. W 9¢ wDw). (DB)...2826

" Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 114-A — See — Penal Code,
1860, Section 376(2)(g) [Dhanraj Singh Vs. State of MLP.] ...*134

GIET I (1872 &7 1), SI°T 114—Y —la‘@" — ¥U5 G/fear, 1860,
17 376(2)(c}) (evRre R fa. 7y, <rsa) .. ¥134

: EvidénceAct (1 0f1872), Section 114(e) — See — Motor Vehicles
Rules, MP 1 994, Rule 8-4 [Rajesh Kumar Miglani Vs. State of M.P.]
. _ " (DB)...2671

T JIfEfaT (1872 &1 1), g7 114(5) — ?@ - FevY 37 A
7H. 1994, 97 8—¢ [te $aR frrar fa. wu. wem) "(DB)...2671

Income Tax Act (43 of 1961), Section 132 & 246, Criminal
. Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 195 and Penal Code (45 of

1860), Sections 191, 193 & 200 Complaint Against Assessee— Competent .

Authority to File Complaint — Deputy Director of Income Tax
(Investigation) Bhopal lodged complaint before CJM Bhopal — Held —

L]
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Deputy Director cannot be construed to be an authority to whom appeal
would ordinarily lie from decisions/orders of the Income Tax Officers
involved in search proceedings, thus not empowered to lodge complaint
against assessee — Complaint unsustainable in Iaw having been filed by
authority, incompetent in terms of Section 195 of Cr.P.C. and hence
quashed —Appeal allowed. [Babita Lila Vs. Unjon of India] (SC)...2587

STITHY JEFITT (1961 #7T 43), €T 132 T 246, 395 WiHaT Wiear
1973 (1974 BT 2), &IT 195 9 U8 GI2GT (1860 @7 45), GRTE 191, 193
7 200 — fEIRAl @ fawg wRare — yRare wiga #vd & fav waw
rfaer! — SufRes, g Y (FRy), diue ¥ e, a3
e TRae S fear — afiPeifRa - sufRus #t w Yur Tie
B &1 Fuf=a T8 fear w1 W R qeeh sefafat ¥ wie
AR SfreRAl & Fofat /ddel @ ade WPt gw9 w@h, s
FaiRdl 3 g e o s 3 fay wgaw 9 - wRae, T,
¥ 87 195 @ Preet F @ am vk grr vegw fRd W @ wam
o A T SR e afteEfye — ada wew) (sfdar e . gfee
are i) ' . (SC)...2587

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 50 & 240 — See
~ Adim-Jan Jativon Ka Sanrakshan (Vrakshon Me Hit) Adhiniyam,
M.P, 1999, Sectior 9 [Samlu Gond Vs. State of M.P.] ...2684

7 VIOYT Wial, TH. (1959 BT 20), GIT 50 T 240 — P& — fry
w7 Sfadl a1 avevr (gai F f2a) AT, .9, 1999, €T 9 (WWel S

fa. 9.9, 359) ‘ . ...2684

Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 117 ~ Adverse
Possession — Presumption — Held ~ Adverse possession is a question
of fact — Plaintiff has not filed any document in support of purchase of
land - No sale deed or any witness to sale have been examined — Sale
is not proved — Revenue records does not establish continuous
possession over 30 years on disputed land —~ No presumption can be
drawn u/S 117 of the Code of 1959. [Ramakant Pathak Vs. State of
M.P.] - ' 5  ...2699

. 7 T GRTL 1A (1959 a:‘rzo), 8T 117 — Tiogad &= —
grgreen — el — sfama T=1, vF a9y w1 gE @ - At qfy
a?ma%wahﬁ'ﬁﬁéﬂaﬁﬁrnﬁaqﬁﬁm?é—ﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁ@
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— o Afda, faarfaa 4 w30 ool @ aftre &1 PRAGR Ter enfie

T4l XA — 1959 ® WiEdT B ORI 117 & Haid HF SYIROT T

Frerelt w1 W&l (Tma weE AL ww. we) ...2699

" Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 158(d)(ii) —
Blrumiswami Rights — Held — In revenue records, disputed lands are
recorded as “Tank” since 1958 and even before — Plaintiff’s witnesses
also establishes that disputed land is a “Tank” used for nistar purposes
by villagers — Plaintiff’s father or Plaintiff not entitled the conferral of
Bhumiswami rights — Courts below rightly recorded the findings and
dismissed the suit — Appeal dismissed. [Ramakant Pathak Vs. State of
M.P.] ' ...2699

Y VIOIRT GG, WA, (1959 #T 20). GRT 158(S)i) ~ qhrearf
gl — atiteiRa — wow afieren §, faofya qfmr 1958 | o
T qd A warEy” & w9 A afifafeg — ardt 3 st | wenfaw
aw ¢ 5 fafea 4% wo werme @ Rwer ool grr Prar @
Al /g 9UAT g @ — ard) &1 frar 9 9, qfrErh afren o
9 5 WM 9 Ay soeR T — Frad <mrat ¥ sfug wv @ frsey
" gffaiaa fed der 4= R fa - md’m@nﬂm (eTIT yrow fa. 0.
. ueq) - ) "ee2699

Land Revenue Cade, M.P (20 0f 1959), Section 253 — See —
Adim Jan Jatiyon Ka Sanrakshan (Vrakshon Me Hit) Adhiniyam, M.P.,
1999, Section 4 & 9(2) [Samlu Gond Vs. State of M. P.] ...2684

q VIO Wledl, T (1959 ®T 20), €T 253 — @@ — T w7
arfaal’ a1 wvar (gen” #I?ﬁr)aﬁﬁw H.g., 1999, &I 4 69(2) GRS
s fa. 79, w=a) ) .-2684

Madhyastham Adhikaran Adhiniyam, MR (29 of 1983), Section
7-B —Appeal & Reference — Limitation — Computation — Held — Under
clause 29 of agreement which is an arbitration clause, Superintending
Engineer is not rendered functus officio merely because a dispute is
not decided within 60 days, a decision even after 60 days is a decision
under said clause and is appealable thereunder — Reference filed in
terms of Section 7-B read with appended proviso within stipulated time
is maintainable — Revision allowed. [Viva Construction Co. (M/s.) Vs.
State of M.P.] . (DB)...2774
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qrEqvRy JTerHevr ST 0.H. (1983 BT 29), T 7—§ — T
7 5% — afefiar — waopr — afafheiRa - IR @ @S 20, @ 5 v
AR ©s ®, @ ofuda, W gufay % oo faag «t 60 fas & Nax
fafifyaa & sy Tar 2, sEheer a2 vead frgm Td 8 o awt
aw f& 60 fas uzarq o1 faffre=y +ft soa @S @ sioifa yo fafreay @
aaT S99 FAavia adielm @ — garr 7—d wgufea ga= wWys & FaeE)
o, Frag wa @ R wwga By g @ — geder "9 (@ar
FewE 5. (1) f1. 1y, W) (DB)...2774

Madhyastham Adhikaran Adhiniyam, M.P. (29 of 1983), Section
7-B — Term “Decision” — Held — An indecisiveness or an indecision.on -
the part of Superintending Engineer can never be construed to be a
“decision” giving rise to avail remedy of appeal, because unless the
forum of final authority is exhausted, aggrieved person cannot avail
the remedy u/S 7-B of tlie Adhiniyam of 1983. [Viva Construction Co.
(M/s.) Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2774

gregreery Sifdravor Jfefas, 75 (1983 T 29), RT 7—41 — W=
“fafvey — afufaifRa — aeaor =5 9N ik | sFremagdear ar
afeag &1 s @ g e 5@ Far e wwar g
Ifld & IUER BT Adad SO sial &, Fife 94 a Afer vt @
i@ Ft ey w1 faar T |, =l =, 1983 @ afefem ) awr
7-1 & AT SYYR T Iqaq ) of Gwar| (@O swa &, @) fa
Y. ) ' . . (DB)...2774

Minor Mineial Rules, M.P. 1996, Rule 2(xvi-b) & 68(1) Third
Proviso — Term “Contractor” — Held — Contractor as defined in Rule
2(xvi-b) is a contractor who is granted trade quarry — Petitioners have
not been granted trade quarry, they are the contractors engaged in
Government contract — Expression contractor in third proviso to Rule
68(1) is clarified by words “engaged in construction work” —1It has to
be read together and not disjunctively. [Pankaj Kumar Rai (M/s.) Vs.
State of ML.P.] (FB)...2620

Tlor @faw (w77 1996, 9 2(xvi-dt) 7 68(1) qHA1T gvqF —
s “d@ere — AfufaiRa — P 2(xvi-f) 7 geor gReifya 393X
s g7 d@ER §.R amuiRe. wee wem @Y 1§ — AT &
2MRE e 99 wE @ 7 2, @ o) wfyer ¥ 9 gv 3R @
~ fraw 68(1) @ g Wow ¥ afafym ddar ot FEfw o 4 Tt
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. fifo w9 @1 (Wow IR ww (1) R g, wew) (FB)...2620

Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996, Rule 4 & 68(1) Third Proviso
— Statutory Interpretation — Principle of Harmoniuos Construction —
Held - No word in statute is superfluous and each word has its meaning
— A proviso to statute has to be read as a whole by giving harmonious
contruction to all provisions of law so that none of the provisions is
rendered redundant—In view of such principle, third proviso is additional
relaxation to Rule 4 and Rule 68(1) and is not illegal nor enlarges the
scope of Rule 68(1) of the Rules of 1996, [Pankaj Kumar Rai (M/s.)
Vs. State of M.P.] (FB)...2620
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Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996; Rule 68(1) Third Proviso —

' “No Mining Dues” Certificate — Held — Since minor mineral vests in
State and there is absolute prohibition in extraction of mineral other
than by quarry lease or a trade quarry or permit quarry, therefore
contractor who is engaged in construction work is required to proi'e

that such mineral is royalty paid — If State Government insist on “No

" Mining Dues” Certificate, the same cannot be said to be illegal —
Further, State Government advised to develop and adopt alternate
mechanism of issuance of online “No Mining Dues” certificate.
[Pankaj Kumar Rai (M/s.) Vs. State of M.P.] (FB)...2620
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Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996 Rule 68(1) Third Proviso —
“No Mining Dues” Certificate — Periodical Certificates — Held ~—
Condition of issuance of “No Mining Dues” certificate on furnishing
of copy of work completion certificate is not reasonable ~ Running
bills require periodical payments — Mining officer shall give “No Mining
Dues” certificate at least quarterly on basis of running bills submitted
by contractor engaged in construction work. [Pankaj Kumar Rai o/
's.) Vs. State of MLP.] - ~ "(FB)...2620
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Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 65(2)(d) and Motor
Vehicles, Rules, M.P. 1994, Rule 48(2) — Inconsistency — Held — The
"condition that an application for issue or renewal of fitness certificate
"shall be accompanied with tax clearance certificate is not inconsistent
with any provision of Central Legislation (Act of 1988). [Rajesh Kumar
Miglani Vs. State of M..P.] . - (DB)...2671

Fev 9T JFAFTT (1988 &7 59), &% 65(2)(F) v Fev w7 47,
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© WY T T @) (e gAR Prrerh AL wy =) (DB)...2671

Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section-65(2)(d) .Motoryan
Karadhan Adhiniyam, M.P, (25 of 1991), Section 3 and Motor Velicles
Rules, M.F. 1994, Rule 48(2) — Application for Fitness Certificate —
Requirement of ‘No Dues Certificate’ — Competence of State Legislature
—Held —Act of 1988 being Central Legislation does not contemplate grant
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of fitness certificate and it is left to be framed by State Government,

therefore, issuance of fitness certificate and payment of tax falls within -

legislative competence of State in terms of Section 65(2)(d) of the Act of
1988 and u/S 3 of the Adhiniyam of 1991 — Rule 48(2) of the Rules of 1994
contemplating requirement of no dues certificate for grant of fitness
certificate cannot be said to be illegal — Petition dismissed. [Rajesh Kumar
Miglani Vs, State of M.P.] . (DB)...2671
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" Motor Vehicles Rules, M.P. 1994, Rule 8-A and Evidence Act (1
of 1872), Section 114(e) — Data Updation in Official Website —
Presumption — Held — There is a presumption that official acts are
performed regularly in terms of Section 114(e) of the Act of 1872, thus

“there will be a presumption of correctness of information available on'

website — Aggrieved transporter cannot be permitted to approach writ

Court submitting that data on website is not updated and reflecting
non-payment of tax — However, State directed to update the entire data
in website and make necessary amendments in software, if required.
[Rajesh Kumar Miglani Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...2671
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Motor Kelucles Rules, M.P. 1994, Rule 48(2) — See — Motor
Vehicles Act, 1988, Section 65(2)(d) [Rajesh Kumar Miglani Vs. State
of M.P.] (DB)...2671

e arT Fram 95 1994, T 48(2) — @@ — Flev a7 AfEFaT,
1988, €T°T 65(2)(€1) RN gAR frerd fa. 1w, 57) (DB)...2671

 Motoryan Karadhan Adhiniyam, M.F., (25 of 1991 ), Section 3 —
See— Motor Vehicles Act, 1988, Section 65(2)(d) [Rajesh Kumar Miglani
Vs. State of MLP.] (DB)...2671

_ qievarT SR IR, 9.4, (1991 BT 25), 8T 3 — @@ — 7w
mmﬁw 1988, ama5(2)($)(wﬁwwﬁ1m1:ﬁﬁ 7. Ted)
(DB)...2671

Municipal Corporation Act, M.P. (23 of 1956), Section 307(5) —
Disputed Ownership — Held — Proceedings u/S 307(5) of the Act of
1956 is not like civil suit where title of parties can be decided but prima .
facie it can be looked into whether the person who has applied for
building permission is owner or not. [Shallendrl Goswaml (Smt ) Vs.
Indore Municipal Corporation] ..*146
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a# 1 @QA= wwanh () R Rk it HFRORIEA)  ...*146

Negotiable Instruments Act (26 .of 1881), Section 138 & 141
and Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 —
Necessary Party — Maintainability of Complaint — Held — Cheque
issued by Directors of Company —In a complaint u/S 138 of the Act of
1881, when Company is not arrayed as a party/accused, criminal

s
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proceedings issued against Directors is not maintainable— Proceedings

of criminal cases quashed - Petitions allowed. [Ganesh" Vs.
- Chhidamilal] o © . *136

BT e Tl (1881 BT 26) arer 138 7 141 7 gog
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 1 91, 193 & 200 — See — Income

Tax Act, 1961, Section 132 & 246 [Babita Lila Vs: Union of India]
(SC)...2587

TUE HIETT (1360 BT 45). GITT 191, 193 T 200 — Fed — STIBY
ST, 1961, aRRT 132 ¥ 2465 (af¥ar fa. gfme atw gieam)
o | (SC)...2587

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 201, 302 & 3 76(2)(g) w34

Gang Rape and Murder — Circumstantial Evidence — Motive — Held -
In case of murder based on circumstantial evidence, motive gains
significance —It is established that soon after rape of prosecutrix, she
and her companion was murdered so that they would not come forward
to depose against appellants. [In Reference Vs. Ashok] (DB)...2783

© TS GRAT (1860 BT 45), GIIT 201, 302 T 376(2)(f}) wEvld 34
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 201 s 302 & 376(2)(g) r/w 34 -
Gang Rape and Murder — Death Sentence —Appreciation of Evidence.
~ Circumstantial Evidence & DNA Report — Prosecutrix was raped
and she alongwith her companion were murdered by ai)pe!la_nts‘— Held
—As per DNA report, appellant’s DNA was matched and was found on
underwear and vaginal swab of prosecutrix — Evidence of seizuré of
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“mobile phone & silver payal of prosecutrfx and shoes of her companion
. duly established and proved beyond reasonable doubt — Call details

also establishes commission of offence by appellants —Evidence shows
“that chain of circumstantial eviderice is complete — Case do not fall in

category of “Rarest of Rare” case — Death sentence modified to life

imprisonment — Criminal reference rejected — Appeals allowed to such
extent. [In Reference Vs. Ashok] . (DB)...2783
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 201, 302 & 376(2)(g) r/w 34—
Gang Rape and Murder — Death Sentence — Rarest of Rare Case —
Aggravatmg and Mitigating Circumstances — Held — Upon comparison
of aggravating and mitigating circumstances, the mitigating
circumstances have far away outweighed the aggravating circumstances
— Further, it is not possible to identify which accused case falls in
category of rarest of rare case— Capital punishment imposed is altered
to life imprisonment [In Reference Vs. Ashok] (DB)...2783
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Penal Code (45 bf 1860), Section 302 — Murder — Conviction -

Life Imprisonment — Appreciation of Evidence — Appellant

-administered poison (Sulphas) to child of complainant — Complainant
" saw appellant giving water from nand (pof)‘whereafter child cried loud
and died — Held - Despite evidence that appellant took water from
nand (pot), the same was neither recovered/seized nor water of the pot
was taken for exaimination — No evidence led by prosecution directly
or indirectly that appellant had poisonin her possession or from where
_she procured and in which place same was stored — Prosecution failed
-.to prove necessary ingredients — Appellant discharged — Appeal

- allowed. [Shanti Bai (Smt.) Vs, State of M.P.] (DB)...*147
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(sfrre) . 7w, ) (DB)...*147

Penal Code (45 of 1860}, Section 302 — Murder — Conviction —
Testimony of witnesses — Ocular & Medical Evidence — Discrepancy —

Effect — Held — The 6nly eye witness of the case stated that only one -

blow was given on-the head of deceased whereas the doctor who
exam‘ined_ the'deceased stated that he found four injuries on his head
’ _a'mi further the doctor who performed autopsy stated that he found
nine‘injuries, all on head and face of deceased — A slight discrepancy
"in medical and oral evidence is not material as the time of incident was
3-3:30 am and there was not much light and all the persons were under
the influence of liguor. [Hari Vs. State of MLP.] (DB)...*138
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iy ofexT @ wame F o) (R fA. w3, <wsa) (DB)...*138

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302/34 — Appreciation of
Evidence — Eye Witnesses — Ocular & Medical Evidence —Held — Previous
enmity existed between parties regarding property — Eyewitnesses
deposed that they saw the accused giving beatings to deceased with lathi
while medical evidence suggests that cause of death was due to fatal injury
by a sharp edged weapon — Contradictions in deposition of eye witnesses
—Further, police Officer who conducted seizure proceedings and prepared
seizure memo was not examined — Evidence creates serious doubt on
prosecution case — Conviction and sentence set aside — Appeal allowed.
[Baliraj Singh Vs. State of MLP.] (8C)...26014 -

gvs #ledr (1860 @7T-45) €T 302/34 — WET FT JoATHT —
7l GrefRrer — Frgy v9 Rifeodia ey — aftifaife - i @
ey W el @ € qd duw faemm — aggeefl wefror 2 aftraren
foar f5 s=14 aftgaa @1 @l ¥ aw &) e o=xa 2T o wsfs
Frfseia a1er Yol @ % 4o 0% 9IRER U6l §RT 91a@ 91 ® SIR0T
g% off — gl we o @ afiroen ¥ ftams - gue afaRe g
Aftrer fav W=t sfarfzan Safaa 3 & sedfl—a= darx e o, @1
e T fear war an — wiE, afmEe yeRer R THR wdw fiffa
o 2 — Ry vd quee e AurE — i WoR | (gefivrer s f3. Wy,
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Penal Code (45 of 1860),, Section 302/34 — Appreciation of

]

. Evidence — Interested/Related Withesses — Held — Courts below failed

‘to scrutinize the prosecution evidence with utmost care when eye,
witnesses are closely related infer-se and to the deceased. [Baliraj
Singh Vs. State of M.P.] e e (SC)...2614
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 120-B & 201 - Murder -
Circumstantial Evidence — Held —In case of circumstantial evidence,
not only various links in chain of evidence should be clearly established
but complete chain must be such as to rule out the likelihood of
innocence of accused ~ In present case, only circumstances of last
seen together cannot by itself be made basis for conviction, [Kishan

Singh @ Krishnapal Singh Vs, State of M.P.] (DB)...2739

T GIewr (1860 BT 45) SNIY 302 120-3 T 201 — EeAT —
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. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 120-B & 201 — Murder —
Conviction — Circumstantial Evidence — Evidence of Last Seen
Together— Held — As per medical evidence, homicidal death not proved
and in absence of such, appellants cannot be convicted merely on last
seen theory — Unexplained delay in recording statement of prosecution
witnesses and on their part in disclosing the fact of last seen together
to police ~ No conclusive proof to establish link connecting appellants
with the offence — Appéllants entitled to benefit of doubt — Conviction
. set aside — Appeals allowed. [Kishan Singh @ Krishnapal Singh Vs.
State of M.P.] (DB)...2739
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 120-B & 201 — Murder -
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Memorandum and Seizure Documents — Authenticity — Held — Major
discrepancies, vital contradictions and embellishment in evidence of
prosecution witnesses makes prosecution story doubtful and gives
strength to claim .of appellants that memorandum and seizure
documents were made up and fabricated. [Kishan Singh @ Krishnapal
Smgh Vs. State of ML.P.] (DB)...2739
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¥ A i, Wﬂfﬁﬁmammmm“maﬁ
glerae e ¥ @i afreneffor @ 39 9 B 9@ 2@ & ¥ e qer
WWGW@&T@W&H%l(ﬁﬂWﬁ%Wﬂ?WﬁE
fa. w9, www) , (DB}...2739

Penal Code (45 of 1 860), Section 302-& 3 04 Part IT — Murder —
Motive/Intention to Kill— Held — It is true that appellant was not armed
with any weapon when he met the deceased, suddenly appellant picked
. up a piece of wood and gave blows to deceased — Appellant gave
repeated blows, he might not have any intention for causing death, but
intention arose immediately before the incident — Case does not fall
under any exceptions of Section 300 IPC — Offence u/S 302 IPC made -
out— Appellant rightly convicted and sentenced /S 302 IPC —-A‘ppeal
dismissed. [Hari Vs. State of M.P.] : (DB),..*138
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 & 323— Murder - Conviction
— Testimony of witnesses — Identity of Accused — Ocular & Medical
Evidence— Effect—Held —1Itis undisputed that appellant/accused was not
known to prosecution witnesses prior to the incident and it appears that
for the first time accused entered info the said village Complamant and
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prosecution witnesses identified the accused before the trial Court—No
such fact came in cross-examination of prosecution witnesses which would
indicate that they werenotin a position to identify the accused before the
" Court—No doubt created regarding identity of accused — Further held —
Oral evidence were supported by medical evidence — It was proved that
present appellant caused injuries due to which deceased died. [$antosh
Vs. State of M. P.] . (DB)...2735
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 & 323 and Arms Act (54 .

of 1959), Section 25(1-B)(a) & 27 — Murder — Conviction — Private
Defence — Deceased who was unarmed, was chasing the appellant

alongwith police personnels, when appellant turned around and fired

upon him — Held — Relations between parties were inimical —
Prosecution case based on direct evidence, where five eye witnesses
were examined — Appellant has no right of private defence against an

unarmed person, that too.in presence of four armed policemen —.

" Defence also failed to prove that any person from victim’s party was
armed even with a stick — Appellants rightly convicted — Appeal
dismissed. [Deshpal Vs, State of M.P.] (DB)...2717
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sectums 302 323 & 304 Part IT -
Murder — Motive/Intention to kill — Previons Enmity — Held — There
was no previous enmity between deceased and appellant —Two injuries
were caused on his head due to which deceased died — As per the facts

- of the present case, the appellant has no motive to kill the deceased,
there appears to be no intention as well — Case falls under provisions
of Section 304 Part I1 IPC - Conviction converted into one u/S.304

- part II IPC ~ Conviction u/S 323 upheld - Appeal partly allowed.

[Santosh Vs. State of ML.P.] - - (DB). ..2735

3TS Wi3ar (1860 BT 45), GrI¢ 302, 323 T 304 4T I - sear —
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"1 — anfrer s ﬂﬁ[gl(wahrﬁ‘r AY. W) . (DB)...2735

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Secttons 302, 364-4, 201 & 120-B —
Kidnapping & Murder of Minor Boy — Conviction — Death Sentence —
Circumstantial Evidence — Presumption — Held — Case based on -
circumstantial evidence — No eye witness — As per postmortem'report,
| cause of death due to cut of neck by sharp cutting object — As per DNA
report 'DNA of hairs found.in fingers of deceased was similar to DNA
 profile of appellant — Having proved theé factum of kidnapping for
ransom, inference of consequential murder of kidnapped person is
-liable to be presumed — Substantive evidence on record to establish
. kidnapping of deceased followed by his murder at the hands of
appellants — Convnctlon upheld - Appeals dlsmlssed ‘[In Reference -

Vs. Ra]esh @ Rakesh] . (DB): ..2826
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 364-4, 201 & 120-B —

Kidnapping & Murder of Minor Boy — Sentence — Held — Looking to.

nature and way of committing offence, no possibility of any reform and
" rehabilitation of appellants — Appellants having no value for human
life, carrying extreme mental perversion not worthy of human
condonation — Approach of accused reveals a brutal mindset of highest
" order — Death sentence confirmed — Aggravating and Mitigating
circumstances enumerated and discussed on facts of the case. [In
Reference Vs. Rajesh @ Rakesh] ' (DB)...2826
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Penal Code (45 of 1.8,50),"Sections 302, 364-A, 201 & 120-B and
Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 106 — Burden of Proof — Held —When it

is duly established that deceased was kidnapped by appellants, section )

106 of the Act of 1872 places onus on them to produce material to show
the release of deceased from their custody —In absence thereof, it has to
be accepted that custody remained with them till deceased was murdered.
[In Reference Vs. Rajesh @ Rakesh] : (DB)..:2826
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FfafTgw (1872 T 1), &% 106 — Wd FT TV — affeiRe — wa w8
T By ¥ wenfye fear o @ 5 qae o1 e adferefir gr
frT. T AT, 1872 @ AIPRT ) SR 106 99 WX, VD) AfREw ¥ @
qﬁﬁmsrmmﬁﬁq,mmuﬁwmmmm?ﬁé FUDL

" arpaReify ¥, a8 Wew frr 9T 81 5 7aw B s @ W 9§ T
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, 376(A4), (D) — Rape —
Evidence.— Minor Contradictions — Held — Courts ihile trying an
accused on charge of rape must deal with utmost sensitivity, examine
the broader probability of case and not get swayed by minor
contradictions or insignificant discrepancies in the evidence whlch are
not of a substantial character. [Vinay Vs. State of M. P] (DB) 2752

qUS GIRGT (1860 FT 45). €I%T 302, 376 (T). (S — IAHT — W&
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& gter =iy (R f1. w9, ) (DB)...2752

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 3 02, 376(A), (D) & 449 and.
Protection of Children from Sexual Offences Act, (32 of 201 2), Section
6 — Rape & Murder — Minor Girl — Conviction — Death Sentence —
Circumstantial Evidence — DNA Test ~ Held — Appellant is uncle of
" the victim — Medical evidence proves that victim'was sexually assaulted
before murder — As per DNA report, which is a scientific evidence,
appellant’s sperm and semens found in vaginal swab and clothes of
victim and there is no explanation by appellant in this regard — -DNA
report is reliable to sustain conviction — Conviction can be based on
circumstantial evidence — Conviction upheld — Death sentence set aside
and life imprisonment imposed — Appeal partly allowed — Reference
discharged. [Vinay Vs. State of MLP.] . (DB).. 2752

TUS GIRGT (1860 BT 45), TINIS 302, 376 (V). (1) 7 449 vT W Fw
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Penal Code (45 of 186 0), Section 376 — Conviction — Life
Imprisonment — Appreciation of Evidence — Testimony of Prosecutrix ~
Minor contradictions — Effect — Held — Rape committed by father on his
minor daughter aged about 14 yrs. — Victim carrying fetus of 14-16 weeks
- Pl"o.s'ecutrix giving evidence in detail regarding instances of rape does
not amount to improvement with regard to FIR and case diary statements
~Mere extracting out minor contradictions and inconsistencies in cross
examination of the prosecutrix is not sufficient to discredit the veracity of
her evidence — Trial Court rightly awarded life sentence — Appeal
dismissed. [Ramnath Vs. State of M.P. (DB)...2706
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Penal Code (45 of 186 0), Section 376 and Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 53-A —DNA Profiling — Held - Provision
of Section 53-A Cr.P.C. was inserted w.e.f. 23.06.06 whereas the incident
is 0f 2005, thus it was not mandatory for prosecution to get DNA profiling
of prosecutrix, her fetus and appellant to ascertain that appellant was the
father of fetus — Non holding of DNA test will not affect the prosecution
case adversely. [Ramnath Vs, State of ML.P.] (DB)...2706
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(1974 @T 2), GIT 53-¢ — g0 giwrgiers — afafeaifa — amr 53-¢
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HYAT ATAS & &7 — IITTE G 7 HRAr 1L RIS @ gdeeT
# ufred vu 9 gwifaa 7€ S| (e 4. 29, w=a)  (DB)...2706

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 and Evidence Act (I of
1872), Section 6 — Hearsay Evidence — Admissibility — Held — As both
prosecution witnesses are close relatives (mausi and mami) of -
prosecutrix and that she lost her mother long back before incident,
she confided in them as to the person who was behind her pregnancy —
It does not fall under hearsay evidence —In fact and situation, evidence
reliable and admissible u/S 6 of the Act of 1872, [Ramnath Vs. State of
M.P.] ' (DB)...2706

. TUS GIRGT (1860 BT 45), TIXT 376 VT eI AT (1872 BT 1),
ST 6 — Jggad arg — FiEgar — atafieiRa — gfs a7 sl
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Penal Code (45 of 1868), Section 376(2)(g) — Rape —Conviction
— Medical Evidence — Injury - Held — If sexual intercourse committed
forcibly by two persons, prosecutrix would certainly receive injuries ~
Absence of any injury on person of prosecutrix including private parts
Ieads to conclusion that either appellants did not resort to offence of
forcible sexual intercourse or it was with her tacit consent — Statement
of prosecutrix is contrary to medical evidence and thus do not inspire

confidence — Conviction set aside — Appeal allowed. [Dhanraj Singh
Vs. State of M.P.] .. ¥134

' gUS Wikar (1860 T 45) €T 376(2)(f}) — FEICWT — TURAE —
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Penal Code (45 of 1 860), Section 3 76(2)(g) & Evidence Act (1_
of 1872), Section 114-4 — Presumption — Onus of Proof — Medical
Evidence-Held —In a Tape case, the onus is always on prosecutrix to
prove affirmatively each ingredients of offence, it seeks to establish
and such onus never shifts — Trial Court erred in raising presumption
w/S 114-A of the Act of 1872 in absence of any medical evidence
regarding resistance/injury. [Dhanraj Singh Vs. State of M.P.]...*134
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 407, 409 & 420 — Framing of
Charge — Ingredients —Applicant, the owner of warehouse from where
- foodgrains of farmers were found missing - Charge framed u/S 409 &
420 IPC — Held — Principal offence of criminal breach of trust is prima
facie made out but charge framed w/S 409 do not relate to warehouse
keeper — Alleged offence specifically falls within purview of Section
407 IPC - Trial Court directed to frame charge u/S 407 IPC alongwith
Section 420 IPC — Revision allowed. [Krishan Mohan Agrawal Vs. State
of M.P.] ' «..*140
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 415.& 420 — Cheating -
Ingredients of — Discussed and explained. [Amita Shrivastava (Smt.)
Vs. State of MLP.] ...2868

- §OF wiear (1860 ?}745),..9‘7?7'415 7420 — BF — D "Hew — faAfaa .
v e f5 ) (@fwr sfarae () @ aw. wosa) o ..2868

‘Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 415 & 420 and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 — Cheating and Forgery
— Ingredients — Applicants/land owners entered into agreement to sale
with “A” whereby a cheque of Rs. 1 lakh was paid as advance which
was later dishonoured — Vide notice, agreement was cancelled and
applicants entered into fresh agregmenf with “B” wherebya cheque of
Rs. 19 lakh- was paid as advance — Due to objection raised by “A”,
subsequent agreement was not finally executed and “B” also failed to
pay the remaining amount — Applicants cancelled subsequent
agreement and returned the advance amount to “B”, who filed private
- complaint whereby cognizance taken by Court — Held — Petitioners
were bonafide, there is no deception with fraudulent or dishonest
intention — Complaint and order taking.cognizance quashed —
Application allowed. [Amita Shrivastava (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.]

’ ' ...2868
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Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 498-A and Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 177 & 178 — Continuing Offence in
relation to territorial jurisdiction and in relation to limitation to taking

cognizance — Discussed and explaiueﬁ. [Dushyant Singh Gaharwar Vs.
State of M.P.] ' .. %135

GUS GI2GT (1860 BT 45). €T 498—V YT 708 HlHAT wlewl, 1973

{1974 ¥T 2), &Ter 177 T 178 — W= A & fag &7 FftreiRaT @ W9

¥ gor gREr @ w9 4 ol W arer ey — fafaw | s fear
T (gd g TEvar f3 1y 399) ...¥135

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 498-A and Criminal Procedure
Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 177 & 178 — Territorial Jurisdiction —
Held — As i)er the FIR and statements of complainant’s witnesses u/S
161 Cr.P.C., all the instances of alleged cruelty regarding dowry
demands were committed in district Shahdol in matrimonial home —
None stated that any instance took place at wife’s parental home at
district Satna — Case triable at Shahdol and not in district Satna —
Impugned order set aside — Revision allowed. [Dushyant Singh
Gaharwar Vs. State of M.P.] - ...*135

TS WIRAT (1860 BT 45), SIRT 498—F VT VS JHAT Gledr, 1973
(1974 FT 2), &RT 177 § 178 — @717 FfereRar — stafEiRa — g
AT TRIAET U1 9T 161 0.9, F Fada wRard B [refTor & FUA
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M wew woh @ tgF e, fuwem wawr W ud — gk, wesid #
frareofta @ ok 7 fo R wawr ¥ - an@fia ey A — g
HoR | (gsad Rig TR fa 4y, o) ...*135

Prevention of Corruption Act (49 of 1988), Sections 7, 13(1) (d).

& 13(2) and Constitution — Article 20 & 20(3) — Admissibility of Voice
Recording —Application by prosecution for providing voice sample of
accused persons was allowed — Challenge to — Held — Trial has not yet
commenced — Charges have not been framed by trial Court—Providing
voice sample would not prejudice to the applicant — Voice recorder
conversation is admissible in evidence and there is no violation of
Article 20 or 20(3) of Constitution — Application dismissed. [Buddha
Sen Kumhar Vs. State of M.P.] (DB)...*132
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Prevention of Food Adulteration Act (37 of 1954), Sections 2(ia), .
7(i), 13(2), 16(1)(a)(i) & 20-A — Adulteration and Misbranding —
Quashment of Charge — Petition against frammg of charges against
the shop owner and manufacturer (present applicant) — Food inspector
carried out inspection of a shop purchased three packets of fraldi and
sent for public analyst whereby it was revealed that same was
adulterated and misbranded — Held — U/S 13(2) of the Act of 1954,
applicant can request for Re-examination of the sample from the Central
Food Laboratory but in the present case, shelf life of sample of haldi
has lapsed prior to filing of complaint before the Court, thus defence
of applicant would be severély prejudiced if right available u/S 13(2) of
the Act of 1954 is taken away — Cognizance taken against the applicant
so far it relates to adulteration is hereby set aside —~ Further held —
Perusal of complaint shows that on the cover of the seized article (haldi
packets), complete name and address’ of the manufacturing or
packaging unit has not 'been provided, hence for the charge of
misbranding, prima facie case is made out against the-applicant—For
the charge of misbranding, trial may proceed — Application partly
allowed. [Sai Enterprises (IM/s.) Vs, State of M.P.] .. %144
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Profection of Children from Sexual Offences Act, (32 of 2012),
Section 6 — See — Penal Code, 1860, Sections 302, 376(A), (D) & 449
[Vinay Vs. State of M.P.) ‘ : (DB)...2752

dPre sroererl” & Sra@l w7 GYEOT IfeHAIE, (2012 @7 32), GNT 6
— 7@ — 7v% widar 1860, STV 302, 376 (¢), () T 449 (fa7a fa. 5.
o) (DB)...2752

Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act (43 of 2005),
Sections 3, 18 & 31 — Economic Abuse — Protection Order — Breach of
Maintenance Order—Held — If there is any instance of domestic violence
for which an affirmative or prohibitory order is passed u/S 18 of the Act of
2003, provisions of Section 31 of the Act can be invoked for breach of
such order—Non-payment of maintenance allowance is also a breach of
‘protection.order’ or ‘interim protection order’ — Application u/S 31 is
maintainable. [Surya Prakash Vs. Smt. Rachna] (DB)...*150

R 2 & #fFaran’ a1 wveaor IffaaT (2005 BT 43), INTY 3,
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Rewa Stﬁte Land Revenue and Tenancy Code, 1935, Section
--57(4) and Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and Tenancy Act, 1953 (3
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‘ aof 1 955), Section 149, 151(2) & (3) - Galrlquar Tenam‘ = Patta -
'Held — A gairhagdar téenant cannot. get patta of “Tank” w/S 57(4) of the -
"Code 0f 1935~ Slmllarly, right of pattedar tenant shall not accrue or
-deemed to"have accrued in respect of a Tank — Patta of this land cannot
be granted u/S 151 of Act of 1953. [Ramakant Pathak Vs. State of
M.P] | . . 2699 -
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Service Law — Class. IIT (Non-Ministerial and Ministerial) Jail
Service Recruitment Rules, M.P, 1974, Schedule Sr. No. 7 & 8 — Music
Teacher — Principle of Equal Pay for Equal Work — Pay Scale — Held —
Qualifications and duties of a Music Teacher of educational department
and that of Jail department are different— Duties in educational department
is full time whereas in jail, it is of temporary nature and require only for
those prisoners who opt for music — Respondent a music teacher in Jail
department not entitled for same pay scale as of the one in educational
department —Principle of equal pay for equal work not applicable’in the
present case—Impugned order set a31de Appeal allowed. [State of M.P.
through Secretary Department of Ja:llHome, Bhopal Vs. Rajesh Kumar
Shukla] . : - (DB)...*149-
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Service Law — Contract Appointment — Termination — Held —
Petitioners are contract appointees and they carry limited rights —
Contract can always be terminated as per the terms of Contract —

Contract appointment was made in 2016 for a period of one year which

has already expired — Notices were issued by the competent Authority
— As per the terms of contract, one month notice of termination of
contract appointment was issued ~ No illegality in such termination —
No ground for interference — Petitions dismissed. [Maya Kataria Vs.
State of M.P.] : %142
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‘Service Law - Prmc:ple of Equal Pay Jor Equal Work —
. Interpretation —Held — The Apex Court has concluded that  principle/
. doctrine of equal pay for equal work can only apply if employees are
similarly situated and there is complete and wholesale identity between
two groups— Principle/Doctrine cannot be applied only because nature
of work is same, unless there is parity in mode of appointment,
experience and educational qualifications between them. [State of M.P.
through Secretary Department of J. all/Home, Bhopal Vs. Rajesh Kumar
Shukla] (DB)...*149

a7 31 — T 1 v warT daT a7 REta — P T —
affreaiRa — walf=a < mares 3 7% frafifa e 2 5w o @ B
WA 499 ®1 Ngta 939 99 a0 8 9edr 2 afy s @ g
qﬁﬁaﬁr#?mﬁma%mqﬁ@aéﬂnﬁwm?—
- Rigm d9d T ST ¥ ar R T S e R @ 9 wsiy we
8. 99 o 5 oo ww Pgfa @ & mﬁﬂaamﬂmaﬁm#
AT 9 8 1 (3.9, 359 gRT |l er?fﬁ-—c'mm wa /8, mara fy
AT FAR aliﬁn) (DB)...*149

-



INDEX : o 47

Service Law. — Promotton — Consequential Benefits — Held -
" Respondents are directed to issue order of promotion to petitioner/
other petitioners with all consequential beniefits w.e.f. date on which
her/their juniors stood promoted. [Sangeeta Soni (Smt ) Vs. State of
M.P.] . . ..*145

#ar RAfr — gei=ifa — R o — sfafeiRe — aE /e
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wft aRenfies @ a1 wRRT @ ARk W e @ fae gweffror @
FreRm fear mar) @il Wit @) A 7w, =) ) ...*145

Service Law — Promotion — Staff Nurses are entitled to be
promoted on the post of Sister Tutor after obtaining degree in B.Sc.

(Nursing) from M.P. Bhoj Open University — Government had itself o

allowed the Umvers:ty to conduct aforesaid course — Action of State
Government as well as Indian Nursing Council and the assigned reasons
for denying such promotion is arbitrary, unjust and without application
of mind — Impugned order and letter quashed — Petitions allowed.
[Sangeeta Soni (Smt.) Vs. State of M.P.] LW *145

war fafer — gi=afr — w.y. \w o favafyeney /@ NoaA. (Su=af)
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Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section 109 — See -
Accommodation Control Act, M.P, 1961 Section IZ(I)(a) & IZ(I)(c)
[Babu Lal Vs. Sunil Baree] T w2692

TIGRY F~vTr FIIIT (1882 T 4), 577?7109;—_ FF - v
Fraaer gfefras, 4.7, 1961, g 12(1)(0) 7 12(1)() @Eqera fa i
13T} . 2692

VAT Act, M.P. (20 of 2002), Section 46 & 47 — Suo Motu
Revisional Power — Show cause notice issued to petitioner regarding’
suo motu revision against him — Petitioner filed objection which was
' dismissed — Challenge to — Held — Section 46 and 47 of the Act 0of 2002
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provides no further appeal or revision — Order 'passed by ‘Dy.~

Commissioner of Commercial Tax (Appeal) is final and is not amenable
to suo motu revisional power conferred by Section 47 of the Act —
Further held — Every taxing statute must be read according fo natural

construction of its words — Impugned order set aside — Petition allowed

with cost of Rs. 10,000/-. [Goldie Glass Industries Vs. State of ML.P.]
' (DB)...*137
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Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and Tenancy Act, 1953 (3 of

1955), Section 149, 151(2) & (3) — See — Rewa State Land Revenue and

 Tenancy Code, 1935, Section 57(4) [Ramakant Pathak Vs. State of
M.P.] ' ..2699
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THE INDIAN LAW REPORTS M.P. SERIES, 2017
(VOL-4)
JOURNAL SECTION
FAREWELL

HON'BLE MR. JUSTICE ALOK VERMA

Born on November 28, 1955 at Chhindwara, Madhya Pradesh. After
completing B.Sc., M.A., LL.B., LL.M, joined State Judicial Service on 22.09.1981
as Civil Judge Class-II. Was posted on deputation as Law Officer in Housing Board,
Bhopal in the year 1987. Was appointed as Civil Judge Class-I in the year 1988. Was
appointed as A.C.J.M. in the year 1991 and as C.J.M. in the year 1994. Promoted as
Offg. District Judge in Higher Judicial Service w.e.f. 05.09.1994 and was posted as
ADJ-11 at Sehore. Was posted as Deputy Secretary, Law Department, Bhopal in the
year 1997. Was confirmed as District Judge in Higher Judicial Service w.e.f.
04.10.1997. Was posted as Deputy Registrar, National Judicial Academy, Bhopal in
the year 2000. Was granted Selection Grade Scale w.e.f. 08.07.2000. Was posted as
President, District Consumer Forum, Seoni in the year 2004. Was posted as District
& Sessions Judge, Sheopur in the year 2006. Was posted as Commissioner,
Departmental Enquiry (GAD) in the year 2006 at Bhopal. Was granted Super Time
Scale w.e.f. 01.04.2008. Was posted as District & Sessions Judge, Satna in the year
2010. Was posted as Director, Public Prosecution, Bhopal from 25 .06. 2013 till
elevation.

Elevated as Additional Judge of the High Court of Madhya Pradesh, took
oath on 30.06.2014 and demitted office on 27.11.2017.

We, on behalf of The Indian Law Reports (M.P. Series) wish His
Lordship a healthy, happy and prosperous life.
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FAREWELL OVATION TO HON'BLE MR. JUSTICE ALOK
VERMA, GIVEN ON 27.11.2017, AT THE HIGH COURT OF M.P..
BENCH INDORE.

Hon'ble Mr. Justice P.K. Jaiswal, the Administrative J udge, High
Court of M.P., Bench Indore, bids farewell to the demitting Judge:-

Justice Alok Verma, who is demitting Office today, after rendering
distinguished service to this prestigious -constitutional Office (of Indian
Judiciary) for more than three years. [ can say, without any hesitation, that with
the retirement of Justice Verma, the Bench and Bar of Madhya Pradesh High
Court will be loosing a good and illustrious Judge.

For a lot of people, law is by chance, but for Justice Verma, it was by
choice, as his mother Late Smt. Kanti Verma and grandfather late Shri Justice
Tarachand Shrivastava were thie main driving force behind him to join Judicial
Services. :

After completing a brilliant academic career of B.Sc., M.A., LL.B. and
LL.M., Justice Verma joined State Judicial Services on 22nd September, 1981
as Civil Judge Class-1I. While he worked as a Judge in the lower Jjudiciary in
different capacities, he remained posted at various places in the State of MP
and has acquired vast experience.

On 5th September, 1994, Justice Verma was promoted as the
Officiating District & Sessions Judge. He was granted Selection Grade Scale
with effect from 8th July, 2000 and Super Time Scale with effect from 1st
April, 2008. Before elevation, he was posted as the Director, Public
Prosecution at Bhopal with effect from 25th June, 2013.

Looking to his hard working and approach to the law in deciding the
cases of different fields, he was elevated as an Additional Judge of Madhya
Pradesh High Court on 30th June, 2014.

On the occasion of his elevation inreply to the ovation, he had quoted a
few lines of famous philosopher 'Socrates', which I quote:-

"Four things belong to a Judge, to hear courteously, to answer ‘
wisely, to consider soberly and to decide impartially."

and spoken few words, which I also quote:-

"Lassure that I will follow these principles while working here
as a Judge. I request you to please judge me in the strictest
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possible manner and guide me, if you find me lacking." '

Today we are here to appreciate his work and deeds. Histenure was of
a great-success. Justice Verma has delivered various important judgments.
His most of the judgments which are published in Law Journals are landmark
judgments. His contribution to the legal fraternity is an asset and he will be
remembered always for his deeds. His retirement as a Judge of High Court
will be a great loss forall ofus. '

In this respect, T must mention that Justice Verma made a very
valuable contribution in the form of his extremely balanced judgments even
inmany high profile cases.

Though there are many important decisions rendered by Justice
Verma, which I am not referring to you due to paucity of time, however, it can
be summed up that all his decisions reflect his thorough knowledge of law,
forthrightness and fierce independence. ' ‘

In the short span of time that T have known him, I found that Justice
Verma has a nobility of classic quality in all that he does. He is loved and
respected by the Bar and the Bench alike.

Justice Verma, through his loyalty to the cthics and commitment to
the cause of upholding the nobility of justice administration system, has
secured a remarkable reputation not just for himself but to this Institution as
well. -

On behalf of my brother Judges and on my own behalf, I take this
opportunity to extend my gratitude to Justice Verma for his distinguished
contribution to the Institution which will be remembered forever.

Iwish Justice Verma good luck in ali his future endeavours.

May the choicest blessings of the Almighty be showered on him and
his family members formore happy, healthy and prosperous years to come.

I end by quoting Richard Bach, an American writer: "Don't be
dismayed by good-byes. A farewell is necessary before you can meet again,
And meeting again, after moments or lifetimes, is certain for those who are
friends." '

Friend Justice Verma - But, we shall miss you.

Thank you.
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+ Shri Manoj Dwivedi, Additional Advocate General, M.P.,, bids
farewell :-

We all have'assembled here to bid farewell to Hon'ble Shri Justice
Alok Verma sahab and convey our greetings for his future endeavours.

Itis said that the country which does not have brave prosecutors and
fearless Judges will have plenty of anti-social elements. Shri Justice Alok
Verma sahib has proved himself to be fearless J udge all along his career. On
his demitting the office today the Bench and the Bar will be losing a brilliant
and illustrious Judge.

Today is the day to thank Shri Justice Alok Verma sahab for his
illustrious career in the Judiciary not only as a High Court Judge but also as a
Judge inlower Court as well. Through his contribution to the Judicial system
for more than three decades he has secured a remarkable reputation not just
for himselfbut also for the entire Institution.

Shri Justice Alok Verma sahab has earned a reputation not only for
efficient administration of justice but also for his commitment to uphold the
rule of law. Shri Justice Alok Verma sahab has been effective in protecting
the rights ofall citizens,

In a short span Shri Justice Alok Verma sahib became a-popular
Judge. He has effectively dealt with the election petitions within the time
. frame. He also has dealt with almost all types of cases brought before him
irrespective of their nomenclature. Despite of the heavy work load Shri
Justice Alok Verma sahib had always a smile on his face even at 4.45 PM. He
has all the qualities of the excellent Judge and the judicial temperament.
Looking at him it is easy to understand that why the Hon'ble Judges are
referred to as the pillar of the Judicial System. Today when the high ethical
times have been succeeded by low and we all are witnessing high crime rates
and ethical degradation and the Judges role has become more fundamental in
protecting the society from this degradation, Judges like Shri Justice Alok
Verma sahib will always be ray of hope to whom the society looks with a
expectation to make a difference.

His contribution has also been read out by Hon'ble The
Administrative Judge and I agree with the same. '

I, onbehalfof the State and on behalf of Advocate General and all my
colleagues at AG office along with the staff wish him well in his year of
retirement ahead and all his future endeavours.

...................

al

Al
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Shri Anil Ozha, President, High Court Bar Association, Indore,
bids farewell :-
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Shri Sunil Gupta, Member, M.P. State Bar Cou}lcil, bids
farewell:- ’ -
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Shri Deepak Rawal, Assistant Solicitor General, bids farewell:-

Today, we are gathered here to bid farewell to Hon'ble Shri Justice
Alok Verma Saheb, who is demitting the office today after rendering
distinguished service to our High Court judicially for more than 3 years. I can
say without any hesitation that with retirement of Justice Verma, the Bench
and Bar of the Indore High Court will be losing a brilliant and illustrious
Judge.

AJudge is required not only to faithfully interpret and apply law but it
is equally essential for him to be conscious of the social realities of the world
and to decide fairly and wisely.

In this respect, I must mention that Justice Verma made a very
valuable contribution in the form of his extremely balanced Judgments even
inhigh profile cases.

There are many landmark decisions rendered by Justice Verma,
which I am not referring due to paucity of time. However, it can be summed-
up that all his decisions reflect his thorough knowledge of law forthrightness
and fierce independence.
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It would not be out of place to mention that Justice Verma has been
Dhruv Tara of the judicial reputation.

In the short span of time that I have known him, I found that Justice
Verma has a nobility of classic quality in all that he does. He is loved and -
respected by the Bar. . ' '

Justice Verma, through his loyalty to the ethics and commitment to
the cause of upholding the nobility of justice administration system has
secured a remarkable reputation not just for himself but to this Institution as
well.

Justice Verma will always be remembered forever for his humbleness
and patience hearing irrespective of status of any lawyer, whether Junior or
Senior.

On behalf of Union of India and on my behalf, I take this opportunity
to extend my gratitude to Justice Verma Saheb for his distinguished
contribution to the Institution, which will be remembered forever.

I conclude wishing Justice Verma good luck in all his future
endeavors.

May the choicest blessings of God be showered on him and all his
family members for more happy, healthy and prosperous years to come.

Thank you.

Shri Piyush Mathur, Senior Advocate, bids farewell ;-

We have heard on many occasions about the qualities, an individual
must possess, for being appointed as a Judge of the High Court and all of us
have seen some of the finest & brilliant Judges, in our career as Lawyers and
Judges, and Hon'ble Justice Alok Verma can be gracefully classified as most
compassionate, intelligent, kind & gentle Judge to the core of his heart.

We all know that we work in an environment which is flooded with
litigation of an adversarial nature, which brings in its fold a natural animosity
amongst litigants, which at times reflect so vividly during the conduction of
the trial or hearing of the appeals that at times it becomes difficult fora J udge
to keep himself aloof or away from the heat & dust of the litigation, because
everyone feels empty or rather relieved after completing his submissions.
and thereafter begins the job of the Judge, because he has to really separate
the chaff from the grain, for reaching a legal & lo gical conclusion, within the
factual and legal parameters of the matter.
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Justice Verma during his tenure as a High Court Judge has exhibited
tremendous tenacity and remarkable capability of handling all such
troublesome jobs with the utmost ease, poise & perfection. The size of the
cause list or the bulk of case file, has never bothered him, as he is blessed with
the brilliance of picking up the legal issues, in the fastest possible manner and
to decide them in the absolute legal manner.

The most astonishing facet & most appreciable aspect of Justice
Verma's personality is his tremendous energy and dedication for work and
above all his lovely smile, which he gracefully carry right from 10.30ti114.30
and even thereafter.

The members of the Bar had always felt most comfortable in Justice
Verma's Court, as nobody has ever faced any unpleasant or uncontrollable
situations, which in present day scenario, I would call as a great achievement
of the Hon'ble Judge, because by his sweet & sober mannerism he had won
hearts of everybody here at Indore.

In his Court, both the litigating parties had an equal feeling of being
treated properly and judiciously. Many of the lawyers present here today,
have heard several litigants saying; " I would even prefer to loose my case, if
it is decided at the hands of Justice Verma". T am sure that Justice Verma has
certainly won the hearts of each of the lawyers and has equally won the hearts
of each of'the litigant, which is the supreme achievement ofa Judge.

As we have been seeing in the past, the "Judges come and Judges go",
but their work and working style always remain alive, as a source of
inspiration for the coming generation of lawyers and Judges. Today Justice
Verma is leaving that legacy of his unique style behind, which would be
always remembered by members of the Bar.

I know for myself that the job of the Judge is nothing short of a
'Divine Duty' which every Judge remembers every moment of the day and to
decide the dispute of the disputants in the most dispassionate manner with a
~ compassionate heart, is probably the requirement of the job and many a
Judges with their compassionate attitude have achieved the glory of a
brilliant Judge.

Justice Verma has drawn such a huge and brilliant benchmark, with
his dedicated service to this 'August Institution' that it would always remain a
matter of great pride for the entire legal fraternity. Justice Verma's court-craft
and his judgments would always be remembered as remarkable 'Source of
Inspiration' for the coming generations.
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Our country is faced with the greatest challenge of the pendency of
- litigation but with his dedicated arid untiring work, Justice Verma has proved
on this front also that without much caring or bothering for the number of daily
disposal of matters, a Judge can actually'Decide' the cases on merits.in a
faster manner with the able assistance of the members of the Bar. On this
count also Justice Verma deserves a great applause & appreciation that he
discharged his duty of dispensing justice to a very large number of litigants,
during his entire career as a Judge. : '

Justice Verma has lighted the flame of Justice so high & bright, that
now, each one of us is required to keep it always ablaze, with our dedicated
efforts & mutual co-operation, which would empower us all as a citizen and
as a member of the legal fraternity.

On this occasion of saying a good bye to you, Hon'ble Justice Alok"
Verma, I wish to extend my greetings to you for completing your journey as
an "Excellent High Court Judge" & a far superjor "Human Being" and wish
you and Mrs Verma a very happy, healthy & peaceful life and wish both of
you a very good luck for your future life.

. Farewell speech delivered by Hon'ble Mr. Justice Alok Verma:-

. To begin with I pay my humble regards to "Ma Sharda Devi" the presiding
deity of Maihar Shrine, "Lord Mahakaal" of Ujjain, "Lord Trinetra Ganesha" of
Ranathambore Fort and "Hazarat Pir Fatah Shah Baba" of Raisen for giving me
courage, strength and ability to complete my tenure as Judge of this noble institution.

The day has come to demit the office of Judge of this Court after
completing 3 years 5 months of tenure and after completing 32 years 9 months
. tenure as Judge of the Subordinate Court.

Today, I have mixed feelings. I am sad because ] am leaving this august
institution, after serving it for 36 years 2 months for good and I am happy
because now I will have ample time to pursue my academics and bobbies,
which took back seat due to my over busy schedule throughout this period of -
36 years. However, I sincerely feel that after working so hard especially for
the last three and a half years in this Court, there will be a vacuum and which
would not be very easy to cope with.

Workmg at Indore for the last 3 years gave me immense contentment
- The Bar here gave me ample opportunities to learn and sharpen my skills and
to enrich my knowledge of law. Some aspects of law like Election Laws, I
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learned only during this tenure. In the subordinate judiciary, we do not find
many opportunities to hear an Election Petition. When I joined here, I was
assigned to try Election Petitions in the year 2015 and barring a brief period
in the year 2016, I continuously heard Election Petitions and disposed off
three Election Petitions. Apart from Election Petitions, I also worked diligently
to dispose off petitions under Section 482 Cr.P.C. and also criminal and civil
appeals. All these gave me great feeling of fulfillment.

WhenIjoined judicial service in the year 1981, I came across famous
saying by philosopher 'Socrates' who prescribed four qualities for a judge
i.e., hear courteously, answer wisely, consider soberly and decide impartially.

I am not sure whether I was successful in my efforts to work as a
Judge with aforesaid qualities, but I tried my level best. The kind words spoken
here today to some extent vindicate my feeling that if not fully, I have been
partially successful in my-attempt to imbibe these qualities i inme.lam thankful
to the speakers.

I'am extremely thankful to my Lord Chief Justices of this Court who
head this institution during my tenure and my brother Judges for their support,
cooperation and encouragement to me during this period. I am also grateful
to senior advocates and members of the Bar for theu- support and cooperation
in my judicial work during this tenure.

I am thankful to Officers of the Registry, Staff of Protocol Section,
and my personal staff for their unconditional support and cooperation during
this period.- :

T also wish to express my gratitude to my family members who have
. come all the way to attend the farewell ovation and for their affection and
good wishes.

Last but not the least, I feel blessed for immense support of my wife
Dr. Madhu Verma, my daughter Mrs. Mallika Shrivastava, my son-in-law
Shantanu Shrivastava and my son Eshan Verma, throughout my career and
for bringing happiress and contentment in my life.

Completing my tenure as Judge I am convinced and again quote words
of George Herbert:

\

"Gocﬁs‘ mill grinds slow but sure." -
Thanks all of you.
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Short Note
. I3
Be:fore Ms. Justice Vandana Kasrekar
W.P. No. 83 15/2017 {Jabalpur) dec1ded on 11 August, 2017

AJIT STNGH & anr. : . .Petltloners
Vs. . L
DEVESH PRATAP SINGH & ors. Respondents

A. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 17 ;
Proviso — Amendment in Written Statement — Amendment in Code —
Effect — Held — Proviso to Order 6 Rule 17 was added vide CPC
(Amendment) Act, 2002 and thus would not be applicable to civil suits
which are filed prior to coming into force of the amendment Act of
2002 — In present case, suit was filed in 1981 thus_proviso will not
apply to the suit — Petition allowed. '

7. %ﬁyﬁrww@m(moe #T 5), JIRE 6 v 17, wege
— ffaa werT & wengT — wRar 7 gty — gara — affeiRa —
amdw 6, Fraw 17 @ Wy ot Ru.w. (Weie=) sftifrm, 2002 gy witsT
T ot i gy v Rl ael @ fag @ & st R 2002 @
Hetes Attt g 819 @ qd yvga fear ar @ — adue gasor A,
1981 ¥ Ire U¥ga fpar AT o @@: 99 & forg Wge arg 9 g -
JqrfarsT "SR]

B. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Order 6 Rule 17 —
Amendment in Written Statement/Plamt — Principle — Held — Apex
Court concluded that amendment oi_‘ a plaint and amendment of a
written statement are not necessarily governed by exactly the same
principle —Courts should be more liberal in case of an amendment of
: written statement, than that of a plaint — Application for amendment in
' written statement filed by petitioner/defendant allowed.

&, fi‘iﬁam‘.@reﬂwf?ﬁr(maa BT 5), FIR 6 Fraw 17 — ferfeaa
FyT,/qregT 3 wenaT — fere - afufeiRe — wafsa = 9
freaffa fear & @ arqud &1 Soies @ yw fafea o= o1 wwe, -
Ferefa: WA Rigia g, A99IF w9 € R 781 ghaT — =raraat &)
U 3% U @1 ga ¥ e fafea sue @ delad & yswor § gftre
JeR g =@fey — gl /afaardt g wga faRag souw o wotaw @y
JHRTT T -
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Cases referred :
(2007) 1 SCC 765,-(2009) 14 SCC 38, (2012) 2 SCC 300.

 Himanshu Mishra and Ankit Saxena, for the petitioners.
 Rajendra Kumar Singh, for the respondent Nos. 1 to 3 on caveat.

Short Note
*(132)(DB)
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Smt. Justice Anjuli Palo
M.Cr.C. No. 17905/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 15 November, 2017

BUDDHA SEN KUMHAR ‘ ...Applicant
Vs. : : - :
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

Prevention of Corruption Act (49 of 1 988); Sections 7, 13(1)({d) .

& 13(2) and Constitution — Article 20 & 20(3) — Admissibility of Voice

Recording — Application by prosecution for providing voice sample of

accused persons was allowed — Challenge to — Held — Trial has not yet
commenced — Charges have not been framed by trial Court—Providing
voice sample would not prejudice to the applicant — Voice recorder
conversation is admissible in evidence and there is no violation of
Article 20 or 20(3) of Constitution — Application dismissed.

gETFIY [Fareer ST (1988 &1 49). avre 7. 13(1)(31) @ 13(2)
T GiEgrT — I{T 20 T 20(3) — snaver #t RFEIRT F wegar —
IR ERT AREEETT B Aare BT AT SUde R WM eg
ImaEs weR fvar ar — &t gArd — afifeiRa — fErer sl s T
gar @ — faareT |med. gRT R fRfaa 98 5 ™ @ - sra @
THAT IUAH M € d[Acd @ TRied 99E Sifa w8 s — mans
ﬁmt&aﬁaﬁ%ﬁammﬁuﬁu%*amwﬁsrﬁa%:ﬁ-ﬁzzomzo(a)m
FY Jodud @l AT & — AT @I |

" The order of the Court was passed by : ANJuL1 PALO, J.

‘Cases referred :

AIR 2013 SC 1132, (2016) 8 SCC 307, 2007 Cr.L.J. 1535, AIR
1961°SC 1808, 2017 Cri.L.J. (SC) 4305, AIR 2015 SC 180, AIR 1973 SC
157, (2016) 8 SCC 307, (2008) 2 SCC 383, 2012 Cr.L.J. 3290.

Pramod Thakre, for the applicant.

«l
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Pankaj Dubey, for the non-applicant/SPE Lokayukta.

Short Note
. *(133)(DB)" )
Before Mr. Justice S C. Sharma & Mr. .IusttceAlok Verma
W.P. No. 164/2004 (Indore) decided on 26 September, 2017

CASTROL INDIALTD. (M/S.) ...Petitioner
Vs. o

COMMISSIONER OF COMMERCIALTAX, M.P. &ors. ...Respondenits -
(Alongwith W.P. No. 5954/2007) - R

Commerciﬁl Tax Act, ML.P. 1994 (5 of 1995), Schedule II, Part
III, Entry No. 9 — Lubricants — Brake Fluid — Held — Brake fluid.is a

_ different kind of liquid altogether which is never used for purpose of
Jlubricating either the brake or any part which is under the braking

system — Brake fluid and Lubricants are different and cannot be treated

under one entry for the purpose of taxation —Impugned orders quashed
— Petitions allowed.

FIIfoa® &Y A9, 97, 1994 (1995 Ws) 313?1?# 1L, s I,

- TAfe 7. 9 — WiFw da— B aver — afiPreiRa — TF A [F Yoladm

Rr=r 9oR &1 29 T faasr Sums & 1 91 ot 8F srear ST gorel
F Fava fodl e @1 W e @ yatww g TE frar war — 3%
e @ e dd = € gar W= @ uAiem ¥y @ ufife @ oiala
T8 A W WPd — m&%ﬁﬁ:ﬂ]ﬁ‘waﬁm%ﬁ mﬁmqwm

The order of the Court was passed by : S.C. SHARMA, J.

Cases referred:

Sales Tax Cases (Vol-63) 322, [2014] 72 VST 383 (Ail) Sales Tax
Cases (Vol. 61) 76, (2006) 9 STJ 292 (SC), (2011) 19 STJ 560 (MP),
[2014] 70 VST 342 (SC), (2016) 29 STJ 50 (SC).

P.M. Choudhary with D.S. Kale, for the petitioner.
Milind Phadke, G.A. for the respondent/State.
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. Short Note
*(134)
Before Mr. Justice S.A. Dharmadhikari
Cr.A. No. 626/2003 (Gwalior) decided on 29 August, 2017

DHANRAJ SINGH & anr. ~...Appellants
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. ' ' ...Respondent

A, Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g) — Rape —
Conviction — Medical Evidence — Injury - Held — If sexual intercourse
committed forcibly by two persons, prosecutrix would certainly receive
injuries — Absence of any injury én person of prosecutrix including
private parts leads to conclusion that either appellants.did not resort
to offence of forcible sexual intercourse or it was with her tacit consent
— Statement of prosecutrix is contrary to medical evidence and thus do
not inspire confidence — Conviction set aside — Appeal allowed.

# gue” wiear (1860 #T 45) €% 376(2)(vfl) — FArRTT —
sfufe — ffrahy wisg — aie — afifeaiRa — afy € afwa g
Teqd® Afre WA fear T R, aPrtel s fAles 9 9 9 eIka
Bl — afmleEl @ TR W, R et mta §, el e A
arquRerfy 3w Preed @ alv @ it ? 5 ar at enfienelfoor 4 seqd®
i el B R BT GERT € fHAr A I8 WD WA W © wrer
ga o — SfEtE &1 s fafrciy e @ freg 2 ol iy e
Ser el wear — siufuafy sund — i ASR

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376(2)(g) & Evidence
Act (1 of 1872), Section 114-A— Presumption — Onus of Proof - Medical
Evidence — Held —In a rape case, the onus is always on prosecutrix to
prove affirniatively each ingredients of offence, it seeks to establish
and such onus never shifts — Trial Court erred in raising presumption
w/S 114-A of the Act of 1872 in absence of any medical evidence
regarding resistance/injury.

@ gve GiRar (1860 ®T 45), ST 376(2)(Hl) ¥T Wy ALHTFT

(1872 ®T 1), &RT 114—7 — SUGRTT — 6T &7 9% — AT 618 — -

Af iR — TaTeT & TIRO ¥, e 9 e B 9veT T4 8,
2 TAF 9oF F YHFNOTF I § GIad G @7 AR 9o afraeEl |
etar 2, aen s AR wA A ey w aRafia 9 s ~ fmmer =rEey
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F gRrler /e @ e § feult Fafredtr ey @ oquiefy ¥ 1a72 B
st Y oRT 114-7 @ Fwfa suemeen T 7 A 9

T.C. Bansal, for the appellant.
Ami Prabal, Dy. A.G. for the respondent/State

Short Note
*(135)
Before Mr. Justice Atul Sreedharan
Cr.R. No. 1411/2006 (Jabalpur) demded on 31 August; 2017

DUSHYANT SINGH GAHARWAR & ors. . . . ..A'pplicants
Vs. ' '
STATE OF M.P. & anr. . ...Non-applicants

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 498-A- and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 177 & 178 — Territorial
Jurisdiction — Held — As per the FIR and statements of complainant’s
witnesses u/S 161 Cr.P.C., all the instances of alleged cruelty regarding
dowry demands were committed in district Shahdol in matrimonial home
—None stated that any instance took place at wife’s parental home at
district Satna —.Case triable at Shahdol and not in dlstrlct Satna -
Impugned order set aside — Revision allowed.

@ TUT wiRar (1860 &T 45), SIIRT 498—T ¥F v FfFar wivdl
1973 (1974 &1 2), &7 177 T 178 — @A JfrerRar — sthfEiRa —
U AT YfadST 2 aRT 161 SU.H. & Fwfy wRard 3wy @
Pl @ FIAR TOA I WA ¥ Wl Al myar # wh wea
T e A frar wweta ¥ wifa &Y v oft — Rl F werr adY fean
& ®1¢ N gear o=l & 49s 45, Rren wawm & vt — yavvr,. wEsta
q fraiig 2 sl = % R war & — mﬁﬁammm t_{,’i‘\ﬁm
AT

B. - Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 498-A and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 177 & 178 — Continuing
Offence in relation to territorial jurisdiction and in relation to limitation
to taking cognizance — Discussed and explained. .

. TUS glear (1350 BT 45), HIXT 498—F {9 v m@ﬂn wizar,
1973 (1974 ®T 2), ST 177 T 178 — W9 A% @ forg &=y FfereTRer .

_61139;1‘! a1 IR B Hew A Sy @R arar v — frafya vd



NOTE;S?' OF CASES SECTION
e fear |
" Cases referred :
(2004) 8 SCC'100, AIR 2016 SC 3930.

Siddharth Datt, for the applicant.
Y.D. Yadav, G.A. for the non-applicant No. 1.
None present, for the non-applicant No. 2.

Short Note
: -*(136)
: Before Mr. Justice Shushil Kumar Palo
M.Cr.C. No. 1185/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 21 September, 2017

GANESH ' ...Applicant
Vs. )
CHHIDAMILAL & anr. ...Non-applicants

(Alongwith M.Cr.C. No. 1186/2017, 1189/2017)

Negotiable Instruments Act (26 of 1881), Section 138 & 141
and Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1 974), Section 482 — Necessary
Party — Maintainability of Complaint - Held — Cheque issued by
Directors of ‘Company — In a complaint w/S 138 of the Act of 1881,
when Company is not arrayed as a party/accused, criminal proceedings
issued against Directors is not maintainable — Proceedings of criminal
cases quashed — Petitions allowed. '

yemTy fered Sfefag (1881 @7 26), €T 138 T 141 vF TS
HIFIT wiear, 1973 (1974 &7 32), EINT 482 — IITEF JEBIY — yRare ot
yiefyar — atafEiRa - of 3 Pfrust gRT A% o fyar T —
1881 @ ARIPAS @ a1 138 @ aradw uRare A, we SR @
UEER /A ad T T T g, et 3 feg e @ 1E s
srdafEal atwvfia A @ — <ifee wovon @ eriafar sifrEteT —
AIfaHTY HoR |
Cases referred :

1997 (3yMh.L.J. 335,1(1995) BC 466, 2015 All MR (Cti.), 2000

(1) Crimes 26 (SC), ALL MR (Cri.) 4877, (2015) 12 SCC 781, (2012) 5
SCC 661,
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J.M. Gandhi and Purnima Bhalerao, for the applicant.
Mukesh Kumar Shukla, for the non-applicant No. 1. .
.C.K. Mishra, G.A. for the non-applicant No. 2/State.

Short Note

*(137)(DB) i
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Smt. .IusttceAnjull Palo
W.P. No. 7536/2014 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 August, 2017

GOLDIE GLASS INDUSTRIES . ...Petitioner
'VS . . .
STATE OF M.P, & ors. - - ...Respondents

VAT Act, M.P. (20 of 2002), Section 46 & 47 — Suo Motu
Revisional Power — Show cause notice issued to petitioner regarding
suo motu revision against him — Petitioner filed objection which was

_dismissed — Challenge to — Held — Section 46 and 47 of the Act of 2002
provides no further appeal or revision — Order passed by Dy.
Commissioner of Commercial Tax (Appeal) is final and is not amenable
to suo motu revisional power conferred by Section 47 of the Act —
Further held — Every taxing statute must be read according to natural
construction of its words — Impugned order set asidé — Petition allowed
with cost of Rs. 10,000/-. o

de FfEfSam AT, (2002 ®T 20) HIT 46 T 47 — @I G
gadiaer F g — o @ faeg w@ivn 9 A $ ¥9g 7 99
ST garat Aifew o fear war = g 3 sndu R frar i wiRw
foar mar — <t gAtd - afufeifRa — 2002 @ sferPrer 9 arRT 48 T 47,
It wg awfia g1 gEdEr suEfEm e exdl — surgem, arftrivas @
(arfier) emr wiRa amew aifew @ giv afefrm &) g 47 g7 usw@
WA 9 - geer @) ufm @ sy TE @ - ot afifeiRe -
URAE X A B SuS Tl B AWHIE JUlET F AR YT WA
arfae — m&%ﬁaarrémm I1fa®r, ®. 10,000 / — araa%“ﬂwqqg
& W)

The order of the Court was passed by : S.K. SeTn, J.

G.N. Purohit with Abhishek bswal, for the petitioner.
Samdarshi Tiwari, Dy. A.G. for the respondents.
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Short Note
_ *(138)(DB) -
Before Mr. Justice 8.C. Sharma & Mr. Justice Alok Verma
Cr.A. No. 1048/2006 (Indore) decided on 14 November, 2017

HARI . , . ) ~ ...Appellant
- Vs, _ : _
STATEOFM.P. - : : ...Respondent

‘ A. . Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder —
Conviction — Testimony of witnesses — Ocular & Medical Evidence —
Discrepancy — Effect - Held — The only eye witness of the casé stated
that only one blow was given on the head of deceased whereas the
doctor who examined the deceased stated that he found four injuries
on his head and further the doctor who performed autopsy stated that
he found nine injuries, all on head and face of deceased — A slight
discrepancy in medical and oral evidence is not material as the time of
incident was 3-3:30 am and there was not much light and all the persons
were under the influence of liquor. | - '

7. IUS GIETT (1860 BT-45), GI%T 302 — EeuT — TSIy -
TRl B ARG — - wgy vd ffeanT e — Bl — g —
_aﬁrﬁafﬁa—umﬁqmagmﬁm&ﬁmasmﬁﬁ?qwﬁfm
Wﬁmwmﬁmwmﬁaﬁsﬁrﬁﬂmﬁﬂﬁqwaﬂmﬁwﬁm
AT, BT BT ¢ 1% 991 999 RN W 7) afwr arh stk ot fafreas
ﬁmﬁmuﬁmﬁmmwmﬁﬁﬁsmﬁﬁmmﬂwﬁqﬁ
@ RN 0 IR W - Rifrei v aiRes wer 4 ol AR ik
T FTH T o1 9 ga: 3—3.30 F8 o1 Al¥ 98T wyrar AN T
off Form WY <afr Al @ wsE ¥ o ) = o

'B.. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 & 304 Part ir -
Murder — Motive/Intention to Kill - Held — It is true that appellant was
not armed with any weapon when he met the deceased, suddenly
appellant picked up a piece of wood and gave blows to deceased —
Appellant gave repeated blows, he might not have any intention for
causing death, but intention arose immediately before the incident —
Case does not fall under any exceptions of Section 300 IPC — Offence
u/S 302 IPC made out - Appellant rightly convicted and sentenced u/S
302 IPC —Appeal dismissed. ‘ :

L T

‘ub
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@ qus wRar (1860 T 45),. 6T%T 302 T 304 T I — FT —
gfgwﬁaﬁ#aﬂ?g/m—aﬁfﬁﬂfﬁa—ﬁwﬁﬁmaﬁ
frdY T 2 gﬂﬁﬁmﬂ%‘fmmﬁqﬁ_ﬁﬁmmmmaﬁ
#_'aﬁimtasgﬁrmahqum'ﬁr&—maﬂﬁaﬁm
aR 5, 7o TR B T SEST BIY JTLF AL A B AW o1 W
e @ GG Ed SR Soal AT — IRV 61T 300 ALLH. B {Pl
mﬁ$dﬁ#ﬂaﬁm—msozmé.ﬁ.ﬁmmé—
arfrereff @t 9fe ©U @ onT 302 WY W, @ sadq Srwfig Td qUeras
fpar a1 — arfie =R '

‘The ju‘dgmént of the Court was delivered by : ALOK VERMA, J.

. Archana Shukla, for the appellant.
Mukesh Kumawat, for the respondent/State.

Short Note
*(139)
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Palo
M.Cr.C. No. 14895/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 18 September, 2017

JUGAL DAS & ors. ...Applicants
Vs, . . _ - .
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 243(2) &
482 — Right of Defence — Counter case lodged between parties —
Accused/petitioners filed application to call the MLC doctor in defence,
who has been cited as a prosecution witness in the counter case —
Application was dismissed — Challenge to —Held - Right to defence is
a valuable right — For ensuring fair trial, opportunity to accused to call
his defence witness is necessary — Trial Court directed to allow
petitioner to summon MLC doctor — Petition allowed.

Tve glrar Ofaar, 1973 (1974 T 2). ERT 243(2) T 482 — 919 &7
BV — TEERT B W uR—geeT o — ARrgEd /AT § = q
v va < Pafrcas @t gad W 2y odEd uega e, R aR-wawo
_ﬁ'mmmfﬁa?.mﬁ'aﬁﬂﬁaﬁmw%—mﬁﬂmﬁmr
'wraﬁgﬁ?ﬁ—mﬁrﬁafﬁa—mmmwwmm%

_ freE Rrarer g s @ g afrgea $) SueT 99 e g
| BT OEER ANET & — A @ W e ) fafeoeas B e wRA 9
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ﬁﬁﬁ#é@ﬁﬂﬁwwﬁﬁéﬁmmw RUECII Rl

Cases referred -

© 2017 2y M.PL.J. 190, 2014 (2) SCC 401,2008 (4) M.P.L.J. (S.C.)
455 =2008 (2) MPL.J. (Cri) (S.C.) 721 = (2008) 5 SCC 633.

D.N. Shukla, for the applicants.
Narendra Chourasia, Dy. G.A. for the non—apphcant/State

Short Note
*(140)
Beéfore Mr. Justice Sheel Nagu
Cr.R.No. 692/2017 (Gwalior)} decided on 24 August, 2017

KRISHAN MOHAN AGRAWAL _ ..-Applicant
Vs. T .
STATE OF M.P. ...Non-applicant

- A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 407, 409 & 420 —
Framing of Charge — Ingredients — Applicant, the owner of warehouse
from where foodgrains of farmers were found missing — Charge framed
u/S 409 & 420 IPC — Held - — Principal offence of criminal breach of
trust is prima facie made out but charge framed u/S 409 do not relate
to warehouse keeper — Alleged offence specifically falls within purview
of Section 407 IPC — Trial Court directed to frame charge u/S 407 IPC
alongwith Section 420 IPC — Revision allowed.

o2 qUS FIEAT (1860 FT 45), HIRIV 407, 409 T 420 — T
Arefr T o — Eew — HTATH SH ATSNIR T Wl oief 4 frary
BT CTeEN~~ 19T UTAT AT &7 — ©IRT 409 9 420 ALE.G. @ aaid Ay
faxfera fam an — afrfeEiRa — gom g stwifes s w7 %7 yw
T T @ fHg =T 400 @ el favfia ARy ATSNTROTE @ g
" ¥ T - sl sy fafafés wa @ awT 407 S H. @ aRfy @
#Hrax AT @ — faEer <maTem o 407 AT . B WIRI—WT] SIRT 420
a5 9. %aaﬁamqﬁ?ﬁﬂaﬂ#iﬁﬁmﬁéﬁmmw gadEor
A |

B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of I 974), Section 218
— Framing of Charge—Held - Charge is the parameter set by the Court
within which the trial is to be conducted — Framing of Charge thus gives
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' a-cledr understanding and an oppoftunity to accused to know the exact
offence for which he is-tried. - ST :

& - qus mfvar Wik 1973 (1974 #T 2), O 218 — TR
Aoy frar o — affEiRa — ey, SmEreE g fEiRe 98
aTqevs @ R Wax fawer Gaifaa e s star @ — o ARy
frfera frar o, aftgaa & wds e, e fag swer fEre
fpar @7 YET £, BT 9 89 @ Y T W 9us U9 Ud SaeY 2l 2

Case referred :

" (2017) 3 SCC 347.

R.K. Sharma with V.X.. Agarwal, for the applicant. _'
J.M. Sahani, P.P. for the non-applicant/State.

Short Note
L %(141)
Before Mr. Justice C.V. Sirpurkar '
Cr.R.'No.'g.&l-’:H 0/2009 (Jabalpur) decided on 8 August, 2017

M.P_RAJYA VIDYUT MANDAL C o
(M.PPK.V.V.CO.LTD.) ...Applicant

Vs. . -
INDRAJEET SAHU - : o . ...Non-applicant-

Electricity Act (36 of 2003), Sections 126(4) & (5), 135 & 154(5)

— Electricity Theft Case — Civil Liability — Petitioner held guilty for’
offence w/S 135 of the-Act of 2003 and.civil liability was calculated
applying Section126 (5) & (6) of the Act Challenge to — Held — Trial
Court wrongly applied provisions for calculating the loss cost— It was
obligatory upon trial Court to determine civil liability applying Section
' 154(5) of the Act 0of 2003 which prescribes procedure for determination
" of civil liability for theft of electrical energy in terms of money —
Impugned order relating to determination of civil liability is set aside —
Revision allowed. '

faga FfRFrTa (2003 3T 36), SIS 126(4) T 5 135.7 154(5) —

ﬁgﬁaﬁﬁym—%ﬁamﬁ—“maﬁ 2003 @ aftrfram @Y o

135 & ST SURTE BT Si¥, oERrdT AT 9 Afafram @ emr 126(5) @
(6) &1 AT Pxd gv fafya afies & waor @ 1 off — B gAd -

-
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mﬁmﬁa—ﬁﬁmmﬁgﬁaﬁmaﬁﬁm,mz‘g
mﬁ'ﬁmmﬁmm—ﬁﬁmwzoosa%aﬂhﬁmaﬂ
®IRT 154(5), S faga soif 3 911 ¥q, <o @ wu ¥, fufve ol @
Wwa‘quﬁﬁm_ﬁﬁaamﬁéaﬁaﬁgaﬂﬁgqﬁrﬁamam
ATIRYT B & fag aeganie on — Rifde <ifes @ smewer @ i
m&%ﬁamﬁwmmw—gﬁmﬁwl

Case referred: .
Cr.R. No. 500/2009 order passed on 13.04.2017.

O.P. Mishra, for the applicant,
None, for the non-applicant though represerited.

Short Note
*(142) o
Before Mr. Justice Prakash Shrivastava™
W.P. No. 5430/2017 (Indore) decided on 30 August, 2017

MAYA KATARIA & ors. - ...Petitioners
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. - " ...Respondents .

(Alongwith W.P. No. 5510/2017)

Service Law - Contract Appointment — Termination — Held -
Petitioners are contract appointees and they carry limited rights -
Contract can always be terminated as per the terms of Contract —
Contract appointment was made in 2016 for a period of one year which

has already expired — Notices were issued by the competent Ailthority '

— As per the terms of contract, one month notice of termination of
contract appointment was issued — No illegality in such termination —
No ground for interference — Petitions dismissed.

9 R — wRRT (g — awfia — affreifRe - e @i
W Fa afrd & a2 i aftrer et ¥ — wher ater 9iyer @
W$ﬁwmﬁmm%—ﬁﬁmﬁqﬁﬁzms#wﬁaﬁ
mﬁ$maﬁn€-aﬁﬁﬁimﬁmﬁﬁaﬁé—mﬂum
Wﬂﬁﬂ‘ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ'—ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂﬂﬁ#ﬁﬂﬁgﬁﬁ
aﬁwﬁréqumﬂmmﬁmww—mﬁm#aﬁs‘
Frderar € — AT B Ay BT e T8 — e wRe |
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Cases referred:

(2011) 15 sCC 16, AIR 1953 SC 250 2004 (2) MPLJ 306, (2006)
12 SCC 482, (2006) 4 SCC 1,

Shashank Shekhar, for the petitioners.
Abhinav Malhotra, for the respondents.

Short Note
*(143)
Before Ms. Justice Vandana Kasrekar
W.P. No. 18822/2013 (Jabalpur) decided on 20 July, 2017

POORNENDRA PRAKASH SHUKLA & ors. . ...Petitioners
Vs.

- STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

A. Constitution — Article 226 — Selection — Counselling —

Selection of Junior Supply Officer (JSO) & Weights and Measures
Inspectors (WMI) - VYAPAM — Held — Simultaneous counseling cannot
be conducted for both the post by respondents though the select list
and verification of documents were done commonly, because both the
‘post are different and the departmént is also different — Procedure
adopted by respondents in selecting candxdates is just and proper —
Petition dismissed.

@ GIAegrT — Jge0T 226 — g7 — FrOwlerT — &S qfil
e (|} g at) T 9re @iz A" HHasl (S=,  aE) a1 93T -
=g — sftfeiRa — guft g@effror g = g @ <wmEet #1
aorge aftad wu @ fear war o, <19 wal €Y U@ Wi srewfET
darfiaa W @) 1 wed) F@itE S ug P & ger faamr o B #
— gegeffar g1 A=l @1 e e § ool 1wk |
tq sfua € — arfaer anfyer |

" B. Constitution — Article 226 — Selection — Vacant Post —
Circular of State Government — Applicabilify — Held — As per the
circular dated 07.03.2012, if during validity of wait list, any candidate
does not join on the post or died or resigned, then the said post will be
declared as fallen vacant and same shall not be filled up fiom candidate
of waiting list — Further, Circular does not refer that it would be
“applicable only in case of Class II employees.
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@ TREIT - ST 226 ~ FIT — Ra UG — o TR B
IRy — wgiwar — sithfEiRe — g fr 7.3.2012 & W, IR
wdllar g B RAftmrTar @ <Rk frdt aveff & we wewr e fpar @

ar ey w1 g @ A @A 2 faar 8, 99 99 e @ Raw @ o wife

frar smem sk 9@ gthar 4 @ awelf | 9 W wen - swe
- g, uﬁﬁwﬁ%ﬁmﬁmﬁiaﬁﬁmﬁm—llwﬁrﬁma}
gHO. ® @Ary Fm|

Cases referred -;‘

“W.P. No. 1062/2011 declded on 23.01.2015, AIR 1997 SC 2179,
(2013) 12 SCC 243, AIR 2006 SC 789, AIR 2010 SC 2100.

Udayan Tiwari, for the petitioners.
Manoj Kushwaha, P.L. for the respondents No. | to 3.
Rahul Diwakar, for the respondent No. 4.

Short Note
*(144)-
Before Mr, Justice S.K. Awasthi
M Cr C: No 2017/2015 (Gwalior) decided on 24 October; 2017

SAL ENTERI;RISES (M/S) ' ... Applicant
Vs. . . ' -
STATE OF M P. & anr. . * "...Non-applicants

Prevention of Food Adilteration Act (37 of 1954), Sections 2(ia),
7(), 13(2), 16(1)(a)(i) & 20-A — Adulteration and Misbranding -
Quashment of Charge — Petition against framing of chargés against
the shop owner and manufacturer (present applicant) - Food i inspector,
carried out inspection of a shop purchased three packets of haldi and
sent_for public analyst whereby it was revealed that same was
adulterated and misbranded ~ Held ~ U/S 13(2) of the Act of 1954,
appllcant can request for Re-examination of the sample from the Central
Food Laboratory but inthe present case, shelf life of sample of haldi
has lapsed prior to filing of complaint before the Court, thus defence,of
" applicant would be severely prejudiced if right available u/S 13(2)of
the Act 0of 1954 is taken away — Cognizance taken against the applicant
so far 1t relates to adulteration is hereby set aside — Further held —
Perusal of complaint shows that.on the cover of the seized article (hraldi

-}

[}]
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packets), complete name and address of the manufacturing or
,packagmg unit has not been provided, hence for the charge of
mlsbrandlng, prima faae case is made out against the applicant — For
the charge of misbranding, trial may proceed — Appllcatmn partly
allowed.

- e AU Frareer T . (1954 FT 37), GRIC 2(i0), [ 7(i)
13(2), 16(1)(2)E) T.20—¥ — F9frser vT Frear w19 — FRIT SIRrE T T
T = @M @ Afas U9 fafmfar (@dam adee) @ foeg awig
P f5d M @ faeg @ifver - @ Plas 3 gHM 1 R
fear, 9 doc vt =) o als favdws & A6, R a8 g@e
gar-on f& a7 aafafPra vd frear oo aeh & - afafedfRe — 1954 @
aferfras @ a7 13(2) ¥ Sad, A, TR B QT Waw, ST @
gaimemer € fFd WM 2y fdee o) wear €, wWg W geer ¥
ATEd B g4E TRare 95 gd 5l o @ yd sedl @ T @Y AW
q YA B9 B IEfer FAwE ® gl § AW, AMEE b 99 R THR
w1 ¥ ufme warg 92 AfY 1954 B e @Y =5y 13(2) @ @@
Suder Aftrar 11 foaar mar — aded 9 ey o 1 w9e, wiet 9@
aafisor €@ Wt 2. vae T U A war — e afifeifRa -
- gRarg 7 aR=haT sfar @ f& seagar avg, (e ddTw) @ e/ Fax
) fafraio a1 S9RaT o3t arell o1d &1 4ol 9 T T wudsy WY

. Ol Tl €, I e v @ anRiw 2 odww @ Rieg e gYar

 FDXT FAT E — ﬁmma#amh%qﬁwaﬁmmaﬁmﬂﬁﬁ
g — AT e A9

Cases referred:

M. CfC No. 2414/2011 decided on 04.02. 2015, M Cr.C. No. 4296/
+.2012 decided on 05. 02 2015, M.Cr.C: No 993/2012 dec1ded on
18.12.2014.

Sanjay Bahirani, for the applicant. :
S.S. Dhakad, Addl.P.P. for the non-apphcant/State
None, for the non- apphcant No. 2. :
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Short Note
*(145)
Before Mr. Justice Subodh Abhyankar )
W P.No. 15256/2015 abalpur) demded on 7 November, 2017

SANGEETA SONI (SMT.) ' ...Petitioner
Vs. ‘
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

(Alongwith W.P. Nos. 13598/2015, 15117/2015,15118/2015, 15119/
2015, 15120/2015, 15121/2015, 15255/2015)

A. Service Law— Promotion — Staff Nurses are entitled to be
promoted on the post of Sister Tutor after obtaining degree in B.Sc.
(Nursing) from M.P. Bhoj Open University — Government had itself
allowed the University to conduct aforesaid course — Action of State
Government as well as Indian Nursing Council and the assigned reasons
for denying such promotion is arbitrary, unjust and without application
of mind — Impugned order and letter quashed — Petitions allowed.

7. War f3fer — gei=ifa — 9. M9 qaa fazafaereay 9 4o
A (Suaf) & Sty afgrm $9 @ TvETq W aR=iRa, Rifdrer
ey ® UT W TSI 3 §8eR & — WeR A Wy 9ued weded
warfaa ax1 of fwafyaed w1 ol € off — oy wxeR Wi €
AR Sugal aRwg @ $iarg U9 S9a wsiwfa 9 e By R
SR A, IJ=arayel T aRass &1 g e faer 2 - amatfug s
Ty affrafsa — ifas d93 |

B. Service Law — Promotion — Consequential Benefits —
Held — Respondents are directed to issue order. of promotion to
petitioner/other petitioners with all consequential benefits w.e.f. date
on whxch her/their juniors stood promoted. '

. #ar fofer — wei=tfo — gRwAs arg — sftufEiRe -
arft /e Ao B, R [l 9 99 /S99 ofel 9 aei=fa g9
2, vu fafer @ wy oRomfye ot @ wrer agi=ifa @71 Ay 9y W
@ fav gwmeffro &t AR fear &)

Cases referred :

W.P. No. 10142/2012 order dated 3.12.2013, 1991 Supp (1) SCC
287, 1995 Supp (1) SCC 192, (1988) 2 SCC 386, W.P. No. 6753/2012
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. decided on 15:07.2014 (DB).

Sanjay K. Agrawal, for the petitioners.

Vaibhav Tiwari, P.L, for the respondents/State.

Mohan Sausarkar, for the respondent/Indian Nursing Council.

F.L. Shrivastava, for the respondent/M.P. Bhoj Open University in
W.P. Nos. 15256/2015, 151 17/2015, 15118/2015, 15119/2015, 15120/
2015, 15121/2015 & 15255/2015.

] Amrit Ruprah, for the respondent/M.P. Bho j Open Univei'sity in WP
No. 13598/2015. - .

Short Note
*(146)
Before Mr. Justice Vivek Rusia
W.P. No. 7395/2016 (Indore) decided on 26 September, 2017

SHAILENDRI GOSWAMI (SMT.) & ors.
Vs

; INDORE MUNICIPAL CORPORATION & ors. ...Respondents -

A.  Bhumi Vikas Niyam, M.P, 2012, Rule 25 — Revocation -

. of Building Permission — Held — Once it has come to knowledge of
| Municipal Corporation that construction has been made in violation of
sanctioned map, it can revoke the permission under Rule 25 of the
Rules of 2012 — Once building permission is granted, it is incumbent
upon builder or owner to make construction in accordance with terms

and conditions of permission — Power of revocation rightly exercised —
Petition dismissed.

= T Rara a9, 7.0, 2012 ﬁnnrzsr— frafer sryafer @1
- yﬂwﬁw—a&rﬁmfﬁa—wawwwm%ma%mﬁmm
(fE fEbo, e R TR et @ Seded X e T R, 9w 2012 @

. B. Muniqt.'pal Corporation Act, M.P..(23 of 1956), .?'ection'
307(5) — Disputed Ownership — Held — Proceedings u/S 307(5), of the
Act of 1956 i not like civil suit where title of parties can be decided

...Petitioners -



NOTES OF CASES SECTION

but prima facie it can be looked into-whether the person who has-applied
for building permission is owner or not.

w  reerfar® R siffifraE, . (1956 T 23). €IV 307(5) —
faifa wifica — aitfeifa — 1956 & afufam a1 arT 307(5) L
sfafa erdareat Rifta 9 @ W A€ & wel vEen @ ¥ by
mmmé.qﬁuamqm\mwmﬁm?ﬁ?mmmé fe @
ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ:ﬂ#ﬁﬂfﬂﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁf%@ﬁﬁﬁm%.mmﬁaaﬁf
T | - :
" Cases referred : _

2010(1) MPLJ 388, W.P. No. 3319/2016 decided on 20.02.2017.

Vivek Dalal, for the petitioners.
Rishi Tiwari, for the respondent Nos. 1 1o 3.
A.K. Sethi with Sunil Kumar Verma, for the respondent Nos. 4 t0 6.

Short Note
*(147)(DB) -
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Gangele & Myr. Justice Anurag Shrivastava
Cr.A. No. 329/1998 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 September, 2017

SHANTI BAI (SMT.) ' ...Appellant
Vs. '
STATE OF M.P. ~...Respondent

Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 — Murder — Conviction —
Life Imprisonment — Appreciation of Evidence — Appellant
administered poison (Su/phas) to child of complainant — Complainant
saw appellant giving water from nand (pot) whereafter child cried loud
and died — Held — Despite evidence that appellant took water from
nand (pot), the same was neither recovered/seized nor water of the pot
was taken for examination — No evidence led by prosecution directly .
or indirectly that appellant had poison in her possession or from where
she procured and in which place same was stored —Prosecution failed
to prove necessary ingredients —Appellant discharged — Appeal allowed.

' zvs wRAT (1860 ®T 45). ST 302 — F4l.— iR — srofiaT
mmw—wmrwqwfm—mﬂmﬁ#uﬁaﬁa?waﬁ-ﬁq
(m)ﬁaw—trﬁaﬁﬁmﬁamﬂaﬁa‘r‘a(m)ﬁm—rﬁéaémm
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Rres gvare, aras Wi @ fivemanr st swet 7w 9Y — sfPEiR
— 9Iq9[E §9 9 & {6 arftareff 3 ary (ur=) @ e Ry, v wt T
aia?ma/maﬁrmw,.ﬁﬁm$m?ﬁaﬁuﬁmﬁqf%{mw.—
FFAIST GRT UT& A7 Aucad w9 A B A GEGT T AT war O
Ffiareft & sl 7 O o a1 wws wET /@ Surw feur T few R W
SHBT AN f5ar T o — afriee srawwe gewt w wiftg oo
TGS T — IJfieneff o1 aRtwgaa e 1@ — afig W)

The judgment of the Court was delivered by : S.K. GANGELE, J.
Case referred :
(1984) SCC 116.

Premlata Lokhande, for the appellant.
Brahmdaut Singh, G.A. for the respondent/State.

Short Note
*(148)(DB) :
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice & Mr.
Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
W.A. No. 58/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 October, 2017

SHANTI BAVARIA (SMT) ...Appellant
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

Civil Services (Pension) Rules, M.P. 1976, Rule 92)(b) (D) —
Disciplinary Proceedings — Sanction of Governor — Jurisdiction — Held
— It is not necessary to obtain personal sanction of Governor of M.P.
for taking decision to initiate disciplinary proceedings and if Council
of Ministers have taken such decision, it will serve the purpose and
meet the requirement of Rule 9 of the Rules of 1976 — Charge sheet
served to petitioner in the name of Governor of M.P. cannot be said to
be without jurisdiction — Apex Court concluded that such an order
authenticated in name of Governor cannot be questioned in any Court
on ground that it is made or executed by the Governor and thus is
outside the scope of judicial review — No interference required —Appeal
dismissed. : )

Rifyer dar (3917) s, w8 1976, Frre o)) — sgemafis
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. BIITIRIT — wvgyre @ Aot — aferwiar — afifERa - atasifie.
FrAgIfEAl W " s o7 fvfg 99 @ fay "9, @ wwgua )
efaTa #epfl |1 aaeEs A @ siiv afy =0 aReg A ¢ur Frofa faar
€, U, 1976 @ Fraal @ s o @ watew 9 qfif w9 ardar &t qxr s
— AT F AY. D USAUT P AH | arT AR u= e sRrerear a1
& TET W1 Al — Gadl=d Array 3 fseiia fear € fo wsaura & 9mm
ﬁmmﬁmﬁﬂwmwwmﬁwﬁmmwquﬁ
9o1T 9T udar fF 88 vauTe gRT =mar ar fresmfaa e mar @ st
wmmﬁmpﬁ‘ﬁaﬂaﬁqﬁﬁﬁmﬁ—ﬁﬂﬁm@qaﬁ
IaTaEdr Tl — A @il |

The judgment of the Court was delivered by : HEMANT GUPTA, C.J ;

Cases referred:

AIR 1996 SC 765, 2001 (1) MPLJ 587, (2016) 9 SCC 20,' AlR
1955 SC 549, (1974) 2 SCC 831, 1971 (1) SCC 411, 2016 (8) SCC 1.

P.N. Dubey, for the appellant.
Amir Seth, G.A. for the respondent/State.

Short Note
*(149)(DB) -
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice &
Mvr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
W.A. No. 930/2010 (Jabalpur) decided on 12 October, 2017

STATE OF M.P. THROUGH SECRETARY ‘
DEPARTMENT OF JAIL/HOME, BHOPAL & ors. ...Appellants

Vs.
'RAJESH KUMAR SHUKLA ...Respondent

A. Service Law — Class I1I (Non-Ministerial and Ministerial)
Jail Service Recruitment Rules, M.P., 1974, Schedule Sr. No. 7 & 8 —
‘Music Teacher — — Principle of Equal Pay,_for Equal Work — Pay Scale —
Held — Qualifications and duties of a Music Teacher of educational
department and that of Jail department are different — Duties in
educational department is full time whereas in jail, it is of temporary.
nature and require only for those prisoners who opt for music —
Respondent, a music teacher in jail department not entitled for same
pay scale as of the one in educational department— Principle of equal
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. pay for equal work not applicable in the present case —Impugned order
set aside —Appeal allowed. .

& w7 fafer — T T (e e aur Rifte T4fy) oo
war 7dll (378w, 1974, GIGA B 7 T8 — WhHT FIEE — wAHT B
@ fory war7 307 w7 Rigra — Fa7 917 — affeEiRa — dtafre R
W A9 A @ @il e @7 adaw @ eda B § — stafre
framr F wder quieifas @ safe oa ¥, 78 oxeardt gy @ € gur
a%?mtrrraﬁvﬁ'a?mmﬂmﬁ'ﬁﬁmﬁmﬁmﬂﬁﬁ'—umﬁ.
A9 e ¥ ve Wil frae, dafe T @ wwe Yo @ R
FPAR TEl € ~ WE 7 & forg @ I99 o1 Rigia adqT gowT §
A € B — amefya o et — afie Hew | R

B Service Law — Principle of Equal Pay for Equal Work —
Interpretation — Held — The Apex Court has concluded that principle/
doctrine of equal pay for equal work can only apply if employees are
- similarly situated and there is complete and wholesale identity between

. two groups —Principle/Doctrine cannot be applied only because nature
of work is same, unless there is parity in mode of appointment,
experience and educational qualifications between them. -

. #arl%ﬁr—-?mvaﬂa‘afﬁwwm.éa?wﬁma'
Fra77 ~ afifeifRa - wai=a <marea ¥ 18 Pt frar & fs ware
7 & fog A A 1 Rimia S99 a9 wrL B wwar @ afy A
0% WA aRRerfa F & qon R wyst @ e gl w9 a2 YW o) wEeE
?—ﬁrﬁmaﬁawwﬁmmﬂﬁmmﬁﬁmaﬁﬁzﬁf
WA €, W9 9% 5 99 "o Rrgfm @ @9, argaa qen dtefre adars
¥ qArTar 9 8

The judgment of the Court was delivered by : Vuay KUMAR SnukLa, J.

Cases referred:

~ W.P. (8) No. 27/2005 decided on 04.04.2005, (2017) 1 SCC 148,
(2009) 13 SCC 635, (2004) 1 SCC 347, (2014) 6 SCC 756, (2003) 6
SCC 123, (2006) 9 SCC 321. -

Amit Seth, G.A. for the appellants.
N.K. Mishra, for the respondent.



3

- NOTES OF CASES SECTION-

Short Note ..
*(150)(DB)
Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gupta, Chief Justice &
: Mr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla
M.Cr.C. No 16718/2015 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 October, 2017

SURYA PRAKASH . ...Applicant
Vs. o ; '
SMT. RACHNA - . ...Non-applicant

Protection of Women from Domestic Violence Act (43 of 2005),

Sections 3, 18 & 31 — Economic Abuse — Protection Order — Breach of .

Maintenance Order — Held — If there is any instance of domestic
violence for which an affirmative or prohibitory order is passed u/S 18
of the Act of 2005, provisions of Section 31 of the Act can be invoked
for breach of such order — Non —~paymerit of maintenance allowance is
also a breach of ‘protection order’ or ‘interim protectlon order’ —
Apphcatlon u/S31is maintainable.

a?q@w#v@mfwwvwan@ﬁav&aasaﬂa) sm‘nra
18 7 31 — ITRf& TwuAlT — GV JIRY — TYTTTT IS AT~
FffreiRa — afr e Far 3t S e 2, R fac 2005 @

Fffre 9 g1 18 @ JWd o genTHE AT gRMaToS SRw TR

et w2, ¥R ARw B w7 ¥ afrfra @ g 31 @ IuKEy @ a9
faar T wpar @ — WOOMINYT AR BT SWET W @A AmRE Jerar
AR WET ARY BT HT ¥ — BT 31 B Aad AT qwvly B

_ “The order of the Court was passed by : HEMANT GupTa, C.J.

Cases referred: : -

2009 (5) MPHT 319, Cr.Misc.Petition No. 123/2010 decided on’
13.02.2012 (Rajasthan High Court), Cr.R. No. 635/2011 decided on
10.02.2012 (Allahabad High Court), Cr.R.P. No. 758/2015 decided on
18.12.2015 (Karnataka High Court), Cr. W.P. No. 305/2014 decided on
06.05.2014 (Nagpur Bench of Bombay High Court), (2015) 1 MLJ (Ctl)
549, (2016) 10 SCC 165, (2016) 10.SCC 329, (2017) 2 SCC 629.

Amit Seth, as Amicus Curiae for the ap_plicant.
D.K. Dixit, as Amicus Curiae for the non-applicant.

'
-\
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L.L.R. [2017] ML.P., 2587
SUPREME COURT OF INDIA
" Before Mr. Justice Pinaki Chandra Ghose &
Myr. Justice Amitava Roy
Cr.A. No. 824/2016 decided on 31 August, 2016

BABITALILA & anr. - ...Appellants
Vs. .
UNION OF INDIA . ...Respondent

A. Income Tax Act (43 of 1961), Section 132 & 246,
Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 195 and Penal
Code (45 of 1860), Sections 191, 193 & 200 — Complaint Against
Assessee — Competent Authority te File Complaint — Deputy Director
of Income Tax (Investigation) Bhopal lodged complaint before CIJM
Bhopal — Held — Deputy Director cannot be construed to be an authority
to whom appeal would ordinarily lie from decisions/orders of the Income
Tax Officers involved in search proceedmgs, thus not empowered to
lodge complaint against assessee — Complaint unsustainable in law
having been filed by authority, incompetent in terms of Section 195 of
Cr.P.C. and hence quashed — Appeal allowed. (Para 67 & 76)

. FrqwY JRAIGT (1961 & 43), 6T 132 T 246, 79 HiFaT
GRGL, 1973 (1974 T 2), €IRT 195 T TUE §Iear (1860 T 45), &INIY 191,
193 .7 200 — FER 7 Rvg TRT — TRarT Tega ovd @ 1y e
vt — sufys, mm(aﬁw)ﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁw M &
awer yRare oo e — sfrfaiRa — sufkys $1 @ ¢ gty
B w7 aufaaT 98 fear W1 Gear R weren sartEar 3 omfra
PR AReRA @ Frofa /s ) st I gwga s L
FeEifRdt @ freg wak o @ @ fag aosa 6 — Rae, <99
2 gRT 195 @ Faeat ¥ v sEw G gRT uEa R e @ e
=R v TEY i ara afrefsa - sfta Aq9R)

B.. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Sections 177,
178 & 179 — Territorial Jurisdiction — Held — Combine/joint search
operation undertaken by Income Tax department simultaneously at
Bhopal and Aurangabad — Offence cah be tried by Courts otherwise
competent at both aforementioned places — Further held — The locker
eventually located, though at Aurangabad, has perceptible co-relation/
nexus with subject of assessment and appellants filed their return at
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Bhopal — Complaint lodged at Bhopal is maintainable — Objection
rejected. - ' (Para 71 & 75)

W TTS AAT GRAL 1973 (1974 BT 2), GII 177, 178 T 179
—ﬁmwf@aﬂﬁm—aﬁrﬁaﬁﬁ—mmﬁwmwmu?ﬁmw
MR ¥ AU/ dw qarell sefaE @ T - sudtem et
wﬁ'wmww&wm’mmﬂmﬁwﬁmmm%
.~ afifEiRE — sfaa: o) @1 gar e T Tamfy s A,
ﬁqﬁwtﬁﬁwﬁﬂmwumaﬂg—?ﬁh/sfﬁw%wmeﬁw
#mmﬁ‘mmﬁqﬁaﬁﬁ—ﬂ?m#ﬁfqﬁaﬁﬂmﬁw%—
ATEAY AP R frar T | ' :

Cases referred:

1956 SCR 125, 1964 (6) SCR 700, (2007) 2 SCC 181, (2004) 8
SCC 100, (2008) 11 SCC 103, (2010) 9 SCC 567, (1998) 2 SCC 493,
(2008) 306 ITR 277 (SC), (1978) 1 All ER 948 (HL), (2015) 9 SCC 209,
(2015) 3 SCC 353, (2014) 9 SCC 129.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
AMITAVA Rov, J. :- Leave granted ’

2. Being aggrieved by the rejection of their challenge to the initiation of
their prosecution under Sections 109/191/1937196/200/420/120B/34 IPC
on the basis of a complaint made by the Deputy Director of Income Tax
(Investigation)-I, Bhopal (M.P.), both on the ground of lack of competence of
the complainant and of jurisdiction of the Trial Court at Bhopal, the appellants
seek the remedial intervention of this Court under Article 136 of the Constitution
of India.

" 3. The appellants, who are husband and wife, are residents of both Bhopal
and Aurangabad. A search operation was conducted by the authorities under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (for short, hereinafter referred to as “the Act”)on
28.10.2010 at both the residences of the appellants, in course whereof their
statements were recorded on oath under Section 131 of the Act. On a query
made by the authorities, it is alleged that they made false statements denying
of having any locker either in individual names or jointly in any bank. It later
transpired that they did have a safe deposit locker with the Axis Bank (formerly

known as UTI Bank) at Aurangabad which they had also operated on .

-
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30.10.2010. The s;arch at Aurangabad was conducted by the Income Tax
Officer, Nashik and Income Tax Officer, Dhule and the statements of the
appellants were also recorded at Aurangabad.

4. ' Basedonthe revelation that the appellants, on the date of the search, .

~ didhave'one locker as aforementioned and that their statements t6 the contrary

were false and misleading, a complaint was filed as afore-stated under the
above-mentioned sections of the Indian Penal Code by the Deputy Director
of Income Tax (Investigation)-1, Bhopal (M.P-) on 30.5 2011 in the court of
the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal, (M.P.) and the same was registered as
R.T.No. 5171 of 2011.. : :

5. ‘The Trial Court 0n'9.6.2011, took note of the offences imputed and
issued process against the appellants. In doing so, the Trial Court, amongst
others, noted that the search proceedings undertaken by the authorities under
Section 132 of the Act were deemed to be judicial proceedings in terms of
Section 136 and in course whereof, as alleged, the appellants had made false
statements with regard to their locker and that on the basis of the documents
and evidence produced on behalf of the complainant, sufficient grounds had
been made out againist them to proceed under Sections 191,193, 200 IPC.

6. . The appellants impugned thisorder of the Trial Court before the High
Court under Section 482 Cr.P.C. (for short hereinafter to be referred to as
“the Code”) and sought annulment thereof primarily on the ground that the
search operations having been undertaken by the L.T.Os. of Nashik and Dhule,
the complaint could not have been lodged by the Deputy Director of Income
Tax (Investigation)-I, Bhopal (M.P.) who' was not the appellate authority in

~

_terms of Section 195(4) of the Code and further no part of the alleged offence

having been committed within the territorial limits of the Court of the Chief
Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal, it had no jurisdiction to either entertain the
complaint or take cognizance of the accusations. By the order impeached
herein, the High Court has declined to interfere on either of these contentions.

7. We have heard M. Sangeeta Kumar, learned counsel for the appellants
and Mr Ranjit Kumar, learned Solicitor General for the respondent.

8. Profusely referring to Section 195 of the Codé as a whole, it has been
urged on behalf of the appellants that the Deputy Director of Income Tax
(Investigation)-I, Bhopal (M.P.), in the facts of the case was not competent
to lodge the complaint, he being not the authority to whom appeals would
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* ordinarily lie from the orders or actions of the L.T.Os., Nashik and Dhule. As

the statéments of the appellants were recorded in the course of a search under

Section 132 of the Act which was a Judicial proceeding and for that matter,
the concerned 1.T.Os., Dhule and Nashik were deemed to be civil courts, it
has been argued that in observance of the mandate of Section 195 (4) of the
Code, the complaint could be lod ged either by the authorities conducting the
search or by the authority to whom ordinarily an appeal would lie from the

orders/decisions and actions of the income tax authorities undertaking the

searrch..It has been asserted with reference to Sections 246 and-246A of the
Act in particular, that the complainant, the Deputy Director of Income Tax
(Investigation)-1, Bhopal (M.P.) is not the authority/forum to whom appeal
lies from the orders of the I.T.Os. involved and thus was not a Court as
contemplated in Section 195(1)(b) or the appellate forum under Section 1 95(4)
. of the Code. - '

9. It has been emphatically maintained on behalf of the appellants that
having regard to the place of search, the recording of their statements as well
as of the location of the locker, no cause of action for initiation of the eriminal
proceedings had arisen within the jurisdiction of the court of the Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Bhopal in terms of Sections 177 and 178 of the Code and thus
the High Court had grossly erred in deciding contrary théreto. It has been
argued that the rejection of their plea by the High Court on the ground that the
Deputy Director of Income Tax (Investigation)-I, Bhopal (M.P.) was an officer
superior in rank to the I.T.Os. conducting the search is patently.flawed and
unsustainable in law and on facts, having regard to the peremptory perquisites
of'a valid complaint under Section 195 of the Code.

10.  Reliance on the decisions of this Court in Kuldip Singh vs. The State

of Punjab and Another 1956 SCR 125, Lalji Haridas vs. State of
Maharashtra and Another 1964 (6) SCR 700, Rajesh Kumar and Others

vs. Deputy C.I.T. and Others (2007) 2 SCC 181, Y. Abraham Ajith and
Others vs. Inspector of Police, Chennai and Another (2004) 8 SCC 100

and Bhura Ram and others vs. State of Rajasthan and Another (2008) 11

SCC 103 has been made in buttressal of the above assertions.

11. Inrefutation of the arguments advanced on behalf of the appellants,
the learned Solicitor General has assertively endorsed the impugned findings,
contending that the decision assailed is based on a detajled reference to the
provisions.of the Act enumerated in Chapters XIII and XX and a correct

|

»)
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analysis thereof. He has maintained that having regard to the scheme of these
chapters in particular and the underlying legislative intent ascertainable
therefrom, the Deputy Director of Income Tax (Investigation)-1, Bhopal (M.P.)
had the competence and jurisdiction to 16dge the complaint at Bhopal. This
authority being admittedly and as patent from the hierarchy enumerated by
the Act, higher in rank than the LT.Os. who had conducted the search and
- investigation, did have the authority to file the complaint and that thereby the
. prescriptions of Sections 195(1)(b) and 195(g) of the Code had not, in any
way, been contravened. This is more so as the powers of any income tax
" authority under the Act and his/her jurisdiction to perform any function is not -
limited or restricted but has been consciously enlarged to deal with any
contingengy so as to advance the objectives of the legislation, he urged.

12.  Vis-a-vis the competence of the court of the Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Bhopal, the learned Solicitor General insisted that as the appellants were the
residents both of Bhopal and Aurangabad and search operations were
conducted simultaneously at both the places, and further as they had been
filing their income tax returns at Bhopal, the Trial Court before which the
complaint had been filed, was competent to take cognizance of the offences
alleged in terms of Section 178 (b) and (d) of the Code. To reinforce the
above, the decision of the Constitution Bench of this Court in Lalji Haridas’
(supra) has been pressed into service.

13.  Before adverting to the competing contentions, it would be apt to
note the conclusions of the High Court on these two counits. In addition to the
admitted factual aspects narrated hereinabove, the High Court upheld the
jurisdiction ofthe Chief J udicial Magistrate, Bhopal by taking note also ofthe
fact that the income tax returns relatable to the undisclosed property i.e. the
locker had been filed at Bhopal. The facts, to reiterate, that the appellants-
were residents of Bhopal and Aurangabad, and that the search operations
were conducted simultaneously at both the places were noted as well.

14. Qua the competence of the Députy Director, Income Tax
(Investigations)-1 Bhopal, the High Court held the view thathe being admittedly
an officer superior in rank to the LT.Os. conducting the search, the institution
of the complaint by him was not vitiated by any lack of authority. Reference
* 1o Section 136 of the Act, whereunder any proceeding before an income tax
authority would be a judicial proceeding and that for that matter, every income
tax authority is deemed to be a civil court was recorded as well. The High
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Court did refer to the Section 195 of the Code to enter a ﬁ'nd_ing that the
Deputy Director, Income Tax (Investigations)-I Bhopal being an officer superior
tothe LT.Os. undertaking the search and to whom an appeal from their orders/

decisions/actions ordinarily lay, was a civil court as contemplated thereunder °

to lodge the complaint.

5. The competing contentions have received our due consideration. The
rival submissions stir up two major issues pertaining to the maintainability and
adjudication of the complaint lodged before the Chief Judicial Magistrate,
Bhopal, (M.P.) by the Deputy Director, Income Tax (Investigation)-I, Bhopal,

(M.P) in the face of the prescription of Section 195 (1)(b) of the Code, in '.

particular read with the other cognate sub-sections thereof as well as the limits
of the territorial jurisdiction of the court before which the prosecution of the
appellants has been initiated in the context of Section 177 of the Code.

16.  Havingregard to the decisive bearing of the adjudication on the validity
or otherwise of the complaint by the Deputy Director, Income Tax
(Investigatidn)-I, Bhopal, (M.P). in the textual facts, expedient it would be to
dwell on this aspect at the threshold. :

17. The admitted facts revea] that the appellants have residerices both at

Bhopal and Aurahgabad and file their returns of income tax at Bhopal. Or

28.10.2010, search operations under Section 132 of the Act were

simultaneously conducted at both the places. In the course of the interrogation
. of the appellants, more specifically on the aspect as to whether they or any of
them either individually or j ointly did hold any locker, the answer was in the
negative. The accusation of the authorities is that further investigation revealed:
that they did hold a locker in the Axis Bank (formerly known as UTI Bank),

Kranti Chowk, Aurangabad which had been operated by appellant No. 1 on-

30.10.2010. In this factual backdrop, the complaint had been filed by the
Deputy Director, Income Tax (Investigation)-I, Bhopal, (M.P) in the court of

Chief Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal, (M.P) asserting that by making such false .

statement in the course of search operations which were judicial proceedings
in terms of Section 136 of the Act, the appellants had committed offence
under Sections 109/191/193/ 196/200/420/120B/34 IPC. As referred to
hereinabove, the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal, after necessary hearing
as contemplated in law and being prima facié satisfied that sufficient grounds
had been made out to proceed against the appellants under Sections 191,193
and 200 IPC, issued process against them, o

-
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18..  Asthe documents appended to the appeal would divulge that the search
operations at Aurangabad had been conducted on the strength of the warrant
of authorisation dated 26.10.2010 under Section 132 of the Act, issued, signed
and sealed by the Director of Income Tax (Inv.), M.P. & C.G,, Bhopal/Deputy
Director of Income Tax and the statements of the appellant Nos. 1 and 2
were recorded by Mrs. Bharati Choudhary, I.T.O. and Mr. A.T. Kapase,
I.T.O. (Inv.), Nashik on 28.10.2010. The materials on record also disclose
that search operations did continue on subsequent dates as well, in course
whereof seizures were made.

19.  Bethat as it may, eventually the office of the Deputy Director of Income
Tax (Investigation)-I, Bhopal on 8.2.2011 issued a show cause notice to the
appellants under Section 277 of the Act alleging that they had made false
statement under Section 132(4) thereof, thereby seeking a reply as to why
prosecution would not follow by virtue thereof. It is in this factual premise,
that the validity of the complaint filed by the Deputy Director, Income Tax
(Investigation)-1, Bhopal, (M.P). has been questioned by the appellants. To
reiterate, by the impugned order, the High Court has negated both the
demurrals of the appellants pertaining to the complaint and territorial jurisdiction
of the court of the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal.

20.  Thestate of law as adumbrated by the precedents cited may now be
outlined before referring to the relevant provisions involved.

21.  InKuldip Singh (supra), the question involved before a Constltutlon

Bench of this Court was about the validity of a complaint made under Section

~ 476-A read with Section 195(3) of the Code of Criminal Procedure Code
1898 against the appellant for perjury and for using a forged document as
genuine. The contextual facts narrate that the 2nd respondent therein had
filed a suit against the appellant for recovery of money on the basis of a
mortgage in the Court of one Mr. E.F: Barlow, Subordinate Judge of 1st

. Class. The appellant in the suit filed a receipt which purported to show that
Rs.35000/- had been paid towards the satisfaction of the mortgage and in the

-witness box he swore that he had paid the money for which the receipt was
given.

22.  Mr. Barlow held that the.receipt did not appear to be a genuine
document and that the evidence of the appellant to that effect was not true. A
preliminary decree was accordingly passed against the appellant for the entire -
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amount followed by a final decree. The appeal preferred by the appellant was
also dismissed by the High Court which reiterated that the receipt was a very

suspicious document and that the appellant's evidence was not reliable as

well.-

23.  The plaintiff/respondent thereafter made an application in the Court of
Mr. W. Augustine who had succeeded Mr. Barlow as Subordinate J udge of
Ist Class stating that a complaint be filed against the appellant under Sections
193 and 471 L.P.C. Mr. Augustine, because of his transfer could not hear the

application for filing of the complaint. In his place Mr. K.K: Gujral, subordinate -

Judge of the 4th Class was sent. He, however, declined to entertain the matter
as he was only a subordinate judge of the 4th Class and laid areport to the
District Judge pointing out his Jack of Jurisdiction in the matter as the offences.
had been allegedly committed in the Court.of a subordinate Judge of the 1st
Class. The District Judge thereupon transferred the matter to the Senjor

- Subordinate Judge, Mr. Pitam Singh who made the complaint. The impeachment
of the validity of the complaint has arisen in this backdrop.

24.  Asthesequence of events unfold, the appellant filed an appeal against

the order of M. Pitam Singh to the Additional District Judge Mr, I.N. Kapur -

who held that the Senior Subordinate Judge Mr. Pitam Singh had no jurisdiction
to make complaint. He also held that on merits as well there was no prima
facie case. The High Court, however, in revision held that the Senior
Subordinate Judge had the jurisdiction and further the materials on record did
disclose a prima facie case. Accordingly, the order of the Additional District
. Judge ' was set aside and the order of the Senigr Subordinate Judge was
restored.

25.  Three questions fell before this Court for sc-rﬁtiny. Firstly, whether the -'

Senior Subordinate J udge Mr. Pitam Singh had jurisdiction to entertain the
application and make a complaint. Secondly, whether the Additional District
Tudge had jurisdiction to entertain an‘appéal preferred against the order of
" M. Pitam Singh and thirdly, whether the High Court had the power to reverse

the order of the Additional District Judge in revision. P

26.  While dwelling upon the first issue, this Court adverted at the threshold
to Section 195(1)(b) and (¢) of the Code which prohibited any Court from
taking cognizance of either of the two offences alleged, except on the complaint
in writing of the Court concerned or of some other Court to which such Court

n
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was subordinate. Having regard to the fact that the offences were committed
1 in the Court of E.F. Barlow, Subordinate Judge of the 1st Class, their Lordships
next referred to Section 476-A of the Code which prescribed that when the
Court in which the offence is said to have been committed neither makes a
complaint nor rejects-an application for the making of a complaint, the Court
to which such former Court is subordinate within the meaning of Section 195

. (3) may take action under Section 476.

27. . Their Lordships noted that Section 476 authorised the appropriate
Court, after recording a finding to the effect that it was expedient to do so in
the interest of justice to make a complaint in writing and forward it to a
Magistrate of 1st Class having jurisdiction. While examining in the scheme of
prevalent hierarchy of posts as to whether the court of Senior Subordinate
Judge presided over by Mr. Pitam Singh was a Court to which the Court of
Mr. Barlow was subordinate within the meaning of Section 195(3) of the
Code, their Lordships marked that in terms of Section 195(3), a Court for
the purposes thereof, would be deemed to be subordinate to the Court to

" which appeals ordinarily lay from the appealable decrees or sentences of
,such former Court, or in the case of a Civil Court from whose decrees no

appeal ordinarily lay, to the principal court having ordinary original &ivil
jurisdiction within the local limits of whose jurisdiction such Civil Court was
situated. The proviso to Section 195(3) was also noted which ordained that

* where appeals lie to more than one court, the appellate court of the inferior

jurisdiction would be the court to which such court would be deemed to be
subordinate. Further when appeals lay to a Civil and also to a Revemie Court,
such Courts would be deemed to be subordinate to the Civil or Revenue
Court, according to the nature of the case or the proceedings in connection
with which the offence was alleged to have been committed.

28.  Inthis conspectus, this Court laid a decisive emphasis on the word

| “ordinarily” and to disinter the legislative intent, alluded to the relevant

provisions of the Punjab Courts Act, 1918 dealing in particular with the classes
and hierarchy of Civil Courts. Apart from the Courts of Small Causes, it was
noticed that under the said Act following three classes of Civil Courts were
provided:

@) The Court of District Judge
(i  The Courtof Additional Judge
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@)  The Court ofthe Subordinate Judge

29.  Vis-a-vis the provisions for appeal under Section 39 of the Act, it was
noted that in the absence of any other enactment for the time being in force,
appeals lay to the Court of the District Judge when the value of the suit did not
exceed Rs.5,000/- and in every other case to the High Court. Section 39(3),
however, empowered the High Court by notification to direct that appeals
lying to the District Court from all or any of the decrees or orders passed in its
original jurisdiction by a Subordinate Judge, would be preferred to such other
Subordinate Judge as mentioned in such notification. The facts revealed that
as a matter of fact such power had been invoked and appeals lying to the
District Courts from the decrees or orders passed by a Subordinate Judge in
‘two classes of cases as.specified could be preferred before the Senior
Subordinate Judge of the 1st Class exercising jurisdiction within such Civil
District.’

30.  Inthisfactual setting their Lordships expounded that filing of the appeal
to the Senior Subordinate Judge as notified qua the two selected categories
of cases, could not be termed as “ordinary” because the special appellate
jurisdiction had been conferred by the notification, by way of an additional -
assignment so much so that the power pertaining thereto could be exercised in
a certain limited categories of cases. It was not an ordinary appellate jurisdiction
of the Senior Subordinate Judge and for that matter for all Senior Subordinate
Judges generally, it could not be said that appeals from the Courts of
Subordinate Judges ordinarily lay to that of a Senior Subordinate Judge.

31.  Their Lordships thus concluded that in the paradigm of the Civil Courts
as.codified by the Punjab Court’s Act, 1918, appeals ordinarily lay either to
the District Court or to the High Court and as the District Court was of the
lower tier of these two forums, it was to be regarded as the appellate authority
for the purposes of Section 476 B of the Code. With reference to Proviso (b)
to Section 195(3) of the Code, it was held that where in the facts of the case,

- appeals would lie to a Civil as well as Revenue Court, the natire of the case
or proceeding would determine the court to which appeal would lie and that
to that limited extent the natute of the proceeding ought to be taken into
-account, but once the genus of the proceeding is determined namely, Civil,
Criminal or Revenue, the hierarc¢hy of the superior Courts would be determined
first by the rules that apply in their specml cases, if any and next by the rule in
Section 195(3)
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| 32.  While dealing with the aspect as to whether the Court of the senior
| Subordinate Judge was the Court to which the Court of Subordinate Judge of -
the 1st Class was Subordinate or both the courts were at par, their Lordships
" confined the adjudication to the provisions of the Punjab Court's Act, Section
(18) whereof did authorise the State .Government to fix the number of
subordinate judges to be appointed. Section 27 which vested the power in
the High Court to post a subordinate judge and also prescribe the limits-of"
+ his/her jurisdiction was also referred to. Their Lordships noted in terms of the
. Notification dated 03.01.1923 that four classes of Subordinate Judges had
been contemplated based on the pecuniary jurisdiction conferred.

N

33.  Intheabove factual as well as legal premise it was thus propounded
* that the Senior Subordinate Judge Pitam Singh had no jurisdiction to lodge
the complaint and instead it was the District J udge who was competent to do
so, being the Court to which appeals ordinarily lay from the court of the
_ subordinate judge and was lower in rank to the High Court in the hierarchy. It
~ was held in this context, that the Court of the Additional District Judge could
-. not be construed to bea District J udge and that the jurisdiction of the former
+ was limited to the discharge of such functions as were to be entrusted by the
| District Judge. It was thus concluded that neither the Senior Subordinate Judge
Mr. Pitam Singh nor the Additional Judge Mr. J.N. Kapur who construed
. himself as an Additional District Judge, had the jurisdiction in the matter and
in view of the provisions of the Punjab Courts Act, it was the District Judge
who was competent to lodge the complaint in terms of Section 195(3) of the
. Code. Having regard to the gravity of the allegations, this Court remitted the

matter to the District Court to do the needful in thc cxcrclse of his discretion -

‘ in the facts and circumstances of the case. .-
|

34. 'InLalji Haridas (supra),a Constltutlon Bench of this Court was seized

| with the question as to whether the proceeding before the I.T.O: under Section

i 37 of the Indian Income Tax Act, 1922 (as it was then) could be construed to -
be a procéeding inany court within the meaning of Section 195(1)(b) of the

" Code. The factual backdrop as outlined discloses that the appellant and the -

" respondent No. 2 therein were businessmen and used to carry on their business
at two different places and were known to each other for several years, Inthe
income tax assessment proceedings of the appellant forthe assessment years
1949-50 and 1950-51, the respondent No. 2 adduced evidence on oath,.

. before the LT.O. of the concerned ward, wherein he denied that he had a son _
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named Nihal Chand and that he had dene any business in the name of M/s,
Nihal Chand & Co. at Jamnagar. The appellant alleged that the said statement
was false to the knowledge of the respondent No. 2 and was made to mislead
the enquiring L.T.O. and to avoid the incidence of income tax on himself and
consequently the appellant was heavily taxed.

35.  Theappellant thereafter filed a criminal complalnt agamst respondent

No. 2 under Section 193 IPC. At the hearing of the complaint, the respondent.

No. 2 raised a preliminary objection that the learned Magistrate before whom
the complaint had been filed, could not have taken cognizance thereof as the
allegation was making of a false statement by him on oath in a proceeding
before the court within the meaning of Section 195(1 Xb) of the Code and in
such an eventuality, the complaint was to be filed by the court concerned as
required under the said provision of the Code and thus the appellant was not
competent to lodge the prosecution.

36.  Though the learned Magistrate held that the L.T.O. was not a court
within the meaning of Section 195(1)(b) of the Code, the High Court,ona
revision being filed by the respondent No. 2 sustained his challenge to the
maintainability of the coniplaint. The High Court held that the L T.O. was a
court within the meaning of Section 195(1)(b) of the Code and resultantly
dismissed the complaint filed by the appellant, who eventually approached
this Court.

37.  Adverting to Section 37 of the Income Tax Act, 1922 a1'1d sub-section
(4) thereof in particular, it was held that as apparent therefrom, any proceeding
before the I.T.O. in which powers under sub-sections (1), (2) and (3) are
exercised by him, would be judicial proceeding for the purposes of the three
sections of the Indian Penal Code as enumerated in sub-section (4).
Consequently, the question as to whether the false statement alleged to have
been made by the respondent No. 2 was rendered in a judicial proceeding
within the meaning of Section 193 IPC was answered in the affirmative.

38.  This Court also dwelt upon the aspect whether “judicial proceeding”
as referred to in Section 193 IPC was synonymous with the expression “any
proceeding in any court” used in Section 195(1)(b) of the Code. This issue
surfaced primarily in view of the two classes of proceedings contemplated in
Section 193 IPC attracting two varying punishments. This provision, it was
noted, envisaged a punishable offence for giving false evidence in any stage of

Ll

4
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" ajudicial proceeding or fabricating false evidence for the purpose of being
used in any stage of a ‘judicial proceeding’ and also for giving or fabricating
false evidence in ‘any other’ case. This Court in the ultimate analysis
propounded on a conjoint reading of Section 193 IPC and Section 195(1)(b)
of the Code that the proceedings which are judicial under the former ought to
be taken to be proceedings in any court under the latter. In this context, it was
ruled that having regard to the higher sentence for the offence under Section
193 IPC qua a judicial proceeding compared to ‘any other case; the legislature
thus had intended that there ought to be a safeguard in respect of complaints
pertaining to the offence relatable to judicial proceedings as engrafted in
Section 195(1)(b) of the Code. It was observed that an offence which was
treated as more serious by the first paragraph of Section 193 IPC, being one
committed during the course of a judicial proceeding, should be held to be an
offence committed in a proceeding in any court for the propose of Section
195(1)(b) of the Code. In terms of the majority decision that was rendered,
the view taken by the High Court was sustained and the complaint was
dismissed as not filed in compliance of the statutory prescriptions contained
in Section 195(1)(b) of the Code.

39.  Noticeably in course of the adjudication, it was marked that Section
" 195 was an €xception to an ordinary rule that any person could make a
complaint in respect of commission of an offence triable under the Code. The
restrictive mandate of this provision of the Code against cognizance of any
offence punishable under the sections mentioned therein, when those pertain
to any proceedings in any court, except on the compliant in writing of such
court or of some other court to which such court is subordinate, was underlined
in particular. This Court, thus emphasised that in the matter of invocation of
Section 195(1)(b) of the Code, vis-a-vis a complaint about any of the offences
as mentioned therein, an exception to the ordinary rule of making complaint
by any person has been carved out and by way of a safeguard, only the court
in the proceeding before which such offence had been committed or such
officer of the Court as it may authorise in writing or some other court to which
to this Court is subordinate, has been legislatively identified as'cqmpetent to
do so. -

40.  The decision in Rajesh Kumar (supra) perfains to the decision of the
authorities under the Act to conduct a special audit of the account of the
petitioner - assessee in terms of Section 142(2-A) of the Act. This was
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subsequent to a raid conducted in the premises of the assessee in course
whereof some documents including its books of accounts had been seized.
The assessee questioned this decision of appointment of a special auditor
principally on the ground of want of fairness in action as no opportunity of
‘hearing was given to it, prior thereto. The interpretation and application of
Section 142(2-A) of the Act in the textual facts thus fell for consideration in .
this case. Itis irl this context that this Court ruled that an assessment proceeding
under the Act, is in terrhs of Section 136 thereof, a judicial proceeding and
that when a statutory power is exercised by the assessing authority in exercise
. of judicial function which is detrimental to the assessee, the same is not and
cannot be administrative in nature. In the extant facts and circumstances the
_challenge of the assessee was upheld.

41, Asthe genesis of the debate is rooted to Section 195 of the Code, a
detailed reference thereto is indispensable, For convenience, Section 195 as
a whole is extracted hereinbelow:

“195. Prosecution for contempt of lawful authority of public
 servants, for offences against public justice and for offences
. relating to documents given in evidence.

- (1)No Court shall take cognizance:-

(a) (i) of any offence punishable under sections 172 to 188
(both inclusive) of the Indian Penal Code (45 of 1860),
or -

(ii) ofany abetment of, or attempt to commit, such
offence, or

(iii) ofany criminal conspiracy to commit such offence,
except on the complaint in writing of the public servant
concerned or of some other public servant to whom
he is administratively subordinate;

(®) (i) ofany offence punishable under any of the following
sections of the Indian Penal Code (45 of 1860).
namely, sections 193 to 196 (both inclusive), 199, 200,

205 to 211 (both inclusive) and 228, when such offence

is alleged to have been committed in. or in relation to,

. any proceeding in any Court, or
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of any offence described in section 463, or punishable
under section 471, section 475 or section 476, of the
said Code, when such offence is alleged to have been
committed in respect of a document produced or given
in evidence in a proceeding in any Court, or

of any criminal conspiracy to commit, or attempt-to
commit, or the abetment of, any offence specified in
sub- clause (i) or sub- clause (ii),

JTexcept on the complaint in writing of that Court or by -
such officer of the Court as that Court may authorise

in writing in this behalf, or of some other Court to which
that Court is subordinate].

Where a complaint has been made by a public servant
under clause (a) of sub-section (1) any authority to
which he is administratively subordinate may order the
withdrawal of the complaint and send a copy of such
order to the Court; and upon its receipt by the Court,
no further proceedings shall be taken on the complaint:
Provided that no such-withdrawal shall be ordered if
the trial in the Court of first instance has been
concluded. ‘

In clause (b) of sub- section (1), the term" Court"
means a Civil, Revenue or Criminal Court, and includes
a tribunal constituted by or under a Central, Provincial
or State Act if declared by that Act to be a Court for

the purposes of this section.

For the purposes of clause (b) of sub-section (1), a
Court shall be deemed to be subordinate to the Court .
to which appeals ordinarily lie from the appealable
decrees or sentences of siich former Court, or in the
case of a Civil Court from whose decrees no appeal
ordinarily lies, to the principal Court having ordinary
original civil jurisdiction within whose local jurisdiction
such Civil Court in situate:
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V -. Provided that-

- (@) whereappeals lie to more than one Court, the Appellate
Court of inferior jurisdiction shall be the Court to which
such Court shall be deemed to be subogdinate;

(b)  where appeals lie to a Civil and also to a Revenue
Court, such Court shall be deemed to be subordinate
to the Civil or Revenue Court according to the nature
of the case or proceeding in'connection with which the
offence is alleged to have been committed.”

Section 195(1)(b) of the Code, which is relevant for the instant pursuit, prohibits
taking of cognizance by a court vis-a-vis the offences mentioned in the three
‘clauses (@), (ii) and (iii) except on a complaint in writing of the Court when the
offence(s) is/are alleged to have been committed in or in relation to any
proceeding before it orin respect of a document produced or given in evidence
in such a proceeding or by such officer of that court as it may authorise in
writing or by some other court to which the court (in the proceedings before
which the offence(s) has been committed) is subordinate. A patently regulatory
imposition in the matter of lodging ofa complaint for such offences s discemible
assuredly to obviate frivolous and wanton complaints by all and sundty.

42.  Sub-section (3) of Section 195 clarifies that the term “Court” would
mean a Civil, Revenue or Criminal court and would include a tribunal constituted
by or under a Central, Provincial or State Act, if declared by that Acttobe a
Court for the purposes of this section. ' :

43.  Interms ofsub-section (4), for the purposés of sub-section (1) (b), a
Court shall be deemed to be subordinate to the Court to which appeals
ordinarily lie from the appealable decrees or sentences of such former Court,

or inthe case of a Civil Court from whose decrees no appeal ordinarily lies, to

the principal Court having ordinary original civil jurisdiction within whose local
jurisdiction, such Civil Court is situated.

44.  The proviso to sub-section (4) explains that where appeals lie to more
- than one Court, the Appellate Court of the inferior Jurisdiction shall be the
Court to which such Court (in the proceedings before which the offence has
been committed) shall be deemed to be subordinate and where appeals lie to
a Civil and also to a Revenue Court, the subordination would be determined
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by the nature of the case or the proceeding, in connection with Whlch the
offence is alleged to have been committed.

45.  Noticeably Section 195 of the Code appears under Chapter XIV
enumerating the conditions requisite for initiation of proceedings thereunder.
Though Section 190 of the Code outlines the categories of inputs on which a
Magistrate of the first class, and any Magistrate of the second class specially
empowered, can take cognizance of the offence alleged, Section 195 dealing
with the prosecution for contempt of lawful authority of public servant and for
offences against public justice or relating to documents given in evidence,
unmistakably marks a departure from the usual modes of taking cognizance
under Section 190 by prescribing the restrictions as adverted to hereinabove,

46.  That the provisions of Section 195 of the Code are mandatory so

much so that non-compliance thereof would vitiate the prosecution and all

consequential orders, has been ruled by this Court, amongst others in C.

Muniappan and Others vs. State of Tamil Nadu (2010) 9 SCC 567 wherein
the following observations in Sachida Nand Singh and Another vs. State of
Bihar and Another (1998) 2 SCC 493 were recorded with approval.

“7.....Section 190 of the Code empowers 'any Magistrate of -
the First Class' to take cognizance of 'any offence’ upon
recelving a complaint, or police report or information or upon
his own knowledge. Section 195 restricts such general powers
of the Magistrate, and the general right of a person to move
the court with a complaint is to that extent curtained. [tisa

well-recognised canon of interpretation that provision curbing
the general jurisdiction of the court must normally receive strict

interpretation unless the statute or the -context requires

otherwise.....”, " (emphasis supplied).

47.  There is thus no escape from the proposition that for a vatid complaint’
under Section 195 of the Code, the mandate thereof has to be essentlaIIy
abided and as is easily percelvable this is to prevent frivolous, speculative
and unscrupulous allegations relating to judicial proceedings in any court, lest
the process of law is abused and public time is wasted in avoidable litigation.

48.  That the séarch operati'ons did constitute a proceeding under the Act
before an income tax authority-and that therefore the same is deemed to be a
judicial proceeding within the meaning inter alia of Sections 193 and 196 IPC
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and that every income tax authority for the said purpose would be deemed to
be a civil court for the purposes of Section 195'is not an issue between the
parties.

49.  Theessence of the discord is the competence of the Deputy Director,
Income Tax (Investigation)-I, Bhopal (M.P.) to lodge the complaint, Whereas,
according to the appellants, he is not the authority or the forum before which
appeals would ordinarily lic from the actions/decisions of the L. T.Os. who had
recorded their statements, as mandated by Section 194(4) of the Code, it is
urged on behalf of the respondent that having regard to the overall scheme of
the Act, he indeed was possessed of the appellate jurisdiction to maintain the
complaint. As nothing much turns on the ingredients of the offences under
Sections 193,196,200 IPC qua the issue to be addressed, detailed reference
thereto is considered inessential. The relevant provisions of the Act next demand
attention.

50.  "Asenumerated under Section 116 of Chapter XIII of the Act, Deputy
. Director of Income tax/Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax/Deputy
Commissjoner of Income Tax (Appeals) amongst others are the designated
income tax authorities. Section 118 authorises the Central Board of Direct
Taxes constituted under the Central Board of Revenue Act, 1963 {(hereinafter

referred to as “the Board”) to direct by notification in the official gazette that
* any income tax authority or authorities specified therein would be subordinate
to such other income tax authority or authorities as may be specified in such
notification. In course of the arguments, such a notification as contemplated
has been laid before this Court and attention has been drawn to clause (e)
: thereof in the following terms: :

¥Income-tax Officers shall be subordinate to the Assistant-
Directors or Assistant Commissioners within whose jurisdiction

they perform their functions or otheri 1ncome-tax authority under
whom they are appointed to work and to any other income

tax authority to whom the Assistant Director or the Assistarit
Commissioner, as the case may be, or other incomeé tax

authority is subordinate.”

51.  Aswould be evident from the above extract, it deals exclusively with
the inter se subordination of the authorities mentioned therein so much so that
Income Tax Officers have been made subordinate to Assistant Directors or

4l
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* Assistant Commissioners within whose jurisdiction they perform their functions

or other income tax authorities under whom they are appointed to work and
to any other income tax authority to whom the Assistant Director or the
Assistant Commissioner as the case may be or other income tax authority is
subordinate. Noticeably this clause does not spell out any territorial barriers

- but logically warrant some order/notification to activate the functional

mechanism in order to address the institutional exigencies.

52.  Our attention has not been drawn to any document to this effect.
Additionally as well, the decisive and peremptory prescription of Section
195(4) of the Code is not merely the levels of the rank inter se but the
recognised appellate jurisdiction ordinarily exercised by the authonty or the
forum concerned for a complaint to be validly lodged by it, if in a given fact
situation, the initiation of prosecution is sought to be occasioned not by the
court in the proceedings before which the contemplated offence(s) had been
committed, but by a court to which ordinarily appeals therefrom would lie.

53.  Considerable emphasis has been laid on behalf of the respondent on
the provisions of the Act outlining the jurisdiction of the income tax authorities
as encompassed in Sections 120 and 124 of the Act in particular. Section
120 provides that income tax authorities would exercise all or any of the
powers and perform all or any of the functions conferred on or as the case
may be assigned to such authorities under the Act in accordance with such
directions as the Board may issue in this regard. The factors to be taken note
of by the Board or any other income tax authority authorised by it for such
purposes have also been prescribed. As a necessary corollary, the Board can
also by general or special order and subject to such conditions, restrictions or
limitations as may be specified therein, authorise such authorities as enumerated
in sub-section (4) thereof to perform such functions, as may be assigned.

54.  The powers of an assessing officer vested with the jurisdiction as
permitted by Section 120 of the Act, extends as is clarified by Section 124,
to any person carrying on business or profession, if the place at which he
carries on his business or profession is situated within the limits of the area
over which such officer had been vested with the jurisdiction or if the person
concerned carries on business in more plafes than one, if the principal place
of his business or profession is situated within the area over which the assessirig-
officer has jurisdiction. In addition, such officer would have also jurisdiction
inrespect of any other person residing within the area. Sub-section 3 of Section
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124 debars a person to call in question the jurisdiction of an assessing officer
in the eventualities as mentioned in sub-clauses (a) and (b) thereof.

55..  The power with regard to-discovery, production of evidence etc. and
the officer empowered to exercise the same has been dealt with in details in
Section 131 of the Act. The procedure to be complied with in condugting
search and seizure has been delineated in Section 132 of the Act. Seemingly,
to this extent, the parties are one and ad idem. L

56.  The bone of contention lies in the interpretation of Section 246 of the
Actin particular which is contained in Chapter XX dealing with Appeals and
Revision. Whereas Section 246 catalogues the orders of an assessing officer
other than those of the Deputy Commissioner from which appeal would lie to
the Deputy Commissioner (Appeals), Section 246A lists the orders from which
appeal would lie to the Commissioner (Appeals). Admittedly, the categories
of orders specified under Section 246(1) of the Act do not include one stemming
from any proceeding before an assessing officer under Section 132 of the Act
pertaining to search or seizure. Noticeably though under Section 116 of the
Act, as referred to hereinabove, under clause (d) thereof, Deputy Director of
Income Tax, Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax and Deputy Commissioner
of Income Tax (Appeals) have been bracketed together, it is only the Deputy
Commissioner (Appeals), as is apparent from Section 246(1), who has been -
conferred with the appellate jurisdiction to entertain appeals, albeit from
specified orders passed by an assessing officer as mentioned in that sub-
section. The Deputy Director of Income Tax in particular, has not been
designated to be the appellate authority or forum from such orders or any
other order of the assessing officer. Having regard to the issue to be addressed,
it is considered inessentjal to dilate on Section 246A which deals with the
appeals to the Commissioner (Appeals).

57.  OQur attention has not been drawn to any provision of the Act
whereunder the Deputy Director of Income Tax has been designated to be an
authority or forum before whom an appeal would lie from any order of any
subordinate officer including the L.T.O.. To reiterate, I.T.Os. are included in
the classes of income tax authorities as per Section 116 of the Act and having
regard to the hierarchy designed, they are subordinate in rank to the Deputy
Director of Income Tax, Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax and the Deputy

Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals).

~
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-58. On a conjoint reading of the above provisions of the Act, it is thus patent
- that the statute has not only identified the income tax authorities but also has
specified their duties and jurisdiction, territorial and otherwise. It has stipulated
as well the eventualities and the pre-requisites, for the exercise of such
jurisdiction or performance of the'duties assigned to ensure effective and
purposeful implementation of the provisions thereof. These functional
framework indubitably has been made for the desired conduct of the
organisational affairs as legislatively intended.

59.  The word “ordinary” as defined in Blacks Law Dictionary, 10th
Edition, reads thus: .

“Ordinary: occurring in regular course of events; normal; usual.

The word “ordinarily” is a derivative of this word (adverb) carrying the same
meaning. i

60.  The word “ordinarily” therefore would denote developments which

are likely to occur, exist or ensue in the regular or normal course of events as

logically and rationally anticipated even though not set out or expressed in
categorical terms. This is a compendious expression to encompass all events

reasonably expected to occur in the usual and common course of occurrences

and are expected to so happen unless prohibited, prevented or directed by

some express and unexpected interventions to the contrary.

61.  Asadverted to hereinabove, Section 195 of the Code read as a whole
unambiguously impose restrictions in the matter of lodgement of complaint
- qua the offences as mentioned in sub-section (1)(b) thereof in particular and
therefore as a corollary, any interpretation for identifying the court/authority/
forum contemplated thereby to be competent has to be in furtherance of the
restraint and not in casual relaxation thereof. Consequently, therefore the
"exposition of the provisions of the corresponding substantive law which designs
the forums or authorities and confers original and appellant jurisdiction has
also to be inaid of the underlying objectives of the restrictions stipulated. Any
postulation incompatible with the restrictive connotations would be of mutilative
bearing thereon and thus frustrate the purpose thereof, a consequence not
approvable in law. To reiterate, Section 195 of the Code clearly carves out
an exception to the otherwise conferred jurisdiction on a court under Section
190 fo take cognizance of an offence on the basis of the complamts/mformanon
‘from the sources as enumerated therein.
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62.  Viewed in this context, in our estimate, the notification issued under
Section 118 of the Act cannot be conceded an overriding effect over the
. scheme of the statute designating the appellate forums more particularly in
~ absence of any order, circular, notification of any authority thereunder to that
- effect. The Deputy Director of Income Tax for that matter, as the framework
ofthe Act would reveal, has not been acknowledged to be the appellate forum
from any order or the decision of the assessing officer/L.T.O., notwithstanding
several other provisions with regard to conferment of vari__oué.poWers and
assignments of duties on the said office. In the teeth of such mindful and
unequivocal module of the Act, reco gnition of the Deputy Director of Income
Tax to be a forum to whom an appeal would ordinarily lie from any decision
-.or action of the assessing officer/income tax officer would not only be inferential
but would also amount to unwarranted judicial legislation by extrinsic additions
" and doing violence to the language of the law framed. On the contrary,
acceptance of the Deputy Commissioner(Appeals) as the forum to which an
appeal would ordinarily lie from an order/decision of the assessing officer/
~LT.0., would neither be inconsistent with nor repugnant to any other provision
of the Act and certainly not incompatible with the legislative scheme thereof.
Mere silence in Section 246 of the Act about any decision or order other than
those enumerated in sub-section (1) thereof as appealable /decision to the
Deputy Commissioner (Appeals), does not ipso fact spell legislatiye prohibition
in that regard and in our comprehensjon instead signifies an affirmative
dispensation.

63. Itisatrite lawthat there is no presumption that a casus omissus exists
and a court should avoid creating a casus omissus where there is none. It is a
fundamental rule of interpretation that courts would not feel the gaps in statute,
their functions being jus discre non facerei.e. to declare or decide the law: In
reiteration of this well-seitled exposition, this Court in (2008) 306 ITR 277
(SC) Union of India and others vs. Dharmendar Textile Processors and
others had ruled that it is a well settled principle in law that a court cannot
read anything in the statutory provision or a stipulated provision which is plain
and unambiguous. It was held that a statute being in edict of the Legislature,
the language employed therein is determinative of the legislative intent. It
recorded with approval the observation-in Stock v. Frank Johns (Tipton)
Limited (1978) 1 AN ER 948 (HL) that it is contrary to all rules of construction
to read words into an Act unless it is absolutely necessary to do so. The
observation therein that, rules of interpretation do not permit the courts to'do
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so unless the provision as it stands meaningless or doubtful and that the courts
are not entitled to read words into an Act of Parliament unless clear reason

“for it is to be found within the four corners of the statute, was underlined. It

was proclaimed that a casus omissus cannot be supplied by the court except
in the case of clear necessity and that reason for is found in the four corners of
the statute itseif but at the same time a casus omissus should not be readily
inferred and for that purpose, all the parts of a statute or section must be
construed together and every clause of a section should be construed with
reference to the context and other clauses thereof so that the construction to

* be put on a particular provision makes a consistent enactment of the whole

statute.

64.  More recently this Court amongst others in Petroleum and Natural
Gas Regulatory Board vs. Indraprastha Gas Limited and Others (2015)
9 SCC 209 had propounded that when the legislative intention is absolutely
clear and simple and any omission inter alia either in conferment of power or
in the ambit or expanse of any expression used is deliberate and not accidental,
filling up of the lacuna as perceived by a judicial interpretative process is
impermissible. This was in reiteration of the proposition in Sree Balaji Nagar
Residential Association vs.-State of Tamil Nadu and Others (2015)3 SCC

" 353 to the effect that casus omissus cannét be supplied by the court in

situations where omissions otherwise noticed in a statute or in a provision
thereof had been a conscious legislative intendment.

65.  Thejudicial formulations on the theme is so consistent and absolute in

.terms that no further dilation is essential. The scheme of the Act and the

legislative design beinglunrescrvedly'patent in the instant case, that it is plainly
impermissible to acknowledge the Deputy Director of Income Tax to be the
forum to which an appeal would ordinarily lie from an order/decision of an

. assessing officer/.T.O. The present is thus not a case where this Court can

premise that the statute suffers from casus omissus so as to recognise the -
Depuity Director of Income Tax as such an appellate forum.

66.  Inthis persuasive backdrop, the conferment of appellate jurisdiction
on the Deputy Commissioner of Appeals from the orders/decisions of the
assessing officers as is apparent from Section 246 of the Act, has to be
construed as a conscious statutory mandate. This is more so as noticed
hereinabove, the Deputy Director of Income Tax, Deputy Commissioner of .
Income Tax and the Deputy Commissioner of Income Tax (Appeals) have
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been otherwise placed at par in the list of income tax authorities provided by
Section 116 of the Act. The omission to either vest the Deputy Director-of
Income Tax with the appellate powers or to contemplate the said postto be
an appellate forum from the orders/decisions of the assessing officers cannot
thus be accidental or unintended. The relevant provisions of the Act pertaining
"to the powers, duties and jurisdiction of the various income tax authorities do
not leave any room for doubt, in our estimate, to conclude otherwise. True it
is, that the Deputy Commissioner of Appeals has been construed in terms of

Section 246 of the Act to be an appellate forum from the orders as enumerated
in sub-section (1) thereof, but in absence of any provision in the statute-

nominating the Deputy Director of Income Tax to be an appellate forum for
any order/decision of the assessing officer/I. T.O., the inevitable conclusion is
that the said authority i.e. Deputy Director of Income Tax cannot be construed
to be one before whom an appeal from any order/decision of any income tax
authority, lower in rank would ordinarily lie.

67.  The Parliament has unmistakably designated the Deputy Commissioner
(Appeals) to be the appellate forum from the orders as enumerated under
Section 246(1) of the Act. This however, in our view, as observed hereinabove
does not detract from the recognition of this authority to be the appellate
forum before whom appeals from the decisions of an assessing officer or of an
officer of the same rank thereto would generally and ordinarily lie even in the
contingencies not referred to in particular in sub section 1 of Section 246.
This is more so, to reiterate, in absence of any provision under the Act envisaging
the Deputy Director of Income Tax to be an appellate forum in any eventuality
* beyond those contemplated in Section 246(1) of the Act. Neither the hierarchy
of the income tax authorities as listed in Section 116 of the Act nor in the
notification issued under Section 118 thereof, nor their duties, functions,
jurisdictions as prescribed by the cognate provisions alluded heretobefore,
permit a deduction that in the scheme of the le gislation, the Deputy Director of

-. Income Tax has been conceived also to be an appellate forum to which appeals
from the orders/decisions of the . T.Os./assessing officers would ordinarily lie .

within the meaning of Section 195(4) of the Code. The Deputy Director of
Income Tax (Investigation)-I Bhopal, (M.P.), in our unhesitant opinion,
therefore cannot be construed to be an authority to whom appeal would
ordinarily lie from the decisions/orders of the I.T.Os. involved in the search
proceedings in the case in hand so as to empower him to lodge the complaint
in view of the restrictive preconditions imposed by Section 195 of the Code.

4
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The complaint filed by the Deputy Director of Income Tax, (Investigatioil)-'l,
Bhopal (M.P.), thus on an overall analysis of thie facts of the case and the law
involved has to be held as incompetent.

68.  The cavil on the competence of the Court of the Chief Judicial
Magistrate, Bhopal to entertain the complaint and take cognizance of the
offences alleged, though reduced t6 an academic exercise, in view of the
above determination needs to be dealt with in the passing.

*69.  In Y. Abraham Ajith (supra), the issue of territorial jurisdiction of the

Trial Court in which a complaint had been filed by the respondent No. 2
under Sections 498A and 406 IPC, in the face of Sections 177 and 178 of
the Code surfaced for scrutiny. The defence raised the plea that as no part of
the cause of action constituting the.alleged offence had arisen within the
jurisdiction of the court before which the complaint had been filed, it lacked
competence to entertain the same and conduct the trial following the submission
of the charge-sheet. The complaint had disclosed that the allegations levelled
therein related to the incident that had happened at her previous place of stay _
beyond the territorial limits of the court in which it had been filed. This Court
after dilating on the scope and purport of Sections 177 and 178 of the Code

. as well as the judicially expounded connotation of the expression “cause of

action” sustained the objection to the maintainability of the complamf} It was
noticed that there was no whisper of any allegation relatable to the offences
imputed at the place of stay of the complainant where the complaint had been
filed. It was thus held that no part of cause of action did arise within the
jurisdiction of the Trial Court before which the complaint had been filed and
the proceedings resultantly were quashed.

70.  Asimilar fact situation obtained in Bhura Ram (supra) also involving
offences under Sections 498A/406/147 IPC. In the attendant facts, it being
apparent that no part of the cause of action for the alleged offence had arisen

' or no part of the offence had been' committed within the jurisdiction of the

court before which the complaint had been filed, the proceedings were
quashed. . R

71.  Both these decisions on territorial jurisdiction, to start with having
regard to the facts involved herein are distinguishable and are of no avail to

' the appellants. As hercinbefore stated, the appellants as assesses, had
residences both at Bhopal and Aurangabad and had been submitting their
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income’ tax returns at Bhopal. The search operations were conducted
" simultaneously both at Bhopal and Aurangabad in course whereof allegedly
the appellants, in spite-of queries made, did not disclose that they in fact did
hold a locker located at'Aurangabad.' They in fact denied to hold any locker,
either individually or jointly. The locker, eventually located, though at
Aurangabad, has a perceptible co-relation or nexus with the subject matter of -
‘assessment and thus the returns filed by the appellants at Bhopal which in tirn
were within the purview of the search operations. The search conducted
simultaneously at Bhopal and Aurangabad has to be construed as a single
composite expedition with a common mission. Having regard to the overall
facts and the accusation of false statement made about the existence of the
_ locker in such a joint drill, it cannot be deduced that in the singular facts and
circumstances, no part of the offence alleged had been committed within the
jurisdictional limits of the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal.

72.  Chapter XIII of the Code sanctions the jurisdiction of the criminal
courts in inquries and trials. Whereas Section 177 of the Code stipulates the
ordinary place of inquiry and trial, Section 178 enumerates the places of inquiry
or trial. In terms of Section 179, when an act is an offence by reason of
anything which has béen done and of a consequence which has ensued, the
_ offence may be inquired into or tried by a court within whose local jurisdiction
such thing has been done or such consequence has ensued. For immediate
reference, Sections 177 and 178 are extracted hereinbelow.

“177: Ordinary place of inquiry and trial - Every offence shall
 ordinarily be 1nqu1red into and tried by a court within whose
local _]unsdlctlon it was committed.

178: Place of inquiry or tnal~— (a) When it is uncertain in wﬁich .
of several local areas an offence was committed, or

(b) where an offence is'committed partly in one local area and
partly in another, or

(c) where an offence is continuing one, and continues to-be
committed in more local areas than one, or

(d) where it consists of several acts done in different local
_areas, it may be inquired into or tried by a court having
jurisdiction over any of such local areas. -
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" 73. Aswould beevident from hereinabove, ordinarily every offence ought
to be inquired into and tried by a court within whose local jurisdiction it had
been committed as is mandated by Section 177 of the Code. Section 17 8,
however marks a departure contingent on the eventualities.as listed in clauses
(a),(b), (c) and (d) of Section 178 to 1dent1fy the court that would have the
]unsdlctlon to try the offences as contemplated therein.

74. Though the concept of “cause of action” identifiable with a civil action
is not routinely relevant for the determination of territoriality of criminal courts
as had been ruled by this Court in Dashrath Rupsingh Rathod vs. State of
Maharashtra and Anéther, (2014) 9 SCC 129, their Lordships however -
were cognizant of the word “ordinarily” used in Section 177 of the Code to
acknowledge the exceptions contamed in Sectlon 178 thereof. Section 179
also did not elude notice .

75.  Bethat as it may, on a cumulative reading of Sections 177, 178 and
179 of the Code in particular and the inbuilt flexibility discernible in the latter
two provisions, we are of the comprehension that in the attendant facts and
circumstances of the case where to repeat, a single and combine search
operation had been undertaken simultaneously both at Bhopal and Aurangabad -
» for the same purpose, the.alleged offence can be tried’ by-courts otherwise
competent at both the aforementioned places. To confine the jurisdiction within
the territorial limits to the court at Aurangabad would amount, in our view; to
impermissible and illogical truncation of the ambit of Sections 178 and 179 of
the Code. The objection with regard to the competence of the Court of the
Chief Judicial Magistrate, Bhopal is hereby rejected. “

76.  Theinevitable consequence of the determination in its entirety however
is that the complaint is unsustainable in law having been filed by an authority, .
incompetent in terms of Section 195 of the Code.

77.  Intheresult, the appeal succeeds and the impugned proceeding and - .
the order assailed are set-aside. The respondent is however left at liberty to
take appropriate steps in the matter, as available in law, if so advised.

Appeal allaweaf. .
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" Befare Mr. Justice N.V. Ramana & Mr. Justice Prafulla C. Pant
Cr.A. No. 333/2013 decided on 25 April, 2017

BALIRAJ SINGH - ' ...Appellant
Vs. ' ; ' .
STATE OF M.P. : ...Respondent -

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302/34 — Appreciation
“of Evidence — Eye Witnesses — Ocular & Mediéal Evidence — Held —
Previous enmity existed between parties regardmg property -
Eyewitnesses deposed that they saw the accused giving beatings to
deceased with lathi while medical evidence suggests that cause of death ‘
was due to fatal injury by a sharp edged weapon — Contradictions in
deposition of eye witnesses — Further, police Officer who.conducted
seizure proceedings and prepared seizure memo was not examined —
Evidence creates serious doubt on prosecution case — Conviction and
sentence set aside — Appeal allowéd. (Paras 5, 9,11 & 13)
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, B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 3 02/34 — Appreciation of
Evidence — Interested/Related Witnesses — Held — Courts below failed to

.- scrutinize the prosécution evidence with utmost care when eye witnesses

are closely related inter-se and to the deceased. (Para5 & 11)
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I Case refei'red:

AIR 1983 SC 484. o
JUDGMENT
The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :

" N.V.RAMAN&, J. :- ‘This appeal arises out of impugned Judgment and Order

dated 12th January, 2012 passed by a Division Bench of High Court of Madhya
Pradesh, Jabalpur in Criminal Appeal No. 533 of 1994 upholding the
conviction and sentence passed by the leamed trial Court against the appellant
hérein for the offence punishable under Section 302/34, IPC.

2. The facts, limited for the purpose of dealing with this appeal, as divulged
by the prosecution case are that on 6th January, 1992, Hira Singh Gond
(Complainant—PW 7) lodged an FIR at Bahri Police Station, Sidhi District
stating that his brother Mangal Singh had gone to the fields to answer nature’s
call, when Baliraj Singh (A1 & Appellant herein) and Baijnath Singh (A2)
attacked him (Mangal Singh) with lathis causing instantaneous death of Mangal
Singh. Accordingly police registered Crime No. 5/92 against the accused,
body of the deceased was sent for postmortem examination, lathis allegedly
used in the crime were seized at the instance of the accused and charges were
framed against them under Section 302/34, IPC to which the accused pleaded
not guilty and claimed trial. -

3. ' In order to bring home the guilt of the accused, prosecution has
examined 13 witnesses, while no one was examined on the defense side. On
the basis of staternents of eyewitnesses, Ramrati (PW 9-—wife of the

‘deceased), Chameli (PW 8—wife of the complainant and sister-in-law of the -

deceased), and Lakhan Singh (PW 12—family friend of the deceased), and
considering the medical evidence, the trial court came to the conclusion that
accused were guilty of committing the murder of Mangal Singh (deceased).

. Accordingly, the trial Court convicted the accused under Section 302/34,

IPC and sentenced them to undergo imprisonment for life.

4. Aggrieved by the order of the trial court, both the accused filed criminal
appeal before the High Court. However, during the pendency of appeal before
the High Court, Baijnath Singh (A2) had died, therefore his sentence got
abated. The High Court also found the statements of eyewitnesses to be cogent

and trustworthy, therefore concurred with the judgment of the trial Court and
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.dismissed the appeal of the appellant-accused Hence the present appeal by
way of special leave, -

5. . Wehaveheard learned counsel for the parties at length. The case on -

behalf of the appellant as advanced by the learned counsel is that most of the
prosecution witnesses are interested witnesses, particularly the eyewitnesses
belong to one family and they had a longstanding grudge against the accused
over property dispute between both families, and hence the appellant was

falsely implicated in retaliation. The testimonies of Hira Singh (PW 7—brother -

of the deceased), Chameli (PW8—sister-in-law of the deceased), Ramrati

(PW9—~w1fe of the deceased) and Lakhan Singh (PW 12—family friend of -

. the deceased) cannot be relied on as they were inconsistent and lack credibility.

Besides they are contrary to the medical evidence. Accordmg to the own -

deposition of Lakhan Singh Prw 12—fam11y friend of the deceased), he used

to call the deceased as ‘maama’. He has stated that he arrived first at the

- place of incident upon hearing hue and cry of the deceased and saw the accused
running away from the scene of offence. But, as per the testimonies of Chameli
rw 8—51ster-1-law of the deceased).and Ramrati (PW. 9—wife of the
deceased) who reached the place of occurrence afterwards, the accused were
still beating the deceased with /athis. Contrary to their statements, Dr, R.K.

- Dixit (PW 13) who conducted postmortem examination on the body of the
‘deceased opined that the death was caused due to fatal i injury by a sharp and
pointed object or weapon. Nowhere in their testimony, the eyewitnesses
: spemﬁed that the accused carried sharp edged weapons, attributing the fatal

injury to the victim: It is oqly before the trial Court, Ramrati (PW. 9—wife of -

‘the deceased) improvised her version and deposed that when she reached the
place of occurrence, the dccused were beating her husband with Jathis which
. were coated with iron. Her statement cannot be made basis for- convicting the
. accused as she is very much an interested witness, more so when there is no
' specific averment as to who caused the fatal i injury on the neck, leadmg to.the
 death of the victim. It was not appropriate on the part of Courts below to
- ignore the fact that the eyewitnesses deposed that they saw the’ accused giving
beatings to the victim with sticks while the medical evidence suggests that the
cause of death'was by a sharp edged weapon. Before substantiating the crime

-against accused, the courts below failed to scrutinize the prosecution evidenice.
with utmost care when the eyewitnesses are closely related, Only byplacing’

reliance on couched evidence, the trial Court recorded conviction of the
accused. The High Court also ignored just principles of law to ensure that the

w
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i prosecution should prove its case besrond reasonable doubt and in-a mechanical
way fastened crime with the appellant and committed serious error by upholding
conviction. . '

6. . Adverting to the above arguments, Jearned counsel for the State -
“ submitted that the ocular testimony of PWs 8 and 9 remained consistent and
duly corroborated by the medical evidence. There was no suspicion for false
.implication of the accused as the eyewitnesses had categorically explained
 the beatings given by the accused leading to the death of Mangal Singh. There
~was specific statement by PW 9 (wife of the deceased) that the sticks with
which accused given beatings to the deceased were coated with iron. The
Courts below were at no fault in appreciating the direct evidence of
eyewitnesses so as to connect the accused with the commission of the crime
and the judgment of conviction under Section 302/34,IPC doesnot call for
any interference by this Court. ~~ * = o ' L

7. . Inthe backdrop of what has been argued by the learned counsel for
the parties and in the light of relevant material available on record we may

. now proceed with our observations. Admittedly there was no peace and

harmony between the victim and accused groups as they locked horns with |
each other over a longstanding dispute dating back 30 years, relating to *
mutation proceedings of some landed property. The thrust of the prosecution
to prove the charge against the appellant was mainly on the evidence of Chameli

. (PW 8)—wife of the complainant Hira Singh and sister-in-law of the deceased,
Ramrati (PW 9)— wife of the deceased and Lakhan Singh (PW12)—family
friend of the deceased, to make an endeavor that in all probability it was the
accused who committed the guiit. - '

8. -We find from the record that PW12—Lakhan Singh was the first '
person to reach the place of occurrence wher an alarm was raised by the
victim. In his statement to the police under Section 161, Cr.P.C. it was
unambiguously stated in clear terms that when he reached the place of
occuirence, he saw the accused running away from the spot. It was not
mentioned in the FIR or in his statement to the police that he witnessed the
accused-appellant injuring the victim. It is only in his deposition before Court; -
with variation to his earlier statement before the police, he narrated that he
was present at the spot at the time of commission of offence and witnessed
the accused showering lathi blows-on the deceased. He admittedly made .
clear that PWs 8 and 9 reached the place of occurrence afterwards. * -
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9. On the other hand, PW 8 in her statement deposed that she saw
accused beating the-deceased with larhis due to which the deceased had
sustained injuries on head, neck and blood was oozing out from there and
there was sunlight at that time. PW 9 (wife of the deceased) also made the
same statement however with some intensity that the Jathis were coated with
iron. Veracity of the statements of these two witnesses is doubtful at the
threshold itself, as they do not tally with the statement of PW12 who admittedly
reached the place of oc¢currence first.

10.  Considering the totality of the prosecution case; we fail to understand
that at the time of such occurrence in a small village, when there was sunlight
-and PW8 & PW9 along with villagers rushed upon hearing uproar of PW12,
no attempt was made by any of the eyewitnesses or villagers to catch hold of
the accused. This [acuna in the prosecution case becomes stronger with the
fact that in the FIR it was clearly mentioned, as PW8 saying to the complainant
that upon hearing hue and cry from the field, PW9, PW12 and other people
of village rushed to the field. Though there was no indication in the FIR on
PW8 herself rushing to the scene of offence, it is however apparent that somie
other people of village rushed to the place of occurrence, but there was none
‘among the villagers who rushed with PWs 8 & 9 as independent eye\mtness

11.  Thus, itis true that other than PW12—family friend of the deceased
the prosecution has not made any independent witness from the village people
who rushed to the place of offence along with PWs 8 & 9 on hearing hue and
cry from the field. The circumstances warrant application of due care and
caution in appreciating the statements of eyewitnesses because of the fact that
the prime eyewitnesses are related inter-se and to the deceased. Hence, the

. prosecution has failed to put a strong case as we cannot attach credence to
the statements of PWs 8, 9 & 12. The courts below erred in not applying the
principle of strict scrutiny in assessing the evidences of eyewitnesses (PWs 8,
9 & 12). :

'12. "Further, we find from the postmortem report (Annexure P1) prepared
by Dr. R.K. Dixit (PW 13) upon examining the body of deceased, that there

was a punctured wound just below the angle of right mandible over the right .

side of neck 17 x %5 x 3” and on dissection, he found that major artery was
‘punctured and trachea was cut. There was hematoma underlying the whole
side of neck and in the opinion of Doctor, the injury was caused by a sharp
piercing object. In his evidence, Doctor (PW 13) confirmed that cause of

-
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death was due to excessive hemorrhage form the punctured wound over the .
. right side of neck caused by sharp piercing obj ect and due to punctured major
. blood vessel, over right side of neck.

13.  Ttison record that at the instance of the accused—appellant, police
have recovered (Ext.P7) from arhar field the lathi allegedly used in the offence.
However, nowhere it is recorded that the seized lathi contained any sharp
edges with iron coated. Even it was not sent for examination of Dr. R.K.. Dixit
(PW 13) to ascertain whether the fatal injury could be resulted by it. Moreover,
the record says that the blood on the bloodstained cap of deceased (Ext. P9)
. seized from the place of occurrence did not tally with that of the deceased. '
Another glaring deficiency is that Sub-Inspector who conducted the seizure
proceedings and prepared the Ext. P7 (seizure memo) has not been examined
by the prosecution. It is settled proposition in criminal Junsprudence that
ordinarily, the value of medical evidence is only corroborative. It proves that
the injuries could have been caused in the manner alleged and nothing more.
The use which the defence can make of the medical evidence is to prove that

the injuries could not possibly have been caused in the manner alleged and
thereby discredit the eyewitnesses.' In this case the nature of injury,
contradiction about the time of arrival of the witnesses, contradictions between

. the ocular and medical evidence, non-examination of Police officer who

. conducted seizure and subsequent improvement by one of the eye witness
casts a serious doubt on the prosecution’s case.

14.  For the foregoing reasons, we cannot hold the accused—appellant
guilty of the offence in the present case. The conviction against appellant as
recorded by the trial court and upheld by the High Court is therefore set aside
and he is acquitted of the charges. He shall be set at liberty forthwith if not
required to be detained in connection with any. other offence.

15.  Theappeal stands allowed accordingly.
Appeal allowed.

1. Solanki Chimanbhai Ukabhai v. State of Gujarat, AIR 1983 SC 484
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_ " FULLBENCH '
_ Before Mr. Justice Hemant Gipta, Chief Justice,
Mr. Justice H.P. Singh, Mr. Justice Rajeev Kumar Dubey, .
Mpr. Justice Vijay Kumar Shukla & Mr. Justice Subodh Abhyankar
. W.P. No. 7798/2017 (Jabalpur) order passed on 12 October, 2017

- Vs

PANKAJ KUMAR RAI(M/S) . " .. .Petitioner
STATE OF M.P. & ors. S . ...Respondents

(Alongwith W.P. No. 11608/2017)

A.  Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996, Rule 68(1) Third Proviso
- "No Mining Dues"” Certificate - Held - Since minor iineral vests'in
State and there is absolute prohibition in extraction of mineral other than
by quarry lease or a trade quarry or permit quarry, therefore contractor
who is engaged in construction work is required to prove that such mineral
is royalty paid - If State Government insist on "No Mining Dues"
Certificate, the.same cannot be said to be illegal - Further,.State
Government advised to develop and adopt alternate mechanism of issuance

of online "No Mining Dues" certificate. (Paras 27, 29 to 31)

. 7 AT afra P WA 1996 Fraw es(1) g wegw -
&7 gRyar g v ~ afifEiRy — qfe e wfe aer ¥ fifg
BId & Td @R e A O ANRS WS AT @S G B
afre @ P w1 Of Rt @ gafae Pl et ¥ @ gV 3BT
'WWWWW@%Q%QW'WWEWWEW
e @ — A 5T WER G AT GHIT w7 amrE weet @ o
e T T W wHAT — THS SRR, TS IR B AT T
ARTAT YA TH, A @R B defeuw fraRy AR o@
I @ fag wars @ g ‘ '

" B. . Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996, Rule 68(1) Third

Proviso - "No Mining Dues" Certificate - Periodical Certificates - Held -

- Condition of issuance of "No Mining Dues" certificate on furnishing
.of copy of work completion certificate is not reasonable - Running bills
require periodical payments - Mining officer shall give "No Mining
Dues" certificate at least quarterly on basis of running bills:submitted
by contractor engaged in construction work, - (Para 29)

L1
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@ T aftw g w75 1996, Fraw 6s(1) ity owgw —
‘g7 SIRIAT THIT YT — WHARE 7AroT 77 — AfafaiRa — w1 wures
AT o @ SfY U BYR W e RAar’ gArT UH & Ay &1
1 7, gfmga T € — O, fial w emfie e sfaa ® — we
aftreT P a1 ¥ @ IDIR FRT Uwgd Fpd A A, e @ aER
wHH & w9 AWRFE U { AT FEFAT YA G JIT

C.'- Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996, Rule 4 & 68(1) Third
Proviso - Statutory Interpretation - Principle of Harmoniuos

_ Construction - Held - No word in statute is superfluous and each word

has its meaning - A proviso to statute has to be read as a -whole by.
giving harmonious contruction to all provisions of Iaw so that none of
the provisions is rendered redundant In view of such principle, third

. proviso is additional relaxation to Rule 4 and Rule 68(1) and is not

illegal nor enlarges the scope of Rule 68(1) of the Rules of 1996.
(Para24 & 25) -

T q?‘vraﬁwﬁmzr 7H. 1996, 1797 4 27'68(1)@37?77?@'5—
I T — waaaqel srepf=ra o7 fgra — afifaiRa — & a &
P I Prrefz 987 @ 07 vl = o o aef @ — T @ fad

T aige ot fifr 3 W swEEl @ wrer gyl s 2 gy, wyrfar

ﬁmmaﬁqmﬁﬁ?aﬁs‘rﬁmamﬁqﬁm I fagia
F ghera ek gy, qd e, Traw 4 @ Praw es(1) @ i afiRaw
ﬁmaéawqﬁisﬁsréﬂﬂﬁmwgsa%ﬁmwsa(ﬂa’ffaﬁ'ﬂaﬁ
qITAT 2|

D. - Minor Mineral Rules, M.P. 1996, Rule 2(xvi-b) & 68(1)

_ Third Proviso - Term "Contractor” - Held - Contractor as defined in

Rule 2(xvi-b) is a contractor who is granted trade quarry - Petitioners .

"have not been granted trade q‘u:irry,, they are the contractors engaged

in Government contract - Eipressxon contractor in third provise to Rule
68(1) is clarified by words ""engaged in construction work" - It has to

. be read together and not d:s;unctlvely : (Para 18)

g - -t @ P, 7.5, 1996, FraT z(cvi-d}) T 68(1) g

CRgE — W e — atitEiRe — fr 2(xvi-dl) F gen aftarfye
. 3PER go T 3BER ¥ R =mwiReE @@= gEe @Y g & — A
B TR @™ g e @) T 2, 3 e Wi § @t gy dhER

@—ﬁ'ﬂes(ﬂa‘:@?ﬁ'ﬂuﬁﬂ?ﬁ :ﬂﬁrczrﬁﬂa‘a%mim“ ‘Ryfor w1 F
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Cases referred :

2016 (2) MPLJ 704, (1976) 1 SCC 128, (1996) 4 SCC 596, (2004)
6 SCC 672, 2016 (6) SCC 120, (2000) 2 SCC 451, AIR 1985 SC 582,
(1994) 2 SCC 691, (2002) 2 SCC 678, (2014) 1 SCC 258.

Vivek Dalal, Mukesh Kumar Agarwal, Shekhar Sharma, Utkarsh
Agrawal and Amit Singh, for the petitioners. _
P K. Kaurav, A.G. with Amit Seth, G.A. for the respondents/State.

ORDER

The Order of the Court was  passed by :
HeMANT GuUPTA, C.J. :- The present Writ Petition No,7798/2017 was earlier
referred to larger Bench vide order dated 16.8.2017 whereby a Division Bench
of this Court prima facie found that the view taken by the Full Bench of this
Court in W.P. No0.4547/2016 (M/s Phaloudi Constructions and
Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. vs. State of Madhya Pradesh) and other connected
matters decided on'10.5.2016 requires reconsideration. Thus, following two
questions were referred for consideration to the Larger Bench:-

® Whether the purchase of minor mlnerals from open
market in terms of 3rd proviso to rule 68(1) excludes the
obtaining of “No Mining Dues” certificate from Mining
Department as the open market may include illegally extracted
minor minerals as well?

(i) Whether the judgment in Phaloudi Constructions and

. Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. lays down good law, in view of the
fact that the amendment carried out in Rules on 23rd March,
2013 and later on 2.7.2013 was not brought to the notice of
the Bench, when the Rule 68(1) was substituted?

2. Later, a Full Bench of three J udgesilearing the petition found that the
second question does not arise for consideration, but, finding that the view in
. Phaloudi Constructions and Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd.'s case (supra). does
not seem to be correct, therefore, the petition was ordered to be placed before
the larger Bench. It is how; this Bench is seized of the petition.
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3. The brief facts leading the abovesaid question, in short, are that the
petitioner herein is a registered contractor with Public Works Department
and has been awarded work order for construction work. In terms of the
agreement, the petitioner is being paid periodically but in every bill deduction
of royalty amount is made in spite of submitting purchase bills of the minor
minerals of the authorized dealers. The grievance of the petitioners is that
deductions of amount of royalty are being made without issuing any notice to
the petitioners and the entire payments are not being paid to the petitioners. It
is pointed out that there is no express provision of law to pay royalty to the
Department of Mines as the royalty is'to be paid by the contractor, who
undertakes mining operation. The material is purchased by the petitioners
from the trader who pays royalty as the payment of royalty is mentioned in
the invoices raised and given to the petitioners. The petitioners seek support
from the Full Bench judgment of this Court reported as 2016 (2) MPLJI 704
(Phaloudi Constructions and Infrastructure Pvt. Ltd. vs. State of M.P)
wherein the Court has concluded as under:-

«25. Thus, whether it is under clause (i) or clause (ii) of sub-
rule (1) of Rule 68 of 1996 Rules, the fact remains that the
same relates to contractor engaged in Government work of
the nature stipulated therein and.are given permission for
extraction, removal and transportation of any minor mineral
and not the contractors who though engaged in the work of
any department and undertaking but purchases the minor
mineral from open market. This aspect gets clarified from the
definition of “Contractor” as contained under clause (xvi-b)
of Rule 2 of 1996 Rules, which means a person who holds a
“trade quarry”. Accordingly, quarry permit holder/contractor
engaged in construction as find mention in Third Proviso is the
contractor, who has been so permitted under clause (i) and
_ (ii), as the case may be. Though this proviso contains an
expression “or used by purchasing from open market™;
however, since no such class of contractor engaged in work
of any department and undertaking, who is not authorised
under clause (i) or (ii) of sub-rule (1) of Rule 68, completes
such work by purchasing minor mineral from open market, is
created under these clauses, we decline to accept the
contentjons on behalf of the respondent that Third Proviso
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creates a substantive class of contractors engaged in works of
Govt. department and undertaking, In view whereof, the regime

. of M/s Tomar Construction Company (supra) and M/s
Chandrama Censtruction Company (supra) does not get
obliterated, even with insertion 6f Third Proviso to sub rule
(1) of Rule 68 of 1996 Rules.

26. Even if for the sake of argument if the contentions of State
Government Counsel is accepted that the contractor, which
find mentions in Third Proviso, would include the contractor
engaged in work of Government department and undertaking
who purchase minor minerals from open market to complete
such work, no provision in the Act of 1956 or the Rules and
Regulations made thereunder iricluding the Rules of 1996 and
2006 has been commended at, having control over such retails -
traders operating in ‘open market. There being no such
provision regulating open market it is beyond comprehension -
that, the Mining Officer/Officer-in-Charge, Mining Sector will
havé any document available with him for verification. On the
contraty, the discretion given to the Competent Authority vide
orders in M/s Tomar Constructions (supra), M/s Chandrania
Construction, Prashant Singh Bhadoriya (supra) and M/s
Trishul Construction (supra) to -shift the onus on the
contractor engaged in the works of the Government and
undertaking who ¢laims refund of royalty on the ground of
having purchased from the open market to establish the source.
In case, if be fails, the Government riot only can deny the refund;
simultaneously, can take action against such contractor undet
law, as in such cases, it can legally be inferred that the minor
mineral is obtained through illegal source. These powers would
be in addition to the statutory powers.”

4, Before this Bench, the argument of the learned counsel for the
petitioners is that the third proviso to Rule 68(1) of the M.P. Minor Mineral
Rules, 1996 (in short “the Rules™) does not include the purchase of the minerals
from the traders. The construction work undertaken by the petitioners is
‘excluded from the scope and preview of the third proviso. A contractor, as
defined under the Rules alone is required to obtain “No Mining Dues’ certificate

Ll
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.and/or a quarry permit holder and not the contractor who is executing separate
construction contract on behalf of the State. Therefore, ‘No Mining Dues’
certificate is not required to be'submitted By the petitioners as the petitioners
in‘the writ petitions are the purchasers of the mineral from the open market. It
is argued that keeping in view the law of'i interpretation, this Couit will not add
any words to the Statute, therefore, in view the plain language of the third
proviso, the petitioner is not liable to furnish “No Mining Dues’ certificate for
use of mineral in the construction work being undertaken by the petitioner. Tt
is argued that the judgment in Phaloudi Constructions (supra) does not
require reconsideration as the same has considered various aspects of the
provisions and the law applicable thereto.

A

5. Some of the learned counsel for the petitioners have submitted that
“No Mining Dues’ certificate is not issued for years together, therefore, the
requirement of “No Mining Dues’ certificate interferes with the right of business
run by the petitioners. It is-also argued that the invoices through which the
petitioners purchase the minor mineral have the endorsement of payment of
royalty. It is'for the State to verify whether the royalty has been paid or not
butthe petitioners, the petty contrdctors engaged in construction work, cannot
ensure that the traders from whom they have purchased the minor mineral on.
the basis of invoices raised to verify as to whether the royalty has been paid
ot not. Therefore, the third proviso which mandates the petitioners to obtain
‘No Mining Dues’ certificate is not apphcablc to thc petltloncrs and, in any
case, it is not practically pOSSIble

6. Shri Vlvek Dalal, learned counsel for the petitioners relies upon the
decision of the Supreme Court reported-as (1976) 1 SCC 128 (Dwarka
Prasad vs. Dwarka Das Saraf) to contend that if the pr1nc1pal provision is
clear, a proviso cannot expand or limit the substantive provision. It is argued
that the i 1nterpretat10n being given by the State enlarges the scope of proviso
- which is not permissible. Reliance has also been placed upon the Supreme

Court decisjon reported as (1996) 4 SCC 596 (S. Gopal Reddy vs. State of

Andhra Pradesh) . . _

'7. Shn Shekhar Sharma, learned counsel appearing for the petitioner in
W.P. N0.11608/2017 relies upon the Supreme Court judgment reported as ‘
(2004) 6 SCC 672 (Maulavi Hussein Haji Abraham Umarji vs. State of
Gujarat and another) to contend that the Court cannot read anything in a

statutory provision when the language is plain and unambiguous. Shri Amit
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Singh, learned counsel appearing for the petitioners in some cases argued that
royalty payable is different from no mining dues being claimed from the
petitioners. Royalty is payable as per Form X, XI and XII appended with the
Rules for which monthly, balf-yearly and annual return is to be filed whereas
the petitioners are being called upon to obtain "No Mining Dues' certificate
which is not dealt with in the Rules.

8. On the other hand, learned Advocate General submitted that the words
“contractor engaged in construction work™ appearing in the proviso to Rule
68(1) of the Rules, is not a “Contractor” as defined in Rule 2(xvi-b) of the
Rules. It is also submitted that the “Quarry permit” holder as mentioned in
third proviso is defined in Clause 2(xxiii) of the Rules, which is different from
the “Quarry lease” defined in Rule 2(xxv) of the Rules. It is argued that Rule 4

. prohibits mining operation without the trade quarry or a quarry permit or a
quarry lease. The Rule 6 deals with the grant of quarry lease whereas Rule 7
deals with trade quarry that is the lease by auction only in respect of quarries
of minerals specified in Serial No.5 of Schedule-I and Serial No.1 and 3 of
Schedule-II of the Rules. As such there is absolute prohibition of the extraction
of mineral without allotment or auction, therefore, Rule 68 is an exception to
Rule 4. Rule 68 grants permission for extraction, removal and transportation
of any minor mineral from any specified quarry, if it is required for the works
of any department and undertaking of Central or the State Government. Said
permission can be granted to the concerned Departmental Authorities or its
authorized contractor on furnishing proof of award of contract as envisaged in
Rule 68(1)(i) of the Rules. Clause (ii) of Rule 68(1) permits the Executive
Engineer to permit the use of murrum and ordinary clay for construction of
roads under the Public Sector Authority, Board or local body.

9. It is argued that “Quarry permit” holder as mentioned in third proviso,

defined in Rule 2(xxiii), is a permission granted to extract and remove any’

minor mineral for any specified period. Thus, the quarry permit is different
and given for a limited period as against “Trade quarry” as defined in Rule
2(xvi-a) or “’Quarry lease” as defined in Rule 2(xxv) ofthe Rules. Therefore,
proviso is an exception to prohibition of extraction of minor mineral other than
by allotment or auction to a person who is granted quarry permit. Such quarry
permit holder is to deposit advance royalty in terms of Sub-Rule (3) whereas
in respect of contractor engaged in construction work, such contractor has to
produce “No Mining Dues’ certificate to ensure that only legally extracted

-
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minor minerals are used in construction activity rather than illegally extracted
minerals without payment of royalty. Reliance is placed upon the Supreme
Court judgment reported as 2016 (6) SCC 120 (State of Ra]asthan and
another Vs, Deep Jyotz Company and another)

10. It is argued that in the Judgment in Phaloudi Construction (supra), -
the expression “contractor engaged in construction work” has been
misinterpreted to mean “‘Contractor” as defined in Rule 2(xvi-b) of the Rules
whereas such proviso is applicable to a contractor who has been granted
Tiade quarry.

11.  The M.P. Minor Mineral Rules, 1996 havc been framed undcr Section
15 of the Mines and Minerals (Regulation and Development) Act, 1957
(No.67 of 1957) (hereinafter referred to in short as “the Act™). Section 15 of
the Act empowers the State Government to frame Rules to provide for all or
~ anyofthe followmg matters, namely,

“(a) the person by whom.and the manner in which,
applications for quarry leases, mining leases or other mineral
“concessions may be made and the fees to be paid therefor;

4
k1]

L b oo 4 XXX XXX

-12.  Intermsofsuch stafutory provisioﬂ, the Rules have been I'fr'amed and
the relévant extract of the Rules is reproduced as under:-

“2. Definitions. - In these rules, unless the context otherwise
requires,-

(xvi-a) “Trade quarry”, means a quairy for which the right to
work is auctioned:

(xvi-b) “Contractor” means a person who holds a “trade
. qual_ry!b.
(xxiii) “Quarry permmit” means a permission granted under these

rules to extract and remove any minor mineral in any specified
period;
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(xxv) “Quarry Lease” means a mining lease for minor minerals
as mentioned in Section 15 of the Act;”

XXX XXX XXX

4. Prohibition of mining operation without a trade
quarry or quarry permit or quarry lease- (1) No person
shall undertake any mining operation in any area except under
and in accordance with the terms and conditions of a trade
quarry or quarry lease granted under these rules:

Provided that nothing in this sub-rule shall affect any
mining or quarrying operation undertaken in any area in
accordance with the terms and conditions of permit, a quarry

- lease, trade quarry or royalty quarry granted beforé the
" commencement of these rules which is in force at the time of
such commencement.

(2)  Notrade quarry or quarry lease shall be granted other
than in accordance with the provisions of these rules.

XXX p.4.9.4 XXX

6. Powers to grant quarry lease. - Quarry lease in
respect of minerals specified in Schedule-I and II shall be
granted and renewed by the authority mentioned in column (2)
for the minerals specified in. column (3) subject to the extent as
specified in the corresponding entry in column (4) thereof of
the Table below:-

7. Power to grant trade quarry. - (1) The quarries of
Minerals, specified in serial number 5 of Schedule I and serial
numbers 1, 3 of Schedule II; situated in government land, shall
be allotted only by auction: ‘

Provided that quarry lease of minerals specified in serial
number 1 of Schedule Il may be granted in favour of the Madhya
Pradesh State Mining Corporation Limited (Government of
Madhya Pradesh Undertaking).
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(2)  The period of quarry of minerals specified in serial
number 5 of schedule I and mineral specified in serial number
1 and 3 of schedule Il shall be upto the end of fifth financial
year from the financial year, fixed for auction:

XXX . ' *XX b.0.¢.4

9. Application for quarry lease. - An application for the .
grant or renewal of a quarry lease shall be made in FormIin_

triplicate for the minerals specified in Schedule I and II. The

application shall be affixed with a court fee stamp of the value

of five rupees and shall contain the following particulars

. together with documents in support of the statements made

therein:-

XXX XXX ) XXX
18. Disposal of applications for the grant or renewal of
quarry lease. - (1) On receipt of an application for the grant
orrenewal of a quarry lease, its details shall be first circulated
for display on the notice board of the Zila Panchayat, Janpad

Panchayat and Gram Sabha concerned of the district and
collectorate of the district concerned. '

(1-A) Addition to in sub-rule (l ), the details of quarry
lease application, received for any area shall be published in
leading daily Hindi newspaper in the form of notice for general
information within fifteen days from the date of receipt of
application.

XX K XXX
36. Auction of quarries. - (1) The quarries of minerals,
specified in serial number 5 of Schedule I and minerals specified

in serial number 1 and 3 of Schedule II situated in Government
land, shall be allotted only by auction: -

2629

Provided that quarry lease of mineral specified in serfal =~

number 1 of Schedule II may be granted in favour of the
Mahdya Pradesh State Mining Corporation Limited
(Government of Madhya Pradesh Undertaking).
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(2)  Notice of auction shall be published in Form XV atleast .
15 days before the auction at the notice board or any
conspicuous place by way of fixing the copy of such notice
thereon in the office of the concerned Gram Panchayat, Janpad
Panchayat, Zila Panchayai, Development Block, Tahsil and
Collectorate and the village where the quarries are situated:

Provided that auction of the qflarry shall also be made
by the process of e-auction as per the conditions prescribed.

3 Every bidder shall execute an agreement in Form XVI
before he/she participates in the'auction. '

. 68. Quarry permit and transport permit for renewal of
minor minerals.- (1) (i} The concerning Officer Incharge,
Mining Section shall grant permission for extraction, removal
and transportation of any minor mineral from any specified
quarry or land which may be required for the works of any
department and undertaking of the Central Government or State
Government. Such permission shall only be granted to either
the concerned departmental authority or its authorized
contractor on furnishing proof of award of contract.

(i) Notwithstanding anything contained in clause (i) above,
in case of roads under construction or to be constructed under
the public sector, authority, board, local body of State
Government or Government department of the State, the
permits of murrum and ordinary clay shall be given by the
Executive Engineer or officer equivalent to Executive Engineer
of the concerned public sector, authority, board local body of
State Government or Government department of the State to
the authorised contractor and prior to issuing of such permit
no objection from Mining, Revenue and Forest Department
shall be obtained by them and copy of the permit issued shall
be endorsed to these departments. The Executive Engineer or
officer equivalent to'Executive Engineer of concerned public
sector, authority, board, local body of State Government or
Government departments of the State shall obtain Transit Pass
Book in advance from office of the Collector and he shall issue
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the transit pass to contractors and quantity of the minor mineral
excavated shall be informed, in every three months, to the
concerned Collector.] .

Prov1ded that information of 1n-pr1n01p1e sanction of
permit shall be given to the applicant. Applicant shall furnish
permission from the District level environment committee,
within one month maximum, from the date of receipt of such
information: ' : ' '

Provided further that if in-principle sanction is for five
hectare or more area, then applicant from the date of receipt
of such information, shall submit énvironment permission
obtained under notification dated 14.09.2006 of Ministry of
Environment and Forest within period of six months. After
completion of all formalities sanctioning authority shall issue
sanction order of quarry permit. Sanctioning authority may
permit to enhance the time period, if all formalities are not
completed in prescribed time period, on the basis of satisfactory
reasons: ’

Provided also that quarry permit holder/contractor
engaged in construction work shall obtain_certificate of
no_mining dues to_ensure payment of royalty for the
mineral used in construction work, for the mineral
excavated from quarry permit area or used by purchasing
from open market. Certificate of no mining dues shall be
issued by Mining officer/officer in-charge mining section,
after verification of documents submitted by contractor/
guarry permit holder engaged in construction work.

(2) Such permission shall not exceed the quantity of minerals
required for construction work and the penod shall not exceed
the period of construction work.

(3) Such permission shail only be granted on payment in
advance of oyalty calculated at the rates specified in Schedule
II1. The transit pass in Form IX then shall be issued.

‘Provided that royalty on ordinary clay and murrum shall
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not be payable for all construction works carried out or to be
carried out under public sector, authority, board, local body
of the State Government or Governmient department of the
State. '

(4) The permit shall be governed by the following conditions:-

(a)  The permit holdershall maintain complete and correct
" account of the mineral removed and transported from
the area.

(b)  The permit holder shall allow any officer authorised by
the Zila/ Janpad/Gram Panchayat in respect of the
permission given by the Collector/Additional Collector
to the Collector/Additional Collector/Deputy Director/
Mining Officer/Assistant Mining Officer/Mining
Inspector, to inspect quarrying operations and verify
the accounts.

(c)  Nosoonerthe permitted quantity is transported within
the time period of Construction work or earlier,
duplicates of all transit pass, such unused transit passes
together with 2 complete statement of the quantities
duly certified by the Officer of the concerned
department shall be furnished to the Sanctioning
Authority.]” ;

[emphasis supplied]

The third proviso as reproduced above cannot be said to be
satisfactory translation of the authorized notification published in Hindi in
Madhya Pradesh Gazette (Extraordinary) dated 23.03.2013. The Gazette
Notification containing third proviso,in Hindi, read as under:-

“ovg T A S SeEEe AgeE / 9BeR W famier B o ot &)

© rior BRE § ST F @Y Ty afier Seaee argE 8 ¥ e
GfTeT S1aT ot IR B 5T A I9aiT # o 7T @i @ g
Y B I B! G o & forg i o aftoner 9%,
T AT SO T, G ARER /R SRR @ e IR BN
forfor Rt # @R gY IDER/ S SFTIERY ENT WK Y g
TR 6T I TR & T¥ar Wi fopar s
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13.  Wehaveheard learned counsel for the parties and find that the “Quarry
Permit” mentioned in Rule 68 third proviso is distinct from a “Trade quarry”
granted under Rule 7 read with Rule 36 or a “Quarry lease” granted under
Rule 6 read with Rule 18 of the Rules. The grant of “Quarry permit™ as defined
in Rule 2 (xxiii) of the Rules is dealt with only in third proviso of Rule 68 as a
permit to extract minor mineral for a specified period of the contract. Such a
specified period of contract is granted on payment of advance royalty in terms
of Sub-Rule (3) of Rule 68 of the Rules as against the royalty in case of
quarry lease or a trade quarry, which is payable after the eéxtraction of mineral
in certain situations. For the purpose of Quarry permit, Rule 68 is the complete
Code; specifying the period, payment of royalty and the conditions attached
to it. The “Contractor” has been defined to mean the person who holds the
trade quarry. The “trade quarry” is the one for which right to work is auctioned
in terms of Rule 7 read with Rule 36 as contained in Chapter VI of the Rules.
The quarry lease is allotted under Rule 6. Thus, the quarry lease is granted by
allotment whereas the trade quarry is allotted by auction whereas the quarry
permit is granted for a specified period for the purposes of specific contract
in terms of third proviso to Rule 68. The “Contractor” defined under Rule

-2(xvi-b) of the Rules is a person who holds a trade quarry. The.third proviso
to Rule 68 is not applicable to a contractor who has been given a trade quarry
but a contractor who is engaged in construction work. The definitions given in
Rule 2 are “unless the context otherwise requires”. Since the expression
“Contractor” in third proviso is followed by the expression “engaged in
construction work” therefore, the contractor in third proviso is not a contractor,

who has been given a trade quarry but a contractor engaged:i n constructlon
work of the Central or the State Government..

14.  In Phaloudi Construction (supra), the Full Bench examining the
definition of a “Contractor” under Clause (xvi-b) of Rule 2 held that the
contractors engaged in the work of any Department and Undertaking to
purchase the minor mineral from open market are not covered by the said
definition. The Court held that there is no such contractor engaged in work of
the department or undertaking who purchases from open market, therefore,
it does not create a substantive class of the contractor engaged in works of
Government department and Undertaking. We find that the conclusions drawn
by the Full Bench are not in tune with'the statutory provision, which deals
separately with trade quarry or quarrylease and quarry permit. The third
proviso deals with quarry permit holder as provided under Rule 4 in
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: contradlctlon to allotment of quarry lease and auction of trade quarry. Such
definitions have not been exammed properly by the Full Bench in Phaloudi
Construction (supra). :

15.  We are unable to agree with the argument of the learned counsel for
the petitioners that the proviso is enlarging the scope of Rule 68 of the Rules.
- In fact, Rule 68 itself is proviso to Rules 4, 6 and 7 of the Rules. Rule 6 deals
with grant of quarry lease by allotment and trade quarry by auction. Rule 68
confers power on the State or the Central Government to extract remove or
transport any minor mineral from a specified quarry in terms of sub-clause (i)
of Rule 68(1) of the Rules without trade quarry or quarry lease. In fact, third
proviso deals with two situations i.e. (1) extraction of minor mineral by a
quarry permit holder, who is required to pay royalty in advance and (2) a
contractor engaged in construction work who has to obtain certificate of ‘“No
Mining Dues’ to ensure payment of royalty for the mineral used in construction
work. We find that the translation of third proviso is shoddy but since the
issue being examined is: purchase of minor minerals by the contractor engaged
- in construction work, therefore, if the proviso is read by striking of the words
quarry permit, the provision would read as under:- -

“Provided also that quarry-permit-helder contractor engaged
in construction work shall obtain certificate of no mining dues

to ensure payment of royalty for the mineral used in construction
work, for the mineral excavated from quarry permit area or
used by purchasing from open market. Certificate of no mining
dues shall ke issued by Mining officer/officer in-charge mining
section, after verification of documents submitted by contractor

quarry-permithelder engaged in construction work.”

16.  Infact, the argument raised by the learned counsel for the petitioners
that proviso is enlarging the main substantive provision, is wholly misplaced.
Firstly, the proviso is a part of the Rule, which itself is a proviso to Rule 4,
which prohibits that no person shall undertake any mining operation in any
area except by way of trade quarry or a quarry lease. Rule 68 deals with
neither a trade quarry or a quarry lease but it deals with a situation where the
Central or the State Government or a contractor engaged by it are given
permission for extraction, removal and transportation 6f any minor mineral
from any specified quarry. Third proviso is a further exception to Sub-clause _
(1) of Rule 68 when a quarry permit holder or a contractor engaged in
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.construction work are permitted to use the excavated mineral on payment of
royalty or on payment of proof of royalty. Therefore, third proviso is not an
enlargement of Sub-Rule (1) of Rule 68 butisan addxtxonal exception to Rule
4 contamlng absolute prohibition.

17.  In Dwarka Prasad’s case (supra) the Supreme Court held that the
golden rule of interpretation is to read the whole section inclusive of proviso
in such manner that they mutually throw light and result in harmonious
construction. Relevant extracts from the said decision read as under-

“18.. ... If the rule of construction is that prima facie a
proviso should be limited in its operation to the subject matter

- of the enacting clause, the stand we have taken is sound. To
expand the enacting clause, inflated by the proviso, sins against -
the fundamental rule of construction that a proviso mustbe
considered in relation to the principal matter to which it stands
as a proviso. A proviso ordinarily is but a proviso, although
the golden rule is to read the whole section, inclusive of the
Pproviso, in such manner that they mutually throw light on each

- other and result in a harmonious construction.

The proper course is to apply the broad general rile of
construction which is that a section or enactment must be
construed as a whole each portion throwing light if need beon
the rest.

The true principle undoubtedly is, that the sound interpretation

and meaning of the statute, on a view of the enacting clause, -
saving clause, and proviso, taken and construed together is to
prevail. (Maxwell on Interpretation of Statutes 10th Edn.
P.162) .

19. We now move on to "dominant intent' as the governing
rule. In'our view, therdominant intent is found in leading decision
of this Court. Indeed, some State Legislatures, accepting the
position that where the dominant intention of the lease is the
enjoyment of a cinema, as distinguished from the building, have
deliberately amended the definition by suitable changes (e.g.
Kerala and Andhra Pradesh) while other Legislatures, on the
opposite policy decision, have expressly excluded the rent -
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" - control enactment (e.g., the later Act).”. '

18.  Shri Vivek Dalal, learned counsel for the petmoners relied upon the
]udgment reported as (2000) 2 SCC 451 (Special Officer & Competent
Authority, Urban Land Ceilings, Hyderabad and another vs. P.S. Rao) to
contend that the word contractor cannot be given any other meaning than one
as defined under the Rules, is again not tenable Opening line of the Rule 2 is
“Unless the context otherwise requires”. Contractor as defined in Rule
2(xvi-b) is a contractor who is granted trade quarry. The petitioners are not
the one who have been granted trade quarry. In fact, the petitioners are the
contractors engaged in (Government contracts and that the expression
contractor in third proviso is clarified by the words “engaged in construction
work”. The words “contractor engaged in construction work” have to be
read together and not disjunctively and therefore, the judgment in Special
Officers & Competent Authority's case (supra) is not applicablé to the facts
of the present case as the context in which contractor has been defined i is
materially different than the expression contractor engaged in executlon ofthe
contract appearing in third proviso.

19. InAIR 1985 SC 582 (S. Sundaram Pillai etc. vs. V.R. Pattabzraman)
the Court culled down four different purposes which a proviso serves. The
relevant extract from the said Judgment is reproduced as under:-

“42. We need not multiply authorities after authorities on this
point because the legal position seems to be clearly and
manifestly well established. To sum up, a proviso may serve
four different purposes:

(1) qualifying or excepting certain provisions from the main
enactment;

(2) it may entirely change the very concept of the intendment
of the enactment by insisting on certain mandatory conditions
to be fulfilled in order to make the enactment workable;

(3) it may be so embedded in the Act itself as to become an
integral part of the enactment and thus acquire the tenor and
colour of the substantive enactment itself; and

(4) it may be used merely to act as an optional addenda to the
enactment with the sole object of explaining the real intendment
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of thé statutory provision.”

20.  InMaulavi Hussein Haji Abraham (supra), the Supreme Court has

_held that the Court cannot read anything into a statutory provision which is
plain and unambiguous statute. The lJanguage employed in a statute is the
determinative factor of legislative intent. The question is not what may be
supposed and has been intended but what has been said. The relevant paras
from the said decision read as under:- '

“18. The question is not what may be supposed and has
been intended but what has been said. "Statutes should be

" construed, not as theorems of Euclid", Judge Learned Hand
said, "but words must be construed with some-imagination of

. the purposes which lie behind them", (See Lenigh Valley Coal
Co. v. Yensavage, 218 FR 547). The view was reiterated in
Union of India v. Filip Tiago De Gama of Vedem Vasco
De Gama, (1990) 1 SCC 277 (SCC p. 284, para 16).

19. In Dr. R. Venkatchalaim v. Dy. Transport
Commissioner, (1977) 2 SC 273, it was observed that Courts
must avoid the danger of a priori determination of the meaning

- of a provision based on their own preconceived notions of
ideological structure or scheme into which thé provisiontobe
interpreted is somewhat fitted. They are not entitled to usurp
legislative function under the disguise of interpretation.

20.  While interpreting a provision the Court only interprets

the law and cannot legislate it. If a provision of law is misused

and subjected to the abuse of process of law, it is for the

legislature to amend, modify or repeal-it, if deemed necessary.

(See CST v.Popular Trading Co., (2000) 5 SCC 511 The

legislative casus onussus cannot be supphed by Judlcxal
. mterpretatlve process. '

21. Two prmclples of constructlon one relatmg to casus

omissus and the other in regard to reading the statute as a

. whole - appear to be well settied."Under the first principle a
casus omissus cannot be supplied by the Court except in the

case of clear necessity and when reason for it is found in the

four corners of the statute itself but at the same time a casus
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omissus should not be readily inferred and for that purposeall
. the parts of a statute or section must be construed together
“and every clause of a section should be construed with reference
to the context and other clauses thereof so that the construction
to be put on a particular provision makes a consistent enactment )
of the whole statute. This would be more so if literal
construction of a particular clause leads to manifestly absurd
-or anomalous results which could not have been intended by
the Legislature. "An intention to produce an unreasonable
result”, said Danackwerts, L.J. in Artemiou v. Procopiou,
[1966] 1 OB 878, "is not to be imputed to a statute if there is
some other construction available”. Where to apply words
literally would "defeat the obvious interition of the legislature
and produce a wholly unreasonable result", we must "do some
violence to the words" and so achieve that obvious intention
and produce a rational construction. (Per Lord Reid in Luke
v. IRC, 1963 AC 557 where at p. 577 he also observed: (All
ER p. 664 I) "This is not a new problemn, though our standard
of drafting is such that it rarely emerges. ".”

21.  The Supreme Court while examining the Karnataka Minor Mineral
Concession Rules, 1969 in a Jjudgment reported as Premium Granites and
another vs. State of T.N. and others, (1994) 2 SCC 691, held that for
bringing harmonious construction, reading down a provision in the statute, is
anaccepted principle. The Court said as under:-

.“55. In various statutes, the provision of relaxation or
exemption finds place and it has.been indicated that such
provisions of relaxation and exemption have been noticed and
upheld by this Court in some of the statutes. In the MMRD
Act itself, there is such provision for relaxation, being Section
31. Such provision of relaxation in Karnataka Minor Mineral
Concession Rules, 1969 is contained in Rule 66. It has been
rightly contended that where in respect of prohibited

" categories, the law carves out restriction or relaxation, the
purposg is to take out cértain exceptions from the prohibited

* area and keeping certain categories outside the purview of
resttictions imposed under other provisions in the statute. In
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such circumstances, it will not be appropriate to hold that the
exception militates with other provisions and hence should not
be permitted. In our view, in interpreting the validity of a
provision containing relaxation or exemption of another
provision of a statute, the purpose of such relaxation and the
scope and the effect of the same in the context of the purpose
of the statute should be taken into consideration and if it
appears that such exemptlon or relaxation basically and
intrinsically does not violate the purpose of the statute rendering
it unworkable but it is consistent with the purpose of the statute,
there will be no occasion to hold that such provision of relaxation
or exemption is illegal or the same ultra vires other provisions
of the statute. The question of exemption or relaxation ex
hypothesi indicates the existence of some provisions in the
statute in respect of which exemption or relaxation is intended
for some obvious purpose.

. 56. There is no manner of doubt that for bringing harmonious
construction, reading down a provision in the statute, is an
accepted principle and such exercise has been made by this
Court in a number of decisions, reference to which has already
been made. But we do not think that in the facts and
circumstances of the case, and the purpose sought to be
achieved by Rule 39, such reading down is necessary so as to
limit the application of Rule 39 only for varying some terms

-and conditions of a lease. If the State Government has an
authority to follow a particular policy in the matter of quarrying
of granite and it can change the provisions in the Mineral
Concession Rules from time to time either by incorporating a
particular rule or amending the same according fo its perception
of the exigencies, it will not be correct to hold that on each
and every occasion when such perception requires a change
in the matter of pollcy of quarrying a minor mineral in the State,
particular provision of the Mineral Concession Rules has got .
to be amended. On the contrary, if a suitable provision
empowering exemptlon or relaxation of other provisions in the

. Mineral Concession Rules is made by confining its exercise in
an objective manner consistent with the MMRD Act and in
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furtherance of the cause of mineral development and in public
interest, by giving proper guidelines, such provision containing
relaxation or exemption cannot be held to be unjustified or
untenable on the score of violating the other provisions of the
Mineral Concession Rules.”

22.  Inanother Judgment reported as Kailash Chandra ard another Vs.
Mukundi Lal and others, (2002) 2 8CC 678, the Court held that a provision
in the statute is not to be read in isolation. It has to be read with other related
provisions in the Act itself, more particularly, when the subject-matter dealt
with in different sections or parts of the same statute is the same or similarin
nature. The relevant extract from the J udgment read as under:- '

“11. Aprovision in the statute is not to be read inisolation. It
has to be read with other related provisions in the Act itself,
more particularly, wiien the subject-matter dealt with in different
- sections or parts of the same statute is the same or similar jn
nature. As in the case in hand, we find that the matter relates to
liability of the tenant to pay rent to the landlord and the
consequences on failure to do so as provided under Section
. .20(2)(a) of the Act. Sub-section (4) of Section 20 deals with
payment of arrears of rent etc. at the first hearing of the suit
which in that event provides protection from eviction. Section
30 deals with the two circumstances in which for one reason
or the other, the rent is deposited in the court instead of payment
to the landlord. As noted éarlier the effect of deposit of rerit is
provided under sub-section (6) of Section 30. Therefore, all
the'related provisions have to be read to gether for the purposes
of proper and harmonious construction. It is not only
permissible but much desirable for proper understanding of
the contents and meaning of the provisions under consideration. i
. In R.S. Raghunath v. State of Karnataka (1992) 1 SCC
335 it has been observed: “Neo part of a statute and no word
of a tatute can be construed in isolation. Statutes have to be-
construed so that every word has a place and everything isin
its place.” In M. Pentiah v. Muddala Veeramallappa AIR
1961 SC 1107, a reference was made to the observations
made by Lord Davey in Canada Sugar Refining Co. v. R,
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1898 AC 735, itreads as follows: .

“Every clause of a statute should be construed.
with reference to the context and the other
clauses of the Act, so as,.as far as possible, to
make a consistent enactment of the whole
statute or series-of statutes relating to the
subject-matter.” :

23 In‘another judgment reported as State of Andhra Pradesh through
Inspector General, National Investigation Agency vs. Mohd. Hussain alias
Saleem, (2014) 1 SCC 258, the Court held that it is a well-settled canon of
interpretation that when it comes to construction of a section, it is to be read
in its entirety, and its sub-sections are to be read in relation to each other, and -
not disjunctively. Besides, the text of a section has to be read in the context of
the statute. The Court held as under:- e

“19, We cafinot ignore that it is a well-settled canon. of
interpretation that when it comes to construction of a section,
it is to be read in its entirety; and its sub-sections are o be
read ifrrelation to each other, and not disjunctively. Besides,
the text of a séction has to be read ifi the context of the statute.
A few sub-sections of a section cannot be separated from
other sub-sections, and read to convey something altogether
different fromthe theme underlying the entire section. That is
how a section is required-to be read purposwely ‘and

meamngfully

- 24, Thus,in view of the principle of statutory interpretation that no word
in statute is superfluots and each word has its meaning, the provisos of the

_statute have to be read as a whole by giving harmonious construction to all
the provisions of the law so that none of the provision is rendered redundant.
Keeping in view the prmmple of harmonious construction, the third proviso is
additional relaxation to.Rule 4 of the Rules and 68(1) of the Rules. Therefore,
third proviso cannot be said to be 1llega1 in any manner. -

25.  Thus, from the plain lariguage of Rule 68; Schemie of Statitte and the
purpose of Rules that there should not be any illegal extraction of minerals
and all minerals should be royalty paid, thérefore, we find that third proviso is
‘neither illegal nor enlarges the scope of proviso to than that of Rule 68 or any
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other provision of the Rules.

26.  Apart from the plain meaning of the statute, the Supreme Court in the
case of Deep Jyoti Company (supra) was examining somewhat similar situation
in Rajastlian whereby short term permit was being granted to a contractor
engaged in the 'government construction work. The present is a case of
contractor who is purchasing mineral from an open market and using the same
in the Government works. The Supreme Court held that the purpose of the
Statute is to ensure that no mineral is excavated and used without payment of
royalty. The proviso ensures that the material is purchased by the contractor
from the market which is a legal mined and the objective is to see that illegal
minor mineral is not purchased by the contractor and used in the construction
work which is awarded by the Government. The Supreme Court held, thus:-

“10. Insofar as the contention that in terms of the circular there
is compulsion to obtain short term permit, in our view, as such
there is no such compulsion. It is only to ensure that no mineral
is excavated and used without paymerit of royalty. The purpose
* of short-term permit is to ensure that the material and minerals
.etc. used by the contractor in the construction work are royalty
. paid. It only means that such material is purchased by the
contractor from the market which is legally mined and on which
due royalty is paid. In other words, the objective is to see that
illegally mined mineral/material is not purchased by the
contractor and used in the construction work which is awarded
by the Government. Not only it is a laudable object, such a
stipulation is inserted in order to check illegal mining which
unfortunately has assumed serious proportions in the recent
past. Otherwise, the respondents herein do not stand to loose
anything inasmuch as the mornent evidence is produced to-the
effect that royalty was paid on the minerals by the leaseholder
- which was used in the construction, the construction contractor
like the respondents would be refunded the royalty so paid by
it in terms of circular dated 06.10.2008. In terms of clauses
(5) and (7) of the said circular, the contractor has to pay royalty
at the rates specified in the circular depending upon the nature .
of work and on production of bills showing payment of royalty,
the contractor can get refund of royalty. There is, thus, no
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27.

28,

financial burden onrthe respondents of any nature, The purpose
which is sought to be achieved, viz., non-royalty paid mineral
(which would naturally be illegaily mined mineral) is not used
in the execution of the Government work and it cannot be
treated as unreasonable or arbitrary. In our view, there is a
complete justification for providing such a provision.

11. The minor minerals removed from the quarries, admittedly
are the property of the government and the same cannot be
removed and used without payment of royalty. It is therefore
the duty of the government to ensure that only royalty paid
minerals are used in the work and the purpose of issuing such
circular was to avoid pilferage/leakage of revenue because
royalty can be very conveniently evaded by the contractors,
either by ‘not purchasing the material from the mining
leaseholders or obtaining it from unauthorized excavators. In
case, if the contractor purchases the material from unauthorized
person who has not paid royalty, there would be loss to the
public exchequer and the circular was issued to check evasion
or loss to the public exchequer. Such condition cannot be said
to be unreasonable and arbittary and therefore no prejudice
could be said to have been caused to the contractors.”

2643

Since minor mineral vests in the State and there is absolute prohibition
in extraction of mineral other than by a quarry lease or a trade quarry or
permit quarry, therefore, contractor who is enga_géd in construction work is
required to prove that such mineral is royalty paid. For such condition, if the
State Government insists on ‘No Mining Dues’ certificate, the same cannot
be said to be illegal as it is to ensure that all minor minerals used in the

. construction activity are royalty paid material.

An affidavit has been ﬁled on behalf of the State Governmient that the
following documents are required in terms of third proviso:-

(i) Copy of the transit passes issued for traﬁsportatlon of
total quantity of minerals used in the government
construction work. :

(ii) Copy of the bills of total quantity of minerals used in_

the government construction work.’
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(i)  Copy of the 'work completion certificate’ issned by .
the Government department/Government functionary
inrespect of Work in which mmor minerals have been
used.

(iv)  Copy of the valid mineral dealer license for use of
mineral in government construction work as per Rule
3(2)(iii) of M.P. Mineral (Prevention of llegal Mining,
Transportation and Storage) Rules 2006.

The affidavit further states that no specific time period for issuing of
'No Mining Dues' certificate is contemplated in the Rules, but, looking to the
nature of work, minimum two months time is required by the Mining Officer
for completion of said exercise for taking appropriate decision/ passmg
appropriate orders.

29.  We{ind that the condition No. (iii} that No Mining Dues’ certificate
shall be issued on furnishing of copy of work completion certificate is not
reasonable. The contractor, who is engaged in construction work, purchases
minor mineral required for construction work. Such running bills require
periodical payments as well. The periodical bills raised quarterly, are required
to be verified so that the contractor is not deprived of his lawful dues, therefore,

instead of obtaining 'No Mining Dues' certificate by the contractor after
completion of the work, the Mining Officer shall give No Mining Dues’

certificate at least quarterly on the basis of running bills submitted by the
contractor engaged in the construction work.

30.  The third proviso to Rule 68(1) of the Rules provides for issuance of
'No Mining Dues' certificate after verification of the documents submitted by
the contractor engaged in construction work. Such documents although are

not the part of the Rules but they have been supplemented in the affidavit .

dated 07.10.2017. The affidavit further states that verification of purchase of
mineral from other Districts takes some time, therefore, the State has sought
minimum two months time to verify and issue 'No Mining Dues' certificate.

We find that to ensure transparency and the digital infrastructure available, the
State would be well advised to develop a software, which will give online
information of extraction of the minerals by the contractors holding trade quarry
or quarry lease or quarry permit. Once that data is available, the Mining Officer
of the State can verify how a quantity of extracted minor mineral has been
disposed of by each of the category of permit holders. It will create a

-y
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| transparent and also efficient mechanism for 1ssu1ng certlﬁcate of No Mining
. Dues'. .

31. In view of the above, we find that the judgment in Phaloudi
Construction (supra) is not correct enunciation of law and the same is thus,
overruled. The contractors who are engaged in construction work are required
to obtain ‘No Mining Dues’ certificate on production of the documents in
terms of this order. Such ‘No Mining Dues’ certificate shall be issued
expeditiously in a time frame of two months till such time alternative mechanism
is developed for the issuance of online No Mining Dues' certificates.

32.  The principle of law having been settled, the writ petitions be posted
for hearing as per Roster on 23.10.2017.

\

-, - ' ' Order accordingly.
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WRIT PETITION
Before Mr. Justice Sujoy Paul
: W.P.No. 6972/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 24 August, 2017

?SATPUDA INFRACONPVT. LTD (M/S) ...Petitioner
" Vs. ) .
M/S SATPURA INFRACON PVT LTD. & ors. . ...Respondents

: : A. Companies Act (18 of 2013), Section. 16 and Companies
Act (1 of 1956), Section 22 — Rectification of Name of Company — Held —
Central Government can form an opinion for purpose of rectification, suo
" motu or on an application filed by aggrieved person—Respondent rightly
“held that prior registration of a company is a relevant factor — No ‘

' Jurlsdlctlonal error, procedural impropriety or perversity in impugned order

; " and hence upheld — Petition dismissed. (Paras 11, 13 & 14)
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B. Constztutwn —~ Article 226 — Suppression of Material.
Facts — Effect— Petitioner suppressed the fact that a civil suit in respect
of the same issue is pending before the trial Court— Conjoint reading
of writ petition and civil suit shows'direct nexus between both the matter
—Factual background of both matters are similar—Action of petitioner
is deprecated — Serious disputed question of facts are involved in

relation to formation of partnership firm, which cannot be decided in
this writ petition — Petitioner free to establish his rights in pending civil
suit, - (Para 13 & 14)

& GRgT — JgTBT 226 — arfcad aegl &1 oA — g9 —
Irht % 39 ae @ fourar f5 S faaews @ 9@E9g A e fufae a9
frameT _Ead @ 9ad dfaa & — Re arfasr ga fufede 9 1 & 91y
e WM R g AWal @ Ty ged a9y ofdfa star @ — < Amar
Y azTeTd T WA € — I B SRars o e 3 wE - ArfieN
G 2 g8 o @ wew ¥ gt 9 vHR fafaw wer awis @ o
g e gifger ¥ RftfEa =€ 5 o 9od — o=l dfya fufaa e
aus sftrert @ wnfia s g wWdd 2

C. Constitution — Article 226 — Writ Petition — Suppression
.of Material Facts — Practice — Held — Apex Court concluded that a
litigant must approach the Court with clean hands, clean mind, clean
heart and clean objective ~ In cases of suppression of material facts,
litigant is not entitled to be heard on merits. (Para 13)

7 gfars — gq@c 226 — Re aifawr — aifcqw aeal” &1
ﬁbwar ‘gEfy — atufieiRe — waf=a =meE 3 eifa e 2
ﬁmﬁwﬁw$mﬁmmamwwwgmw
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mwﬁgﬁﬁwgvmﬂwqwmmﬁmwﬁéi
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Calcutta 289, 2010 SCC OnLine Guj 4123, 2009 SCC OnLine Bom 769,
2010 (11) SCC 557, 2011 (7) SCC 69, 2007 (8) SCC 449, 2012 (8) SCC
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¢

I.L.R.[ZO‘I?]M.P. Satpuda Infra. P.Ltd. Vs.M/s Satpura Infra. P. Ltd. 2647

.Shashank Shekhar and Munish Saini, for the petitioner.
Sanjay K. Agrawal, for'the respondent Nos. 1 to 4.
Aditya Pyasi, G.A. for the respondent Nos. 5 & 6.

; ORDER

Sujoy Pauy, J. :- In this petition filed under Article 226 of the
Constitution, the parties are at logger heads on the question of legality, validity
and propriety of the order dated 23.3.2017 Annexure P/8 whereby the
' Regional Director, North Western Region has allowed the application filed by
" respondent No.1 under Section 16 of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter
called as "the Act’) and directed the petitioner Company to change its name.

2, The petitioner contended that a partnership firm in the name and style
of M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction was formed having four partners namely;
late Shri Laxmikant Shrivastava, Smt. Preeti Kapoor, Smt. Pushpa Sahni and
- Smt. Chandrakant Shrivastava. Subsequently, the name of respondent No.2
Shri Ayodhya Prasad Tripathi was intfoduced as partner. Shri Ayodhya Prasad
Tripathi is the father of Shri Vivek Tripathi who happens to be the Government
servant i.e. Tahsildar and at present is suspended whereas Smt. Preeti Kapoor
and Smt. Pushpa Sahni (mother-in-law) are also close relatives of Shri Vivek
- Tripathi. Shri Vivek Tripathi introduced his relatives as partners in the firm as
being Government servant he himself was not in a position to carry on the
business of real estate in his own name. Shri Shashank Shekhar submitted
that due to death of Shri Laxmikant Shrivastava, the partnership deed of M/s
Om Sai Prakash Construction was amended on 12,10.2000 and as such
Sanjay Shrivastava and Smt. Baijanti Shrivastava (mother of Sanjay
Shrivastava) were introduced as partners in the firm with 50% shares in
aggregate. It is submitted that one Vinod Chate who was the owner of land
situated at Khasra No.4/4, P.C. No.28/32, Number Bandobast 726, Mauja
Nayagaon, Tahsil and District Jabalpur having Rakba of 23 acres executed
an agreement to sale with M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction. However, Shri
Vinod Chate instead of selling the land to M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction
also executed an agreement to sell with one Ashok Urmaliya. Being aggrieved
by the same, M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction preferred a civil suit beéring
Ctvil SuitNo.12-A/2005 for specific performance of the agreement executed
between Shri Vinod Chate and M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction and vide
judgment and decree dated 26.3.2007, the suit was decreed in favour M/s
Om Sai Prakash Construction. It is submitted that against the judgment and
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decree dated 26:3.2007, Shri Vinod Chate preferred an first appeal before

this court which was registered as F.A. No.303/2007 wherein Shri Vinod

. Chate and M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction reached to a compromise and a
compromise deed alongwith other terms and conditions was presented before
this Court. As per the compromise deed, it was agreed upon that out of the
total 23 acres of the land in question, 12 acres 35 dismal land would be sol
(sic:sold) to M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction and remaining 10 acres 65
dismal of land would be sold to Shri Ashok Urmarlia. It is submitted that this
court vide order dated 4.9.2010 in Lok Adalat allowed the compromise in
terms of settlement mentioned in the compromise deed. Shri Shekhar further
submits that Shri Sanjay Shrivastava and Shri Vivek Tripathi (represented
through his relative in the firm as being Government servant he was not able to
do the real estate business in his own name) purchased number of properties
in the city of Jabalpur and adjoining villages under the M/s Om Sai Prakash
Construction. It is submitted that an understanding was made between Shri
Sanjay Shrivastava on one part and Shri Vivek Tripathi and Shri Ayodhya
Tripathi (father of Vivek Tripathi-and respondent no.2) that both the persons
were ready to divide the properties owned and purchased by M/s Om Sai
Prakash Construction and as such, it was agreed that the land which was to
. be purchased pursuant to the compromise decree inF.A. No. 303/2007 would
be purchased by Shri Sanjay Shrivastava and he would be the sole owner of
the property, whereas, in lieu thereof, Shri Sanjay Shrivastava would transfer
the property in the name of Sukoon Hotel of Smt. Bimmi Tripathi (wife of Shri
Vivek Tripathi). It is further submitted that on 29.3.2011 Shri Sanjay Shrivastava
informed Shri Ayodhya Tripathi that he alongwith another partner is forminga
partnership firm in the name and style of M/s Satpuda Infracon Pvt. Ltd. and
pursuant to which Shri Sanjay Shrivastava and Shri Joseph Verghese formed
an unregistered partnership firm in the name & style of Satpuda Infracon Pvt.

Ltd. Shri Shashank Shekhar contended that pursuant to the understanding
arrived at between Shri Sanjay Shrivastava, Shri Vivek Tripathi and Shri
Ayodhya Tripathi (father of Vivek Tripathi), Shri Sanjay Shrivastava transferred
the property in the name of Sukoon Hotel in favour of Smt. Bimmi Tripathi
and in lieu thereof Shri Sanjay Shrivastava purchased the land measuring 11.35
acres from Shri Vinod Chate (in compliance of compromise decree passed in
FA No.303/2007) vide registered sale deed dated 13.5.2011. In this sale
deed, M/s Om Sai Prakash Construction granted its consent/no objection for
. the sale. This property was purchased in favour of M/s Satpuda Infracon Pvt.

"
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Ltd. and Shri Sanjay Shrivastava's name was shown as its Proprietor/Executor.
The amount of consideration against the purchase of the land was given by
Shri Sanjay Shrivastava from his bank account. It is submitted that Shri Vivek
Tripathi formed a company in the name and style of Satpura Infracon Pvt.-
Ltd. with malafide intention. Shri Vinod Chate handed over the physical
possession of the property in question to Shri Sanjay Shrivastava. It is
submitted that Shri Sanjay Shrivastava formed a company and got it registered
in the name and style of Satpuda Infracon Pvt. Ltd. and the said company,
. respondent No. 1 herein, filed an application under Section 16 of the Companies -
Act before the Regional Director, North Western Region, Ministry of
* Corporate Affair, Ahmedabad against the petitioner and the said authority
vide order dated 20.3.2017 allowed the said apphcatlon and erroneously
directed the petitioner to change its name.

3. Shri Shekhar Sharma submits that the unregistered partnership of
petitioner was formed on 1.4.2011. Merely because the respondent No.1
got his company registered under the Companies Act prior in time, this will
not make any difference because the aforesaid factual detail makes it clear
that it was a calculated attempt on the part of the respondent No.1 to grab
the land and business of petitioner company and therefore they have chosena
similar name by adopting a linguistic engineering. In nutshell, the points raised
by Shri Sharma, learned counsel for the petitioner can be culled out as under:

(i) The application preferred by respondent no.1 under Section
16 of the Act was not maintainable. Section 16 of the Act can be invoked by
Central Government syo motu or on an application preferred by a registered
proprietor of a Trade Mark. Reliance is placed on Section 2(1)(b) of the
Trade Marks Act, 1999 which defines 'registered proprietor’ under the Trade
~ Marks Act; )

(ii) Mere registration of respondent No.l Company prior to
registration of petitioner Company is not decisive. The other relevant facts
were not examined by respondent No.7. Reliance is placed on the judgment
of Bombay High Court in the case reported in 2013 (4) Mh. L.J. 168 (Vov
Cosmetic vs. Union of India).

.({ii)  The direction to change the name of petitioner company by
impugned order should not, in any way, effect the assets, rights, business, etc.
of petitioner company. In other words, it is submitted that rights of the petitioner
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acerued prior to the direction of change of name of the company may be
directed to remain intact. Reliance is placed on Section 23 of the Companies
Act, 1956 (old Act). However, during the course of arguments, Shri Shekhar
Sharma fairly admitted that in the new Act of 2013, there is no corresponding/
analogous provision like Section 23 of the old Act.

4, In support of aforesaid contentions, Shri Shekhar Sharma relied upon
2013 SCC On Line Bom 1093 (Intelgain Technologies Pvt. Ltd. vs. Regional
Director, Western Region, Ministries of Corporate Affairs and another)

and 2014 SCC OnLine P&H 24572 (Mind Tree Limited vs. Ministry of

Corporate Affairs). Lastly, he relied upon an injunction order passed by
Delhi High Court in Bhandari Homoeopathic vs. L. R. Bhandari on3.4.1975.

5. Per contra, Shri Sanjay K. Agrawal, learned counsel for the
respondent No.1 to 4 contended that the application preferred under Section
16 of the Act was maintainable. The reliance is placed on the judgment of
Delhi High Court 2017 SCC OnLine Del 9219 (Mondelez Foods Private
Limited vs. The Regional Directo (North), Ministry of Corporate Affairs
& others). He further contended that the-acid test in this regard is which
company was registered first under the provision of the Companies Act. The
judgment of Supreme Court reported in 2004 (12) SCC 624 (Milmet Oftha
Industries and others vs. Allergan Inc) is relied upon for this purpose which
is related with the question of trade mark. Shri Agrawal further urged that the
respondent no.7 has considered the real issues involved in Section 16

—~—

proceedings and recorded its satisfaction in accordance with the mandate of

Section 16 of the Act. The petitioner in order to create confusion, has made
wild and reckless allegations which cannot be entertained. It is averred that
respondent no.1 Satpura Infra Con Pvt. Ltd. was registered and incorporated
as a private company on 1.4.2011 Annexure R-1/1. It is further averred that
- respondent no.1 company purchased a piece of land bearing Khasra No.4/4
area 4.600 hectare Situated at Nayagaon, Tahsil & District Jabalpur. The
respondent no.1 company authorized Shri Sanjay Shrivastava to execute sale-
deed forand in favour of respondent no.1 Company. The resolution authorizing
the said person to get sale deed executed in favour of respondent no. 1 company
is filed as Annexure R-1/2. On the basis of aforesaid, Shri Sanjay Shrivastava
signed the sale deed as purchaser on behalf of the respondent No.1 Company.
The sale deed was executed on 13.5.2011. The name of the Company in the
sale deed was mentioned in Hindi. Since 'Saturda' and 'Satpura' are pronounced
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similarly in Hindi, Shri Sanjay Shrivastava with an ill motive trying to grab the
valuable property of respondent no.1 Company. Since sale deed dated
3.5.2011 is executed after registration of respondent no.1 company, it is clear
that sale deed was executed by Shri Shrivastava at the behest of respondent
No.l company.

6. ° Inthereply, itis further stated that upon receiving information that
Shri Sanjay Shrivastava and petitioner are playing fraud by getting a company -
registered with a similar name, a complain was lodged by Shri Ayodhya Tripathi
in Police Station, Omti, Jabalpur. Since petitioner company started claiming
right over the property in question only on the basis of its registration with
almost similar name, Respondent No.1 preferred application under Section
16 of the Act which was rightly entertained and allowed by respondent no.7.
It is categorically denied in the reply that Sarva Shri Sanjay Shrivastava and
Joseph Varghese were carrying on the same business under an unregistered
partnership firm with a similar name. It is vehemently argued that partmership
firm cannot use the expression “private limited” as per Section 453 of the Old
Act which is analogous to Section 631 of the New Act. The said partnership
firm was also not registered under any provision of law and therefore no such
firm was in existence,

7. The respondents have placed the copy of civil suit N0.336/2017
Annexure R-1/04 filed by the petitioner Company. Shri Sanjay K. Agrawal
urged that property rights of the petitioner may be decided by the civil court
and said aspect cannot be gone into in the present petition. Respondent no.1
has no objection whatsoever if petitioner is permitted to pursue his civil suit in-
accordance with law.

8. No other point is pressed by learned counsel for the parties.
9. I have heard the learned counsel for the parties and perused the record.

10. . Before dealing with the rival contentions, it is apposite to quote Section
22 of the old Act and Section 16 of the new Act in juxtaposition Wthh shows
that both the provisions are almost similar:
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Section 22 of the old Act, 1956

Section 16 of the new Act, 2013

22, Rectification of name of
company. )

If, through inadvertence or otherwisg
a company on its first registration or

on its registration by a new name, is

registered by a name which,

(i) in the opinion of the Central.
Government, is identical with, or too
nearly resembles, the name by which
a company in existence has been
previously registered, whether under
this Act or any previous companies
law, the first- mentioned company-
(ii) on an application by a registered
proprietor of a trade mark, is in the
opinion of the Central Government
identical with, or too nearly.
resembles, a registered trade mark of
such proprietor under the Trade
Mark Act, 1999, such company-
(2) may, by ordinary resolution and
with the previous approval of the
Central Government signified in
writing, change its name or new
name; and
(b) shall, ifthe Central Government
50 directs within 12 months of its
first registration or registration by its
new name, as the case may be, or
within 12 months of the |
. | commencement of this Act,
whichever is later, by ordinary
| resolution and with the previous

- Rectification of name of company.

>

If, through inadvertence or ptherwise,)
acompany on its first registration or

on its registration by a new name, is

registered by a name which,

(1) in the opinion of the Central

Government, is identical with, or too|

nearly resembles, the name by which
a company in existence had been
previously registered, whether under
this Act or any previous company
law, it may direct the company to
change its name and the company
shall change its name or new name,
as the case may be, within a period
of three months from the issue of
such direction, after adopting an
ordinary resolution for the purpose;

{b) on an application by a registered
proprietor of a trade mark that the
name is identical with or too nearly

resembles, a registered trade mark ofj -

such proprietor under the Trade
Mark Act, 1999 (47 of 1999), made
to the Central Government within
three years of incorporation or
registration or change of name of the
company, whether under this Act or
any previous company law, in the
opinion of the Central Government
is identical with or too nearly

»
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approval of the Central Government
signified in writing, change its name
or new name within a period of threg
months from the date of the
direction or such longer period as
the Central Government may think
fit to allow.

Provided that no application under
clause (ii) made by a registered
proprietor of a trade mark after five
years of coming to notice of
registration of the Company shall be
considered by the Central
Government. '

(2) If a Company makes default in
complying with any direction given
under clause (b) of sub section (1),
'the Company, and every officer who
is in default, shall be punishable

with fine which may extent to one
thousand rupees for every day
during which the default continues.

-~

- resolution for the purpose-

_change to the Registrar alongwith

resembles an.existing trade mark, it
may direct the company to change
its name and the company shall
change its name or new name, as the
case may be within a period of six
months from the issue of such
direction, after adopting an ordinary |

(2) Where a company changes its
name or obtain a new name under
sub-section (1), it shall within a
period of 15 days from the date of
such change, give notice of the

the order of the Central Government,
who shall carry out necessary
changes in the certificate of
incorporation and the memorandum.
(2) If a Company makes default in
complying with any direction given
under clause (1), the company shall
be punishable with fine of one ‘
thousand rupees for every day
during which the default continues
and every officer who is in default
shall be punishable with fine which
shall not be five thousand rupees but
which may extend to one lakh
Tupees.

11.

Point No.1 is relating to maintainability of application under Section

16 of the Act by respondent No.7. Admittedly, the application which is decided
by impugned order was not preferred by a registered proprietor of a trade
mark. Thus, (b) of Section 16 of the New Act is clearly not attracted. The
spinal issue is whether Central Government can form an opinion under clause
(i) of Section 16 on an application preferred by an aggrieved party? In the
considered opinion of this court, the Central Government can form such an
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opinion suo motu or on the basis of an application preferred by an aggrieved

person. Clause (ii) nowhere restricts the Government that such powers can
be exercised only suo motu by Central Government. In the case of Intelgain

Technologies Pvt. Ltd. (Supra), in para 11, the High Court considered Section-
22 of the old Act and almost reproduced the' language employed therein. A

microscopic reading of this judgment also shows that the court opined that “jt

is abundantly clear that Central Government may suo motu give direction to a

Company to change its name provided an application is made within twelve

months from the date of first registration of the Company™. Thus, this judgment

cited by the petitioner does not help the point raised by the petitioner. In the

case of Mind Tree Ltd. (Supra), the High Court has not decided the question

whether powers under Section 16 can be exercised by Central Government

on an application preferred by an aggrieved party. This is trite law that a

judgment is an authority/precedent on the point actually decided by it and not
on something which is logically flowing from it. See AIR 1968 SC 647 (State

of Orissa vs. Sudhansu Sekhar Misra and others), AIR 1976 SC 1766.
(Regional Manager and another vs. Pavan Kumar Dubey) and AIR 1987

SC 1073 (Ambica Quarry Works vs. State of Gujarat and others).

12, Inview of aforesaid analysis, In my considered opinion, Section 16 of
the new Act which is pari materiato Section 22 of the old Act cannot be

read in the manner suggested by learned counsel for the petitioner. It ndwhc_re
restrict the Central Government to exercise its powers for change of name of
Company if other parameters are satisfied. I find support in my view from
AIR 1999 Calcutta 289 (Sen & Pandit Electronics (P) Ltd. and others vs.

Union of India and others) wherein it is held as under:

“In my judgment, what is conferred by S. 22 of the Act is a
discretionary power to be exercised by the repository of
the power on the formation of an opinion. The said power
may be exercised suo motu and may be upon an application
by an aggrieved person.” :

The same view is taken in 2010 SCC OnLine Guj 4123 (Bisazza India Limited
vs. Pino Bsazza Glass Pvt. Ltd. and another), MBC Logistics Pvt. Ltd
vs. Regional Director, 2009 SCC OnLine Bom 769 and 2013 SCC OnLine
Bom 1093 (Intelgain Technologies Pvt. Ltd. vs. Regional Director, Western
Region, Ministries of Corporate Affairs and another). Thus, first point
raised by the petitioner must fail,
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13.  Point (ii) is based on the judgment of Bombay High Court in the case
of Vov Cosmetic (Supra). In para 19 of the judgment, court opined that the
word “otherwise” mentioned in Section 2(1) is not defined in the Act, Whether
the Registration in favour of a particular party is deliberate or inadvertent was
not decided by the court and this question was left open. For this purpose,
the said judgment is of no assistance to the petitioner. No doubt, in Vov
Cosmetic (Supra), it was held that while exercising powers under Section 22
of the old Act, it is necessary for Regional Director to consider various aspects.

However, court made it clear that such aspects cannot be defined in a
straightjacket manner. It depends on the facts and circumstances of the case.
The petitioner has placed heavy reliance on certain factual aspects i.e.
registration of sale deed with the signature of Shri Sanjay. Shrivastava, his
rights under civil/revenue laws based on it, etc. The question is whether these
aspects raised by the petitioner were required to be gone into by respondent
no.7 and whether these aspects can be said to be decisive factors for deciding

an application preferred under Section 16 of the Act. Pausing here for a

morment, it is apposite to quote the relief claimed by the petitioner in Civil Suit

* No.336/2017 as under:

“In the facts and circumstances of the instant case, the
plaintiff prays for following judgments and-décrees in
favour of the plaintiff against the defendants:

1. To declare that the plaintiff through Sanjay Shrivastava
who is the owner of the suit premises is having right over
and above defendant No.l to 4, the suit premises.

2. To declare that defendant no. 1 to 4 are falsely projecting
themselves to be owners of the suit premises with malafide,
intention to defraud the plaintiff and its directors.

3. To restrain the defendants permanently not to disturb
the peaceful physical possession of the plaintiff and its
directors on the suit premises.

4. To restrain the defendants from interfering in any
manner in the usage of suit premises by the plaintiff or to
create any third party right in relation to the suit premises.

5. To grant any other relief as may be deemed fit and proper
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by this Hon'ble Court.”

If averments of civil suit are examined in juxtaposition to the averments of this
writ petition, if will be clear that certain paras are verbatim same. For instance,
para 3 of civil suit is similar to para 5.3 of the writ petition. Subject matter of
civil suit has a direct nexus with the points involved in the present petition. In
all faimess, petitioner should have disclosed about filing/pendency of civil suit
in para 2 of this petition. During the course of arguments, learned counsel for
the petitioner fairly admitted that the petitioner should have disclosed about
filing of civil suit in the body of present writ petition. Even otherwise, a conjoint
reading of the averments of the writ petition and said civil suit makes it clear
that there is direct nexus between both the matters. The basic factual
background in both the matters are similar Thus, the action of the petitioner in
not disclosing about pendency of the said civil suit in the body of writ petition
is deprecated. The Apex Court in catena of judgments held that a litigant must
approach the court with clean hands, clean mind, clean heart and clean
objective. In cases of suppression of material facts, litigant is not entitled to
be heard on merits. See 2010 (11) SCC 557 (Manoharial Vs. Ugrasen),
2011 (7) SCC 69 (4dmar Singh vs. Union of India), 2007 (8) SCC 449
(Prestige Lights Ltd. vs. State Bank of India) and 2012 (8) SCC 384 (Vidur
Impex & Traders Pyr. Ltd. and others vs. Tosh Apartments Pvt. Ltd. and
others). The factual matrix further shows that parties are not at ad idem on
the factum of formation of unregistered partnership in the name & style of
Satpuda Infra Con. Pvt. Ltd. On 1.4.2011. The petitioner and respondent
No.1 have taken diametrically opposite stand on this aspect. Hence, this
disputed question of fact whether any such unregistered firm was actually
formed cannot be gone into in this petition. The Civil Court is best suited to
record evidence on this aspect and decide the disputed questions. The
statements of witnesses filed with the petition can also be gone into by the
appropriate court of first instance and no finding on merits can be given by
this court. Since serious disputed questions of fact are involved in relation to
formation of partnership firm (unregistered) on 1.4.2011, I am unable to hold
that such point was a relevant point and should have been taken into account
by respondent no.7 while deciding application under Section 16 of the Act.
Similarly whether Shri Sanjay Shrivastava had put his signature on the sale
deed for respondent no.1 or forrespondent no.2 or in his individual capacity,
is also a disputed question of fact which can be gone into by the Civil Court.
Accordingly, [ am unable to hold that these were the relevant points for the



LL.R.[2017]M.P. - K.K. Sharma Vs. M.P. Power Management 2-657

purpose-of deciding an application under Section 16 of the Act of respondent
no.7. In my view, the respondent no.7 has taken into account the relevant
facts, The respondent no.7 rightly held that prior registration of a company is’
- arelevant factor. No fault can be found in the said finding. While arguing
point (iii), Shri Shekhar Sharma argued that petitioner's rights and assets
flowing from the sale-deeds and other benefits may be protected in the teeth
of Section 23 of the old Act. A writ of mandamus may be issued in this regard.
However, a plain reading of the relief claimed, shows that no such relief is
claimed by the petitioner in para 7 of the petition. The relief not claimed;
cannot be granted [see 2011 (3) SCC 436 (State of Orissa and another vs.
Mamta Mohanty)). Apart from this, the petitioner has already claimed such
relief in the civil suit. Thus, no relief is due to the petitioner based on arguments
relating to point (iii).

14.  Intheresult, since no jurisdictional error, procedural impropriety or
perversity would be established by the petitioner in impugned order dated
23.3.2017 passed by respondent no.7, the impugned order dated 23.3.2017
is upheld. The petitioner is free to establish his rights in the pending civil suit
or in any other proceedings in accordance with law.

15. With the aforesaid observation, petition is dismissed.
Petition dismissed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2657
WRIT PETITION
: Before Mr. Justice J.K. Maheshwari
W.P. No. 20123/2012 (S) (Jabalpur) decided on 4 September, 2017

K.K. SHARMA : ...Petitioner
Vs. -
M:-P. POWER MANAGEMENT CO. LTD. & ors. ...Respondents

A. . Civil Services (Classification, Control and Appeal)
Rules, M.P. 1966, Rule 15(3) & 29 — Dismissal — Procedure —
Departmental enquiry — Penalty of withholding three increments
inflicted — Later, again a notice issued for dismissal —- Writ petition
filed whereby stay was granted — Department withdrew the notice for
dismissal and maintained previous penalty — Petition dismissed as
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infructuous ~Again a notice issued and petitioner was dismissed — Held
~Such order of dismissal would be in defiance to order of Court —Such
dismissal is arbitrary and illegal — Provisions of Rule 15 and 29 not
complied with — Impugned orders quashed — Petitioner directed to be
re-instated if not attained age of superannuation, but will have to suffer
the earlier penalty imposed — Petition partly-allowed.

' (Paras 16 to 18 & 26)

& Rifaer war (@fevor fasor aiv adle) 39, 7.3 1966,
T 15(3) 7 29 — geegfo — gfrar — [T org — o= dwgfaar
Ao &1 wiid aferifag 1 78 — 3= A, g7 se=gfy g o aifew e
foar T — Re wifaer vwga 3 a5 e <o gs9 9 o of — fr
1 weEgf &1 Aifew aw fa st gdax wlRa & g @ - arfaer
#t Frepa 81 99 @ =R fear @1 — g te e W fear o alk
Il &t ued fewr o - afifreiRe - weegfy o1 sww oadw,
AMATAE & AR Y Jqsw ¥ T — Saa ey, wAeh g ada @ -
Fram 15 @ 20 & Sudell &1 asparas T fear 1@ — anafia amdw
IfrEfed — Al &t qera B @ fav FRRw fem W, afy swR
Mﬁmumaﬁﬁm@mﬁmaﬁﬁmmﬁﬁgﬁ:ﬁv@ﬁ
— afaer sfea: rrv[:\ll

B. Civil Services (Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules,
M.P. 1966, Rule 29 — Power of Review — Procedure — Held — If earlier
order of penalty is required to be changed to enhance penalty, it would
amount to review of earlier order and such power can be exercised by
appellate authority — In present case, subsequent notice or order of
penalty has not been passed by appellate authority reviewing previous
order. : “ (Para22 &23)

L Rifaer dar (Tffsvor, faaer giv adfie) a7 9.5 1966,
Ry 29 — gafdeiss a1 wfdd — wiFar — afaf=ifRa — afy i F
gfg 8q wia @ qdav amdw & agesn sl 2, ww qdox akw @
gAffals &1 Hife 7 e ey Seq ufw &1 yEv daw adiEh
grtrerl g fFar o wea € — adwe gewer A, anfel wiftrer) g
qdax RY &1 YA dAi®d wxd gy UG &1 yraad] aifew ar smkdw
gt == fear srar 2

C. Civil Services (Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules,
M.P. 1966, Rule 10 & 15(3) — Disciplinary Authority & Inquiring
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Authority - Held —If disciplinary authority is not an inquiring authority,
it is incumbent on him to apply his own mind while recording findings
prior to proposing penalty —In subsequent notice, nothing is referred
why the earlier findings were inappropriate which required to be
changed proposing penalty of dismissal — Provision of Rule 15(3) not
complied by Disciplinary Authority. (Para 20 & 21)

7w §ar (@feve Aaaer sgiv afia) faa, 95 1966,
77 10 7 15(3) — sgomralaw giftrerd 7 aramar vieert — afafgiia
~ afy aqoafre e @ wiaed niter 9@ 2, 3@ oiia
gearfaa o9 W qd frsewl &) afifaRea s w9 wd e aloss
ST GG Sy Afard € — geargadf ifew ¥, suer w1 e @l fH
gdwe frsas @t agfa o e weegfy o wiRa gwarfaw a3d g9
T ATTLE AT — agmvﬁmuﬂhﬂgmﬁaqﬁ(s)a%mam
Jrpures =4 A )

D. Civil Services (Classification, Control and Appeal) Rules,
M.P. 1966, Rule 15(3) — Competent Authority — Held — The power of the
disciplinary authority conferred under statute to the officer ought not be
exercised by other officer, holding the current charge. (Para 25)

- T Rfaer dar (wfweor, Fraser e srfler) a9, 7.9, 1966,
Fraw 15(3) — weag grfgent — afihaiRa - &F @ oFwia aqute
YIS B g5 ufdd FT 99T IdA9E uqaRS a4 Aftert grRT A9y
ifear sr=r afag e

Cases referred:

W.P. No. 3304/2008 (s)Judgment passed on 12.02.2015, AIR 1973
MP 104.

K.C. Ghildiyal, for the petitioner.
Anoop Nair, for the respondent Nos. 2,3 & 4.

ORDER.

J.K. MAHESHWARI, J. :- This petition under Article 226 of the
Constitution of India has been filed assailing the orders of penalty of
' withholding three increments with cumulative effect dated 25.10.2011 Annexure
P-1, the order of dismissal dated 24.7.2012 Annexure P-2 and the order
dated 8.11.2012 Annexure P-3 passed by the appellate authority. It is also
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prayed that the circular dated 14.12.2011 Annexure P-17 by which the powers
of disciplinary authority delegated to the officers holding the current charge,
without any order passed by the Board or the Members of the Company, be
also quashed, seeking direction of reinstatement with backwages.

2. The facts unfolded to file the present petition are that the petitioner
was working as Assistant Grade III at the relevant time in the office of M.P.
Purva Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Company Limited, Chichli, Gadarwara, District
Narsinghpur. He was served with a charge sheet dated 28.08.2010 levelling
two charges. The first charge was, in place of depositing an amount of
Rs.10,000/-, the receipt of Rs.1,000/- was issued causing loss of Rs.9000/-
to the Board. The second charge was, in place of depositing Rs.2,500/-, a
receipt of Rs.250/- was issued causing loss of Rs.2250/- to the Board.

3. The reply to the said charges were submitted on 15.09.2010 denying
those allegations and raising question of competence of Mr. Sanjay Nigam,
Exécutive Engineer who issued the charge sheet on the plea of holding the
current charge to the post of Superintending Engineer. On appointment of the
inquiry officer, the enquiry was conducted without following the procedure
and in violation of the rules as pleaded in paras 5.6, 5.7, 5.8 and 5.9 of the
writ petition. It is said without supplying the enquiry report a show-cause
notice dated 08.04.2011 was issued proposing the penalty of dismissal. On
receiving the reply Mr. B. Kumar officiating Superintending Engineer,
Narsinghpur has passed the-order after analyzing the averments of reply,
statement of the witnesses and enquiry report. He has recorded the finding
that charge No.1 has not been proved while charge No.2 is partially proved,
therefore, vide order Annexure P-1 dated 25.10.2011 'the penalty of
withholding three increments with cumulative effect has been inflicted. As per
Rule 23 of the M. P, Civil Services (Classification, Control & Appeal) Rules,
1966 (hereinafter it would be referred to as the Rules), the petitioner was
supposed to file an appeal challenging the said order, but within 17 days, a
show-cause notice dated 11.11.2011 was issued by the same authority asking
the reply why not cancelling the order dated 25.10.2011 Annexure P-1 the
penalty of dismissal be inflicted on him.

4. The petitioner had knocked the door of this Court by filing the Writ
PetitionNo. 19302/2011 (s) challenging the said show cause notice, wherein
stay was granted while issuing notice to other side on21.11.2011. Onreceiving
the order of stay the authority competent passed an order on 27.12.2011,
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maintaining the order of penalty dated 25.10. 2011 and the show-cause notice .
has been withdrawn. The respondents have produced the order dated

.~ 27.12.2011 before the Court, however, considering the reply of the Board,

the said writ petition was dismissed as infructuous on 01.02.2012.

5. After the order of writ Court, the respondents have againissued a
show-cause notice dated 14.02.2012 through the Additional Chief Secretary
to which reply was filed on 28.02.2012 and the writ petition bearing number
5780/2012 (s) was also filed. But prior to the date of hearing, the order of

+ dismissal was passed on 24.07.2012 vide Annexure P-2, however withdrawing

- the said writ petition, petitioner preferred an appeal to appellate authority,

which was dismissed vide order dated 08.11.2012 Annexure P-3, however,
both these orders have been challenged in this petition.

6. Shri K.C. Ghildiyal, learned counsel has strenuously urged that the

show cause notice dated 14.2.2012 Annexure P-21 was issued to circumvent
the order of this Court passed in W.P. No. 19302/2011, whereby after granting
stay the said show cause notice of the proposed penalty of dismissal was
withdrawn, maintaining the order of withholding three increments. The Chief
Engineer on dismissing the said writ petition, tend to overreach the order of
the Court by passing a fresh order of dismissal, though previous order of the

' penalty was maintained vide order dated 27.12.2011 withdrawing the notice

of proposed penalty of dismissal. The appellate authority has also been

- dismissed, without due application of mind and considering the said facts and

the legal issues raised in the memo of appeal.

7. ltisfurther urged that as per Rule 15(3) of the Rules, if disciplinary

authority is not the inquiring authority, he is supposed to record his own finding
on all or any of the articles of the charges prior to form his opinion, affording

" an opportunity to the petitioner, but the said Rule is not complied by

respondents. In support of the said contention, reliance has been placed on
the judgment of this Court in R.K. Vishwakarma Vs. The M:P. State
Electricity Board passed on 12.2.2015 in W.P. No. 3304/2008 (s) whereby
this Court held the disciplinary authority is supposed to.record the own findings
assigning the reason while proving the misconduct on all charges, in case he is
not the enqulnng authority.

8. It is contened that the order impugned Annexure P-2 was passed by

_the Chief Engineer, M.P. Purva Kshetra Vidyut Vitran Company, Jabalpur,
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holding the current charge of the post though he was holding the substantive
post of Superintending Engineer, Jabalpur. However, he cannot exercise the -
power of disciplinary authority i.e. Superintending Engineer, Narsinghpur
because the posting of the petitioner was at Chichli, Tehsil Gadarwara, District
Narsinghpur. Therefore, the order impugned is illegal and without jurisdiction.
The petitioner is also challenging the circular dated 14.12.2011 Annexure P-17
issued by the company by which the powers of disciplinary authority have
been assigned to the officers who are in current charge, without the decision
of the Company or by all the members of the Board, therefore, the said circular
is also bad in law. In support of the said contention, reliance has been placed
on the full Bench judgment of this Court in the case of Girja Shanker Shukla
v. Sub Divisional Officer, Harda — AIR 1973 MP 104. In view of the said
submissions prayer is made to quash the order impugned and to reinstate the
petitioner with full back wages.

9. The respondents have filed their reply, inter alia, contending that the
. petitioner has committed the financial irregularity however, he was placed under
suspension on 19.07.2010 and a charge-sheet was also served on him. The
enquiry was conducted on filing the reply and giving an opportunity to cross-
examine the departmental witnesses, however, inquiry officer submitted his
report on 19.03.2011. The said report was placed before the disciplinary
authority who issued the show-cause notice dated 08.04.2011 proposing the
penalty of dismissal. The reply to the said show-cause notice was filed,
however, considering the same, penalty of withholding three increments with
cumulative effect was passed on 25.10.2011. It is said, while passing the said
order, the circulars dated 23.08.2007 and 03.07.2008 were not in the
knowledge of the disciplinary authority, however, to review the said order a
show-cause notice dated 11.11.2011 was issued proposing the penalty of
dismissal. It is not disputed that the said notice was challenged in W.P. No.
19302/2011 wherein vide order dated 27.12.2011, stay was granted and
thereafter the show-cause notice was'withdrawn. It is urged because the order
of penalty was passed without knowledge of the two circulars, therefore, a
fresh show-cause notice has rightly been issued and the penalty of dismissal
was imposed. On filing the appeal, it was dismissed by the appellate authority
after due application of mind, however, in such circumstances interference is
not warranted. N '

10.  Shri Anoop Nair, learned counsel representing the Board contends
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that after passing the order by this Court, referring certain circulars which
were not considered in the earlier show cause notice, a fresh-show cause
notice was issued vide Annexure P-21 proposing the penalty of dismissal.
After filing the reply and affording an opportunity to petitioner, the order -
impugned has rightly been passed by the Chief Engineer sitting at the head
quarter, Jabalpur, who can exercise the power of the disciplinary authority. It
is further argued, looking to the order of penalty, the disciplinary authority has
accepted the findings of the inquiring authority, however, concurring those
findings, the penalty of dismissal has ri ghtly been passed. It is urged that as
per circular Annexure P-17, disciplinary powers have been assigned to the
officers who have rightly exercised the powers, in such circumstances
interference is not warranted.

11.  After hearing learned counsel for the parties and as prayed by the
counsel for petitioner, the relief seeking quashment of the order dated
25.10.2011 Annexure P-1 has not been pressed, therefore, this petition to
the extent of such relief is dismissed as not pressed and it is being entertained
for the remaining reliefs,

12, In the facts of the present case, it is to be examined; whether the
action of the respondents to pass the orders impugned Annexures P-2 and
. P-3 isin defiance to the orders passed by this Court in WP No.19302/2011?
Whether impugned orders Annexure P-2 and P-3 have been passed by the
authorities without following the procedure as prescribed in Rules 15 and 29
of the Rules of 19667 Whether the power of disciplinary authority can be
exercised by the authority holding the current charge and the circular Annexure
P-17 of the Board may be quashed?

13.  To advert the arguments as advanced and to answer the questions
posed, it is seen that two charges were levelled against the petitioner. The
charge No. 1 relates to deposit of Rs.1000/- in place of Rs.10000/- causing
loss of Rs.9000/- to the Department and charge No. 2 relates to deposit of
Rs.250/- in place of Rs.2500/- causing loss to the Department of Rs.2250/-.
_ After departmental inquiry the order dated 25.10.2011 Annexure P-1 was
passed inflicting the penalty of withholding three increments with cumulative
effect. The disciplinary authority had specified the reason, why the said penalty
is sufficient after considering the statement of Naresh Kumar Kaurav and
held the charge No.1 was not found prove. For the second charge, after

perusal of the statement of Bholaram, said that he gave a sum of Rs.2500/- to



2664 K.K..Sharma Vs. M.P. Power Management LL.R.J2017]M.P.

the petitioner but the rcccibtof asum of Rs.250/- was issued to him, therefore,
the said charge was found partially proved. Thus penalty of withholding three
increments with cumulative effect was directed.

14,  Itisseen after imposing the said penalty, for the same charges and
inquiry report, petitioner was served with a show cause notice dated
11.11.2011 by the disciplinary authority, why the order of penalty of withholding
three increments with cumulative effect may not be withdrawn, inflicting the
penalty of dismissal. The said notice was challenged by the petitioner before
this Court by filing W.P. No. 19302/2011 on the ground of incompetence of
the authority along with other grounds, wherein this Court vide order dated
21.11.2011 passed the interim order in following terms:-

21.11.2011

Heard Shri S.K.Rao, learned Sr. counsel with Shri -
V.K.Pandey, counsel for the petitioner on the question of
admission and interim relief.

At this stage, Shri Mukesh K. Agrawal, learned counsel
enters appearance on caveat for the respondents and submits
that the petition is premature. He also prays for and is granted

two weeks' time to file a reply to the application for interim
relief. ’

Two sets of the copy of the petition be supplied to him
within this week.

In the.meanwhile, looking to the fact that by the
impugned notice, the same authority seeks to review the order
of punishment for which it is stated that it has no power or
authority, it is directed that no further steps, pursuant to the

Annexure P/1 dated 11.11.2011, shall be taken by the
respondents till the next date of hearing.

C.C. as per rules.

15.  On perusal of the said order, it reveals that the respondent Board
sought time to file reply, which was filed later on 6.1.2012 inter alia stating
that the show cause notice of proposed penalty of dismissal is hereby withdrawn
maintaining the order of penalty of withholding three increments dated

LY)
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1 25.10.2011, therefore, the said petition has rendered infructuous: The order
passed by the Board withdrawing the show cause notice is having much
. relevance to the arguments advanced, however, it is reproduced as thus:-

erafera aefiaer afwmar (ares vd HaR) g9
C auqd a7 fge v s i RRyegR.

B3R/ /=T | RRFEQR e 27.12.11
SR

= ©. .34, FaELAf—dT & ypeer ¥ atEwmeRGar
NI SR SR I3t I U5 B[S 166—17 3T7F 11.11.2011 A
< i B TEa QA WA B 378 RATRia RBaT TR o7, Bl AN
[T SITeT 2 | 9 TR B AIF 111—12 A 25.10.2011 @1 WY
T ey Rred fi arfife da gfear gl v @ Qe T
&, 3 TohIe w9 @ Jemad (Maintains) @ Srdn £ |

-

srefieror A=t (4T /)
2.8 fo e faf wiveg
16.  On the next date of hearing, this Court vide order dated 1.2.2012

dismissed the writ petition as infructuous and passed the order in following
terms :-

1.2.2012 .
Shri S.K. Chaturvedi, learned counsel for the petitioner.
Shri Anoop Nair, learned counsel for the respondents.

Learned counsel for the respondents submitted that
the impugned order has been withdrawn therefore the writ
petition has been rendered infructuous,

- In view of the aforesaid submission made by learned

. counsel for the respondents, the writ petmon is dismissed as
infructuous,

. However, in case'the impugned order is not withdrawn,
' .it would be open to the petmoner to seek.revival of the writ
petition.

In view of the above facts, it is apparent that on account of withdrawing
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the show cause notice of the proposed penalty of dismissal maintaining the
order of withholding three increments dated 25.10.2011, the writ petition No.

-19302/2011 was dismissed as infructuous. Meaning thereby the order passed
by the Board has been relied by this Court while dismissing the said writ
petition.

17.  After dismissing the said writ petition, a fresh notice dated 14.2.2012
was again issued from the office of Chief Engineer, Jabalpur. In the show
cause notice, the penalty of dismissal was again proposed against the petitioner
without asking cancellation of the order dated 25.10.2011. On submitting, the
reply to the said notice, vide order dated 24.7.2012 Annexure P-2 the
petitioner was dismissed, contrary to the finding recorded by Mr. B. Kumar in
the order Annexure P-1 dated 25.10.2011. The respondents without asking
show cause under rule 15(3) of the Rules to record its own finding, showing
dissent from the findings of Mr. B. Kumar, the order impugned Annexure P-2
has been passed by which the penalty of dismissal is directed.

18. . The bare perusal of the aforesaid facts, it is clear that the first order of
penalty dated 25.10.2011 Annexure P-1 withholding three increments with
cumulative effect was maintained and the notice of the proposed penalty of
_ dismissal was withdrawn vide order dated 27.12.2011. However relying upon
the said order, the writ petition No. 19302/2011 was dismissed as infructuous
on 1.2.2012 by this Court. Thereafter nothing remains to the authorities to
review the said order and to pass the order of dismissal, without cancelling
the order dated 25.10.2011 by seeking leave from the Court. In view of the
foregoing, it can safely be concluded that the subsequent show cause notice
dated 14.2.2012 proposing penalty of dismissal and to pass the order impugned
on 24.7.2012 Annexure P-2 is contrary to the order dated 27.12.2011, relied
by this Court while dismissing the Writ Petition No. 19302/2011 as infructuous.
Therefore, action of the respondent-Board is arbitrary and illegal. The appellate
authority while deciding the appeal has not considered after due application
of mind, therefore, the order passed by the appellate authonty dated 8.11.2012
is alsoillegal.

19.  Now reverting to the issue of violation of Rule 15(3) of the Rules and
to appreciate the aforesaid argument, it would be necessary to refer Rule 15
of the Rules, which is reproduced as under :-

15. Action on the inquiry report:-(1) The disciplinary authority
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ifitis not itself the inquiring authority may, for reasons to be
recorded by it in writing, remit the case to the inquiring
authority for further inquiry and report and the inquiring
authority shall thereupon proceed to hold the further inquiry
according to the provisions of rule 14 as far as may be.

(2) The disciplinary authority shall, if it disagrees with the
findings of the inquiring authority on any article of charge,
record its reasons for such disagreement and record its own
finding on such charge, if the evidence on record is sufficient
for the purpose.

(3) If the disciplinary authority having regard to its findings on
all or any of the articles of charge is of the opinion that any of
the penalties specified in rule 10 should be imposed on the
Government servants, it shall, notwithstanding anything
contained in rule 16, make an order imposing such penalty but
in doing so it shall record reasons in writing:

Provided that in every case where it is necessary to
consult the Commission, the record of the inquiry shall be
forwarded by the disciplinary authority to the Commission for
its advice and such advice shall be taken into consideration
before making any order imposing any penalty on the
Government servant.

20. Inthe present case, violation of Rule 15(3) of the Rules has been
pleaded, however, on perusal thereof, it is apparent that in case disciplinary
authority is not an inquiring authority, it is incumbent on him to apply his own
mind while recording the finding on the articles of the charges levelled against
the delinquent employee. On perusal of the enquiry report, the disciplinary
authority having regard to its finding may propose penalty as specified in Rule
10. In the context of said provision, if a show cause notice Annexure P-21 is
perused, then on internal page 2 of the notice in Paragraphs 1 and 2, reference
of earlier notice dated 8.4.2011 is made, thereafter in third paragraph after
referring circular dated 3.7.2008, it is said that charges No. 1 and 2 are
found prove. It does not indicate that disciplinary authority, who is not an
inquiring authority, accepted the finding of the inquiry by its own and proposed
the penalty of dismissal by the said show cause notice. At this stage, itis
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incumbent to refer the order dated 25.10.2011 of disciplinary authority inflicting .
the penalty of withholding three increments, was passed after going through
the evidence and the reply filed by the delinquent. In the said order, the
disciplinary authority has recorded the findings that the Charge No.1 is not
proved while the Charge No.2 is partially proved. However, in the subsequent
show-cause notice nothing is referred why the findings of the disciplinary
authority earlier recorded were inappropriate and those findings are required
to be changed proposing the penalty of dismissal.

21.  Inthisrespect, looking to the language engrafted in Rule 15(3) of the
Rules, it is incumbent upon the disciplinary authority to record its own finding
prior to proposing the penalty. But in the facts of this case, looking to the
discussion made above, the observance of Rule 15(3) is conspicuously missing.
In that view of the matter, Iam of the considered opinion that the disciplinary
authority has not complied the provision of Rule 15(3) of the Rules, therefore,
also the orders impugned cannot be sustained in law.

22.  Asperdiscussion made hereinabove, it may be noticed that by issuing
subsequent notice, the order of penalty dated 25.10.2011 was sought to be
reviewed which may be permissible in exercise of the power of review. The
.power of review has been specified in Rule 29 of the Rules. The said rule is
relevant, however, it is reproduced as under:-

“29. (1) Notwithstanding anythmg contained in these rules
exceptrule 11"-

(i) the Governor, or

(if) the head of a department directly under the State
Government, in the case of a Government servant serving ina
department or office (not being the Secretariat), under the
control of such head of a department, or

(111} the appellate authority, within six months of the date of the
order proposed to be reviewed, or

(iv) any other authority specified in this behalf by the Governor
by a general or special order, and within such time as may be
prescribed in such general or special order; may at any time,
.either on his or its own motion or otherwise call for the records
of any inquiry and review any order made under these rules or



-
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under the rules repealed by rule 34 from which an appeal is
allowed but from which no appeal has been preferred or from
which no appeal is allowed, after consultation with the
corflmission where such consultation is necessary, and may-

(a) confirm, modify or set aside the order; or

(b) confirm, reduce, enhance or set aside the penalty imposed
by the order, or impose any penalty where no penalty has been
imposed or;

(c) remit the case to the authoﬁty which made the order or to
any other authority directing such authority to make such further
inquiry as it may consider proper in the circumstances of the
case; Or

(d) pass such other orders as it may deem fit ;

Provided that no order imposing or enhancing any
penalty shall be made by any reviewing authority unless the
Government servant concerned has been given a reasonable
oppertunity of making a representation against the penalty
proposed and where it has proposed to impose any of the
penalties specified in clauses (V) to (IX) of rule 10 or to
enhance the penalty imposed by the order sought to be
reviewed to any of the penalties specified in those clauses, no
such penalty shall be imposed except after an inquiry in the
manner laid down in rule 14* and except after consultation
with the commission where such consultation is necessary:

23.  Inthe facts of the present case Rule 29(1)(i) & (ii) would not apply
and it'may be a case of Rule 29(1)(iii) and (iv) of the Rules whereby the
appellate authority may review the order within six months from the date of
the order proposed to be reviewed or any other authority specified in this
behalf by the Governor by a general or special order, and within such time as
may be prescribed in such general or special order. The authority specified
by Hon'ble Governor is not brought on record by the respondent Board. In
the facts of present case, if the earlier order of penalty is required to be changed
to enhance the penalty, it would amounting to review of the earlier order of
penalty and such power can be exercised by appellate authority within six

-
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months following the procedure as specified. But the subsequent show cause
notice or the order of penalty has not been passed by the appellate authority
reviewing the previous order. Therefore, on this count also the order impugned
“ is illegal, arbitrary and is liable to be quashed. Consequent to the above
discussion, the question Nos. 1 and 2 are answered in favour of the petitioner.

24.  Inview of the foregoing discussion, in my considered opinion, the
order of penalty of dismissal of the petitioner passed by the disciplinary
authority is to circumvent the order of the Board, dated 27.12.2011 accepted
by this Court in the writ petition No. 19302/2011 and without seeking leave
passed the order of dismissal, though in the order dated 27.12.2011 the earlier
order dated 25.10.2011 of withholding three increment was maintained. It is
further held that the order impugned is also without complying the Rule 15 (3)
and 29 of the Rules. Thus order of penalty of dismissal of the petitioner cannot
be sustained in law, therefore, Annexure P-2 is hereby quashed. As the
appellate authority has not considered all the said aspects, however, the order
passed by the appellate-authority Annexure P-3 is also without due application
of mind, therefore, quashed.

25, Onthe issue of exercising the power of the disciplinary authority by an
officer holding the current charge, reliance has been placed by the petitioner
on the case of Girija Shanker Shukla (supra) of the Full Bench of this Court
wherein it is held that the power as conferred under the statute ought to be
exercised by the authority as specified therein and Such power cannot be
exercised by an authority who is holding the current charge. In my considered
opinion, it is a trite law that the power of the disciplinary authority conferred
under the statue to the officer ought not to be exercised by the other officer
who is holding the current charge. Be that as it may, in any case as per the
discussion made hereinabove the order impugned was found illegal on the
grounds aforementioned, however, this Court is not inclined to deal with the
third question regarding validity of the circular Annexure P-17 issued by the
Board regarding conferment of the powers of the disciplinary authority to the
officer holding the current charge, however, the said question is left open for
decision in appropriate case. In view of the above discussion, the question
Nos. 1 and 2 are hereby answered in favour of the petitioner and the question
No.3 is left open for decisibn in the appropriate case.

26.  Consequent upon the discussion, this petition succeeds and is hereby
allowed in part. Orders impugned Annexure P-2 dated 24.07.2012 and P-3
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dated 08.11.2012.stand quashed. In consequence thereto, if the petitioner
has not yet attained the age of superannuation, he be reinstated forthwith-but
he has to suffer order of penalty of withholding three increments with cumulative
effect as directed vide order dated 25.10.2011 Annexure P-1. The petitioner
shall also be entitled for consequential and monetary benefits on account of

, quashing the order of penalty of dismissal. The respondents are directed to

comply the said directions withina period of three months from the date of
receipt of certified copy of this order. In the facts and circumstances of the
case, parties are directed to bear their own costs.

Petition partly allowed. -
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A Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 65(2)(d),
Motoryan Karadhan Adhiniyam, M.P, (25 of 1991), Section 3 and Motor
Vehicles Rules, M.P. 1994, Rule 48(2) — Application for Fitness
Certificate — Requirement of ‘No Dues Certificate’ — Competence of
State Legislature — Held — Act of 1988 being Central Legislation'ﬂoes
not contemplate grant of fitness certificate and it is left to be framed
by State Government, therefore, issuance of fitness certificate and
payment of tax falls within legislative competence of State in terms of
Section 65(2)(d) of the Act of 1988 and u/S 3 of the Adhiniyam of 1991
~ Rule 48(2) of the Rules of 1994 contemplating requirement of ne

. dues certificate for grant of fitness certificate c¢annot be said to be

illegal — Petition dismissed. - : (Para 12)
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B. Motor Vehicles Act (59 of 1988), Section 65(2)(d) and
Motor Vehicles Rules, M.P. 1994, Rule 48(2) — Inconsistency — Held —
The condition that an application for issue or renewal of fitness
certificate shall be accompanied with tax clearance certificate is not
inconsistent with any provision of Central Legislation (Act of 1988).

(Para 15)
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C. Motor Veliicles Rules, M.P. 1994, Rule 8-A and Evidence
Act (1 of 1872), Section 114(e) — Data Updation in Official Website —
Presumption — Held — There is a presumption that official acts are
performed regularly in terms of Section 114(e) of the Act of 1872, thus
there will be a presumption of correctness of information available on
website—Aggrieved transporter cannot be permitted to approach writ Court
submitting that data on website is not updated and reflecting non-payment
of tax — However, State directed to update the entire data in website and
make necessary amendments in software, if required. (Paral6 & 17)
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R.N. Tripathi, for the petitioners.
Samdarshi Tiwari, Addl. A.G. for the respondents/State.

ORDER

The Order of the  Court was passed by :
HeMaNT GupTa, C.J. :- The challenge in the present writ petition is to the
legality of Sub-Rule (2) of Rule 48 of Madhya Pradesh Motor Vehicles Rules,
1994 (hereinafter referred to as “the Rules of 1994 ” in short) to the extent it
requires that fitness application for vehicle shall be accompanied with a tax
clearance certificate in Form M.P.M.V.R.-23 (TCC). The impugned Sub-
Rule (2) of Rule 48 of the Rules of 1994 reads as under:-

“(2) An application for issue or renewal of certificate of fitness
shall be made in Form M.P.M.V.R.-22 (C.F.A)), to the
Registering Authonty or the operator of the authorised testing
station in whose jurisdiction the vehicle is normally kept or
whose functional area includes the major portion of the route
or area to which the permit relating to the vehicle extends and
shall be accompanied with a tax clearance certificate in Form
M.PM.V.R.-23(T.C.C.}.”

2. The petitioners are engaged in the busmess of bus operations and
have 74 buses on their fleet. The buses are required to have fitness certificate
in terms of Motor Vehicles Act, 1988 (in short “the Act of 19887y and the
Rules made thereunder whereas the passenger tax is payable on such vehicles
under Motoryan Karadhan Adhiniyam, 1991 (hereinafter referred to as “the
1991 Act”) and M.P. Motoryan Karadhan Rules, 1991 (in short as “the
Rules of 1991 7). The grievance is that levy and collection of tax cannot be
correlated with issuance of fitness certificate as both operate in separate
legislative schemes. The fitness certificate is covered by the Central law i.e.
Act of 1988 whereas the tax is governed by the 1991 Act and the Rules made
thereunder i.e. the Rules of 1991. Therefore, condition of clearance of tax
cannot be a condition precedent for grant of fitness certificate.

3. The petitioners have pointed out that grant and renewal of fitness
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certificate is sought to be declined in wholly illegal and arbitrary manner as the
no dues certificate of tax is not issued to the transporters without assigning
any reason. It is pleaded that even if the tax clearance certificate is not issued
by the department and even when the certificate is issued, the Transport
Authority refuses to entertain the application on the pretext that the.computer
system is showing the tax due on the vehicle. It is pointed out that there is a
complete machinery for levy of tax and penalty for failure to pay tax and they
also have power of entry, seizure and detention of motor vehicle in case of
non-payment of tax but without issuing any notice of payment of tax, the tax
assessment is not done and arbitrarily the motor vehicle owner 1s asked to
pay the tax and when he fails to meet the demand, the fitness certificate is not
issued.

4, The argument of the petitioners is that the condition of issuance of no
dues certificate of tax, as a condition precedent for issuance of fitness certificate,
gives rise to conflict between the Central and the State law and that in terms
of Article 254 of the Constitution of India in case of a conflict, the Central Act
will prevail.

5. To examine the arguments raised, certain statutory provisions needs
to be reproduced.

6. The M.P. Motor Vehicles Rules, 1994 have been framed in terms of
the provisions of the Motor Vehicles Act, 1988. The relevant provision of the
Act of 1988 which is relevant to frame the Rules regarding fitness certificate,
reads as under:-

“65. Power of the State Government to make rules.-(1) A
State Government may make rules for the purpose of carrying
into effect the provisions of this Chapter other than the matters
specified in section 64.

(2) Without p‘rej udice to the generality of the foregoing power,
such rules may provide for—

* ok d gk dmk
(d) theissue or renewal of certificates of registration and

" fitness and duplicates of such certificates to replace the
certificates lost, destroyed or mutilated,
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(e) the production of certificates of registration before the
- ‘registering authority for the revision of entries therein of
particulars relating to the gross vehicle weight;”

7. ' The relevant Rule for issue of fitness certlﬁcate in terms of the Rules
' framed in exercise of Section 65 of the Act of 1988 is the Rule 48 of 1994
Rules, which is again reproduced as under:-

“48. Issue or Renewal of Certificate of Fitness.-(1) A
certificate of fitness shall be issued or renewed by the
Registering Authority or subject to its general control and
direction by such officer of the Transport department not below
the rank of Transport Sub-Inspector as may be authorised by
it in this behalf or by an operator of the authorised testing
station specified by the Government under sub-section (2) of
section 56 of the Act.

(2)  Anapplication for issue or renewal of certificate of
fitness shall be made in Form M.P.M.VR.-22 (C.F.A.), to
the Registering Authority or the operatdr of the authorised
testing station in whose jurisdiction the vehicle is normally kept
or whése functional area includes the major portion of the route
or area to which the permit relating to the vehicle extends and
shall be accompanied with a tax clearance certificate in Form
M.PM.V.R.-23 (T.C.C.).

ok B TT dokk?

8. Section 3 of 1991 Act imposes tax on every motor vehicle used or
kept for use in the State at the rate specified in the First Schedule. Such tax,
in terms of Section 5, is payable in advance by the owner of the motor vehicle, .
at his choice, quarterly, half-yearly or annually on a token to be obtained by
him. Section 8 casts a'duty upon an owner to file a declaration with the Taxation
Authority together with the proof of the payment of the tax. Section 8 of
1991 Actreads as under:-

“8. Filing of declaratlon and determination of tax
payable.-

(D Every owner, who is liable to pay the tax under this
Act shall file a declaration with the Taxation Authority together
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with the proof of the payment of the tax which he appears to
be liable to pay in respect of such vehicle in such form and
within such time as may be prescribed.

(2) When any motor vehicle in respect of which tax has
been paid is altered in such a manner as to cause the vehicle to
become a motor vehicle in respect of which higher rate of tax
is payable, the owner of such vehicle shall file an additional
declaration with the Taxation Authority together with the
certificate of registration and the proof of the payment of
difference oftax which he appears to be liable to pay in respect
of such vehicle, in such form and within such time as may be
prescribed.

(3)  Onreceipt of the declaration under sub-section (1) or
the additional declaration under sub-section (2) as the case
may be, the Taxation Authority shall, after making such enquiry
as it deems fit and after giving to the owner an opportunity of
being heard, determine, by an order in writing, the tax payable
by the owner and intimate the same to him in such form and
within such time as may be prescribed.

4) Where the owner fails to file a declaration required
under sub-section (1) or (2) the Taxation Authority may, on
the basis of information available with it and after giving to the
owner an opportunity of being heard, by an order in writing,
determine the amount of tax payable by such owner suo-moru
and intimate the same to him in such form and within such time
as may be prescribed.

(5) On determination of the tax payable under sub-section
(3) or (4) as the case may be, by the Taxation Authority,.the
difference of the amount of tax payable and the amount of tax
paid shall as the case may be, be paid by or refunded to the
owner in a manner applicable to the payment or refund of tax
under this Act and rules. '

(6)  Where the owner files a false declaration the taxation
" authority shall, after giving the owner an opportunity of being
heard, by an order in writing, impose a penalty not exceeding
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- twice the amount of tax determined under sub-section (3),

Explanation. - " Alteration in a motor vehicle" includes
an acquisition, surrender or non-use of or any change in a
permit by which the vehicle is covered.”

9. Section 13 of the 1991-Act deals w1th penalty for failure to pay tax .
whereas Section 15 deals with the procedure for recovery of the tax, penalty

| or both. Séction 16 of the said Act empowers the Taxation Authority to enter

. into and inspect any motor vehicle or premises where he has reason to believe
that the motor vehicle is kept for the purposes of verifying whether the
provisions of the Act or any rules made thereunder are being complied with.
Section 20 provides a remedy of appeal against an order made for levy of tax
and penalty imposed under Section 13 or aggrieved by the seizure of the
motor vehicle under Section 16 of the said Act of 1991.

10.  The M.P. Motoryan Karadhan Rules, 1991 provide for declaration to
be filed under Section 8 of the 1991 Act in terms of Rule 5 thereof. Rule 6-A
deals with the procedure for determination of the tax payable and Rule 8A
deals with filing of declaration, determination and payment of tax by a fleet -
owner. Rule 15 provides for the recovery of tax, etc. whereas Rule 17 deals
. with the procedure for seizure and detention of motor vehicle in.case of non-
I payment of tax. The relevant Rules of the 1991 Rules are reproduced as
| under:-.

“6A. Determination of tax payable. - (1) On receipt of
declaration under sub-section (1) or (2) of Section 8 of the
! Act the Taxation Authority shall without delay proceed to.
' determine the amount of tax payable and shall pass the order,

required under sub-section (3) of the said section as early as
possible. :

(2) ° Whereno declaratlon is filed by the owner by the last’
date fixed for payment of tax, the Taxation Authority shall

_ without delay proceed suo motu to determine the amount of

. lax payable under sub-section (4) of Section 8 and shall pass
order required under that sub-section as early as possible. '

Ll

(3)  While passing the order referred to in stib-section (3)
or (4) of Section 8 of the Act, the Taxation Authority shall,
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. simultaneously, issue the intimation of such order in Form-E-2
to be served on the owner in the manner laid down in sub-rule
(2) of Rule 15.] :

[Explanation. - The order passed under sub-rule (1)
or (2) shall be valid until the rate of tax or the vehicle is altered
and the determination of tax afresh shall be necessary only
after any alteration in the rate of tax or the vehicle.]

ok K _ ok sk ok k

8A. Filing of declaration, determination and payment of
tax by a fleet owner. - (1) Notwithstanding anything contained
in Rule 5, 6, 6A, 7 or 8 a declaration required to be filed
under sub-section (1) of Section 8 ofthe Act by a fleet owner
in respect of stage carriages and reserve stage carriages owned
by him shall be in Form H-I and shall be delivered to the
Taxation Authority through a duly authorised representative
within ten days from the commencement of the month.

(2)  Theadditional declaration required under sub-section
(2) of Section 8 of the Act by a fleet owner in respect of his .
stage carriages and reserve stage carriages altered during a
month shall be in Form H-2 and shall be delivered-to the
Taxation Authority through a duly authorised reprcsentatlvc
within ten days from the close of the month.

- (3)  The declaration under sub-rule (1) or the additional
declaration under sub-rule (2), as the case may be, shall be
accompanied by a crossed bank draft or paid up treasury
challan marked "Original" evidencing the payment of tax which
the fleet owner appears to be liable to pay by such declaration
or additional declaration.

4) Onreceipt of the declaration under sub-rule (1) and
the additional declaration under sub-rule (2) for the month,
the Taxation Authority, after satisfying itself as to the correctness
of the declaration and the additional declaration and after
making such enquiries as it deems fit, pass an order in writing
determining the amount of tax payable for the month by the
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fleet owner inrespect of his stage carriages and reserve stage
carriages and issue the intimation of such order in Form H-3

. to be served on the ﬂcet owner in the manner Ia1d downin .
sub-rule (2) of Rule 15.

(5)  Ifthefleet owner fails to file the declaration under sub-

. rule (1) or the additional declaration under sub-rule (2), the
Taxation Authority shall without delay, proceed sug motu to
determine the amount of monthly tax payable by the fleet owner
on the basis of information available with it and shall proceed
to recover the tax so determined in accordance with the Act
and these rules.

(6)  When the amount of monthly tax payable by the fleet
owner in respect of his stage carriages and reserve stage
carriages is determined under sub-rule (4) or (5), as the case
may be, the difference of tax shall be paid by or refunded to
the fleet owner in the manner laid-down in these rules.

(7)  The Taxation Authority may for the purposes of this
rule require the fleet owner to produce before it any vehicle
or any account, register, records or other documents or to
furnish any information or may examine the vehicle or the
accounts, registers, records or other documents and the fleet
owner shall comply with any such requirement.

* ook ok ok Aok ok

15. Recovery of tax, etc. - (1) If any owner fails to pay tax
due, penalty or interest payable under the Act and these rules,
the Taxation Authority to whom such amount is payable, shall
serve on the owner a notice in [Form "E-2'-subs. by No. 1 dt.
11.10.1992] for the sum payable.

(2)  Provisions of the Madhya Pradesh Land Revenue
Code, 1959 (N0.20 of 1959) and the rules made thereunder
shall apply mutatis mutandis in respect of service of notice
issued under sub-rule (1). '

(3)  Ifwithin seven days of the service of notice, the sum
contained in the notice is not paid and no reasonable cause
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* for its non-payment has been shown, the Taxation Authority
" may proceed to recover the amount as an arrear of land
revenue.

(4)  Notwithstanding anything contained in the aforesaid
sub-rules, the Taxation Authority may take action under sub-
section (3) of Section 16 of the Act for the realisation of sum
payable.

* ok EILa * %k

17. Procedure for seizure and detention of motor vehicle
in case of non-payment of tax. - (1) The memorandum of
seizure and the order of seizure and detention of motor vehicle
under sub-section (3) of Section 16 of the Act shall be made
in Form U-1 and U-2 respectively, and copies thereof shall be
served on the persons from whose possession or control such
motor vehicle has been seized and detained.

(2)  The motor vehicle seized and detained shall be kept in
safe custody at the nearest Police Station or at any other place
at the discretion of the officer seizing the motor vehicle or the
Taxation Authority.

(3)  The vehicle detained shall be released by the officer or
" the Taxation Authority seizing it on payment of tax, penalty
and interest due.

(4)  Thedetained vehicle shall not be released by the officer
or Taxation Authority seizing it if proceedings of confiscation
under sub-section (6) of Section 16 of the Act has been initiated
by the Taxation Authority. '

(5)  The Taxation Authority shall send the intimation for
initiation of proceedings for confiscation of Vehicle under
clause (a) of sub-section (7) of Section 16 of the Act in Form
X' to the Magistrate having jurisdiction to try the offence.”

11.  Theargument of the learned counsel for the petitioners is required to
be examined in the context of the aforesaid provisions. The argument is that
non-issuance of no dues certificate or non-updation of the tax status on the
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web portal infringes the right of the petitioners to carry on business under
Article 19(1){(g) of the Constitution of India, therefore, the procedure adopted
by the respondents in the light of the statutory provmons is 1lleoal and
unsustainable. :

12.  Section 65(2)(d) of the Act of 1988 (CentralAct) empowers the State
Government to frame the Rules regarding grant of fitness certificate. In exercise
of such power, the State Government has notified the Rules of 1994, which
* deal with the procedure of issuance of fitness certificate. The payment of tax
is made conditional for issuance of the fitness certificate for the reason that a
defaulter of payment of tax should not be issued fitness certificate in respect
of every vehicle so as to ensure due compliance of the statutory provisions.
‘We find that the issue of fitness certificate and payment of tax falls within the
legislative competence of the State in terms of Section 65(2)(d) of the Act of
1988 and under Section 3 of the 1991 Act. Therefore, Sub-Rule (2) of Rule
48 of the Rules of 1994 contemplating that no dues certificate shall be required
for grant of fitness certificate, cannot be said to be beyond the legislative
competence of the State Government. The Central Legislation does not
contemplate the grant of fitness certificate or the condition thereof. They have
been left to be framed by the State Government; therefore, condition imposed -
of payment of tax before grant of fitness certificate is in larger pubhc interest -
to ensure that tax dues are paid by the transporters.

13.  The question as to when there can be said to be a conflict between
the Central and the State legislation was examined by the Supreme Courtina
judgment reported as (2016) 6 SCC 602 (Goa Foundation and another
vs. State of Goa and another, wherein the Land Acquisition Act, 1894 was
amended by the Legislative Assembly of Goa in the year 2009 when the Clause '
6,7, 8 and 9 were inserted in Section 41 of the Act. Examining the challenge
to the said provisions, the Court held as under:-

“29. We do not see how repugnancy between the two
legislative exercises on the principles laid down in M.
Karunanidhi (1979) 3 SCC 431 and Kanaka Gruha
- Nirmana Sahakara Sangha (2003) (1) SCC 228 can be
said to exist in the present case. Section 41 of the Principal
Act and the terms of the agreement executed thereunder (even
if the latter is understood to be ‘Law’ enacted by the competent
legislature for the purpose of Article 254) are silent with regard
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to modification/variation or deletion/subtraction of the terms
of the agreement. The State Amendment Act by bringing in
clauses (6) to (9) of Section 41 invalidates a clause of the
agreement [Clause 4(viii)] by effecting a deletion thereof with_
retrospective effect i.e. 15.10.1964 (the date of coming into
operation of the Principal Act to the State of Goa). The State
Amendment, by no means, sets the law in a collision course
with the Central/Principal enactment. Rather, it may seem to
be making certain additional provisions to provide for
something that is not barred under the Principal Act. Moreover,
if the provisions of the State Amendment are to be tested on
the anvil of the finding of this Court that the acquisition in the
present case is under Section 40(1)(aa) of the Land Acquisition
Act, the deletion of the relevant clause of the agreement as
made by the said amendment may appear to be really in
furtherance of the purpose of the acquisition under the Central
Act. We, therefore, do not find any repugnancy between the
Principal Act and the State Amendment, as urged on behalf of
" the petitioners in this case.” :

I4.” In a later judgment reported as (2017) 3 SCC 545 (Ahmedabad
Municipal Corporation vs. GTL Infrastructure Limited and Others), the
Supreme Court was examining the provisions of Gujarat Provincial Municipal
Corporation Act, 1949 (59 of 1949) wherein the levy of property tax on
_ mobile towers was challenged. The High Court held that levy of property tax
onmobile towers under Gujarat Provincial Municipal Corporation Act is ultra
vires the Constitition except the cabin that houses the BTS system. The
argument was that as per Entry 49 List-II Schedule VII, the State can impose
taxes on lands and building and not on mobile towers. The Supreme Court
held as under:- '

“18. Though Article 246 has often been understood to be laying
down the principle of Parliamentary supremacy, it must be
qualified that such supremacy, if any, is extremely limited and
very subtle, This has to be said when the federal structure of
the Indian Union has been recognised as a basic feature of the
Constitution. Both, the Central and the State legislatures, are
competent to enact laws in any matters in their respective Lists
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i.e. ListI and List IL. Conflict or encroachments must be ironed
out by the Courts and only on a failure to do so the provisions
of Article 246 will apply. Insofar as the common List i.e. List
III is concerned, any repugnancy in law making by the Union
and State Legislatures is dealt with by Article 254 which gives
primacy to the Parliamentary law over the State law subject
to the provisions of clause (2) of Article 254 of the Constitution
which again is subject to a proviso which may indicate some
amount of Parliamentary supremacy.

31. The measure of the levy, though may not be determinative
of the nature of the tax, cannot also be altogether ignored in -
the light of the views expressed by this Cotirt in Goodricke
Group Ltd vs State of W.B.-1995 Suppl (1) SCC 707. Under
both the Acts read with the relevant Rules, tax on Mobile
Towers is levied on the yield from the land and building
calculated in terms of the rateable value of the land and building.
Also the incidence of the tax is not on the use of the plant and
machinery in the Mobile Tower; rather it is on the use of the
land or building, as may be, for purpose of the mobile tower,
That the tax is imposed on the “person engaged in providing
telecommunication services through such mobile towers”
(Section 145-A of the Gujarat Act) merely indicates that it is
the occupier and not the owner of the land and building who is
liable to pay the tax. Such a liability to pay the tax by the
occupier instead of the owner is an accepted facet of the tax
payable on land and building under Schedule VII List I Entry
49.”

15.  Inview of the foregoing analysis of the provisions of the Act and the
Rules made thereunder and the law laid down by the Supreme Court, the
condition that an application for issue or renewal of certificate of fitness shall
be accompanied with a tax clearance certificate in Form M.P.M.V.R. - 23
(TCC) is not inconsistent with any provision of the Central Legislation (Act of
1988). Therefore, the offending clause i.e. Sub-Rule (2) of Rule 48 of the
Rules 0f 1994 cannot be said to be illegal or beyond the legislative competence
of the State. -

16.  Theargument that the tax is demanded if the demand finds mention on
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the web portal. It is contended that web portal is not updated and that without
finalizing the orders under the 1991 Act or the Rules framed thereunder, the
demand is raised. We find that argument is based upon apprehensions. There
is a presumption that the official acts are performed regularly in terms of Sub-
section (e) of Section 114 of the Evidence Act. Therefore, there will be
presumption of correctness of the information available on the website. But if
any demand is reflected on the website though it may not actually exist, an
owner has aright to file declaration, determination and payment of tax payable
in terms of Rule 8A of the Rules of 1991. An order of imposing penalty is
required to be passed under Section 13 of the Act. Therefore, an aggrieved
transporter cannot be permitted to come to the writ Court that data on the
website is not updated and is reflecting non-payment of tax.

. 17.  However, in the interest of justice, it is directed that the web portal
should have the entire data of the tax paid of each of the vehicle and an aggrieved
person should be given an opportunity to reconcile such payment by submitting
online request. Such transparent process will redress the grievance of the
aggrieved person(s) such as the petitioners to a large extent. We hope and .
trust that the State Government shall make necessary amendments in the
software, if not already provided for, within three months

18. Wnt petition stands disposed of.

Order accordingly.

L.L.R. [2017] M.P., 2684
WRIT PETITION _
Before Mr. Justice Subodh Abhyankar
W.P. No. 14965/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 7 November, 2017

SAMLU GOND ...Petitioner
Vs.
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Respondents

(Alongwith W.P. Nos. 18136/2016, 18137/2016, 18138/2016 & 18139/2016)

A -Adim Jan Jativon Ka Sanrakshan (Vrakshon Me Hit)
Adhiniyam, M.P. (25 of 1999), Section 4 & 9(2) and Land Revenue
Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 253 — Confiscation and Penalty —
Held — As per Section 4. of Adhiniyam of 1999, Bhumiswami belonging
to aboriginal tribe who intends to cut any specified tree in his land
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shall apply for permission to Collector —Merely belonging to aboriginal .
_ tribe would not entitle him to cut the trees standing on his Iand on his

. own will - Adhiniyam of 1999 not only protects persons of aboriginal
tribe but also protects the trees as well as the same are government

property. (Para 10)
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mﬁﬂﬁmﬂvmm%mqmmfﬁﬂvmaﬂméﬂﬁsﬂg
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B. Adim Jan Jatiyon Ka Sanrakshan (Vrakshon Me Hit)
Adhiniyam, M.P. (25 of 1999), Section 9 and Land Revenue Code, M.P. .
(20 of 1959), Section 50 & 240 — Suo Motu Revisional Power —
Competent Authority,— Held — SDO passed final order whereas as per
~ provisions of Adhiniyam of 1999, only Collector or Additional Collector
is empowered to pass final order in respect of trees which are standing
on land of aboriginal tribe and have been cut — When initially original
order passed by SDO was without jurisdiction, Collector wrongly
exercised its suo motu revisional power u/S 50 of the Code —Impugned
order quashed — Writ petition allowed. (Paras 12 to 16)
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Vipin Yadav, fgr the petitioners.
G.P. Singh, G.A. for the respondents/State.

ORDER

SUBODH ABIIYANKAR, J. ;- The order passed in W.P. No.14965/2016
shall also govern the disposal of W.P. Nos.18136/2016, 18137/2016, 18138/
2016 and 18139/2016.

2, This petition has been filed under Article 226 of the Constitution of
India against the order dated 5.8.2016 passed by the respondent No.2/
Collector, Seoni whereby the respondent No.2 in exercise of powers under
Section 9(2) of the Madhya Pradesh Adim Jan Jatiyon Ka Sanrakshan
(Vrakshon Mein Hit) Adhiniyam, 1999 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the
Adhinivam of 1999”) has confiscated the entire teak wood.

3. The petitioner’s contention is that the invocation of the provisions of
the aforesaid Act is without jurisdiction for the reason that the petitioner is the
member of the scheduled tribe only and despite the fact that the aforesaid Act
has been framed to safeguard the interests of the members of the scheduled
tribe community.

4. In brief the facts of the case are that the petitioner owns a land bearing
survey no.6/2'ad-measuring 1.96 hectare, Patwari Halka No.12 at Dhuma
Tehsil Lakhnadon, District Seoni. The petitioner had chopped off 30 teak
wood trees from his land without taking any permission from the competent
authority, which led to preparation of a report by the Tehsildar, Lakhnadaun
on 30.1.2012. After preparation of the aforesaid report, the Tehsildar has
placed the same before the Sub Divisional Officer (Revenue) Lakhnadon,
who vide his order dated 9.9.2015 has held that the petitioner has wrongfully
fallen 30 teak wood trees hence a fine of Rs.50,000/- has been imposed
under Section 253 of the M.P. Land Revenue Code, 1959 (in short ‘the
Code 0f 1959”) and has further directed to confiscate Rs.50,000/- from the
value of the teak wood. Subsequently, as submitted by the counsel for the
petitioner, on 23.4.2016 a show cause notice was issued to the petitioner by
the office of the Collector, Seoni. On 5.8.2016 in exercise of his suo-moto
powers under Section 9(2) of the Adhiniyam of 1999 the Collector has passed
the order dated 5.8.2016 (Annexure P/3) whereby the entire teak wood of
the petitioner has been directed to be confiscated.
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5. The petitioner’s contention is that the provisions of the aforesaid
Adhiniyam of 1999 cannot be made applicable against the petitioner who
happens to be a member of the Schieduled Tribe community and had cut the
“trees legally and the provisions of Section 9 of the Adhiniyam can only be
invoked when the members of other community i.e. except Scheduled Tribe
enters into the land of Scheduled Tribe community and cut the trees illegally.
Apart from that, it is further submitted that the suo-moto initiation of revisional
power in respect of order dated 9.9.2015 passed by the Sub Divisional Officer
after a lapse of 7 months cannot be exercised especially when against the
order passed by the Sub Divisional Officer, an appeal is also provided and in
such circumstances, the provisions of Section 50(4) (a) & (¢) of the Code of
1959 shall be attracted and hence the Collector has clearly acted without
jurisdiction.
6. It is further submitted by the petitioner that the violation of Section
240 of the Code of 1959 cannot be levelled against the petitioner as he has
cut the trees from his own land without any permission, hence the power of
_ confiscation is also not available to the authority as the confiscation can only
take place when the trees have been cut from the Government land.

7. . Intheirreturn, the respondents’ contentions are that the Collector has
rlghtly taken decision by invoking suo-moto revisional power. It is further
submitted that the Sub Divisional Officer, has taken the cognizance of the
incident and has imposed the fine upon the petitioner and the Collector in his
suo-mota revisional power after taking note of Section 241(4) of the Code
as also Section 9 of the Adhiniyam of 1999 has passed the order since the
Sub Divisional Officer has not gone through the provisions of the aforesaid
Sections, hence the Collector had to invoke his suo-moto revisional jurisdiction
and was required to pass order under Section 9 of the Adhiniyam of 1999.

8. Heard learned counsel for the parties and perused the record.

0. In the present case, the facts of the case are admitted. The petitioner

belongs to a scheduled tribe community and that he was responsible for cutting

" of'the trees from his own land. The only question is whether the provisions of
Section 9 of the Adhiniyam of 1999 can be invoked in such situation and -
whether the Collector.has rightly exercised the suo-moto revisional.power
vested in him under Section 240 of the Code of 1959. For the purpose of

- properly appreciating the matter, the relevant Sections of the aforesaid
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Adhiniyam of 1999 read as under :

“3. Protection of Interest of Bhumiswami
belonging to Aboriginal Tribes in specified trees on his
holding. (1) No trees of the specified species, standing on the
holding of a Bhumiswami belonging to an Aboriginal Tribe shall
be cut girdled or pruned except as provided for hereinafter.

2) XX XXX XXX

, 4. Permission to cut the specified trees. - (1) Any
Bhumiswami belonging to an Aboriginal Tribe, who intends to
cut any specified tree standing on his holding shall apply for
permission to the Collector, in the prescribed form, giving full
and complete reasons thereof, in such manner as may be
prescribed.

(2) The Collector shall have the application enquired
into in accordance with such rules as may be prescribed and
shall not grant or reject the application without considering the
report from Tehsildar, the Sub- Divisional Officer (Revenue)

.and the Divisional Forest Officer having territorial jurisdiction:

. Provided that no such permission shall be granted in a
case where a period of five years has not elapsed after the
date of acquisition of title in the land in any manner, except by
succession.

Explanation. - The date of acquisition of'title shall be
the date of certification of mutation under the Code.

(3) The permission to cut the trees in a year shall be
restricted only to such number of specified trees as may fetch
the Bhumiswami such amount of money, not exceeding rupees
fifty thousand in a year as is considered by the Collector to be
adequate to meet the purpose specified in the application :

Provided that under speciai circumstances, the
Collector may after due consideration, grant permissionin a
year for a value not exceeding rupees two lakh or the value of
one tree, whichever is higher,
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8. Appeal, Revision, Review : - The provisions of
Appeal, Revision and Review as in the Code shall also-apply
to any order passed by the Collector under this Act.

9. Punishment for contravention. - (1) Any pef’son
who cuts, girdles, prunes or otherwise damages any specified
trees standing on the holding belonging to the Aboriginal Tribes
or removes any pat thereof, in contravention of the provisions
of this Act or the rules made thereunder, shall on conviction
be liable to rigorous imprisonment which may extend to three
years and fine which may extend to ten thousand rupees.

(2) Wood of any specified trees constituting the basis
of action under sub-section (1) shall be seized and stand
forfeited to the State.

Provided that if conspiracy, fraud and deception is
played on the Bumiswami, the sale proceeds of the wood, so
forfeited shall be given to the extent of fifty per cent to
Bhumiswami subject to a maximum limit of Rupees Fifty
Thousand under the order of Collector, after disposal of the
criminal case.

3) XXX XXX XXX

10. Offences to be cognizable. - All offences under
Section 9 shall be cognizable.”

10.  Sofarasthe contention of the learned counsel for the petitioner that
' the petitioner belongs to a scheduled tribe community hence the provisions of
the aforesaid Adhiniyam of 1999 cannot be invoked by the authorities is
concerned, the same is not tenable in the light of the aforesaid provisions of
the Adhiniyam of 1999. Section 4 of the same clearly provides that any -
Bhumiswami belonging to an Aboriginal Tribe, who intends to cut any specified’
tree standing on his holding shall apply for permission to the Collector, in the
prescribed form, giving full and complete reasons thereof, in such manner as
may be prescribed. Thus only on the basis of the language used in Section 9,
to say that the provisions of this Adhiniyam of 1999 are not applicable to the
Bhumiswami who belongs to an Aboriginal Tribe/Scheduled Tribe cannot be
accepted. The Adhiniyam of 1999 not only protects the persons of Aboriginal
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Tribe but protect the trees as well and merely if a person belongs to an
Aboriginal Tribe would not entitle him to cut the trees standing on his land on
his own will as the trees are the Government property and apparently the
aforesaid Adhiniyam of 1999 has been enacted with a view to strike a balance
between the interest of the aboriginal tribe vis.a.vis. the trees standing on his
holding.

I1. Coming to the question of invocation of sué-moto revisional powers
under Section 50 of the Code of 1959, Section 50(1) reads as under :

.?50. Revision. - (1) the Board may, at any time on its motion
or on an application made by any party or the Commissioner
or the Settlement Commissioner or the Collector or the
Settlement Officer may, at any time on his own motion, all for
the record of any case which has been decided or proceedings
is which an order has been passed by any Revenue Officer
subordinate to it or him and in which no appeal lies thereto,
and if it appears that such subordinate Revenue Office, -

(a) has exercised a jurisdiction not vested in him
by this code, or

. (b) has failed to exercise a jurisdiction so'ves;ed,
or

(c)  hasacted in the exercise of his jurisdiction
illegally or with material irregularity,

the Board or the Commissioner or the Settlement
Commissioner or the Collector or the
Settlement Officer, as the case may be, make
such order in the case as it or he thinks fit:

Provided that the Board of the Commissioner or the Settlement
Commissioner or the Collector or the Settlement Officers shall
not, under this section, vary or reverse any order made, or
any order deciding an issue, in the course of the proceeding,
except where-

(a) the order, if it had been made in favour of the
party applying for revision to the Board, would
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have finally.disposed of the proceeding, -

or. .

(b) the order, if allowed to stand, would occasion
a failure of justice or cause irreparable injury
to the party against whom it was made.”

12. A bare perusal of the aforesaid section reveals that this power of
revision is indeed available to the Collector but in the considered opinion of
this Court the aforesaid Section is not at all applicable in the present case. It
is true that the Collector, in the title of his order dated 5.8.2016 has mentioned

that it is suo-moto revision but the fact of the matter is that under the Adhiniyam

of 1999 it is only the Collector or the Additiongl Collector who can pass the
final order in respect of the trees which are standing on a land of an aboriginal
tribe and have been cut. ‘

13, Asalready mentioned above, the permission to allow a person to cut
the trees vests only with the Collector and as per the scheme of the Act,
under Section 2(c) the “Collector” means the Collector of the District
concerned and includes an Additional Collector of such district who is specially
empowered by the State Government by notification to exercise and perform

- the powers and functions of the Collector under this Act,

14. A perusal of the record reveals that initially an enquiry was conducted by
the Naib Tehsildar only who had conducted the enquiry at the instance of the
Additional Collector, Seoni. After the enquiry was completed, vide his order dated
25.2.2012 certain directions were issued by the Additional Collector, thereafter
the matter was again remanded back to Sub Divisional Officer for its compliance
but the Sub Divisional Officer vide his order dated 9.9.2015 has passed the final
order which, in the considered opinion of this Court, he had no jurisdiction to
pass because as per provisions of the Adhiniyam of 1999 only the Collector or
the Additional Collector are empowered to pass order under the provisions of the
Adhiniyam of 1999. Thus in the considered opinion of this Court, the Additional

‘Collector could not have relegated the powers vested in the Collector or to the

Additional Collector himselfto the Sub Divisional Officer. In the circumstances, °
initially when the original order itself was passed without jurisdiction by the Sub
Divisional Officer hence the Collector had wrongly exercised its suo-moto
jurisdiction under Section 50 of the Code and if at all the Collector wanted to
exercise his jurisdiction then, he should have held that the order passed by the
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Sub Divisional Officer is without jurisdiction instead of deciding the matter on
metits.

15.  Thus, in the.considered opinion of this Court, the impugned order
dated 5.8.2016 is liable to be quashed though for different reasons as this
Court does not find the grounds raised by the learned counsel for the petitioner
to be valid grounds but on a close scrutiny of the provisions of the Adhiniyam
of 1999 and the Code of 1959 this Court finds that the order passed by the
Sub Divisional Officer under the provisions of Adhiniyam of 1999 was wholly
without jurisdiction and subsequent revision of the same by the Collector.
exercising his suo-moto jurisdiction is also untenable and without authority of
law. )

16.  Intheresult, the writ petition is allowed and the impugned order dated
5.8.2016 is hereby quashed. However, the respondents are at liberty to
proceed against the petitioner in accordance with law as provided under the
provisions of the Adhiniyam of 1999.

Petition allowed.

L.L.R. [2017] M.P., 2692
.APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice VK. Shukla
S.A. No. 1494/2016 (Jabalpur) decided on 19 June, 2017

BABULAL ...Appellant

Vs. .
SUNIL BAREE & ors. - - ...Respondents

A. Accommodation Control Act, M.F. (41 of 1961), Sections
12()(a), 12(1)(c) & 13(1) — Title of Landlord & Arrears of Rent —
Concurrent eviction decree u/S 12(1)(a} & 12(1)(c) — Held — It is
concurrently established that there was relationship of landlord and
tenant between parties and appellant was defaulter in payment of
regular rent as even after receiving demand notice and committed error
u/S 13(1) of the Act — Concurrent findings that appellant by denying
title of respondent/plaintiff caused substantial injury to his right and
title in suit property — No substantial question of law requiring
consideration — Appeal dismissed. (Paras 9,14 & 16)

@. YT AT SfEfram, 9.9, (1961 &7 41), &T¢ 12(1)(T).
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B. Accommodation €ontrol Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Sections
12(I)(a) & 12(1)(c) — Landlord — Held — Section 12(1)(a) is not
dependent on the provisions of section 12(1)(c) — Further held — For
the purpose of Section 12(1)(a), it is not necessary that the landlord
has to be owner of property also. (Para 10 &11)

. YITT AT AT, 9.4, (1961 BT 41), SR 12(1)(8) 7
12()(f) — hreardt — afafEiRe — arr 12(1)(), awr 120)@E@) 3
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N 4 Accommodation Control Act, M.P. (41 of 1961), Section
12(1)(a) & 12(1)(c) and Transfer of Property Act (4 of 1882), Section
109 - Original owner sold the property to respondents (Plaintiff) — For
purpose of decree u/S 12(1)(a), appellant being tenant of original owner
shall become tenant of transferee by virtue of Section 109 of the Act

- of 1882, “- : - (Para 10)
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D. Civil Procedure Code (5 of 1908), Section 100 — Second
Appeal — Held — The Court in exercise of power u/S 100 CPC cannot re-
'appreciate the evidence even if another view is possible. (Para 13)
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Cases referred:

" AIR 1992 MP 115, (2002) 3 SCC 375, (2000) 4 SCC 380, 1971
JLJ 102, 1996 JLJ 247, 2006 (2) MPLJ 484, (2009) 5 SCC 264, (2011) 7
SCC 189, (2012) 8 SCC 148, (2011) 1 SCC 158; (2012) 7 SCC 288.

Sanjay K. Agrawal, for the appellant.
Amprit Kaur Ruprah, for the respondent on caveat.

ORDER

_ V.K. SHUKLA, J. :- The appellant/defendant who is a tenant has
directed this appeal under Section 100 of the C.P.C being aggrieved by the
judgment and decree dated 01.12.2016 passed by 9th Upper District Judge,
Bhopal in Civil Appeal No. 241/2015 whereby the judgment and decree
passed by 15th Civil Judge, Class-I, Bhopal in Civil Suit No. 13-A/1973
dated 30.07.2015 decreeing the suit of the respondents for eviction against
thé appellants on the grounds enumerated under Section 12 (1)(a) and(c) of
M.P. Accomodation (sic:Accommodation) Control Act, 1961 (in short "Act")
have been affirmed.

2. - The facts giving rise to this appeal in short are that a suit for eviction-
was filed by the original plaintiff Shri Ram Prakash Bairi on 24.12.1968 on
the ground that the suit property was purchased by him by registered sale
deed on 22.10.1965 from one Usman Khan. The appellant/defendant was
admittedly a tenant of Usman Khan. After the purchase of the said property, a
notice dated 30.10.1965 was issued to the appellant/defendant but he did not
deposit the rent and a notice in this regard was also issued to him but instead
of depositing the rent, the appellant disputed the ownership of the original
plaintiff. In addition to the grounds under Section 12 (1)(a) and 12 (1)(c) of
the Act, the suit was also filed on the grounds under Section 12 (1)(h) or (n),
however, the trial Court decreed the suit in favour of the respondent only on-
the grounds enumerated under Section 12 (1)(a) and 12 (1){(c) of the Act.

3. - Challenging the said decree, the appeal was filed which has also been
dismissed by affirming the findings recorded by the trial Court on the grounds
of Section 12 (1)(a) and 12 (1)(c), on which the appellant/defendant has
come forward to this Court in the instant appeal to overturn the concurrent
_findings of the Courts below. It is relevant to mention here at this stage that the
_present suit was filed in year 1968 almost about 50 years back. The matter
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traveled many times in revision and appeal either before this Court or before
lower appellate Court. Finally, by order dated 06.05.2010 passed in Civil
Appeal No. 164/2009, the appellate Court set aside exparte judgment and

- decree dated 04.08.1989 and the suit was remanded and thereafter on

22.06.2010 the suit was again registered and renumbered and finally the

impugned judgment and decree of eviction was passed by the trial Court on -

30.07.2015. - S

4.+ Themainplank of submission of the learned counsel for the appellants
is that the Courts below have erred while passing the decree on the ground
under Section 12 (1)(c) on the ground that the appellant had denied the title
of the plaintiff. He further contended that the appellant had every right to
deny the land lord's title in the case where the title of the land lord is transferred
or devolves upon the third person and therefore he was not estopped from
denying title of the plaintiff. :

5. Itis also submitted that the ground of eviction under Section 12(1)(a)
of the Act is dependent on the ground under Section 12(1)(c) and therefore
decree of the eviction on the ground under Section 12(1)(a) is also bad in
law. ’

6. In support of his submissions, the learned counsel for the appellants
relied on the judgment passed by this Court in the case of Nirvikar Gupta
Vs. Ram Kumar AIR 1992 MP 115 and the judgment passed by the Apex
Court in the case of Sheela and Ors Vs. Firm Prahlad Rai Prem Prakash,

(2002) 3 SCC 375. He also referred the judgment passed in the case of
Jamnalal and others Vs. Radheshyam (2000) 4 SCC 380.

7. Having heard learned counsel for the appellants, I have carefully
examined the record of both the Courts below and also perused the impugned
judgment, it is apparent on the record on appreciation of the evidence led by
the parties that the Courts below concurrently held the existence of relationship
between them as tenant and land lord and appellant to be defaulter in payment
of the regular rent. ’ :

8. The trial Court and the lower appellate Court has discussed in para
18 of the impugned judgment and decree appreciating the evidence of original
plaintiff Ram Prakash Bairi and Rajkumar Bajaj found that the property-in
question was purchased by wife of the original plaintiff on 22.10.1965 by
registered sale deed from one Usman Khan and the appellant was tenant of
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Usman Khan. The relevant paras 18 and 19 of the impugned judgment and
decree are reproduced as under :

e, TG I U e & O & e @ weaelf
AR RIF B 9o WA 3R anfiemif / fiiErd) Saar fwger 87
9% 9= 4 qe e e @ R A 9 g @ 9w ud
T S @R Ul faea U famie 22.10.1065 @ gRT B R
o7 AR ST T wiErdl B & i o | wfErd) | iR wue A saa
Afiae] Pt sdeR T & g e 3 e wie ) 9Hs w9l
& SR B Wl Sk IRFR D Feiy § P aiffae 8 frg 2| Oy
R it I N 9 e 7 P R & R wwe A el wwr 39
(o7 aTEh) < AEIRG I S Wi ¥ By fhar o) 98 o 3 R
& for o qoe e @l X v Rifdel 919 @ 83y /1997 RATE
30.04.1973 B SEI Wl I &R gEH R ufemrd) sgend @ g
g foar o St faAie 13.11.1908 @) PR fsam T o gen sao
forea #fY geor B vem arfie .97 / 1990 AFFI ST ~UTATSRT BN
feTia 14.09.2010 T R =61 w12t oY | Ry v=t R 22.10.1065 (et
de) Rifde w7 3. 83 T/ 1007 # Ry W fvly od A Reiw
13.11.1998 &t WA Wl (waef roo wet varst di10) oo werd arfier .,
197 /1999 % AFRIT I =R RT UIRT AT e 14.09.2010
ST f (et diat) wRge fee v ¥ A W e 49§
SfTRteTor # AT W 9T gR1 S Xt W 5 6T W B
P PIg A T8 D T 2 Daet AAYT S e § Wi v
3T 7. 197 /1999 P T HaX R A7 A o Briard) <ifve & @
wﬁmw%a‘rﬁﬁ@ﬁaﬁawwwaﬁw*ﬁ Rkl
BIE W AT W T B |

19. 9IS AR YRS 9 7 98 e R & fp ewa

T AT ST A 7 eI I 9w 9 ¥ WRud Riew u REie
22.10.1965 & &IRT &4 vy o forad Ut 8o wod wfeme & <X @
fhugeR 2 | 599 T 98 S Gf %1 RNITER o | Uy o Fere fpar
& 5 4 Py M & SRR uRard) S get e € T ot I
WA 9 e U5 & S f39i% 30.07.1967 W A @7 A9w WA
A ¥ SBR Y o 2 | wftvardt o 3 g om Reie 20.06.1067
B T (=t de), 1 e (el W2), wRveard) g e S (et
@.4), fafaet ar= . 78¢ /1971 3 Ry 1¢ Fivka vd R feiis 25.08.1981

. @y wicrai (st Wi o e dle) v fou € | Al A AR 9
| ST el RISTEAIR qA A $¥ SN B B b # o areued @
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g @ie &1 9T &, 99 WR e RRIgER § aw Es @ g
SEp 6500 TEifhe § Roras A | aifdies wiT W 9w i swm @i -
& foragaR o v Ty 1965 ¥ NAS 99 T P FER ® & | SEmE
Gl 7 I T ARl 3w T B e W Ray an !

9. Thus, both the Courts held concurrently that the existence of relationship
between the original plaintiff and the appellant as tenant and land lord was
found to be proved and the appellant was defaulter in payment of regular rent
as even after receiving the demand notice, the outstanding rent was neither
paid within two months to the respondent nor deposited the same within one -
month from the service with the trial Court and also committed error in

depositing the regular monthly rent in accordance with provisions of Section
13(1) of the Act. ‘

10.  Onelaborate considerations, the Courts below have concurrently held
that the appellant by denying the title of the respondent caused substantial
injury to his right and title in the property in dispute. In the present case, it is
not denied by the appellant that he was the tenant of the original owner of the
property Usman Khan and he also could not bring any evidence that how did
he come in the possession of the suit land and continued on the same if he was
not tenant of the appellant. By transfer of the property in favor of the original
plaintiff by Usman Khan, for the purpose of the decree under Section 12(1)(a),
the appellant being tenant of the original owner shall become tenant of the
transferee by virtue of the provisions of Section 109 of the Transfer of the
Property Act, 1982 (sic:1882) as held by this Court in the case of Shankar
Sahai Vs. Kanmal and another 1971 JLJ 102. It is also relevant to mention
here that for the purpose of Section 12(1)(a), it is not necessary that the land
lord has to be owner of the property also.

11. From bare reading the provisions of Section 12(1)(a) and 12(1)(c) of
the Act, this Court does not find any force in the contention of the appellant
that Section 12(1)(a) is dependent on the provisions of Section 12(1)(c). So
far as the case relied by the appellant, Sheela and Ors Vs. Firm Prahlad
Rai Prem Prakash (supra) is concerned, the same is based and decided on

. different facts and context. That was a case where the Apex Court was dealing

decree for eviction being maintained by the owner-land lord under Section
12 (1)) of the M.P. Accommodation Control Act and not under Section
12 (1)(a). Thus, in view of the aforesaid discussion the same would not extend
any aid to the appellant in the circumstances of the present case. The other
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- case laws relied by the counsel for the appellant in the case of Nirvikar Gupta
Vs. Ram Kumar (supra) would also not apply in the facts of the present case
as in the said case, the Court was considering the issue regarding the eviction
decree under Section 12(1)(c) only. In the present case, decree is also passed
under Section 12 (1)(a) of the Act. The judgment relied in the case of Jamnalal
and others Vs. Radheshyam (supra) is not an authority on the issue canvassed
by the learned counsel for the appellants.

12. The question regarding the relationship of the land lord and tenant the
same could not be tumed to be question of law rather than substantial Guestion of
law as the concurrent findings of the Courts below holding such relationship between
the parties being based on appreciation of evidence could not be interfered by this
Court at this stage under Section 100 of the C.P.C as laid down by the Apex
Court in the case of Kalyan Singh Vs. Ramswaroop and another 1996 JLJ 247 )
and Machalabai Vs. Nanakram 2006 (2) MPLJ 484. In the case of Jamnalal
and others Vs. Radheshyam (supra), the Court held that the findings proved on -
facts cannot be interfered under Section 100 of the CPC.

13. Evenotherwise, it is well settled in law that the jurisdiction of this
Court to interfere with the findings of the fact under Section 100 of the C.P.C
is limited where the findings is either perverse or based on no evidence. This _
Court cannot interfere with the findings of the fact until and.unless the same is
perverse or based on no evidence or contrary to material on record. It is
equally settled law that the Court in exercise of power under Section 100 of
the C.P.C cannot re-appreciate the evidence even if another view is possible
(see- Narayan Rajendra and Anr. Vs. Lekshmy Sarojini and others (2009)
5 SCC 264, Hafazat Hussain Vs. Abdul Majeed and others (2011) 7 SCC
189, Union of India Vs. Ibrahim Uddin (2012) 8 scc 148, D.R. Rathna
Murthy Vs. Ramappa (2011) 1 SCC 158 and Vishwanath Agrawal V, Sarla
Vishwanath Agrawal, (2012) 7 SCC 288).

14."  That, so far the other ground canvassed under Section 12 (1)c)is
concerned, it has already been held by this Court that in the present case in
view of the facts and findings of the Courts below it is established that there
was a relationship of the land lord and tenant between the parties and both the
Courts below have concurrently held that the appellant by denying the title of
the respondent caused substantial injury to the plaintiffs nght and t1tle inthe

‘property in dispute.
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15.  Inthe present case, this Courthas taken note of the fact of the case

that the present suit for eviction was filed in year 1968 and for last more than

48 years the LRs of plaintiffs have been contestmg the smt after the death of
" original plaintiff.

16.  Inview of the aforesaid discussion, I have not found any perversity or
informity (sic:infirmity) in appreciation of gvidence by the Courts below or any
circumnstances giving rise to any question of law much less the substantial question
of law requiring any consideration at this stage under Section 100 of the C.P.C.
Hence, this appeal being devoid of any such question deser__ves to be and is hereby
dismissed at the stage of admission. There shall be no order as to costs.

Appeal dismissed.

I.L.R. [2017] M.P., 2699
APPELLATE CIVIL
Before Mr. Justice Anurag Shrivastava
S.A. No. 114/2015 (Jabalpur) decided on 22 September, 2017

RAMAKANT PATHAK ...Appellant
Vs. :
STATEOFM.P. & ors. -~ : ...Respondents

A. Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 158(d)(ii)
—Blhiumiswami Rights — Held — In revenue records, disputed lands are
recorded as “Tank” since 1958 and even before — Plaintiff’s witnesses
also establishes that disputed land is a-“Tank” used for nistar purposes
by villagers — Plaintiff’s father or Plaintiff not entitled the conferral of
Bhumiswami rights — Courts below rightly recorded the findings and
dismissed the suit — Appeal dismissed. : (Para 7 & 16)

- q o qfear, 4A4 (1959 BT 20) T 158(S)(ii) —
qfreardt sferere — afifraiRa — wow afteret F, faafya qfat sose
¥ td suQ qd W “werm @ vy F afifafed - ard $ wrefror «f
wifua &3d ¥ 5 faarfew qfy @ “werme @ Rrast aeiot gy
e & ugive 2q Suaiw gtar @ - Il @ far ar 9, At
ARBRY BT v f5d WM B Y gPER T — s =aran) @ sha
w1 9 frad affafaa f5d gur 9 wRe frar — afla @l

B.  Land Revenue Code, M.P. (20 of 1959), Section 117 —
Adverse Possession — Presumption — Held — Adverse possession is a
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question of fact — Plaintiff has not filed any document in support of
purchase of land — No sale deed or any witness to sale have been
examined — Sale is not proved — Revenue records does not establish
“continuous possession over 30 years on disputed land —No presumption
can be drawn u/S 117 of the Code of 1959. (Para 8)

& I VT I, . (1959 BT 20), ENT 117 — Ffyael Heorr
— gy — AffEiRe — sfse v, e @2 o1 grg § - 9 2
I B wE F wwelT ¥ B ww ywga w9 fwr @ — faf fawa
fadle @1 a1 fawa & frelt wefl &1 W T8 far o — fiwy fug T
2 — o aftee, farfiw 9ft w 30 anf @ ofts w1 fPRax wer
wfid 7w FxA — 1959 B WiEw W =T 117 F siata HIT SgEOT
T el @ A

C. Rewa State Land Revenue and Tenancy Code, 1935,
Section 57(4) and Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and Tenancy Act,
1953 (3 of 1955), Section 149, 151(2) & (3) — Gairhagdar Tenant —
Patta — Held — A gairhaqdar tenant cannot get patta of “Tank” u/S
57(4) of the Code of 1935 — Similarly, right of pattedar tenant shall not
accrue or deemed to have accrued in respect of a Tank — Patta of this
land cannot be granted w/S 151 of Act of 1953. . - (Paras 11 to 15)

7 V9T O q{—ONT GUT HTYaEIN) Wil 1935 GT 57(4)
va e ydu gV qur e SRIFrer, 1953 (1955 FT 3) GRT
149, 151(2) 7 (3) — IvEBEIe IRGHIN — geer — IPIFEIRT — Tw
AREPIR PIRAGR BT 1935 Y GRaT I aT 57(4) B AT eI
@1 92T el a9 — 9 WY W, (B CWend” B 9ag ¥ qgdan
PIATR FT ARSR AT &7 & a1 wige@ sir wasm =€) wren —
9 qf F1 ueEn, 1953 @ afufrmn @ w7 151 @ sfafa gEm A fear
ST T |

Case referred:
~
2016 (4) M.P.L.J. 57.

Ashok Kumar Pandey, for the appellant.
F.K. Chourasia, G.A. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT
' ANURAG STIRIVASTAVA, J. :- This second appeal u/s 100 C.P.C. has
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been preferred by the appellant/plaintiff against the judgment and decree dated .
16.12.2014, passed by the First Additional District Judge, Maihar, District
Satna, in Civil Appeal N0.76-A/2014, whereby the judgment and decree
dated 18.06.2014, passed by Civil Judge, Class-1, Maihar in Civil Suit
No.62-A/2014 has been affirmed and the appeal filed by the plaintiff has
been dismissed.

2. The case of the appellant/plaintiff'in brief is that the father of plaintiff
namely Ramkripal Pathak had purchased the land Kahasra No.518 ad-
measuring area 1 Bhigha 13 biswa from Rampal, land Kahasra No.564
measuring area 9 biswa from Chota S/o0 Rambaksh, land Kahasra Nos.566
and 567 measuring area 28 biswa from Nanda Dhobi on 05.06.1959 for the
sale consideration of Rs.90/-, Rs.20/-, Rs.45/- respectively and got possession
of the land. Remaining land Kahasra Nos.519 and 566 measuring area 8
bigha 25 biswa was under possession of Ramkripal from the State time. In
Jamabandi Khatoni of year 1958-59, the aforesaid seller Rampal, Chota
and Nanda Dhobi were recorded as Gair Hagdaar Kashatkar under class
(5) of sub-class (6). Therefore, after coming into force of M.P. Land Revenue
Code, 1959, the plaintiff become the Bhuswami under Section 158 of MLP.
L.R.C. 1959. Itis further pleaded by plaintiff that since 1959 the father of
plaintiff Ramkripal and thereafter plaintiff was cultivating and possessing the
aforesaid land continuously as owner of the land, therefore, they have perfected
their title by virtue of adverse possession. These lands are recorded illegally

- inthe name of M.P. Government without notice or knowledge of the plaintiff.

Now, the respondents are trying to dispossess the plaintiff from the disputed
land, therefore, after giving notice under Section 80 of C.P.C. plaintiff filed
the suit for declaration of title and permanent injunction against the respondents.

3. Respondent/defendant Nos. 1 and 2 remained ex-parte before the R

trial Court. Respondent No.3 Gram Panchayat Belha in its written statement
denied the entire claim of the plaintiff, it is averred that the disputed land is a
tank and Government property, the management of the tank is given to Gram
Panchayat. The plaintiff's father or plaintiff never remained in possession of
the disputed land. The tank is used by general public. Plaintiff has no right or
title over the disputed land. The suit of the plaintiff is not maintainable and
liable to be dismissed.

4.  The trial Court vide judgment dated 18.06.2014 arrived at the
conclusion that it is not proved that the plaintiff's father had purchased the



2702 Ramakant Pathak Vs. State of M.P: - LLRJ2017]M.P.

disputed land from Rampal Chota and Nanda Dhobi and gotits possession. It

is also not found proved that the plaintiff and his father remained continuously
in possession of the entire disputed land and have perfected their title by
virtue of adverse possession. In view of the aforesaid finding, the trial Court
dismissed the suit. In appeal, also learned Appellate Court recorded concurrent
findings against the appellant and found that the plaintiff has neither title nor
possession over the disputed land and the appeal was dismissed vide Judgment
and decree dated 16.12.2014. '

5. In present Second Appeal, it is contended by learned counsel for the
appellant that the factum of the possession of plaintiff's father and plaintiff
since 1959.is duly proved by'Khasra Panchshala and other oral evidence
adduced by the plaintiff. The trial Court and the Appellate Court erroneously
igrored the revenue records and other evidence given by the plaintiff and
committed illegality. The claim of the plaintiff is mainly based upon adverse
*possession. Plaintiff was shown in revenue record as Gair Haqdaar
Kashatkar since 1959, therefore, he would get Bhumiswami right
automatically as per provision of Section 158 (d)(ii) of MLP. Land Revenue
Code, 1959. Thus, the appeal deserves to be allowed and plaintiff's suit ought
~ to be decreed. : :

6. ‘Heard é.rguments of learned counsel for the appellant and perused the

record, :
7. - Toresolve the controversy we have to see the nature of disputed land

as to whether it is “Agricultural land” or “Tank”. The revenue record Jamabandi
of year 1958-59 (Ex.P/2) shows that kh. no.518 is recorded as a “Tank”.
Another Khsara of the year 1944-45 (Ex.P/4) records the lands 565 as “Tank™,
kh.566 and 567 as “Bandhi” (embankment). In the khasara panchshala for
the years 1969-70 to 1973-74 (Ex.P/13 and P/ 14) land kh. no.564, 565,
566 are recorded as Tank and kh. no. 51 8, 519, and 567 are shown as Paar-
- Taalab (embankments of tank). The same fact is recorded i khasara panchshala
for the years 1974-75 to 1993-94 (Ex. P/15 to P/22). Thus it is evident that

in revenue records the disputed lands are recorded as Tank and its

embankments since 1958 and even before. The plaintiff's witness Laalinan
(PW-2) in his statement para 4 has categorically admitted that the disputed
land is a tank which is used by all villagers for their Nistaar. Another witness
Rajaram Sahu (PW-3) also deposed that the disputed land is known as “Delha
Taalab” or 'Bada Taalab', He is not able to give the Khasra number or area of

L]
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land which is being cultivated by plaintiff. Thus the statements of plaintiff's
witnesses establishes that the disputed land is a Tank. The embankment of
Tank is also the part of Tank. In view of aforesaid, the Courts below have
rightly recorded the finding that the disputed land is a Tank.

8. Second question arises for consideration is whether the plaintiff has
perfected his title over the disputed land on the basis of adverse possession.
This is the question of fact. The Courts below have recorded concurrent findings
against the plaintiff. Although, the plaintiff has averred that the disputed land -
Khasra No.518, 564, 566, 567 were purchased on 05.06.1959 but, he has
not filed any document in support of above fact. No sale deed or any witness
to the sale have been examined by the plaintiff. Therefore, sale is not proved.
The Khasra Panchshala for the year 1969 - 70 to 2010 — 11 -(Ex.P/13 to
P/23) show that the disputed lands are recorded on the name of M.P.
Government. Although, in Kaifiyat column of some years the possession of
plaintiff's father and plaintiff have been récorded but no presumption of
possession under Section 117 of M.P. Land Revenue Code could be drawn
on the basis of such entries. Only during the year 1979 — 80 to 1983- 84
Khasra (Ex.P/13) the possession of plaintiff was recorded as per order of
Tahsildar. This stray entries of possession for five years only cannot give rise
the presumption of possession duririg the entire period i.e. 1959 to 2010.
Thus, the revenue records does not establish the continuous possession of
plaintiff over 30 years on the disputed land.

9. As far as oral evidence is concerned the plaintiff's witness Laalman

Vishwakarma (PW-2) and Rajaram Sahu (PW-3) admitted that the disputed

land is a tank, which is being used by village cormmunity for their Nistar rights.

The possession of plaintiff or his father over disputed tank is not proved. The
Courts below has rightly recorded the concurrent findings denying the adverse
possession of the plaintiff over the disputed land. The findings of trial Court
and learned appellate Court cannot be said as perverse or illegal, the findings

* are based on proper appreciation of evidence on record. Hon'ble Apex Court

in case law Damodar Lal Vs. Sohan Devi 2016 (4) M.P.L.J. 57 held as
under:-

“Concurrent findings of trial Court and first Appellate
Court on pure question of fact even if finding of fact is
wrong that by itself will not constitute a question of law.
Wrong findings should stem out of a complete misreading
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of evidence or it should be based on conjectures and .
surmises.”

10.  Itisalso contended by the learned counsel for the appellant that after
purchase of the land the plaintiff's father was recorded as Gair Hagdaar
Kastakar in the year 1959, therefore, after coming into force of M.P. Land
Revenue Code, 1959 he will become Bhumiswami automatically under Section
158 (d)(ii) of the Act. This argument cannot be accepted on following grounds:-

() Section 158 of M.P. Land Revenue Code 1959
provides for conferral of Bhumiswami rights fo certain
class of persons. The relevant Section 158 (1)(d) reads as
under:-

158 (1) Every person who at the time of coming into force
of this Code, belongs to any of the following classes shall

- be called a Bhumiswami and shall have all the rights and
be subject to all the liabilities conferred or imposed upon
a Bhumiswami by or under this Code, namely:-

(@~

(1) Every person in respect of land held by him in the
Vindhya Pradesh region as a pachapan paintalis tenant,
pattedar tenant, a grove holder or as a holder of tank as
defined in the Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and Tenancy
Act, 1953 (1T of 1953)

(ii) Every personinrespect of land (other than land which
is a grover or tank or which has been acquired or which is
required for Government or public purposes) held by him in
the Vindhya Pradesh region as a gair hagdar tenant and in
respect of which he is entitled to a patta in accordance with

.the provisions of sub-section 4) of section 57 of the Rewa
State Land Revenue and Tenancy Code, 1935.

(iii)  every person in respect of land held by him as a
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tenant in the Vindhya Pradesh region and in respect of

which he is entitled to a patta in accordance with the

provisions of sub section (2) and (3) of section 151 of the

Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and Tenancy Act, 1953

(I of 1955) but has omitted to obtain such patta before
_ the coming into force of this Code. )

11.  Inpresent case the plaintiff's father was not holder of tank. Whether
he is entitled to a patta in accordance with provision of sub section 4 of Section
57 of Rewa State Land Revenue and Tenancy Code 1935 or under provision
of sub section 2 and 3 of Section 151 of Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and
Tenancy Act, 1953 has to be seen.

12, Section 57 (4)of Rewa State Land Revenue and Tenancy Code 1935
~ (in short Rewa Act) provides as under:- i

“(4) A ghairhagdar tenant who has occupied land other
" than grove-land, tank, or land acquired or. held for a public
purpose or a work of public utility, with the consent,
express or implied of the Tahiildar or the pawaidar or sub
pawaidar, as the case may be shall be entitled to be
recorded as a pattedar tenant and to obtain a patia if he
agrees to pay rent determined in accordance with the
provision of section 83.” -

13.  Thus, it is clear that a ghairhaqdar tenant cannot get patta of tank
under Section 57 (4) of Rewa Code.

14.  Similarly section 151 (1) of Vindhya Pradesh Land Revenue and
Tenancy Act, 1953 (in short V.P. Act) provides that every pachpan — paintalis - -
tenant and every pattadar tenant shall be entitled to be granted a patta. Section
149 of V.P. Code provides that:-

' “149. Rights of paltedar tenant not lo accrue in cerlain
lands:- Notwithstanding anything contained in the Rewa
Land Revenue and Tenancy Code, 1935 -or in this Act or
any other law for the time being in force the rights of
pattedar tenant shall not accrue and shall not be deemed
to have accrued in respect of any of the following classes
of land; namely:- (i) grove land, (ii) pasture land, (iii) tank,
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(v) State bandh, (v} land acquired or held for a public
purpose or a work of public utility. (vi) land situated to .
place of religion worshtp which according to local custom
is let out from yedr to year or on lease Jor a fixed period,
(vii) land within the boundaries of the State Government
reserve forest or, (viii) land which has been let out under a
special lease granted under the provision of this Aet.”

15.  Thus, itisalso clear that right of pattedar tenant shall not accrue or
deemed to have accrued in respect of land “tank”. Therefore, a patta of this

* - land cannot be granted under Sect1on 151 of V.P. Act.

16.  Inview of aforesaid, itis ev1dent that plaintiff's father or plaintiff are
not entitled the conferral of Bhumiswami right on the disputed land under
Section 158 (1)(d) of M.P. Land Revenue Code, 1959.

7. Thus, neither the adverse possession of plaintiff is proved over the
disputed land neither it is proved that the plaintiffis entitled to get Bhumiswami
right over the land. The findings recorded by Courts below are proper and
acceptable. Thus, no substantial question arises for consideration in present
appeal

18.  Appeal is devoid of merits and is hefeby dismissed.

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2706
_ " APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice Rajendra Mahajan & Mr. Justice C.V. Sirpurkar
. Cr.A.No. 2494/2006 (Jabalpur) decided on 22 June, 2017

RAMNATH ...Appellant
Vs. -
STATE OF M.P. : ...Respondent

A Peual Code (45 of 1860), Sectwn 376 — Conviction — Life
Imprisonment — Appreciation of Evidence — Testimony of Prosecutrix
— Minor contradictions — Effect — Held ~ Rape committed by father on
his minor daughter aged about 14 yrs. — Victi carrying fetus of 14-16
weeks — Prosecutrix glvmg evidence in detail regarding instances of
rape does not amount to improvement with regard to FIR and case
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diary statements — Mere extracting out minor contradictions and
inconsistencies in cross examination of the prosecutrix is not sufficient
to discredit the veracity of her evidence —Trial Court rightly awarded
life sentence — — Appeal dismissed. (Paras 11, 12, 14, 20 & 25) -

Z. TUT WIehT (1860 &7 45), &INT 376 — @ISR — arcflaT
aﬂvmw T T Yoarad — Jlrgiadt a1 arey — wiler Retarare —
rarT — afafEiRa —~ far grr suat o9 14 Tffy amTaea 1o @ @
FATCH T BIRA a1 74T — fFSAT 14—16 TRE BTHIT ST B @ S —
AT gV AT @ Waw ¥ fawga wew @ W gewm gaem
giEdgT 9o 9 S wer ¥ gar o sife § 99 amar — afrteh
@ yfamderr & wra vt fRterm @ s PredarE, sws @
B Iogdl W Afqea o & fav waiw 58 & — REre <y 3
e Wy ¥ ol Tveky I fear — e el

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 and Evidence Act
(1 of 1872), Section 6 — Hearsay Evidence — Admissibility — Held — As
both prosecution witnesses are close relatives (mausi and mami) of
prosecutrix and that she lost her-mother long back before incident,
she confided in them as to the person who was behind her pregnancy —
It does not fall under hearsay evidence — In fact and situation, evidence
reliable and admissible u/S 6 of the Act of 1872. {Para 16)

24 TS Giedl (1860 &1 45), €IVT 376 V7 GIeT a7 (1872
T 1) G 6 — FFHa T —~ FEgIar — AtutEiRa ~ gfe =t
st e, affrtet & froe g9 (@0 9 90l € Ak 9w 5
HeAT 4 F16Y W9y ysd SUR AUl ATy S @idr-en, 99 favara @ s
99 Affd & IR A 9 W S THERY BT SRV AT — qE AT
WE & Favia &) Far — 59 927 g Refy &, 1872 @ afufaw € axr
6 ¥ davfa, Wi, fgaaiy @ o"y )

C.  Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 376 and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 53-A — DNA Profiling —

Held — Provision of Section 53-A Cr.P.C. was inserted w.e.f. 23.06.06
whereas the incident is of 2005, thus it was not mandatory for .

prosecution to get DNA profiling of prosecutrix, her fetus and appellant -

‘to ascertain that appellant was the father of fetus — Non holding of

DNA test will not affect the prosecution case adversely.  (Para 19)

T TUS fear (1860 T 45), VT 376 U ©ve FhHAT 9iedl
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1973 (1974 &7 2), g1 53—V —~ Stoqy glwEfar — afufeaiRa — g
53— T.U.¥. BT SU4E, 23.06.2006 U UHATE ©T @ IFa-enfie fear =y o1
\Tq'%ﬂwzuosaﬂ%srﬁ T gifyeaa &< @ fav 5 adiemeff gor a1
foar o, sfiritee @ fae s, s g vd adrareff & Sy -
NeEfET sxamr arEmas T em — eIy qhET T ST 9,
mmﬁqmﬁumamﬁumﬁﬁaﬁﬁml

Cases referred

Cr.A. No. 1775/2000 decided on 07.05.2009, (2017) 4 S.C.C. 558,
(2017) 4 S.C.C. 393, 2009 (1) M.P.L.J. (Cri.) 98, 2013 (1) MPWN 94,
2017 Cr.L.J. 1359, 1991 (3) SCC 471.

Durgesh Gupta, for the-appellant.
Y.D. Yadav, P.L. for the respondent/State.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
RAJENDRA MAHAJAN, J. :- This appeal is directed against the judgment and
order dated 22.11.2006 passed by the Third Additional Sessions Judge (FTC)
Katni in Sessions Trial No.14 0of 2006, by which the appellant-accused stands
convicted under Section 376 of the IPC and sentenced to life imprisonment
with a fine of Rs.1000/- (one thousand) in default to suffer further imprisonment
for six months.

2. The following are uncontroverted and admitted facts of the case -

(1}  Therelation between the appellant and the prosecutrix (PW-3)
is the father and the daughter respectively.

(2)  Attherelevant point of time, the age of the prosecutrix was
near-about 14 years. - :

(3)  The prosecutrix's mother had died before the incident in
question. ‘

4)  Uma@ Salma (PW-4) and Shakun Bai (PW-5) are Mousi (real
sister of the prosecutrix's mother) and Mami (maternal aunt) of the prosecutrix
respectively. At the material point of time, they were neighbours in village Bilari,

(5)  After the lodgement of the FIR by the prosecutrix, she has
been living with Uma.
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3.

The prosecution case as unfolded at the trial, in brief, is as follows:-

(3.-1)

(3.2)

(3.3)

(34)

On 21.08.2005, the prosecutrix accompénied by Uma and
Shakun Bai made an oral report at Police Station Madhav Nagar
of Katni town stating that she is aresident of village Bhaiswahi
and she does house chores. Her mother had died five years ago.
She and hertwo younger brothers live with her father Ramnath,
who is the appellant-accused herein, in village Bhaiswahi. Her
father used to commit sexual intercourse with her despite her strong
protests. He did not allow her to go outside the house. For the
said reason, she did not narrate his perverted sexual acts to any
person of her acquaintance. As a result of the cohabitation, she
became pregnant and she is at present carrying a fetus aged about
four months in her womb. On 21.08.2008, her father brought her
to the house of Uma at village Bilari for medical treatment as her
health is deteriorating on account of pregnancy. In the absence of
her father, she related the matter to her Mousi Uma and Mami
Shakun Bai. Upon their suggestion, she has come to lodge the
report. Upon her oral report, Sub-Inspector C.K. Tiwari (PW-
10) recorded an FIR being Ex.P-3 and registered a case against
the appellant urider Section 376 IPC at Crime No.0 0£2005 as -
the place of occurrence village Bhaiswahi falls under the tergitorial
jurisdiction of Police Station Vijayraghavgarh of Katni district.

On 22.08.2005, C.K. Tiwari sent the prosecutrix for medico-
legal examination to the Government Hospital Katni, where
Dr. Sunita Verma (PW-6) examined her and gave a report
Ex.P-6 stating that there is a fetus aged about 14 to 16 weeks
in the prosecutrix’s womb. She also collected smear of her
vaginal swab and prepared slides of it for forensic tests.

On 22.08.2005, C.K. Tiwari sent the FIR Ex.P-3 and the
prosecutrix's medical report Ex.P-6 to Police Station

"Vijayraghavgarh. On the basis of the FIR, Sub-Inspector

Manjeet Singh (PW-11) recorded FIR Ex.P-12 verbatim and
registered a case against the appellant at Crime No.150 of
2005. '

Sub-Inspector Manjeet Singh.took over the investigation. He-
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prepared the site plan Ex.P-4, recorded the case diary .
statements of the ‘witnesses who are conversant with the
" incident, and arrested the appellant vide arrest memo Ex.P-15.
On 23.08.2005, he sent the appellant for medico-legal
examination to the Community Health Center, Vijayraghavgarh,
where Dr. R.K. Jharia (PW-2) examined him and gavea report
Ex.P-2 stating that the appellant is capable of doing sexual
intercourse. He also prepared slides of semen of the appellant.

(3.5)  Upon the conclusion of investigation, the police filed a charge-
sheet against the appellant for his prosecution under Section
376 IPC. '

4.  Thelearned trial Judge framed the charge against the appellant under
Section 376 IPC. He pleaded not-guilty to the charge and opted to contest
the case. In the examination under Section 313 of the Cr.P.C., the appellant
denied all the incriminating evidence and circumstances appearing against him
in the case except the admitted facts. His defence, simpliciter, was of false
implication by the prosecutrix at the instigation of her Mousi Uma, However,
he did not adduce any oral or documentary evidence in support of his defence.

- 5. The learned trial Judge having marshalled, analyzed and evaluated the

evidence on record has held the appellant guilty of raping the prosecutrix

several times. Having held so, he convicted the appellant under Section 376
IPC and sentenced thereunder as noted in para 1 of this judgment.

6. Feeling aggrieved by and dissatisfied with the impugned judgment, the
appellant has filed the appeal before this court.

7. Learned counsel for the appellant after referring extensively to the
contents of the FIR Ex.P-3 lodged by the prosecutrix herself, her case diary
statement Ex.D-1 and her deposition, submitted that the prosecutrix has
improved her court statement on the materiai points to a great extent. This
improvements erode the credibility and trustworthiness of her testimony. She
further submitted that as per the provision of Section 53-A Cr.P.C. in the
course of investigation, the DNA samples of the prosecutrix, her fetus and the
appellant ought to have been taken to get the DNA profiling done to ascertain
whether the appellant was biological father of the fetus who was in the womb
of the prosecutrix. She further submitted that the compliance of Section 53-A
CrP.C. is mandatory, therefore, non-compliance of the provision of the Section
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supports the defence of the appellant that he had never had sexual intercourse
with the prosecutrix and he has been falsely implicated in the case. She further
submitted that Dr. Sunita Verma (PW-6) and Dr. R.K. Jharia (PW-2) have
deposed that they had prepared slides of smear of the prosecutrix and semen
of the appellant respectively for forensic tests, but there is no evidence on
record whether the prosecution had sent the slides to the forensic science
laboratory for the tests and whether the same sent the report(s) in this respect.
Moreover, the evidence of Investigating Officer Manjeet Singh (PW-11) is
completely silent on the point. She further submitted that Uma (PW-4) and
Shakun Bai (PW-5) have deposed what they were told by the prosecutrix,
therefore, they are hearsay witnesses. As such, their testimonies have no
evidentiary value. Upon the aforesaid submissions, she submitted that the
prosecution has failed to prove its case beyond reasonable doubt. Therefore,
the impugned judgment is liable to be set aside.

8. In the alternative, learned counsel for the appellant submitted that the
appellant has been in jail in the case since 22.08.2005, the date of his arrest.
Thus, the appellant has by now suffered imprisonment of near-about 12 years. _
The appellant has no previous conviction nor has he criminal antecedents,
Upon the aforesaid facts, she prayed that the appellant's jail sentence be
reduced to the period he had already undergone. In this respect, she placed
reliance upon a decision of this court rendered in Criminal Appeal No.1775
of 2000 titled Omkar Vs. State of M.P. the date of Judgment 07.05.2009
(oral). o ‘

0. Per contra, learned Panel Lawyer submitted that as perthe FIR, case
diary statement of the prosecutrix and her court statement, the appellant
committed rape upon her not once but several times. That is why she has
given the evidence in detail as to the place, manner and conduct of the appellant
at the time of committing rape by him upon her. As per record, the prosecutrix
is of rural background and she is an illiterate girl, therefore, it cannot be
expected from her to record the FIR and the case diary statement elaborately
on her own. Moreover, the FIR and the case diary statements are not the
encyclopedia. Therefore, recording evidence in detail by the prosecutrix does
not amount to improvement. He submitted that the provision of Section 53-A
Cr.P.C. came into effect w.e.f. 23.06.2006, whereas the incident of the present
case was of the year 2005. Therefore, holding of the DNA tests was not
mandatory on the part of the prosecution in the case. He further submitted
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that the prosecutrix lodged the FIR when she was carrying the pregnancy of
near-about four months old. In the circumstances, the forensic examinations

of the smear of vagina of the prosecutrix and the semen ofthe appellant have

no bearing upon the case even remotely. On the quantum of senterice, he

submitted that the prosecutrix has found solace from her father/the appellant

after she had lost her mother at the age of about 10 years. In the circumstances, -
the sexual exploitation of the prosecutrix by the appellant isthe most abominable

act. Therefore, the learned trial Judge has rightly awarded the sentence of life

imprisonment to the appellant. Upon these submissions, he supported the

impugned judgment of conviction and order of sentence and prayed for

dismissal of the appeal.

10. © Wehave earnestly considered the rival submissions made across the
Bar and perused the entire material before us together with the impugned
judgment.

I1.  Prosecutrix (PW-3) has testified that she had lost her mother near-
about five years prior to the incident. She and her two younger brothers lived
with her father-appellant in village Bhaiswahi. Near-about a year before the
~ lodgerhent of the FIR Ex.P-3 by her, the appellant used to come at night after
consuming liquor and Ganja. Thereafter, he stripped her naked and undressed.
himself. He forcibly committed sexual intercourse with her. thnever, she
complained to him regarding pain in her private parts, he applied oil on her
thighs. As a result of sexual intercourse, she became pregnant and started
vomiting. She had also lost her appetite. Seeing that, he took her to a doctor
for treatment. After her clinical examination, the doctor told him that she was
carrying pregnancy of about four months. Since he had no money to have her
abortion, he approached her Mousi Uma to get money from her on credit. At
that time, he told Uma that she had pregnancy with someoneé and to get her
pregnancy terminated, money is required. Uma asked him to keep her present
. before her. Later, he took her to village Bilari, the native place of Uma. One
evéning, she and Uma went outside to attend the call of nature. At that time,
Uma enquired from her as to how she had become pregnant. Thereupon, she
" narrated her that it was her father/the appellant who had pregnanted her
committing forcibly sexual intercourse upon her several times. Thereafter, she
lodged the FIR Ex.P-3 with the police accompanied by Uma and Mami Shakun
Bai. We find that the prosecutrix has stated in the FIR and her case diary
statement that the appellant used to commit sexual intercourse upon her in
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their house, whereas she has stated in her evidence that the appellant ravished
her in a hut situated in an agricultural field. In our opinion, this contradiction is
of minor nature. We find that the prosecutrix has not given details of the
instances of rape in the FIR and her case diary statement. As per record, the
proseuctrix (sic:prosecutrix) is of rural background and that she is totally
illiterate girl, therefore, it cannot be expected from her to give details of the

-ordeals she had gone through when she was every time subjected to rape by
the appellant on his own unless and until the police officials, who recorded the
FIR and the case diary statement of her, asked her in minute details. In this
backdrop, in our considered view, giving evidence in detail regarding instances
of rape by the prosecutrix does not amount to improvement in her gvidence.

- Our said view is fortified by a decision of the Supreme Court rendered in the
case of M.G Eshwarappa and others Vs. State of Karnataka , (2017) 4
S.C.C. 558.

12, We have also found some contradictions and inconsistencies in the
contents of the FIR, case diary statement of the prosecutrix and her deposition
but they are of very minor nature having no bearing on the case.

13.  Itis pertinent to mention at this place that in para'15 of the cross-
examination of the prosecutrix, the defence has put some suggestions with an
objective to elicit evidence from her in their favour to shake the reliability of
her evidence. The suggestions are that she had pregnancy with someone else
not by her father-appeliant, that he had opposed the marriage of her Mousi
Uma with a muslim man, as a result the relation between Uma and her father
are very much strained, that she had in fact a tumour in her stomach but upon
the instigation of Uma she had lodged the false report against her father. The
prosecutrix has categorically denied all the aforestated suggestions.

14.  Inourconsidered view, where a minor girl has testified that her
father raped her at the time when she was in his company, the strong
evidence in favour of the father is required to disbelieve her testimony.
The underlying premise is that such accusation is in the nature of rarest,
of rare because no girl would level such charge in normal course against
her own father. Mere extracting out some minor contradictions and
inconsistencies in the cross-examination of the girl will not be sufficed
to discredit the veracity of her evidence. From this point of view, we =
have perused the evidence appearing in the cross-examination of the
prosecutrix and we find that nothing material evidence has come out
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+ to cast a doubt upon the truthfulness of her testimony leaving alone
the discarding of it as unreliable.

* (emphasis is ours)

15.  In view of the preceded close scrutiny of the evidence of the
prosecutrix, we hold that the testimony of the prosecutrix inspires full
confidence.

. 16.  From the perusal of the depositions of Uma (PW-4) and Shakun Bai
(PW-5), we find that they have corroborated the evidence given by the
prosecutrix in material particulars except some minor inconsistencies and
contradictions here and there. We also find that the defence has failed to elicit
in their cross-examination any evidence in their favour to discredit their
evidence. As both the witnesses are close relatives of the prosecutrix and that
she had lost her mother long back before the incident, therefore, it is natural
that she confided in them as to the person who was behind her pregnancy. In
this fact situation, we hold that their evidence is admissible in terms of Section
6 of the Evidence Act, after rejecting the contention raised by the learned
. counsel for the appellant that the evidence of both the witnesses falls under
the category of hearsay evidence. We, therefore, hold that their testimonies
are reliable and lend fill support to the evidence of the prosecutrix.

17.  Dr. Sunita Verma (PW-6) has deposed that she had done medico-
legal examination of the prosecutrix on 22.08.2005 at the District Hospital
Katni. She had found that the prosecutrix was carrying pregnancy of 14 to 16
weeks. In respect she gave report Ex.P-6. She has also deposed that on
13.09.2005, the prosecutrix was brought by one Uma (PW-4) for treatment.
Atthat time, she and her colléague Dr. Anita Singh (not examined) medically
examined her and found that she was heavily bleeding with short intervals via
her vagina, her uterus was half-opened, her blood pressure was 100-140 and
hemoglobin level in blood was 9.4. In the circumstances, the termination of
pregnancy of the prosccutrix was necessary to save her life, for which they
got permission from the then Civil Surgeon of the Hospital Dr. Baronia (not
examined). She has also deposed that upon her advice Dr. Joystana PwW-1)
had submitted obstetric sonography report Ex.P-1 of the prosecutrix. On the
. basis of the report, she terminated the pregnancy of the prosecutrix after
admitting her in the hospital. Upon the perusal of the cross-examinations of
both the witnesses, we find that nothing has come out to disbelieve their
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evidence. Consequently, their evidénce is wholly reliable. Thus, it is medically
proved that the prosecutrix had pregnancy at the relevant point of time.

* -18.  Dr.R.K. Jharia (PW-2) has testified that on 23.08.2003, he examined
the appellant and found him capable of performing sexual intercourse. He has
proved his medical report Ex.P-2. In his cross-examination, only one irrelevant
question is asked by the defence. On the basis of his evidence we, therefore,
hold that the appellant was physically capable of performing sexual intercourse
at the material point of time. :

15. . The provision of Section 53-A Cr.P.C. was inserted in the Cr.P.C.
w.e.f. 23.06.2006, whereas the incident of the present case is of the year
2005. Therefore, it was not mandatory for the prosecution to get the DNA
profiling of the prosecutrix, her fetus and the appellant to ascertain that the
appellant was the father of the fetus. In Sunil Vs. State of M.P, (2017) 4
S.C.C. 393, the Supreme Court has held that the conviction of the accused
under Section 376 IPC is also possible on the basis of other available evidence,

in case of non-holding of the DNA test or failure to prove DNA test report. In
the light of the aforesaid ratio, we hold that non-holding of DNA test will not
affect the prosecution case adversely.

20. . Inthe light of the aforesaid close scrutiny of the evidence on record,
we hold that the learned trial Judge has rightly held the appellant guilty for
sexually exploiting her daughter/the prosecutrix.

21.  The next question before us is whether any lenience in sentence is
called for?

22. - Atthis stage, itis pertinent to quote first the angst and anguish voiced
by the Supreme Court in the case of Siriya @ Shri Lal Vs. State of M.P.
[2009 (1) M.P.L.J. (Cri.) 98], wherein the father was held guilty for raping
her minor daughter by the trial court and this High court.

Paral:-.

“There can never be more shocking, depraved and
heinous crime than when the fatheris charged of having raped .
his own daughter. He not only delicts the law but, itis a betrayal |
of trust. The father is the fortress and refuge of his daughter in
whom the daughter reposes trust to protect her. Charged of
raping his own daughter under his refuge and fortress is worse
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than the gamekeeper becoming a.poacher and treasury guard
becoming a robber.” :

Para 5 :-

“...The father is supposed to protect the dignity and
honour of his daughter. This is a fundamental facet of human
life. If the protector becomes the violator, the offence assumes
a greater degree of vulnerability. The sanctity of father and

- daughter relationship gets polluted. It becomes an unpardonable
act. It is not only a loathsome sin, but also abhorrent...”

On the basis of the aforesaid, the apex court has upheld the life sentence
awarded to the accused-appellant by the learned trial Judge and affirmed by
this High court, stating that no sympathy or lenience is called for.

23.  This court had expressed almost similar sentiments in para 12 of the
decision rendered in the case of Anand Vs.State of M.P. 2013 (1) MPWN
94. In that case, this court upheld the father guilty of committing rape upon
her eight years old daughter and affirmed the life imprisonment awarded by
the trial court to him stating that no lenience is given in such type of cases.
Recently, the Rajasthan High Court in the case of Shiv Lal Uka Ji Vs. State
of Rajasthan, 2017 Cr.L.J. 1359 upheld the life imprisonment under Section
376(1) IPC awarded to the accused for having raped her minor daughter.

24.  Inthecase of Omkar Vs. State of M.P. (supra) this court has reduced
the life imprisonment awarded to the appellant-accused under Section 376
IPC to rigorous imprisonment for 10 years. But the facts of the case are
entirely different. Therefore, the ratio of said case is not applicable in the
present case. :

25.  Inthe case of Sevaka Perumal etc. Vs. State of Tamil Nadu , 1991
(3) SCC 471, the Supreme Court had considered the impact of imposition of
inadequate sentence and observed as under :- :

Para 8§ :-

“Therefore, undue sympathy to impose inadequate
sentence would do more harm to the justice delivery system to
undermine the public confidence in the efficacy of law and
society could not long endure under such serious threats. It is,
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" therefore, the duty of every court to award proper senterice
having regard to the nature of the offence and the manner in
which it was executed or committed etc.”

In the light of aforesaid authoritics and the facts and circumstances of
the present case, we find that the learned trial Judge has rightly awarded life
imprisonment to the appellant. Therefore, we reject the prayer for granting
lenience in sentence as prayed for by learned counsel for the appellant.

26.  For the forgoing reasons and discussions, we arrive at the ultimate
conclusion that this appeal is devoid of merits and substance. We, therefore,
dismiss this appeal, affirming the conviction and sentence 1mposed upon the

appellant by the learned trial Judge vide the impugned judgment.

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2717
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
-Before Mr. Justice Hemant Guapta, Chief Justice &
Mr. Justice C.V. Sirpurkar
Cr.A. No.1717/2005 (Jabalpur) decided on 13 July, 2017

- DESHPAL & anr. ...Appellants
vs. . ) -
STATE OF M.P. ) ...Respondent

(Alongwith Cr.R. No. 1769/2005)

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302 & 323 and Arms
Act (54 of 1959), Section 25(1-B)(a) & 27 — Murder — Conviction — -
Private Defence — Deceased who was unarmed, was chasing the
appellant alongwith police personnels, when appellant turned around
and fired upon him — Held — Relations between parties were inimical —
Prosecution case based on direct evidence, where five eye witnesses
were examined — Appellant has no right of private defence against an
unarmed person, that too in presence of four armed policemen —
Defence also failed to prove that any person from victim’s party was
armed even with a stick — Appellants rightly convicted — Appeal
dismissed. ’ (Paras 11,21 & 22)

#  _FUE GIoar (1860 &7 45), SINT 302. F 323 VT ATYET Alerva7
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(1959 #T 54), a7 25(1-F)(7) T 27 — FeaT — TR — wigde vfevar
— A%, Wit Frerer o, yfew shiat @ wer Ffremeff &1 frer v <7 o1,
mmmgmﬂvwwﬁaﬁm—m&rﬁafﬁa—qwﬁfa%qw
3mﬁﬁ#aﬁ—mmumuwam&rwmﬁﬁ,mﬁm
aqa?ﬁmmnwmqﬂmwwan—mﬁmaﬂaﬁwﬁ:wwﬁﬁ
@ freg ygde wRinem @1 @i AR T8 2, 9% M I AT
gmarﬁfﬁaﬁw&uﬁrﬁ'—mu&p N 9 & frell aafm @71 ©o
B 7@ ¥ gufiem 51 off Wit 3%t ¥ frwa @7 — afraneffror g
w7 9 ciufrg 58 T - anfier @ Re) .

B. - Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 397 &
401 — Revision Against Acquittal — Held = Appellants alongwith other
group members were been chased by policemen and while running, appellant
suddenly turned around and fired a shot— In such a situation, other persons
cannot be held vicariously liable for such action — No evidence whether
other accused persons incited appellant or commended him for shooting
the deceased — Trial Court rightly acquitted other accused persons —
Revision dismissed. -- (Para 32 & 33)

(oA TUS AT WAL 1973 (1974 &7 2) ST 397 F 401 —
TV frvg gadaer — sfafeiRT — qRraehia g1, W8 B I
Rl @ wrer—wrer adreneifror w1 fter frar ST e o qAT AT gY
mﬁanﬁmﬂaﬂﬁégsrmvﬁaﬁma‘—ﬁmvﬁﬁéﬁ%#mwﬁﬁﬁ
aﬁmﬁmﬁﬁmuﬁiﬁmﬁsmﬁm?ﬁﬂﬁaﬁmmm—aﬁs'
mﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁmaﬁgw#mﬁaﬁmﬁmmﬁwaﬁ
ﬁaﬁm:}égmﬁﬁmaﬁ—ﬁﬂﬂw‘m#msr&nﬁawwaﬁ
sfad w9 & <twpa frar — g wilier)

C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 397
& 401 — Revision Against Acquittal — Jurisdiction of High Court -
Limited Powers —Held —In revisionary jurisdiction against acquittal,
High Court is not supposed to enter into merits of matter and
re-appreciate the evidence and substitute one possible view for another
—High Court can set aside the order of acquittal even at the instance
of private parties, but this jurisdiction should be exercised in exceptional
cases ~ List of such circumstances, enumerated and discussed.
’ (Paras 28 to 31, 35 & 36)
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
C.V. SIRPURKAR, J. :- Criminal Appeal No.1717/2005 and Criminal Revision
No.1769/2005 arose from the samejudgment dated 11.08.2005 passed by
the Court of Sessions Judge, Panna in Sessions Trial No.133/2001; whereby
appellants/accused persons Deshpal and Yashpal were convicted and
sentenced as hereunder:

Appellant Deshpal
Conviction Sentence
U/s 302 1.P.C. . * Imprisonment for life, Fine of
. Rs.2000/- in default, R.1. for one|-
) - year.
U/s 323 1.P.C. " R.I. forsix months.
U/s 25(1-B) (a) of the R.1.for one year, Fine of Rs.1000/
Indian Arms Act. in default, R. I. For six months.
U/s 27 of the Indian Arms R. . for three months, fine of
Act. Rs.1000/- in default, R. I. For six
. months.
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Appellant Yashpal @ Bobby

Conviction Sentence
U/s25(1-B) (a) of the : R.I. for one year, Fine of Rs.1000/-
Indian Arms Act. in default, R. I. For six months.

2. Remaining accused persons/respondents in Criminal Revision

No0.1769/2005 namely Budh Singh, Dhirendra Singh @ Rajjan Raja,
Nagendra Singh, Jammulddin and Munna @ Laxman Singh were acquitted of
the offence punishable under Sections 148 and 302 read with section 149
and 323 read with section 149 of the Indian Penal Code. Likewise, accused
persons Nokhelal, Ram Singh, Ram Avtar and Ram Narayan were acquitted
of the offence punishable under section 302 read with section 120-B of the
Indian Penal Code. Siace, the Criminal Appeal filed under section 374 (2) of
the Code of Criminal Procedure against conviction of appellants Deshpal and
Yashpal and Criminal Revision filed by Smt. Sarman Raja, the mother of
deceased Bharatendu against acquittal of aforesaid accused persons arose
from the same judgment, they were heard analogously and are being disposed
of by this common judgment.

3 (a). The case ofthe prosecution before the trial Court may be summarized
as hereunder: Shankar Pratap Singh, father of deceased Bharatendu was
Sarpanch of Village Hathkuri from the year, 1983 till the year, 2000. However,
he lost elections to Ishwar Singh Upadhyay in the year, 2000, Shankar Pratap
Singh lived with his sons at Village-Kumbhari; however, he also had a house at
Hathkuri. On 08.04.2001, a meeting of the Gram Sabha was to be held at
Village -Hathkuri for constitution of different committees. In this connection,
Shankar Pratap Singh (PW-14) and his son deceased Bharatendu, Gajendra
Pratap Singh (PW- 16) and relatives Mahendra Singh (PW-19), Jahendra
Singh and Devendra Singh had gone to Hathkuri. They saw that their rivals
Deshpal Singh armed with a country made muzzle loading pellets gun, Yaspal
Slngh armed with a 12 bore single barrel gun and Jamaluddin armed with an
axe were standing in front of Shankar Pratap Singh's house at Hathkuri. They
were accompanied by accused persons Ramnarayan, Ram Singh, Nokhelal,

Munna Ramavtar and Ishwardeen Upadhyay, who has since expired. They
started abusing Shankar Pratap Singh. They were saying that if he attended
‘the meeting of Gram Sabha, they would kill him and he would not be able to
go back unscathed that day; whereon, Shankar Pratap Singh asked his son
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Gajendra Singh to go to Pawai on motorcycle and inform his brother Surendra
Singh that there were chances of breach of peace at Hathkuri. Therefore,
Surendra Singh should go to Hathkuri with police. Accordingly, Gajendra .
Singh went to Pawai and informed Surendra Singh, who gave a written
application to the 8.H.Q., P:S.-Pawai, Town Inspector, Mohan Singh Patel
(PW-23); whereon, Mohan Singh Patel and four other policemen, Surendra
Singh and Gajendra Singh left for Hathkuri in a Jeep. Meanwhile, Shankar
Pratap Singh, having waited for police to arrive for a long time, left for Kumbhari
at about 03:30 p.m. on a tractor along with his son deceased Bharatendu.
They reached Kumbhari at about 04:00 p.m. and parked their tractor in front
of Bhagwat Singh's house. Meanwhile, the police party in Jeep reached Range
T-point, where they met Ram Pratap Singh. Surendra Singh told Ram Pratap
Singh (PW-10) to go to Kumhari as they were proceeding to Hathkuri.
Meanwhile, Devendra Tiwari, Omprakash, Sunil Tiwari and Chunnu Raja @
Ram Pratap Singh arrived at Kumbhari. Aforesaid persons accompanied by
Bharatendu left for Shankar Pratap Singh's house while he stayed back for
checking his tractor. The police party proceeded to Hathkuri. Near village
Hathkuri, they met Kaushlendra, who told them that Shankar Pratap Singh
and Bharatendu had left for Kumbhari on a tractor about 20-25 minutes ago.
He also told them that Deshpal, Yashpal and Jamaluddin armed with guns,
had gone behind Shankar Pratap Singh and Bharatendu on another tractor;
therefore, the police party accompanied by Surendra Singh left for Kumbari.
Near Nagendra Singh's house, they found that Deshpal armed with a country
made gun and Yashpal armed with 12 bore gun and Jamaluddin armed with
an axe and Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh and Rajjan Raja armed with farsas
were standing. The police party alighted from the Jeep and ran behind them.
Surendra Singh and Gajendra Singh were also with the police party, chasing
the aforesaid persons. T.I. Mohan Singh chased them in his Jeep. At the same
" time, Ram Pratap Singh @ Chunnu Raja, Devendra Tiwari (PW-21), Sunil
Tiwari (PW-18) and Omprakash (PW-13) arrived on motorcycles at Bhagwat
Singh's door. They also parked their motorcycles and proceeded towards
the temple along with Bharatendu. When they reached the square, they saw
Deshpal, Yashpal, Jamaluddin, Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh, Rajjan Raja-
armed as stated above running towards them. Aforesaid accused persons
were being chased by the police, Surendra Singh and Gajendra Singh. -
Bharatendu ran fast and proceeded ahead of everyone and reached near
accused persons. In front of Munna Dheemar's house, Deshpal fired with his
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gun. As a result, Bharatendu and Beni Bai suffered gun-shot injuries.
Bharatendu fell down and accused persons escaped from the spot and fled
towards the drain situated outside the Village. Devendra Tiwari, Sunil Tiwari,

Om Prakash Pathak, Chunnu Raja, Surendra Singh and Gajendra Singh
reached Bharatendu. The policemen chased accused persons. Bharatendu
told aforesaid persons that Deshpal had fired upon him and he was
accompanied by accused persons Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh, Yashpal @
Bobby Raja and Jamaluddin. Thereafter, Bharatendu expired on the spot.

_ Surendra Singh gave a written report to the police (Ex.P/4) at Kumhari;

whereon, first information report (Ex.P/6) was recorded.

(b).  Inthe post-mortem examination, pellets were taken out of the dead
body of deceased Bharatendu. It was found that his heart and lungs had been
pierced by pellets. Beni Bai had also suffered gun-shot injuries. Pellets were
taken out of her body. During investigation, at the instance of accused Deshpal,
a country made gun was recovered. Likewise, on the disclosure statement
made by accused Yashpal, a 12 bore gun was seized. At the instance of accused
Jamaluddin, an axe was seized. Aforesaid weapons were sent to FSL for
examination. After obtaining sanction from District Maglstrate Panna under
sectlon 39 of the Arms Act, charge sheet was ﬁled

- 4. The trial Court framed a charge under sectlons 148,302 and 323 of
the Indian Penal Code and 25 and 27 of the Arms Act against accused Deshpal
Singh, a charge under sections 148 and 302 read with section 149 and 323
read with section 149 of the Indian Penal Code against accused persons Budh
Singh, Dhirendra Singh @ Rajjan Raja, Nagendra Singh, Jamaluddin and
Munna @ Laxman Singh, under sections 25 & 27 of the Arms Act against
accused Yashpal Singh @ Bobby Raja and under section 302 read with section
120-B of the Indian Penal Code against accused persons Nokhelal, Ram
Singh, Ramavtar and Ramnarayan.

S. After the trial, the trial Court recorded the findings to the effect that:

4} the prosecution had succeeded in prov’ing beyond reasonable doubt
that:

(a) appellan‘.daccused Deshpal Singh had committed murder of deceased
Bharatendu and had intentionally caused simple injuries to Beni Bai (PW-8)
by firing a gun shot with a muzzled loaded gun;
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(b)  accused/appellant Yashpal Smgh @ Boby had in'his possession an
unhcensed 12 bore gun;

-(II)  the prosecution had failed to prove beyond reasonable doubt that:

(a) the appellant/accused Deshpal was the member of an unlawful
assembly;

(b)  BudhSingh, Dhirendra Singh @ Rajjan Raja, Nagendra Singh, Yashpal

Singh, Jamaluddin and Munna @ Laxman Singh had constituted an unlawful

assembly along with appellant Deshpal and committed murder of Bharatendn
and caused simple injuries to Beni Bai in prosecution of common object of

* any such unlawful assembly;

(c) accused persons Nokhelal, Ram Singh, Ramavtar and Ramnarayan -
had entered into a conspiracyto commit murder of Bharatendu;

6. It appears from the Court order dated 27.09.2006 passed in this
criminal appeal that appellant no.2 Yashpal Singh was directed to be released
from jail as he had already undergone the entire sentence imposed upon him.

"No arguments have been advanced on behalf of the appellant no. 2 Yashpal
Singh before us. :

7. Shri Alok Vagrecha, learned counsel for the appellant Deshpal Singh
has challenged the conviction and sentence of appellant Deshpal as stated
above mainly on the ground that the trial Court has held in as many words that
at the time of the incident, appellant Deshpal was running along with co-accused
persons Nokhelal, Budh Singh, Raju @ Omprakash, Yashpal and Jamaluddin.
They were being followed by Bharartendu, Surendra Pratap Singh, Gajendra
Pratap Singh, Ram Pratap Singh, Sunil, Devendra, Om Prakash and at least
three police men, who were armed with 303 rifles. Bharatendu was running
some distance ahead of other persons in the group. At that time, Deshpal
" turned around and fired a shot upon Bharatendu from a distance of about 10-
12 feet causing his death and injuring Beni Bai. In this backdrop, learned
counsel for the appellant Deshpal has invited attention of the Court to the
statements made in examination-in-chief (paragraph no.2) by Sunil Tiwari (PW-
18), who has stated that when he had reached Hathkuri, he was told that the
deceased Bharatendu and hisfather Shankar Pratap Singh had gone behind
Deshpal Singh. He has also admitted in his cross-examination (paragraph no.7)
that, if Bharatendu and Shankar Pratap Singh had not gone behind Deshpal,
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Bharatendu would not have been killed. On the basis of aforesaid admissions,
it has been argued that the police was under the influence of the victim's party.
Adinittedly, Shankar Pratap Singh, father of Bharatendu, had sent Gajendra
Pratap Sirigh (PW-16) to Pawai to inform Shankar Pratap's brother Surendra
Pratap Singh (PW-24) that there was apprehension of breach of peace at
Hathkuri; therefore, Shankar Pratap Singh should seek police help and bring
police force to Hathkuri so as to avoid any untoward incident during the meeting
of Gram Sabha at Hathkuri. It has further been argued that when Deshpal saw
that he was being persuaded by the members of the victim's party accompanied
by armed police men, he assumed that the police was under the influence of
victim's party and if the victim's party managed to catch hold of him, he would
be killed. Bharatendu was in the forefront of the victim's party; therefore,
when there was a distance of about 10-12 feet left between Deshpal and
Bharatendu, he turned around and fired a solitary shot upon Bharatendu, killing
him on the spot and injuring Beni Bai. Thus, even if it is assumed for the sake
of arguments that the prosecution case is worthy of credence, it can be assumed
that the appellant Deshpal fired the shot in self defence and at worst, he can
be said to have exceeded his right of private defence; therefore, his act would
not fall under the category of culpable homicide amounting to murder but
culpable homicide not amounting to murder. Hence, if appellant Deshpal is
not acquitted, he is liable to be convicted only under Sections 304 (part-I) of
the IPC; therefore, his sentence is liable to be converted to the period already
undergone. In support of his contention, learned counsel for the appellant has
placed reliance upon the judgments rendered by the Supreme Court in the
cases of State of U.P. Vs. Niyamat and Others, (1987) 3 SCC 434, Harish’
Kumar & Another Vs. State of M.P, (1996) 9 SCC 667, Surendra Singh
- Alias Bittu Vs. State of Uttaranchal (2006) 9 SCC 531, State of Rajasthan
Vs. Manoj Kumar, (2014) 5 SCC 744 and Suresh Smgal V.S' State (Delhi
Administration), (2017) 2 SCC 737.

8. On the other hand, Smt. Sarman Raja, mother of the deceased
Bharatendu has preferred a criminal revision being Cr.R.No.1769/2005 against
the acquittal of accused persons Budh Singh, Dhirendra Singh, Nagendra Singh,
Jamaluddin, Nokhelal, Ramsingh, Ramavtar, Munna and Ramnarayan as also
Yashpal. However, no one appeared on behalf of the revision petitioner to put
forth arguments in support of the revision petition.

9. Learned panel lawyer for the respoﬁdent State on the other hand, has
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"supported the impugned _]udgment

 10.  On perusal of the record of the trial Court and due consideration of
the rival contentions, this Court is of the view that both the criminal appeal as
well as criminal revision must fail for the reasons herelnafter stated:

1. The prosecution case against the appellant De§hpal isbased uponthe .
direct evidence. The prosecution has examined five eye witnesses namely
Ram Pratap Singh (PW-10), Raju @ Om Prakash (PW-13), Gajendra Pratap
Singh (PW-16), Sunil Tiwari (PW-18) and Surendra Pratap Singh (PW-24).
In addition thereto; Shankar Pratap Singh (PW-14), father of the deceased
Bharatendu, who was witness to prelude to the murder but did not actually
witnessed the shot being fired, have also been examined. Likewise, T.I,, Mohan
Singh Patel, (PW-23) who had gone to Village-Kumhari along with Surendra
Pratap Singh and Gajendra Pratap Singh, who had not witnessed the murder,
has also been examined. In addition thereto, the prosecution has examined
Dr. Munnilal Choudhari (PW-1), who had conducted the post-mortem
examination upon the dead body of the deceased Bharatendu and medico-
legal examination upon injured Beni Bai (PW-8) has also been examined.
Devendra Singh (PW-20) and Devendra Kumar Tiwari (PW-21), Jahendra
Singh (PW-25) alleged eye witnesses, have turned hostile and did not support
the prosecution case. Defence examined defence witnesses namely Vishnu
(DW-1), Jagat Singh (DW-2), Raju Sharma (DW-3), Jitendra Singh (DW-
4), Gudda (DW-5), Kamlesh Pathak (DW-6) and Bhagwat Deen (DW-7).
Most of them are on the plea of alibi.

- 12, The gist of the prosecution evidence relied upon by the trial Court is
that Shankar Pratap Singh (PW-14), father of the deceased Bharatendu lived
in Village- Kumbhari with his sons deceased Bharatendu and Gajendra Pratap
Singh. Mahendra Singh, Jahendra Singh and Devendra Singh are his relatives
and Ram Pratap Singh (PW-10) and Surendra Pratap Singh (PW- 24) are his
brothers. Shankar Pratap Singh was Sarpanch of Gram Panchayat, Hathkuri,
which is a village situated at a distance of about 5 kms. from Kumbhari, from
the year, 1983 to the year, 2000. However, in the year, 2000, he had lost the
election of Sarpanch to accused Ishwar Deen Upadhyay, who had died during
the trial. Shankar Pratap Singh also had a house at Village-Kumbhari. Victim's
party belonged to the group of Shankar Pratap Singh and the accused party
belonged to the group of Ishwar Deen Upadhyay There was no love lost
between the two parties, .
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13..  The prosecution witnesses have stated that on 08.04.2001, there was
a meeting of Gram Sabha at Hathkuri to elect the Treasurer and other office
béarefs of Gram Sabha at Hathkuri. In the morning, Shankar Pratap Singh
accompanied by his sons Bharatendu Singh and Gajendra Pratap Singh and
 relatives Mahendra Singh, Jahendra Singh and Devendra Singh had gone to

Village-Hathkuri and at about 11:00 a.m., was at his house at Hathkuri. Accused
. persons Deshpal Smgh armed with an unl1censed muzzle loading gun, Yashpal

armed with a 12 bore gun, Jamaluddin armed with an axe, were also present
~ there. They were accompanied by Ram Singh, Nokhelal, Ramnarayan, Munna,
Ramavtar and Ishwar Deen. The trial Court did not rely upon the statements
of Gajendra Pratap Singh (PW-16) that the accused persons abused them
.and threatened that if they attended the meeting of Gram Sabha, they would
kill them in the same manner they had killed Hakke Raja. Accused persons
also threatenec_l that Deshpal, Yashpal and Jahendra have been specifically
called to kill them. Accused persons Ram Singh and Ramnarayan also stated
that if they went to the meeting of Gam (sic:Gram) Sabha, they would not be
allowed to return alive. The Court also did not believe the statements of Shankar
Pratap Singh (PW-14) to the effect that accused persons had abused him and
had said that if they went to the meeting of Gram Sabha, they would kill them.

14. - Afterdue analysis of the evidence, the trial Court has held that there
was a meeting of Gram Sabha on 08.04.2001 at Kumhari and both the parties
were present in strength to attend that meeting. Shankar Pratap Singh (PW-
14) apprehended breach of peace; therefore, he sent his son Gajendra Pratap
Singh (PW-16, to inform Surendra Pratap Singh (PW-24) and seek help of
the police. The trial Court observed that if the accused persons intended to
harm the victim's party at Hathkuri, they had ample opportunity to do so but
no untoward mc1dent occurred at Hathkuri.

.15, The trial Court further held on the basis of prosecution evidence that
~ on instructions of Shankar Pratap Singh, Gajendra Pratap Singh had gone to
Pawai and had informed Surendra Pratap Singh regarding situation at Hathkuri
and requested him to take help of the police. Accordingly, Surendra Pratap -
Singh met T.I., Mohan Singh Patel, S.H.O., Pawai-(PW-23) and gave him a
detailed written application (Ex.P/14) seeking his help to avoid breach of .
peace during the Gram Sabha meeting at Hathkuri. At the instance of Surendra
Pratap Singh, T.1. Mohan Singh, (PW-23) accompanied by a posse of 4 police
men armed with 303 rifles, left in a Jeep for Hathkuri along with Surendra
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Pratap Singh and Gajendra Pratap Singh. '

16.  Thetrial Court held that on their way to Hathkuri, the party in Jeep

‘met Ram Pratap Singh (PW-10), another brother of Surendra Pratap Singh a
Pawai T-Point. Surendra Pratap Singh told Ram Pratap Singh that he was
going to Hathkuri because there was some quarrel there. He instructed Ram
Pratap Singh (PW-10) to return to Kumbhari. Accordingly, Ram Pratap Singh
(PW-10) took Devendra Kumar Tiwari (PW-21), Raju @ Omprakash (PW-
13) and Sunil Tiwari (PW-18) and proceeded to Village Kumhari on two
motorcycles. At Kumbhari, they parked their motorcycles in front of Mahendra
Singh's house. :

17. Meanwhile, after Gajendra Pratap Singh (PW-16) left Hathkuri for
pawai, Shankar Pratap Singh and Bharatendu waited for Gajendra Pratap
Singh to arrive with police, However, since the meeting of Gram Sabha did
not take place because those entrusted with conducting the meeting failed to
arrive, Shankar Pratap Singh and Bharatendu left for Kumhari on a tractor.
Deshpal Singh and Yashpal Singh also left for Kumhari on another tractor
either before or after Shankar Pratap Singh and Bharatendu.

18.  Inthe meantime, the police party in Jeep proceéded towards Hathkuri,
When they reached outskirts of Hathkuri, Kaushlendra'Singh, nephew of
Surendra Pratap Singh told him that Shankar Pratap Singh and Bharatendu
had gone towards Kumhari-on the tractor about 20-25 minutes ago and they
were followed in another tractor by Deshpal Singh, Yashpal Singh and
Jamaluddin; therefore, they turned their Jeep and proceeded towards Kumbari.

19, The trial Court also held that it is clear that the victim's party reached

Village-Kumbari in three different groups: 3 _
§)] the first group comprised Shankar Pratap Singh and Bharatendu, who
reached Kumhari on tractor; ) '

(i) the second group corﬁprised Ram Pratap Singh (PW-10), Raju @
Om Prakash (PW-13), Sunil Tiwari (PW-18) and Devendra Kumar Tiwari
(PW-21), who reached Kumhari on two motorcycles; .o

()  the third group comprised Surendra Pratap Singh (PW-24), Gajendra
Pratap Singh (PW-16) and T.I. Mohan Singh Patel (PW-23) and four
policemen including one Head-Constable and three Constables. Bharatendu
stopped his tractor in front of Bhagwat Singh's door. At that time, Surendra
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. Pratap Singh's younger brother Chunnu Raja @ Ram Pratap Singh (PW-10),

" Devendrd Kumar Tiwari, Sunil Tiwari; Omprakash also arrived at Bhagwat's

~ door and parked their motorcycles. The party in Jeep reached Nagendra
Smgh's house, they saw that the tractor was standing there and accused persons
Deshpal, Yashpal and Jamaluddin were sitting in that tractor and accused
. -persons Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh and Rajjan Raja were standing there
armed with farsa. The police stopped the vehicle. The police personnel,
" Surendra Pratap Singh and Gajendra Pratap Singh alighted from the vehicle
and proceeded toward those persons. When accused persons saw the
pollcernen, they ran. Meanwhile, T.1., who was still in the J eep followed them
by the side track used by buIlock-carts Meantime, Ram Pratap Singh,
Devendra Tiwari, Sunil Tiwari and Omprakash, who had arrived at Bhagwat
Singh's door on two motorcycles and Bharatendu proceeded towards
Bharatendu's house. As soon as, this party reached the square near Temple,
they saw Deshpal Singh etc., in all six persons followed by four policemen,
Gajendra Singh and Surendra Pratap Singh. Bharatendu Singh out run others
and reached near the six accused persons. Near Munna Dhheemar's house,
Deshpal Singh turned around and fired a shot with the muzzled loading gun
upon Bharatendu. As a result, Bharatendu fell down. Beni Bai had also suffered
. pellets injuries from the fire. Gajendra Singh, Ram Pratap Singh, Sunil,
Devendra Singh and Omprakash reached Bharatendu. Gajendra took deceased
Bharatendu in his lap. In a short while, Bharatendu died.

20. Now the question that arises for con51derat10n is whether in the
aforesaid circumstances, appellant Deshpal had any right of private defence
of person and if yes, whether he exceeded that right by firing a shot upon
Bharatendu.

21.  Itistrue that the relations between the victim's party and the accused
party were inimical. It is also true that at the time, appellant Deshpal, who
fired the shot and his companions were on the run. They were being followed
by Bharatendu Singh, Ram Pratap Singh, Devendra Kumar Tiwari, Sunil Tiwari,
Omprakash, Surendra Pratap Singh and Gajendra Singh with four policemen,
who were armed with 303 rifles. When Bharatendu reached within 10 or 12
feet of appellant Deshpal Singh, he turned around and fired the fatal shot. It is
also true that he fired only one shot.

22.  However, the Court cannot lose sight of the fact that when Shankar
Pratap Singh, father of the deceased Bharatendu Singh sensed that the
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atmosphere before the meeting at Hathkuri was tense, he sought help of the
police. Though, it has been suggested to the. prosecutlon witnesses that
Surendra Pratap Singh took the police under his influence and paid for
transportation of policeinen by Jeep, none of the prosecution witnesses have
accepted this suggestion; therefore, there is no ground for presuming that the
policemen were under the influence of victim's party and were in fact acting
as their henchmen. On seeing the police party, the appellant and his companions
ran away. The most probable reason for the appellant and his companions to
run away from the police could be that Deshpal and Yashpal were armed with
unlicensed weapons. In these circumstances, it was the duty of the policemen
to arrest Deshpal and Yashpal. It was incumbent upon appellants Deshpal
and Yashpal to have allowed the police to apprehend them. When as many as
four policemen were at hand to take recourse to the remedy provided by law,
there could have been no right of private defence in favour of the appellant
Deshpal, even if the policemen were accompanied by his rivals. It may further -
be noted that Bharatendu Singh was at a distance of about 10-12 feet, when
Deshpal turned around and fired upon him. Though, suggestions have been
given to the prosecution witnesses to the effect that the victim's party was
also armed but these were stray suggestions, which were emphatically denied
by the prosecution witnesses. The defence was not able to prove that any
persons from the victim's party was armed even with a stick. In such
circumstances, the arguments of learned counsel for the appellant to the effect
that the appellant had right of private defence against an unarmed person, that
too in the presence of as many as four armed policemen, is not acceptable.
Even if the appellant believed that the policemen had been won over by the
victim's party and in fact were following him and his companions in order to °
eliminate them, such apprehension was totally unfounded: The right of private
defence arises on the basis of reasonable apprehension and not on the basis
of unfounded conjectures and surmises. Thus, in the opinion of this Court, no
right of private defence arose in favour of the appellant Deshpal at the time of
the incident; yet, he intentionally fired a shot upon the deceased Bharatendu.
Though, a single shot was fired but this fact cannot be ignored that it was fired
from a muzzled loading gun with pellets, from a distance of not more than 10-
12 feet; therefore, the probability of causing death by such a shot, was almost
certain. Keeping in view the previous history of animosity between the appellant
and the deceased, only reasonable conclusion that can be drawn in such
circumstances is that the appellant had intention to kill the deceased.
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23..  Itmay be noted here that the authorities cited by the learned counsel
for the appellant are distinguishable on facts. In the case of State of U.P. ¥s.
Niyamat and others (supra), the right of private defence in favour of the
respondents arose because the policemen were trying to effect an unlawful
arrest. No such condition exists in the present case. In the case of Harish
Kumar & Another (supra), the right of private defence is said to have arisen
in the peculiar facts and circumstances of that case, which are not applicable
to the present case. In the case of Surendra Singh Alias Bittu (supra), there
was no police available at hand to take recowurse to the machinery of law. The
case of State of Rajasthan Vs. Manoj Kumar (supra), it is on different point
altogether, which is not involved in this case. In the case of Suresh Singhal
(supra), it has been held that a mere reasonable apprehension is enough to put
the right of self defence into operation and it is not necessary that there should
be an actual commission of offence in order to give rise to private defence. In
the case at hand, apprehension, if any, in the mind of appellant was not a
reasonable apprehension and was based merely upon conjectures and
surmises, without any foundation. In aforesaid circumstances, the authorities
cited on behalf of the appellant does not help him in any manner.

24,  Inaforesaid circumstances, the trial Court was justified in holding that
the appellant Deshpal had fired a shot upon the deceased Bharateridu with a
muzzled loading gun with the intention to cause his death; therefore, the
- conviction of the appellant Deshpal under Section 302 of the IPC is not liable
to be interfered with,

25.  Sofaras the appellant Yashpal is concerned, all eye witnesses namely
Rampratap Singh (PW-10), Raju @ Om Prakash (PW-13), Gajendra Pratap
Singh (PW-16), Sunil Tiwari (PW-18) and Surendra Pratap Singh (PW-24)
have stated that he was going along with the appellant and other co-accused
persons armed with a 12 bore gun at the time of the incident. The same was
seized on the disclosure statements made by him under Section 27 of the
" Evidence Act. He failed to produce any license for the same; therefore, his
conviction under Sections 25 (1-B) (a) of the Arms Act is also well founded
and no interference therewith is warranted.

26.  Now the question that arises for consideration is whether the acquittal
of other accused persons as stated above, call for interference by this Court.
Before adverting to the facts of this case, it would be appropriate to take a
look at the legal position in this regard. :

L
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27. On con31derat10n of the authoritative pronouncement made by the Apex
Court in the cases of D. Stephens Vs. Nosibolla, (1951) 1 SCR 284,

Logendranath Jha And Others Vs. Polai Lal Biswas,(1951) SCR'676,K.
Chinaswamy Reddy Vs. State of Andhra Pradesh, (1963) 3 SCR 412,
Mahendra Pratap Vs. Sanju Singh And Another (1968) 2 SCR 287, Janta
Dal Vs. H.S. Choudhary, (1992) 4 SCC 305, Satyajeet Banerjee Vs. State
of West Bengal, (2005) 1 SCC 115 and Johar Vs. Mangal Prasad, AIR.
2008 Supreme Court 1165 following principles with regard-to scope and
ambit of powers of the High Court while adjudicating a criminal revision
preferred by aggrieved person against a judgment of acquittal, may be culled
out. -

28.  Itistruethatitis open to a High Court in revision to set aside an order
of'acquittal even at the instance of private parties, though the State may not
have thought fit to appeal; but this jurisdiction should be exercised by the
High Court only in exceptional cases. The High Court while exercising its
revisional jurisdiction under Sections 397 and 401 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, exercises a limited power. Its jurisdiction to entertain a revision
application, although is not barred but is severally restricted, particularly when
it arises from a judgment of acquittal. Nothing in section 401 is deemed to
authorize 4 High Court to convert a finding of acquittal inté one of conviction.
So the High Court, at best, can set aside the judgment of acquittal and order
aretrial. Sub-section (1) of S. 401 forbids a High Court from converting a
finding of acquittal into one of conviction and that makes it all the more
incumbent on the High Court to see that it does not convert the finding of
acquittal into one of conviction by the indirect method of ordering retrial,
when it cannot itself directly convert a finding ofacquittal into a finding of
conviction. This places limitations on the power of the High Court to set aside
a finding of acquittal in revision. The High Court has to be alive to the fact that
by ordering a retrial, the dice is heavily loaded against the accused because
however much the High Court may caution the Subordinate Court, it is always
difficult to re-weigh the evidence ignoring the opinion of the High Court. Thus,
it is only in exceptional cases that this power should be exercised.

29.  The High Court may exercise powers in exceptional cases:

(1) where the interests of public justice requires interference for the
correction of a manifest illegality for the prevention of gross miscarriage of
justice;
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(2)  where there is some glaring defect in the procedure, like want of
jurisdiction or there is a manifest error on a point of-law and consequently
there has been a flagrant miscarriage of justice.

(3)  tocorrect miscarriage of justice arising from misconception of law,
irregularity of procedure, neglect of proper precaution or apparent harshness
of treatment.

(4)  where the Court had shut out some material evidence which was
admissible or any relevant evidence has been overlooked or where the Court
attempted to take into account evidence which was not admissible, leading to
gross and flagrant miscarriage of justice.

30.  The High Court may not exercise the power:

(1) whereitisrequired to enter into merits of the matter by analyzing the
deposmons of witnesses examined on behalf of the prosecution and
reappreciate the whole evidence for substituting one possible view by another;

(2)  bymerely characterlzmg the judgment of the trial court as "perverse"
and "lacking in perspective, without assigning reasons therefor;

(3j simply because the lower court has taken a wrong view of the law "
without causing flagrant miscarriage of justice;

(4)  where the Court below has mis-appreciated the evidence on record
without making the judgment perverse; or

(5)  toupset pure findings of fact based on the trial Court's appreciation of
the evidence in the case.

31.  The aforesaid list of circumstances where the High Court may or may
not exercise revisional jurisdiction at the instance of the aggrieved person in
respect of finding of acquittal, is enumerative and not exhaustive.

23.  Inthe backdrop of aforesaid legal position, reverting back to the facts
of the case, we find that the trial Court has recorded following reasons for
acquitting the remaining accused persons.

(a) Though, several persons from both the parties had gathered at Hathkuri
for the meeting of Gram Sabha in order to demonstrate their respective
strengths, the victims were not threatened, abused or intimidated at Hathkuri.
They were also not harmed in any manner.
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(b) There was no evidence that accused persons Nokhelal, Ram Singh,
Ramavtar, Munna @ Laxman Singh and Ramnarayan entered into a criminal
conspiracy to eliminate Bharatendu; therefore, for want of clear and cogent
evidence, there was no ground to believe that any criminal conspiracy was
hatched by accused persons to kill Bharatendu.

(¢)  There were discrepancies in the statements of prosecution witnesses
with regard to weapons, accused persons Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh,
Dhirendra Singh etc. were allegedly armed with. Some witnesses say that
they had sticks, some said they had axes and some said they had farsas;
whereas, T.1., Mohan Singh (PW-23) only saw guns in the hands of two accused
persons. ‘

(d)  There was enmity between the two sides on the ground of Panchayat
politics.

(e) All witnesses are relatives of deceased Bharatendu. No independent
eye witnesses have been examined. Even, injured eye witness, Beni Bai has
turned hostile. In these circumstances, the possibility of false implication of
some other accused persons along with main culprits could not be ruled out.

(f) . None of the eye witnesses has stated that when Deshpal had fired

upon Bharatendu, accused Munna @ Laxman Singh was also with Deshpal;

therefore, there is no evidence so far as accused Munna (@ Laxman Singh is’
concerned. '

()  Itisadmitted by the prosecution witnesss that Budh Singh was about
75-80 years old and suffering from poor eye sight. He was being chased by
four policemen and members of victim's party, who were young; yet, they
failed to catch Budh Singh; therefore, the possibility of false implication of
Budh Singh can also not be ruled out.

32.  When policemen reached Kumbhari, accused persons were standing
in front the house of Nagendra Singh, in other words, they were standing in
front of their own house. When the police started chasing them, they started
to run. Even if it is assumed for the sake of arguments that the accused persons
were standing in front of their own house with fire arms, it cannot be said that
they had constituted an unlawful assembly. Even if it is assumed for the sake
of arguments that they had indeed constituted an unlawful assembly, when the
policemen started chasing them, they started to run in order to save themselves.
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Thus, the unlawful assembly, even if there was one, had dispersed because

now their object was to avoid apprehension in any which way they could. Ifin

such a situation,.one of them suddenly turns and fired a shot, no one else
~could be held to be vicariously liable for his action.

33. It is true that Surendra Pratap Singh (PW-24) has stated that as
Bharatendu reached near accused persons Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh,
Dhirendra Singh @ Rajjan Raja, Boby Raja and Jamaluddin said that "fire
shot, otherwise, he will catch you." whereon Deshpal turned around and fired
a shot. After that accused persons Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh, Rajjan Raja,
Boby Raja and Jamaluddin said that "Well done, it will serve him well for
running so fast behind them"; however, these exhortations and commendations
were missing from the police statements of Surendra Singh. Surendra Singh
has also said that after being hit, Bharatendu was taken into his lap by Gajendra
Singh. In this regard, even Gajendra Singh, who had simultaneously reached
Bharatendu, does not say that accused persons Nagendra Singh, Budh Singh,
Rajjan Raja @ Dhirendra Singh, Jamaluddin etc. had ejther incited the appellant
Deshpal or had thereafter, commended him for shooting the deceased;
therefore, the trial Court has ri ghtly disbelieved that any such sentences were
uttered at the time of the incident by remaining accused persons.

34.  Onthe basis of aforesaid facts and circumstances of the case, the trial
Court reached the conclusion that other co-accused persons would not be
held responsible for the act of the appellant Deshpal; therefore, they were
acquitted extending benefit of doubt.

35. - Applying aforesaid principle to the case at hand, we find that there is
no manifest error of law on the part of the learned trial Court leading to
miscarriage of justice. It cannot be said that any relevant evidence has not
been considered and irrelevant material has been taken into consideration.
Learnéd trial Court has analyzed the evidence ofall prosecution witnesses
and has recorded reasons for not placing reliance upon them. In revisionary
jurisdiction against acquittal, the High Court isnot supposed to enter into the
merits of the matter and re-appreciate the whole evidence and substitute one
possible view for another. The findings recorded by the trial Court cannot be
said to be perverse. This is not one of those exceptional case where the interest
of public justice requires interfererice in the findings of acquittal for correction
of a manifest illegality or for prevention of gross miscarriage of justice.

'y
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36.. Evenif we assume for the sake of arguments that the learned trial
Court had mis-appreciated the evidence on record, the High Court in exercise
of revisionary jurisdiction cannot reverse pure finding of facts on which the .
acquittal was based.

37.  Inaforesaid view of the matter, no case is made out for interfering
with the judgment of acquittal.

38.  Accordingly, this criminal appeal fails. The conviction of appellants
Deshpal and Yashpal as recorded by judgment dated 11.08.2005 passed by
- the Court of Sessions Judge, Panna in'Session Trial No.133/2001 and the
sentence imposed upon them is-hereby affirmed.

39.  Inthesame manner, this criminal revision is also dismissed and acquittal
of respondents/accused persons in criminal revision by aforesaid judgment, is
also affirmed. .

Appeal dismissed.

LL.R. [2017] ML..P., 2735
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice S.C. Sharma & Mr. Justice Alok Verma
Cr.A.No. 311/2007 (Indore) decided on 14 November, 2017

SANTOSH ' . : . -...Appellant
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. ' "...Respondent

A. Penal Code (45 of I- 860), Section 302 & 323 — Murder —
Conviction — Testimony of witnesses — Identity of Accused — Ocular &
- Medical Evidence — Effect — Held — It is undisputed that appellant/
.accused was not known to prosecution witnesses prior to the incident
and it appears that for the first time accused entered into the said
village — Complainant and prosecution witnesses identified the accused
before the trial Court — No such fact ¢came in cross-examination of
prosecution witnesses which would indicate that they were not in a
position to identify the accused before the Court — No doubt created
regarding identity of accused — Further held — Oral evidence were
supported by medical evidence — It was proved that present appellant
caused injuries due to which deceased died. - (Paras 5,8 & 10)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 323 & 304 Part II —
Murder — Motive/Intention to kill — Previous Enmity — Held — There was
no previous enmity between deceased and appellant — Two injuries were
caused on his head due to which deceased died — As per the facts of the
present case, the appellant has no motive to kill the deceased, there
appears to be no intention as well — Case falls under provisions of Section
304 Part II IPC — Conviction converted into one u/S 304 part II IPC —
Conviction u/S 323 upheld — Appeal partly allowed (Para 11 & 12)
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Yashpal Rathore, for the appellant.

Archana Kher, for the respondent/ State

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
ALOK VERMA, J. :- This Criminal Appeal is directed against the judgment of
conviction and sentence passed in Session Trial No. 28/2006 by the learned
Sessions Judge, Maheswar, West Nimar dated 19.01.2007, wherein the
learned Sessions Judge convicted the present appellant under Section 302 of
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IPC and sentenced him to life imprisonment and under Section 323 (2 counts)
of IPC for causing injury to Mukesh and Bittu and sentenced him to six months
rigorous imprisonment

2. According to prosecution story, the deceased Bama was working as
Choukidar of the village and he was petrolling the village along with Sheru
Pinjara, Bhatore etc. At 1:30 AM in the night, a person came towards them
and when that person reached in front of the house of Chhogalal, the deceased
Bama stopped him and asked him to disclose his identity. He told the deceased
Bama that he was a Policeman. Not believing him, the deceased tried to lift
his shirt to check whether he was wearing a police badge to ensure that he
was a Policeman. However, on that occasion he slapped him and to defend
himself he tried to take an iron pipe from the complainant Chhogalal. But
before he could hand over the pipe to the deceased Bama, that person snatched
the pipe and gave two blows on the head of the deceased, due to which, he
suffered fatal injuries and died. After the incident, that person, who came
there ran away. The person who were with the deceased tried to chase him
but they could not catch him. Subsequently, it was stated that after sometime,
the accused came back in the village along with the pipe in his hand and there,

he was seen by other prosecution witnesses, and thereafter, they caught hold
ofhim. .

3. After recording evidence of both the sides, and also the statement of
the accused, the trial Court found him guilty under the sections as aforesaid
and sentenced him,

4, - Aggrieved by the judgment of conviction and sentence, this appeal is
filed on the ground infer-alia that the appellant was not known to the
prosecution witnesses and there was no proper identification of the appellant,
and therefore, he should be given benefit of doubt, which the trial Court failed
to extend. There was also a contradiction about time of death as per the oral
evidence and medical evidence. The main ground in this appeal appears to be
identity of the accused. It is undisputed that he was not known to the
prosecution witnesses prior to the incident and it appears that the first time he
entered into the village. '

5. The complainant Chhoggllél (P:W-1) said that on the date of incident,
he along with Sheru, Bhatore and deceased Bama petrolling in the village.
They were sitting in front of house of Anokchand. At that time, a person came
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from the side of culvert, and thereafter, the incident took place as stated in the
prosecution story. He also said that the deceased asked him to give him pipe
as the appellant slapped him. He also identified the appellant before the Court
* and said that he was the same person, who came in their village in the night.

6. Sheru was the another person who was also petrolling along with
complainant Chhogalal (P.W-1). He also identified the accused in the Court
then he said that he could see the assailant only from behind.

7. Ram Krishna Bhatore (P.W-3) is also one of the person who was
petrolling in the night. He said that he went behind the-appellant till river but
taking advantage of darkness, he fled away.,

- 8. The prosecution witnesses identified the present appellant before the
trial Court. There was no cross-examination of the prosecution witnesses on
the point that there was no source of light on the spot and they were not
familiar with the appellant, and therefore, he cannot identified him before the
Court.

9.  Mitthu (P.W-10) is the person who saw him when second time, he
entered the village. This witness was amongst the person who chased the
appellant, however, when they could not catch him, he came back and he was
sitting in front of the house and when he re-entered the village, seeing-him, he
shouted and call other persons and then they tried to catch hold of him,
however, this time also he fled away. -

10.  All these witnesses were cross-examined by the defence counsel,
" however, no such fact came in cross-examination of these witnesses, which
would indicate that the witnesses were not in the position to identify him before
.the Court. No doubt created could be regarding identity of the present
appellant. Their oral evidence were supported by the medical evidence, and
therefore, it was proved that the present appellant caused injuries, due to
whlch the deceased Bama died.

11. Coming to the point of conV1ct10n it is apparent that as.per the
prosecution story itself, there was no’enmity between the deceased and the
present appellant. He was first time seen in the village, and therefore, being
Chokidar of the village and as it was time of midnight, the deceased was
asked to disclose his identity, on which, two injuries were caused on his head,

. due to which, he died. As such, from the story itself, which is accordingly the -
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facts stated in the prosecution stary, which arealso proved before the Court
the present appellant had no motivé to kill the deceased. There appears to be .
no intention as well and as such, the case falls under the provision.of Section
304 part-II of IPC. Accordingly, in considered opinion of this Court, the -
conviction of the appellant under Section 302 of IPC should be converted
into-the conviction under Section 304 Part-II of IPC.

12, Accordmgly, this appeal is partly allowed. The conviction of the present
appellant under Section 302 of IPC is set aside, however, hé is convicted
under Section 304 Part-11 of IPC. His conviction under Section 323 of IPC
is hereby affirmed. His sentence of life imprisonment imposed under Section
302 of IPC is set aside instead, he is convicted for 10 years rigorous
imprisonment under Section 304 Part-II of IPC. As due to his poor economic
conditions, the trial Court did not find it proper toimpose any sentence of fine
‘on him. This view is affirmed and no fine is  imposed. '

The sentence would run concurrently and if he has'already compIeted
penod of 10 years under'custody, he shall be released forthwith if his presence
is not requlred in any other case.

Appeal parrly allowed

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2739 :
. APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice R.S. Jha & Smt. Justice Nandita Dubey
Cr.A. No: 1552/2005 (Jabalpur) decided on 20 November, 2017

‘KISHAN SINGH @ KRISHNAPAL SINGH ..Appellant
Vs. .
. STATE OF M.P. ' " ...Respondent

(Alongwith Cr.A. Nos. 1569/2005 & 1605/2005)

A. Penal Code.- (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 120-B & 201 —
" Murder — Conviction — Circumstantial Evidence — Evidence of Last
Seen Together — Held — As per medical evidence, homicidal death not
- proved and in absence of such, appellanté cannot be convicted merely
_on last seen theory Unexplained delay in recording statement of
prosecutlon witnesses and on their part in disclosing the fact of last
seen together to police—No conclusive proof to establish link connecting
appellants with the offence —-Appellants entitled to benefit of doubt -
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Convicfion set aside — Appeals allowed. . (Para 34 & 35)
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 120-B & 201 —
Murder — Memorandum and Seizure Documents — Authenticity — Held
— Major discrepancies, vital contradictions and embellishment in
evidence of prosecution witnesses makes prosecution story doubtful
and gives strength to claim of appellants that memorandum and seizure
documents were made up and fabricated. (Para 30 & 31)
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. C.  Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 120-B & 201 -
Murder — Circumstantial Evidence — Held — In case of circumstantial
evidence, not only various links in chain of evidence should be clearly
established but complete chain must be such as to rule out the likelihood
of innocence of accused — In present case, only circumstances of last seen

together cannot by itself be made basis for conviction. (Para2l & 29)
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JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
NanpITA DUBEY, J. :- Criminal appeal Nos. 1552/2005, 1569/2005 and
" 1605/2005 arise out of the same incident and, therefore, heard and decided
concomitantly.

2. These three appeals arise out of judgment dated 29.07.2005 passed
by Fourth Additional Sessions Judge (Fast Track), Sidhiin S.T. No.] 64/2004,
whereby the appellant Kishan Singh @ Krishnapal Singh has been found guilty
of an offence punishable under Section 302 read with Section 120-B of the
* Indian Penal Code and has been sentenced to life imprisonment with fine of
' Rs. 500/- in default rigorous imprisonment for one month and appellants
Manish @ Bablu and Vikas @ Pinku have been found guilty of an offence
punishable under Sections 302 read with Section 120-B and 201 of the Indian
Penal Code and have been sentenced to life imprisonment with fine of Rs.
500/- and rigorous imprisonment for 7 years and fine of Rs.200/- respectively
. and in default further rigorous imprisonment for one month for each offence. -

3. .Prosecution case, in short, is that the appellants committed the murder
of Promod Singh @ Dadu, by drowning him in Gopal Das Dam and thereafter
with the intention of disposing the body, hid it in a paddy field.

4. According to prosecution, on 05.09.2004, at about 3.00 A.M., P.W.-3
Mahesh Prasad Gupta lodged a report to the effect that he had been robbed
of his pickup truck. During the investigation, appellants Manish and Vikas
~ were taken into custody on suspicion. On interrogation, accused/appellants
Manish and Vikas disclosed about the commission of murder of Promod Singh
by drowning him in Gopal Das Dam with the help of appellant Kishan and
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. expressed their willingness to show the place where they had committed the
murder of Pramod Singh. According to the prosecution, appellants Manish
and Vikas were going in NE car to dispose of the body, but on account of the

fact that there was no fuel in the car, they hid the body of the deceased ina-

© paddy field near the Sidhi-Rewa mainroad.

5. " On the basis of memorandum (Ex. P-9 & Ex. P-10) of appellants
Manish and Vikas, body of the deceased was recovered from open paddy
field, next to the Sidhi-Rewa road. Dehati Merg (Ex.P.-40) and panchnama
was recorded and spot map (Ex.P-12) was made. Body of the deceased was
. sent to mortuary. The police party thereafter proceeded to Gopal Das Dam,
from where they recovered a piece of shirt pocket and a white button (Ex. P-

13) and thereafter proceeded to the house of appellant sthan from where a

shit with missing pocket was seized.

6. - Body ofthe deceased was sent for postmortem The postmortem report
. indicates that the body was in an advanced stage of decomposition. Dr. K.S.
Nigam (P.W.-4), who conducted the postmortem has opined that death was
homicidal in nature and occurred due fo asphyxia but could not determine the
actual cause for asphyxia due to the decomposed stage.

7. The accused/appellants were put to trial. The prosécution examined
as many as 15 witnesses. The statement of the accused persons under Section
313 of the Cr.P.C. were recorded. The defence examined 3 witnesses in-support
of their case.

8. The learned trial Court found the appellants guilty of committing the
offence as aforesaid, on the basis of statement/evidence of P.W.-1 Dr. Chandra
Kant Mishra, P.W.-4 Dr. K.S. Nigam and on the basis of documentary evidence
Ex.P-1 and Ex.P-2 postmortem report and on this basis held that death of
deceased Promod was homicidal. The trial Court has reached to a conclusion
that the death of deceased was the result of “dry drowning” relying on page
164 of 20th edition of Medical Jurisprudence and Toxicology by Dr. Modi.
The trial Court further relying on the evidence of P.W.-6 Snehlata Singh and
P.W.-8 Jitendra Singh held that the accused/appellants were the persons, last
~ seen with the deceased. The trial Court on the basis of aforesaid evidence
found the chain of circumstances to be complete and held that the prosecution
has proved the guilt of the appellants beyond reasonable doubt and convicted
them as aforesaid.

a
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b9, *Shri Surendra Singh, Iearned senior counsel appearmg for appellant
Klshan and Shri Prakash Upadhyay and Shri Jai Shukla, learned counsel -
" respectively appearing for the appellants Vikas and Mamsh have ra1sed the -
+ following submissions in support of the appeals :-

! (1) There isno proof of homlcldal death. Med1cal ewdence
negate the death by drowning, :

(ii) There were no eye witnesses of the events. Circumstantial
link was not proved beyond doubt.

(iii) Recovery of Shirt pogket and button from Gopal Das Dam '.
would not lead to the conclusion that it was appellant Kishan,
who had committed the murder.

(1v) The memorandum and seizure were fabricated.

10. . Shri Ajay Shukla and Shri Anubhav Jain; learned Govt. Advocates
appearlng for the respondent/State have supported the judgment. It was
contended that finding and conclusion arrived at by the Court below was
based on cogent evidence and the circumstaritial evidence brought on record

© bythe prosecutlon were sufficient to convict the accused persons.

~ 11, Havmg heard the learned ¢ounsel for the parties at length and on
| meticulous perusal of record, it is clear that there is no direct evidence to
. establish that the appellants murdered the deceased Pramod by drowning him

" in Gopal Das Dam and the ev1dence regardmg the rnurder is purely

cucumstanhal

| 12. First of all, we may deal with the argument advanced on behalf of the

| appellants that the cause of death is not evident from the postmortem report
and there is n6 proof that death was homicidal. According to learned Senior
Counsel, once the cause of death is not proved, the appellants would be
entitled to an order of acquittal. :

13.  Postmortem report is exhibited as Ex P-2 and the relevant part thereof
reads as under ;- . )

“Naked body wearmg underwear lying ﬂar with extended
© arms and legs with partial flexon at knee joint, in stage of '

advanced decomposition of body. Vesicles present all over

the body. Skin pealed off specially face, abdonien, neck,
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back. Maggot's present over both eyeballs and rectal area.
Rigor mortis passed off. Foul smelling present. Both eyes
open and protruded. Mouth open, tongue lied between the
teeth. Tip of tongue protruded, crushed between tooth and
tip of tongue cyanosed. Both pupils dilated and fixed. Whole
body was swollen. Face cyanosed. Nails cyanosed.
Conjunctiva congested. Abdomen was distended. Neck
cyanosed. Scrotum and penis was oedematus.”

“On knees following injuries were present :

1. Abrasion on the front of right knee 2 x 1
inch in size, dry blood clot and oedema was
present (Ante mortem in nature).

2. Abrasion present over front of left knee,
3xI inch in size, dry blood clot present.”

_ Rostmortém lividity present over chest and upper
part of abdomen.

No water was present over both middle ear cavity.” -

Opinion of the doctor.

“In our opinion, deceased died of asphyxia. Actual cause
of Asphyxia could not detected due to advance
decomposition of the body. Police may investigate the
cause. Viscera's, cloth’s and trachea preserved. Time lapsed
was between 24 to 36 hours. Homicidal in nature.”.

14. The doctor was examined as P.W.-4. The doctor has opined that the
death could be due to asphyxia, but did not say as to how he reached to that
conclusion in absence of any marks/injury on the body. The doctor has
categorically deposed that no water was present over both middle ear cavity
of the deceased and the death has not occurred due to drowning. The FSL
* report brought on record is also inconclusive as regard to the death by~
drowning. Moreover, there is no evidence or gye witnesses to the effect that
deceased was taken to the Gopal Das Dam and murdered by drowning,. It is
also evident from the evidence of P.W.-1 Dr. C.K. Mishra, Sr. Scientist and
P.W.-11 Ramendra Singh that the body of deceased was found lying face
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down in an open paddy field, next to the main road, visible to all. Body was
found lying flat with extended arms and legs with partial flex on at knee joint.
- The photographs (Ex.P-17 to P-25) clearly show that the deceased was
wearing only underpants which were drawn half down to his knees. One hand
‘of the body was extended in air as if tying to break the fail.As per the evidence
that has come on record that deceased and appellants were under the influence
of alcoho! and intoxicated. There were abrasions on both the knees and
according to P.W.-4 K.S. Nigam, the same could have been the result of
accidental fall. Under thes circumstances, looking to the position of the body
recovered, the possibility that the deceased fell face down while sitting in the
field to ease himself and accidentally suffocated himself cannot be ruled out.

15. The trial Court on'the basis of Modi's Medical Jurisprudence had
arrived on the conclusion that it was a case of “dry drowning”. However, the
trial Court has totally ignored the fact that Modi's Medical J urisprudence also
says that even an adult can accidentally suffocate himself under the influence
of alcohol or epileptic by falling face down (page 580, 23rd edition). From a
perusal of Ex.P-36, it is evident that for determining the cause of death or to _
form an opinion that the death was caused by drowning, it was essential to
perform “diatom test”, however the same was not asked for by the police or
the team of doctors, who conducted the postmortem. From the évidence on
record, it is clear that there is no other evidence or proof to prove that it was
* acase of homicidal death. ) : a

16. Similar issue as to whether the death is homicidal, came up for
consideration in the case State of Punjab Vs. Bhajan Singh AIR 1975 SC -
258, where the Supreme Court after considering the testimony of the doctor
hasheld:- ' T

- “Question then arises as to whether the death of the two
persons whose dead bodies were recovered was homicidal.
So far as this aspect is concerned,.we find that Dr. Saluja -
has'deposed that he found no marks of ligature on either - - -
. of the two dead bodies. According Jurther to the doctor,
he could not find the cause of death becauise the two dead )
bodies were in a de- composed siate. In the Jace:of the
above evidence of the doctor, it is not possible fo hold -
that the death of the two persons, whose bodies vere
recovered, was homicidal.. T
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. 17. In Madho Singh Vs. State ofRajasthan (2010) 15 scc 588, the .
Supreme Court has held :- -

“The primary, 1f not solztary basis of the convzcnon of the.
appellants is on the theory of last seen as the deceased left -
his house with the appellants at abqut 11.00p.m. on the
" 1st May, 1999. In order to convict the appellants for an
offence under section 302 the first and foremost aspect to-
be proved by the prosecution. is the homicidal death. The -
evidence on record produced by the prosecution falls short
of the proof of homicidal death of Om Singh. According to
PW11 Dr. Lakhan Lal, his face had been crushed. According
to testimony of PW15 Dr. Disaniya, the injuries received
by the deceased could be sustained in the accident. Besides
these two witnesses, there is no evidence to prove that it
was a case of homicidal death. R ‘

18.  Apart from the aforesald the alleged NE car sald to have been used
_in the incident has not been subjected to chemical examination so as to
.determine whether the body of the deceased was infact carried into it, nor

investigated as regard the ownershlp of the car. Moreover, recovery of shirt S

pocket and button from Gopal Das Dam in absence of any other corroborative:

evidence will have no direct bearing on the death of deceased and would not "

lead to the _conclusmn that it was appellant Kishan, who committed the murder.

19 AsperPW-l Dr. C.K Mishra and P.W.-4 Dr. K.S. Nigam, the body
of the deceased was in an advanced stage of decomposition as described in
" the precedmg paragraphs. According to Modi's Jurisprudence, page 342, the
duration of rigor mortis is 24 to 48 hours in winter and 18.to 36 hours in -
- summer. The maggots are normally formed after an average of 39 hours of the
~.death. In the instant case, from the condition of the body as described above, .
 itis evident that the death of the deceased has occurred much prior to thetime

) as alleged by the prosecution. - : . :

'2-0,. ' Itissettled law that mferences drawn by the Court have tobeon the
- basis of established case and not on conjectures. The prosecution came out
. witha spec:ﬁc case that deceased Promdd was murdered by drowning him in
" Gopal Das Dam, however, the same is not established from the medical
ev1dence that has come on record. Hence, the inferences drawn by the trial
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Court that deceased Pramod Singh was murdered by drowning in Gopal Das_
Dam and thereafter his body was carried in the NE car and disposed of in the
] paddy field is perverse and cannot be sustained.

21. The prosecution has relied on the testimony of P.W.-6 Snehlata and
P.W.-8 Jitendra Singh to prove that the appellants were last seen together
. with the deceased. Itis settled law that the circumstances of last seen together
canriot by itself form the basis of holding the accused guilty of the offence.

22. . The principles of circumstantial evidence is reiterated in Nizam and
another Vs. State of Ra_;asthan (2016) 1 SCC 550, the Supreme Courthas |
held :- _

8. Case of the prosecution is entirely. based on the

circumstantial evidence. In a case based on circumstantial

_ evidence, settled law is that the circumstances from which

the conclusion of guilt is drawn should be fully proved

-and such circumstances must be conclusive in nature.

Moreover, all the circumstances should be complete,

forming a chain and there should be no gap left in the

' chain of evidence. Further, the proved circumstances must

‘-be consistent only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the
accused totally inconsistent with his innocence.

23.  InState of Uttar Pradesh V. Shyam Behari and another (2009)
* 15 SCC 548, referring to the case of Gambhir Vs State of Maharashtra
-(1982) 2 SCC 351, the Supreme Court has held:-

“The law regarding circumstantial evidence is well settled.
When a case rests upon the circumstantial evidence, such
evidence must satisfy three tests: :

(1) the circumstances from which an inference of guilt is
sought to be drawn must be cogently and firmly
established: '

(2) those circumstances should be of a definite tendency
unerringly pointing towards guilt of the accused, (3) the
- circumstances, taken cumularively,'shohld form a chain
so completé that there is no escape from the conclusion
that within all human probabilities the crime-was
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committed by the accused and none else. 4. The
circumstantial evidence in order to sustain conviction must =

" be complete and incapable of explanation of any order
hypothesis than that of the guilt of the accused. The
circumstantial evidence should not only be consistent with
the guilt of the accused but should be inconsistent with his
innocence. (See Gambhir v. State of Maharashtra, AIR
1982 SC, 1157)

24. In the instant case, the trial Court has relied on the testimony of P.W.-6
‘Smt. Snehlata Singh and P.W.-8 Jitendra Singh. According to these witnesses,
the deceased was seen with the appellants between 6 P.M. to 11 P.M. on
04.09.2004 roaming around in NE car at different places. According to P.W.-6
Snehlata, the deceased went out with the appellants in their NE car on
04.09.2004 at 6.00 P.M to visit one Vivek at Rewa. According to P.W.-6,
she and her father were informed about the death of Pramod on 05.09.2004
by one Inspector Baghel, but despite knowing about the murder of her brother,
she did not disclose the fact of her brotlier going with the appellant to the
police. It is only after 20-25 days of the incident, when for the first time she
made a statement to this effect. According to P.W.-5 Harikeshav Singh and
P.W.-6 Snehlata, the deceased and the appellants were good friends.

25." P.W:-8 Jitendra Singh claimed to have seen the appellants and
deceased together at 11 P:M. at a liquor shop near the bus stand. The statement .
of P.W.- 8 Jitendra Singh is also doubtful for the fact that he claimed to have
seen the dead body at 9.00 P.M. on 5.09.2004, whereas, according to
prosecution the memorandum of appellants (Ex.P-9 & P-10) regarding the
place where body of deceased was hidden was taken at 9.10 P.M. and the
body was recovered at around 10.00 P.M. (Ex.P-1 1). This witness admits his
presence at the spot from where the dead body was recovered but surpfisingly
did not disclose the fact of having seen the deceased with appellants on the
previous night, i.e., on 04.09.2004 at 11.00 P.M. as claimed by him,

26.  Fromthe evidence onrecord, it is clear that there is unexplained delay
in recording the statement of P.W.-6 Snehlata and P.W.-8 Jitendra and on
their part in disclosing the fact of last seen to the police. The delay in recording
of statement and the conduct of these witnesses in not disclosing the fact to
police or to anyone else for the matter renders their story doubtful and
unreliable, - ’ '
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27.  In Harbeer Singh Vs. Sheeshpal and others (2016) 16 SCC 418
the Supreme Court has held:

17. However, Ganesh Bhavan Patel Vs. State Of
Maharashtra, (1978) 4 SCC 371, is an authority for the
proposition that delay in recording of statements of the
prosecution witnesses under- Section 161 Cr.P.C., although

© ., those witnesses were or could be available for examination
when the Investigating Officer visited the scene of
occurrence or soon thereafter, would cast a doubt upon
the prosecution case. [See also Balakrushna Swain Vs.
State Of Orissa, (1971) 3 SCC 192; Maruti Rama Naik Vs. -
State of Mahrashtra, (2003) 10 SCC 670 and Jagjit Singh
Vs. State of Punjab, (2005) 3 SCC 68]. Thus, we see no
reason o interfere with the observations of the High Court
on the point of delay and its corresponding impact on the
prosecution case.

28.  In Madho Singh Vs. State of Rajasthan (2010) 15 SCC 588, the
Supreme Court has held:

8. Inthe absence of proof of . homicidal death the appellants
"cannot be convicted merely on the theory of last seen -
'they having gone with the deceased in the manner noticed
heréeinbefore. The appellants' conviction cannot be
maintained merely on suspicion, however strong it may
be, or on their conduct. These facts assume Jfurther
importance. on account of absence of proof of motive
particularly when it is proved that all the three were good
friends for over a decade.

29.  Inthe case of circumstantial evidence, not only the various links in the
chain of evidence should be clearly established but the complete chain must
be such as to rule out the likelihood of innocence of the accused. In the present
case, even if the evidence of appellants having been seen last seen together
with deceased is accepted, it would at best amount to be evidence of last -
seen together with the deceased, but in absence any other satisfactory link
connecting the appellants to the crime and pointing to the guilt of the appellants,
the only circumstance of last seen together cannot be made basis of the
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30.  Apart from the aforesaid, it is clear from the record that there are
major discrepancies and contradictions, embellishment in the prosecution story.
There is major contradictions in the evidence of .W.-1 Dr. C.K. Mishra and
P.W.-11 Ramendra Singh. According to P.W.-1 Dr. C.X. Mishra, he got the
information to inspect the spot at 12 O'Clock in the mid night of 5.09.2004
and conducted the inspection on 6.09.2004 (Ex.P-1) at 8.00 A.M. He found
the body lying face down in open field next to road, in the condition as described
in the preceding paragraphs. Whereas, according to P.W.-11 Ramendra Singh,
the body was removed from the spot after taking photographs on 5.09,2004
and Kept in mortuary at 12 O'Clock in the ni ght and sent for postmortem at
8.00 A M. in the morning of 06.09.2004. This fact is also corroborated by
P.W.-4 Dr. K.S. Nigam, who conducted the postmortem at 8.00 A.M. on
06.09.2004. -

 31.  Apart from the aforesaid, the time entered on the memorandum does
not found corroboration from the statement of other witnesses. The prosecution
claimed to have recorded the memorandum at 9.00 .,and 9.10 P.M. and
recovered the body at 10.00 PM. However, P.W.-9 Krishnapratap Singh;
witness of memorandum has stated that memorandum was recorded at 7.15
P.M. and thereafter the body of deceased was recovered at 7.30 P.M. These
vital contradictions in the evidence of prosecution witnesses makesthe entire
prosecution story doubtful and given strength to the claim of appellants that
the memorandum and seizure documents were made up and fabricated.

32.  In Kali Ram Vs. State of Himachal Pradesh AIR 1973 SC 2773;,
the Supreme Court has observed as under: .

"Another golden thread which runs through the web of
the administration of justice in criminal cases is that if -
Iwo views are possible on.the evidence adduced in the case
one pointing to the guilt of the accused and the other to
his innocence, the view which is favourable to the accused
should be adopted. This principle has a special relevance
in cases where in the guilt of the accused is sought to be
established by circumstantial evidence.” :

33. ' In Sharad Birdhichand Sérda Vs. State of Maharashtra AIR 1984
SC 1622, the Supreme Court has held as under:
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“The facts so established should bé consistent only with
the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused.-There should
not be explainable on any other hypothesis except that
the accused is guilty. The circumstances should be of a
/ conclusive nature and tendency. There must be a chain of
. evidence so complete as not to leave any reasonable ground
for the conclusion consistent with the innocence of the
accused and must show that in all human probability the
act must have been done by the accused.

-

Graver the crime, greater should be the standard
of prodf. An accused may appear to be guilty on the basis
of suspicion but that cannot amount to legal proof. When
on the evidence two possibilities are available or open,
one which goes. in the favour of the prosecution and the
other benefits an accused, the accused is undoubtedly
entitled to the benefit of doubt. The principle has special
relevance where the guilt or the accused is sought to be
established by circumstantial evidence.”

34. . " In view of the medical evidence on record, the death of deceased
Pramod Singh could not be termed as homicidal and in absence of the proof
of homicidal death, the appellants cannot be convicted merely on the theory
. of last séen. In view of the aforesaid circumstances, there is nothing on record
' to conclusively establish that the appellants were the author of the crime. The
" _circumstances on the record do not rule out every other hypothe31s except
the guilt of the appellants and in our view, the prosecution has filed (sic:failed)
* “to establish the guilt of the appellants beyond reasonable doubt. Under the
| . circumstances, the appellants are entitled to the benefit of doubt.

35.  Inview ofthe above, it is clear that the prosecution has failed to prove
.. the case against the appellants beyond reasonable doubt. Thus, the appeals
succeed and are hereby allowed. The conviction and sentence imposed on
the appellants is set aside. The appellants, who are on bail shall be dlscharged
of their bail bonds. -

36. Acopyof this judgment be also kept in the record of Cr.A. Nos
1569/2005 and 1605/2005. . .

Appeal allowed.



2752 VinayVs. State of M.P. (DB) - LL.R.[2017]M.P.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2752
APPELLATE CRIMINAL
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Smt. Justice Anjuli Palo
Cr.A. No. 2756/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 23 November, 2017

VINAY ...Appellant
Vs. .
STATE OF M.P. ..:Respondent

(Alongwith Cr. Ref. No, 04/2017)

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 376{A4), (D) &
449 and Protection of Children from Sexual Offences Act, (32 0f 2012), -
Section 6 — Rape & Murder — Minor Girl — Conviction — Death Sentence
"~ Circumstantial Evidence — DNA Test — Held — Appellant is uncle of
the victim — Medical evidence proves that victim was sexually assauited
before murder — As per DNA report, which is a scientific evidence,
appellant’s sperm and semens found in vaginal swab and clothes of
victim and there is no explanation by appellant in this regard - DNA
report is reliable to sustain conviction — Conviction can be based on
circumstantial evidence — Conviction upheld — Death sentence set aside
" and life imprisonment imposed — Appeal partly allowed — Reference
. discharged. (Paras 30 to 32, 35, 44 & 56)

@ FUE °IedI (1860 BT 45), AT 302, 375 (8), (SY) T 449 VT
@& aperel” @ grae sT weeror IR (2012 &1 32} GrT 6 —
FACHY (9 §AT '— FEIGTH qAHT — DY — g zosrder —
qﬁﬁeﬁawmw—@?wvwﬁw—aﬁrﬁmfﬁa—maﬁ.maﬂ
P ¢ - fufscia W wifig axar @ 5 fifvw w e @ qf dfe
mﬁmﬁmwm—%ﬁWQuﬁﬂﬁmﬁswasﬂﬁwmﬂﬁ.
# I7ur, Dfem & Iomia Ve 17 sust @ sfiareff @ gy v
urd MY Y 3w A F afrarelf g e wrher i 2 - @ v
s, siwfafy o v @ fag frraeia @ — siaRify, sRRufR=
mwwmmﬁaﬁmwm%—ﬂmwwﬂs‘—qqmw
mwmmmmmw—mafmzﬁﬁ—
fréer ygm far ) ' -

B, Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 302, 376(A), (D) — Rape

Z Evidence — Minor Contradictions — Held — Courts while trying an
accused on charge of rape must deal with utmost sensitivity, examine
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the broader praobability of case and not get swayed -b.y minor

contradictions or insignificant discrepancies in the evidence which are
not of a substantial character.. : (Para 40)

. 7S 2T (1860 ®T 45), &I%T 302, 376 (§), (1) — FaET
_ e — Wit Rrtemarw — affEifRa — <At @ TEET @ ARl
W TF Afged o1 fEReT $¥d 99 A Yageiean @ wrer fer
afey, He @ fawqa WATET b1 W $RA1 ANEY el Wi, Wl
Wuaﬁﬁﬂﬁ%,ﬁqﬁmﬁﬁnﬁﬁmﬁwﬁﬂmm
grifag &Y g Wiyl _ .

C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 118
— Child Witness — Held — A child witness is competent witness u/S 118

Cr.P.C. : (Para 13)

. gus FiHaT GIR, 1973 (1974 #T 2), SIRT 118 — AT &
_ afafreiRa — ORT 118 SU.H. @ afaid, arae i) UF gaq wiell g1

Cases referred :

ATR 2013 SC 553, (2013) 7 SCC 263, 2013 Cri.L.J. 2040, (2017)
6 SCC 1, (2014) 5 SCC 353, (2010) 9 SCC 747, (2001) 5 SCC 311,

. (2017)2 SCC 51, AIR 1980 SC 898, 1983 AIR 957, AIR 2014 SC 1911.

Khalid Noor Fakhruddin, for the appellant in Cr.A. No. 2756/2017.
Bramhdatt Singh, G.A. for the respondent-State.

"JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by:
ANtuLl PaLo, J. :- The above criminal appeal is preferred by the
appellant, to set aside the impugned judgment of conviction and sentence.
The criminal reference (CRRFC No. 04/2017) has been referred under
Section 366 (A) of Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 by Second Addl."’
Session Judge, Multai, District Betul. Both these cases arise out of
judgment dated 22.06.2017 passed in Session Trial No. 13/2017 whereby
the appellant has been convicted and'sentenced as under, therefore are
being decided by this common judgment: '
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Section| Act < |Sentence . | Finme In default of fine
449  |Indjan Penal |R.IL forLife Rs.25,000/- | R.L For lyear
' Code | Imprisonment S

376-A |IndianPenal | DeathSentence| - -

o Code ' ]

376-D |IndianPenal |R.L forlife Rs.25,000/- | R.1. For lyear

- | Code - | imprisonment

302" |IndianPenal |DeathSentence Rs.25,000/- | R.L For lyear
Code ' o |

6 Protection of | (awarded death sentence in the major offence
Children from under Section 376-A of IPC
Sexual Offence . T -

‘2, Brief facts of the prosecution case is that, appellant is the uncle of the

~victim. The victim was a minor girl aged about 13 years. On 16.11.2016 at
about 3:00 to 5:30 p.m. she was alone at her house in village Raiseda, Police
Station Amla, District Betul. Her parents had gone to village Deopipariya
leaving behind their children at home. At the time of incident, the siblings of
the victim were not present at the house with the victim. At about 4:30 pm,
appellant along with his two friends Mukesh and Ashok (both are juvenile)
came there. Finding her alone, appellant and his juvenile friends committed ,
rape one after the other. After committing rape, they killed her by hitting her
. head with a stone, strangulated her and han ged her from the roof with a red
coloured saree. When her brother Rupesh (PW-6) and sister Rubina (PW-5)
returned home from the school, they saw their sister/victim dead, hanging
from the roof and the appellant along with other accused persons namely
Mukesh and Ashok were present on the spot. Rupesh, brother of the victim
ran towards the village and called Laxman and other persons for help. In the
meanwhile, the body of the victim was brought down by appellant. Laxman
(PW-4) along with other persons came there and saw the injuries of the victim.
They saw that there was no clothes on the lower part of her body, there were
injuries over her neck and bleéding froi her private genital parts. Laxman
informed the parents of the victim and reported the incident to.the Police
Station Amla. Offence was registered against the appellant and his associates
(uvenile in conflict with law). After investigation, charge-sheet was filed by
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the pollce undeLSectron 376(A)(D) 449, 302 of IPC r/w.Section 5(1)(])(k)/
6 and Section 4 of Protection of Chrldren from Sexual Oﬂ'ences Act, 2012
before the.concerned Court. ' -

' 3. 7 After committal of the case, learned Trial Court framed charges under
. Section 449, 376(A)XD), 302 of Indian Penal Code and Section 6 of

Protection of Children from Sexual Offences Act. The appellant abjured his

* guilt and pleaded that he is innocent and was falsely implicated by the police.

{4, After con31der1ng the entire evidence on record, the learned trlal Court
found the appellant guilty of committing the aforesaid offences. With regard
to the above, the trial Court found that the ocular evidence is yduly corroborated -
by the medical evidence and DNA profile report of the victim tallied with the
DNA sample of the appellant. At the time of incident, the victim was aged
about 13 years. She sustained severe injuries on her neck and genital parts.
Doctors and experts proved that after committing gang rape with her, the’
victim was killed by strangulation and she was hanged from the roof, so that it
would look like a case of suicide. Thus, appellant was convicted and sentenced
as mentioned in paragraph one of this _]udgment

5. The matter is referred to this Court under section 366(A) of Criminal.
. Procedure Code for confirmation of the death sentence of the appellant
+ awarded by the learnied Trial Court. In the opinion of the learned Trial Court,

N | the crime committed by the appellant is heinous in nature. If liberal view was

' taken with regard to punishment, the society would be unsafe and people

* would lose faith from the administration of justice.

6. The cnmlnal appeal under section 374(2) of the Cr.P.C., 1973 is ﬁled

! by the appellant on the ground that the learned Trial Court has committed
legaI eITors in appre01at10n of evidence of prosecution witness and matenal
brought on record. Leared Trial Court wrongly relied upon the evidence of -

' child witnesses Sabina (PW-5) and Rupesh (PW-6) (minor sister and brother

" of the victim). The prosecution story is not.corroborated by independent
+ witness. There are several doubts and lacuna in the prosecution case, the
"chain of circumstantial evidence is not complete.in this case. The DNA reports

| and its conclusions are not correct, DNA report is unreliable and untrustworthy.

| Therefore, prosecution has failed to prove its case beyond reasonable doubt.

| Hence, the appellant is entitled to be acquitted from the charges leveled agamst
him,
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7. Wc have heard rival submissions at length. Carefully perused the
record. '
8. The questions for consideration before us are as follows :

(i) - Whether the trial Court committed error in convicting
“ the appellant in the facts and circumstances of the case?

(ii) Whether the present case comes under the purview of
“rarest of the rare” case for capital punishment?

9. All the relatives of the victim clearly stated that the victim was a minor. -
Her age was proved by her parents and relatives particularly Lakhanlal Verma
(PW-10) proved her date of birth as 27.07.2004. The entry in the admission
register (Exh. P/10) and school certificate (Exh. P/11) also corroborated the
same. The testimony of Lakhanlal (PW-10) is reliable. In our considered view,
the learned Trial Court has rightly appreciated in paragraphs 11 to 14 of the
impugned judgment with regard to age determination of the victim. In case of
- Ashwani Kumar Saxena Vs. State of MP [AIR 2013 SC 553], the Supreme
Court has held as'under :-

In every case conccming a child or juvenile in conflict with
law, the age determination inquiry shall be conducted by the
Court or the Board or; as the case may be, the Committee by
seeking evidence by obtaining —

(a)‘ 6] ‘the matriculation or equivalent certificates, if
available; and in the absence whereof;

(ii) the date of birth certificate from the school (other than a
play school) first attended; and in the absence whereof;,

(iii) the birth certificate given by a corporation or a municipal
authonty or a panchayat;

10.  Incase of Jarnail Singh Vs. State of Haryana [(2013) 7SCC 263],
the Hon'ble Supreme Court has made it clear that Rule of Juvenile Justice
Act, 2002 should be the basis for determination of age of the child v1ct1m as
well as the child in conflict w1th law.

11.  Therefore, the school register (Exh. P/ 10), is reliable piece of evidence
to hold that the victim was minor on the date of occurrence. Further, the
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appellant has also not claimed that the victim was a major. The learned Trial
Court hasri ghtly held the age of the v10t1m as.13 years:

[2.  Itis not in dlspute that on 16 11.2016 at the tlme of 1n01dent ‘the

parents of the victim were not present at home. It is admitted by the appellant
that the parents of the victim went to village Deopipariya leaving behind their

children alone at home. The appellant has also admitted that he is the uncléof
victim. The victim was found dead in her house. In the accused statement

under Section 313'of Cr.P.C., (question No. 5), the appellant admitted these

facts. The appellant has admitted that, at around 4:30 pm when brother and

sister.of victim Rupesh and Sabina returned home from their school he was

present on the spot near the dead body of the v1ct1m alongwith the Juvemles

Ashok and Mukesh..

13. Hence, after considering the aforesaid admissions itis not in dispute
that Sabina (9 years old) and Rupesh (5 years old) saw the appellant at their
house with the body of the victini just after the incident. As these facts are
admitted by appellant himself, hence, the question with regard to the fact that
they are child witnesses and not reliable, does not arise. A child witness is
competent witness under Section 118 of Cr.P.C. Further, -in the cross-
examination, presence of appellant is duly established. Théir testimony is very
1|mportant Section 6 of the Evidence Act defines relevancy of facts formmg
part of same transaction. Though, the aforesaid facts are not in issue, they are
so connected with a fact in issue as to form part of the same transaction, are
relevant with regard to circumstantiat evidence. Similarly, those facts are relevant
tnder Section 8 of the Indian Evidence Act as motive, preparation and previous
or subsequent conduct of the accused. Both the witnesses clearly stated that,
they returned home from the school at about 4:30 pm. The incident took
place during 3:00 pm to 4:30 pm. The appellant had not disclosed / explained
the reason as to why the appellant along with other juvenile co-accused was
present there. - - 1

14. | Sabina (PW—S) and Rupesh (PW-6) also deposed that, at that time
their sister (victim) was hanging from the roof and her body was taken down
by thé appellant. This fact was also admitted by appellant in question No. 3.
Sabma (PW-5) deposed that she saw injury over her sister's neck.

1 5. Sabina (PW 5) also stated that, appellant went to Laxman to 1nform
him about the incident. This testimony is corroborated by Laxman (PW-4).
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Laxman deposed that the appellant informed him'that “victim committed
suicide™. Then he came to the-spot. He saw the injuries of the victim over her
" neck and bleeding from her private parts. After receiving the intimation from
Laxman (PW-4), parents of the victim, Somji (PW-1) and Rundo (PW-145)
came and saw the victim in injured condition and they corroborated the
' testimony of Sabina (PW-5), Rupesh (PW-6) and Laxman (PW-4).

16. . Shri S.K.Yadav (PW-20), the Invest1gat10n Officer deposed that on

16.11 2016, father of the victim, Somji (PW-1) lodged the report. Thereafter,
he went to the spotand saw injuries over the neck of the victim and bleeding.
He recorded dehati nalishi (Exh.P/3 8). Learned counsel for the appellant
raised objection that the above reports were against the unknown persons.
Hence, offence is not made out against the appellant.

17.  Afterthe incident, at about 12:30 am in the night, Dr. Deepti Shrivastav
(PW-24) Sr. Scientific Officer, Scene of Crime Unit inspected the spot. She
found blood on the spot, red saree and black legging of the victim which were
handed over to the police. The testimony of Dr. Deepti Shrivastav (PW-14) is
unchallenged. On 17.11.2016, S.K. Yadav (PW-20) seized the blood stained
red saree, black legging, soil, blood stained kathdi, one phavda (spade),
pointed stone of about 8-10 kg vide seizure memo (Exh. P/4) before witnesses
Nakul and Sonu. Sonu (PW-3) punch witness duly corroberated the testimony
of 8.K. Yadav (PW-20) Investigation Officer. In his cross-examination, he
. explained that all the above items were seized from the spot. Hence, seizure
of'above articles is found-reliable.

-18.  Rindo (PW-15) mother of the victim, Somji (PW-1) father of the
victim, Laxman (PW-4) and Sarje Rao (PW—22) saw the bleeéding from the
private part of the victim. From the testimony of Dr. Anand Malviya (PW-11)
Medical Officer who conducted the post-mortem of the victim, that he found
an incised wound of about 8 x 1 x 3 cms at 7 O' clock position and bleeding
in her vagina. He found lacerated wound on the hind side of the vagina. There
was dry blood on her private parts; both thighs and buttocks. He also found
multiple lacerated abrasion over both the breasts of the victim as shown in the
post mortem report (Exh. P/12) which may have been caused by human bite.

As per his opinion, the victim was sexually assaulted and ravished and those ~
injuries were caused within 24 hours of the post-mortem. Dr. Malviya (PW-

11) found the following other injuries on her body :
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@ . Abrasion of size 1/2.x 1/2 e on the right side of the face' ’
(if) g Abraswn of s1ze‘2xl/2 cm on the left side of the face.

(iii) :Abrasmn of size .:x1/2 cm on the left 51de of the .
mandible. :

! (iv) Abrasionof size 2x1cm on the left side of the face.

: (v) .Alacerated wound of size 1x1/2x1/2 cm on the back
side.of the head.

(vi) A ligature mark around the neck of size 29 cm 1n length
- indicative of the fact that the victim was killed by tying
rope along her heck and pulling it ti ight.

(vn) Another ligature mark below the first ligature mark of
size 29 cm long and 3 cm wide.

(viii) Third ligature mark below the second hgature mark
similar in nature.,

19.- Dr Anand Malviya (PW—ll) was firm in his opinion in his cross-
exammatlonthat ligature mark found on the dead body could not be caused
'by suicide. He further explained that in suicidal cases, the ligature mark is in
| slightly slanting position. In case of mutder, the ligature mark is circular around
'the neck. In his opinion, the above injuries on the neck were not caused due
.to suicide. His evidence proves that the victim died due to asphyxia and her
death was not suicidal in nature. Dr. Anand Malviya (PW-11) clearly opined

that the victim was sexually assaulted and thereafter, she was murdered. This

| opinion: was also jointly made by Lady Doctor Pratima Raghuvanshi. There is
' ]nothmg on record to discard the evidence of the medical officers who

conducted the post-mortem and opined that there was sexual assault on the -

victim before she died due to strangulation and there had been ligature marks
Thus ‘we find the medical report (Exh. P/12) wholly reliable.

20. Weareinfirm opinion and in agreement with the findings of the leamed
Trial Court that the victim. was murdered after committing rape. In' our
+ considered view, there is rio p0531b111ty that thc vxctlm herselfhad commnted
| suicide. -

21. Rajnikant‘ (PW-7) and Sachin Dewangi (PW-;9_)_; Constables both

™~
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witnesses established that on 17.11:2016 they received clothes of the victim (Article
N), her vaginal slide (Article O), pubic hair & skin (Article P), a hair (Article Q),

. vaginal swab (Article R) and impression of human bite on her chest (Article T),

etc. in presence of witness Sushil Dhurve (PW-12) Constable, after chemical
examination. Sushil (PW-12) also corroborated the above evidence.

22.  Asperthe FSLreport, Dr. D.K.Pandey (PW-25) has confirmed that
he found blood stains on the soil (Article A) collected from the place of incident,
kathdi (Article C), red saree (Article D), black legging (Article E), pointed
stone (Article F) and phavda (ArticleG). He also confirmed that on black
legging (Article E) and phavda (Article G); human blood was present, He
also found semen present over the kathdi (Article C), red saree (Article D)
and black legging (Article E). Similarly, after microscopic examination, h¢

* found sperms over the aforesaid articles. .

23.  Asperchemical analysis report (Exh. P/12), thie above articles were
stained with human blood. The medical evidence referred earlier as well as
the investigation panchanama point out that victim was sexually assaulted before
murder. There is no reason to disbelieve the above evidence. We do not see
any cogent reason to interfere with the finding of fact recorded by the Trial
Court on this count. o

_2_4; Learned counsel for the appellant tried to rebut the FSL exairf;fnatibn
after suggesting very common questions which are not sufficient to discard the

_FSL report (Exh. P/57). Such report is also corroborative piece of evidence

which establish that before the causing death, the victim was forcibly.raped.

25.  Learned counsel for the appellant contended that all the above facts
are not sufficient to.connect the appellant with the crime. He had himself
informed about the incident to Laxman (PW-04). There is no éye-witness of
the incident. Further, the incident took place during the day time. There are so
many people residing in the neighborhood. No one heard the hue & cry of the
victim, We are not in agreement with the above contention. Such type of crime
is committed in lonesome places and also where there is least chance of being
caught. Therefore, insuch type of crimes, normally no witness is available nor
expected from the prosecution in that regard. Conviction can be based on
such circumstantigl evidence. : .

26.  In case of Prakash Vs. State of Rajasthan {2013 Cri. L.J. 2040],
Hon'ble Supreme Court has held as under: _ :
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. Inaleading decision of this Court in Sharad Birdhichand Sarda
vs. State of Maharashtra, (1984) 4 SCC 116, -this Court
elaborately considered the. standard of proof required for
recording a conviction on the basis of circumstantial evidence

. and laid down the golden principles of standard of proof "
required in a case sought to be established on the basis of
circumstantial evidence which are as follows:

“153. A close analysis of this decision would show that the

following conditions must be fulfilled before a case agamst an

accused can be said to be fully established: (1) the

circumstances from which the conclusion of guilt is to be drawn
- should be fully established.

It may be noted here that this Court-indicated that the
circumstances concerned “must or should” and not “may be”
established. There is not only a‘grammatical but a legal
distinction between “may be proved” and “must be or should
. be proved” as was held by this Court in Shivaji Sahabrao .
Bobade v. State of Maharashtra,{1973) 2 SCC 793 where
the observatigns were made; [SCC para 19, p..807): Certamly,
it is a primary principle that the accused must be and not merely
may be guilty before a court ¢an conyict and the mental distance
between ‘may be’ and ‘must be’ is long and divides vague
‘conjectures from sure conclusions.” (2) the facts so established -
should be consistent only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the
accused, that is to say, they should not be explainable on any
other hypothesis except that the accused is guilty, (3) the
circumstances should be of a conclusive nature and tendency, o
(4) they should exclude every posmble hypothesis except the
one to be proved, and (5) there must be a chain of evidence
so complete as not to leave any reasonable ground for the
conclusion consistent with the innocence of the accused and
must show that in all human probabllxty the act must have been
-done by the accused

154. These five golden prmc1p1es if we may say so, constitute
_ the panchsheel of the proof of a case based on circumstantial
evidence.”
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27. . "To link the appéllant with the crime, 8.K. Yadav (PW-20) deposed
 that he recorded the memorandum of the appellant under Section 27 of the
Indian Evidence Act before Akhilesh (PW-2) and Imrat. As per the
memorandum of the appellant, a green faded printed chunari/dupatta thrown
behind the house of the victim was recovered. According to memorandum
(Exh. P/1) said chunari was seized by the police vide seizure memo (Exh P/2)
on 18.11.2016 as Article K/4. The aforesaid testimony is corroborated by
Akhilesh (PW-2). We find no material contradiction with regard to the seizure
of chunari. The testimony of both the witness Akhilesh (PW-2) and S.K.Yadav
(PW-20) with regard to Exhibit P/1 is found reliable. : ;

28.  The DNA test report (Exh. P/54) is available on record. Dr. Rupesh
Kumar (PW-23) Medical Officer who .had examined the appellant on
18.11.2016, deposed that the blood sample of the appellant was taken by
him in presence of Shiv Kumar Yadav and Ammilal pursuant to application
Exh. P/56. The medical examination of the appellant was conducted by Dr.
Rupesh Kumar. The report is Exh. P/46. In the opinion of Dr. Rupesh Kumar
the appellant is capable of intercourse, Dr. Rupesh Kumar prepared two semen
slides and recovered underwear of the appellant and his pubic hair. A fter
properly sealing all the articles he handed over the same to the police. In the
Court, Dr. Rupesh Kurnar duly identified the appellant. We find no irregularity
in his proceedings. ‘ : )

29.  Dr. Pankaj Shrivastav -(PW-26), Scientist who has experi encé of
conducting DNA test in about 2500 cases and examined various DNA test
reports. In the case at hand, following articles were examined by him :

SL No.| Packet | Materials found inside Whose/from whom
1 N Clothes Victim Ravina

2 0 ' Vaginal Slide - Victim Ravina

3 P Pubic hair - | VictimRavina .

4 Q Hair Spot

5 R Vaginal Swab Victim Ravina

6 U Nails - + | Vietim Ravina

7 k1 Underwear \ Accused Vinay
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8 | Ll Underwear | Accused Mukesh -
9 M1 - Underwear . Accused Ashok
10 K4 | Chuni - Accused Vinay -
.11 | M4 .| Underwear -+ | " Accused Ashok
2 (v Blood Sample Accused Vinay .
13 w Blood Sample -* . Accused Ashok
14 X Blood Sample . .| Accused Mukesh

30.  Dr.Pankaj.Shrivastav found male DNA profile of more than one
individual on the clothes of the victim (Article N) and vaginal slides of the _
victim (Article O). He further opined that the same were similar to the male
DNA profile of appellant with cloth (Article N)) of the victim and her vaginal
swab (Article R). Dr. Pankaj Shrivastav clearly stated that presence of atleast
one more male is detectable on the victim. Dr. Pankaj Shrivastay (PW-26)
found similar DNA profile from the blood sample taken from the appellant

and on the chunari (Article K4). He clearly found the presence of appellant’
DNA. :

M -Art1cle V was detected on the source of Artlcle K/4.

' (ii)N Accused Ashok and Mukesh cannot be excluded by
this DNA report.

(iii)  Accused Ashok can be excluded by this DNA report
(Exh. P/54).

31, We find the DNA, report Exh. P/54 is reliable'to sustain the conviction.

.32, Inorderto establish a live link between the accused persons and the
. incident, the Deoxyribonucleic Acid (DNA) test report is a scientific evidence.

In a recent case of Mukesh Vs. State (NCT) of Delhi [(2017) 6 SCC 1], the’
importance of DNA test has been broadly analysed by the Supreme Court.
The Supreme Court considered various cases of DNA test. In case of

. Rajkumar Vs. State.of MP [(2014) 5 SCC 353] the case of rape and murder

of a 14 year old girl, the DNA test established presence of semen of the

. accused in the vaginal swab of the victim. The clothes of the victim were also

found having the accused semen spots. It was held that the conviction of the
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appellant was recorded relying on the DNA report is proper. Similarly, in .

case of Santosh Kumar Singh Vs. State [(2010) 9 SCC 747] a young girl
was raped and murdered. The DNA reports were relied upon by the High
Court and approved by the Supreme Court. The Supreme Court held that the
DNA report has been scientifically accurate and exact science as held by the
Supreme Court in case of Kamti Devi Vs. Koshiram [(2001) 5 SCC 311].

33.  In Kamti Devi case (supra) the Supreme Court has observed that,
“we may remember that Section 112 of the Evidence Act was enacted ata
time when the modern scientific advancement with Deoxirybonucleic Acid
(DNA) as well as Ribo Nucleic Acid (RNA) tests were not even in
contemplation of the legislature. The result of a genuine DNA test is said to be
scientifically accurate.

34.  Inthelight of principles laid down in above case Jaws and other case
laws, in-case of Mukesh (supra) the Hon’ble Supreme Court held as under :

“DNA technology accurately identifies criminals. DNA profiling
is now a statutory scheme under Section 53 of Cr.P.C. And
such profiling is a must in case of examination of rape victims
as per Section 164-A of Cr.P.C. DNA report deserves to be
accepted unless it is absolutely dented: If the sampling is proper
and if there is no evidence of tampering of sample, DNA Test
report is 0 be accepted.

35. Inthe present case, it is established that the semen and speims were
found on the kathdi (Article C), red saree (Article D) and legging (Article E)
of the victim. As per DNA report (Exh. P/54), on the clothes (Article N) and
vaginal swab (Article R) and chunari (Article K4) of the victim, the presence
of the appellant’s DNA was detected. This scientific evidence clearly link the
appellant with the crime. In'statement under Section 313 of Cr.P.C., appellant
could not offer any explanation with regard to the presence of his semen,
sperms and DNA on the above articles. In case of Mukesh (supra), the Apex
Court has also held as under:

“Courts below rightly took note of DNA analysis report in
finding accused guilty. There is no plausible explanation from
accused as to matching DNA profile generated from their
clothes with DNA profile of victim and PW1.”

L /]
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36.  The appellant is the uncle of the victim. Appellant was very well _
acquainted with the victim as well as her family members. It is admitted that
the parents of the victim had gone out on the fateful day. The victim was alone
in her home. Such a circumstance gave témptation to the appellant to-commit
offence. :

37.  This brings us to the circumstaﬁce‘that any other person or outsider
may not know that the victim’s family members had gone out and she was
alone in her house. Her parents would not return till night. Outsider would not
- know that the victim is alone in the house. Any stranger, after committing the
crime would have ran away leaving the dead body at home and would not
make any attempt to prove that the victim committed suicide.

38.  Incase of State of Himachal Pradesh Vs. Sanjay Kum.ar @ Sunny
[(2017) 2 SCC 51]. .

" Various studies show that in more than 80% cases of such
abuses, perpetrators have acquaintance with the victims who
are not strangers — Danger is more within than outside — Most

.. ofthetime, acquaintance rapes, when the culprit is a family
" member, are not even reported for various reasons, no difficult
to fathom. The strongest among those is the fear of attracting
social stigma. Another deterring factor which many times
prevents such victims or their families to lodge a complaint is
- that they find whole process of criminal justice system
extremely intimidating coupled with absence of victim
protection mechanism: Therefore, time is ripe to bring about
significant reforms in the criminal justice system as well. Equally
there is also a dire need to have a survivor-centric approach
towards victims of sexual violence, particularly, the children,
keeping in view the traumatic long lastmg effects on such
victims. - - o -

39.  The appellant himself stated that he came to her home with two other
persons. In this case, it was alleged that the victim was gang-raped by three
accused persons, one after ancther. At that time, she was alone in her home.

Further, she may not have expected that her own relative w1ll commit rape
with her. She was a helpless victim.

40. - The Courts while trying an accused on the charge of rape must deal
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with the case with utmost sensitivity, examine the broader probability of a
case and not get swayed by minor contradiction or insignificant discrepancies
in the evidence of witness which are not of a substantial character.

41.  After considering the entire prosecution case, we find an important
link to connect the appellant with the case is that in the accused statement, in
question No. 37 with regard to his memorandum under Section 27 of the
Evidence Act, he admitted that he along with other two juveniles in conflict
with law, Mukesh and Ashok brought the crabs which they had caught from
the dam but in the accused statement under Section 313 of Cr.P.C. he had
denied that the crabs were crushed by them at the house of the victim. The
testimony of the S.K. Yadav, Investigation Officer (PW-20) and Akhilesh (PW-
2) is unrebutted that the appellant also stated that the crabs were crushed by
them at the house of the victim on silbatta.

42.  In the spot map (Exh. P/20) prepared by S.K.Yadav, at thc place
indicated as 'G', it was shown that silbatta and a container on which some
remaining flesh of the crabs were found. This fact establishes that the appellant
“was present at the house of the victim, in the absence of the family members
of the victim. If the incident would-have happened before their reaching the
spot for crushing the crabs, they ought to have informed other persons about
the same but, nothing of that sort happened. This conduct of appellant show
that he was present with the victim when she was alive at the time of incident.

43.  As per the statement of Laxman (PW—4), it was established that
appellant gave false intimation to him that the victim had committed suicide.

44.  The appellant could not offer any explanation whatsoever as to how
the sperm and semens were found in the vaginal swab and clothes of the
victim. Therefore, we also cometo the same conclusion, as arrived at by the
learned trial Court, that the appellant and his associates (juvenile in conflict
with law) went to the house of the victim knowing well that her parents were
not at the home and thereafter taking advantage of her loneliness .and
helplessness, forcibly committed rape on her, thereafter murdered her by
throttling, strangulating her and finally hanged her on the roof with a saree.
Doctor had found injuries and the Investigating Officer found a pointed stone
and phavda near the place of incident. After considering the testimony of Dr.
Anil Maliviya, we find his evidence to be reliable that after the victim was
killed, dead body was hanged from the roof by the accused persons.
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We find the following circumstantial evidence against the appellant :-

1.

The appellant is a relative (uncle) of the victim. He knew
that-at what time the victim was alone at her house:

Blood stains, semen and sperms which were found in thc
vaginal swab, clothes, et¢, tallied with the DNA profile of
the appellant and other juvenile accused.

. The appellant could not offer any explanation as to

whatsoever how his semens and sperms were present in
the vagina of the victim.

On the date of incident at about 4:30 pm, brother Rupesh
and sister Sabina of the victim saw the appellant along
with his juvenile friends near the dead body of the victim

at their house. No explanation has been offered in this

regard as to how they were present on the spot at the time
of incident.

The appellént admitted that they had caught crabs.
> S.K.Yadav (PW-20) deposed from the memorandum that

the appellant informed that crabs were crushed by them in
the house of the victim, This establishes the fact that the
appellant was present at the house of the victim. They have

not given in any explanation as to whether the incident .

took place before they reached the house of the victim.

After commifti_ng murder of the victim, the appellant gave
false information to his brother that the victim had
committed suicide.

In such circumstances, all the above facts sufficiently éstablish
hypothesis of the guilt of the appellant, that is to say, they should not be
explainable on any other hypothesis except that the appellant is.guilty. The
circumstances are conclusive in nature and tendency. The circumstance exclude

* every possible hypothesis except that the accused appellant is culprit. The

chain of evidence is complete without leaving any reasonable ground for the
conclusion consistent with the innocence of the appellant and show that in all

. human probability the act must have been done by the appellant only. Thus;

the appellant is rightly convicted by the trial Court for the charges leveled
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47.  Learned counsel for the appellant contended that looking to the overall
facts and circumstances of the case and socio-economic background of the
appellant, the present case is not the ‘rarest of rare case’. The sentence of

death penalty is not justified in the present case. He places reliance on the
following cases :- :

6y Criminal Appeal No. 864/2013 Judgment dated
01.09.2016 (Shyam Singh @ Bhima V. State of MP).

(@  Criminal Appeal Nos.292-293/2014 Judgment dated
16.09.2016 (Tattu Lodhi @ Pancham Lodhi Vs. State
of MP).

(i) Criminal Appeal Nos. 1481-1482/2014 Judgment
dated 08.09.2016 (Rajesh Vs. State of MLP.).

| (iv)  Criminal Appeal Nos. 1584-1585/2014 Judgment
dated 15.09.2016 (Govindswamy Vs. State of Kerala).

(v)  Criminal Appeal Nos. 1720-1721/2014 Judgment
dated 21.09.2016 (Kamlesh @ Ghati Vs. State fo

MP).

(vi)  B.Kumar Vs. Inspector of Police 2016 (1) MPLJ
(Criminal (SC) 189).

(vi)  State of MP vs. Kailash, 2017 (1) MPLJ (Cnmmal)
424,

(vit) Inreference Judge Vs. Phoolchand Rathore, 2017 (2)
MPLJ (Criminal) 231 (J).

(i)  State of MP Vs. Anil, 2016 (3) MPLJ (Criminal) 211,

(x)  Inreference Judge Vs. Arvindalias Chhotu Thakur,
2015 (1) MPLJ.(Criminal) 167.

48.  Inthe above referred cases, it was held that if the accused comes
from a deprived socio-economic background without any criminal history and
his conduct, while in custody, does not suffer from any blemish, the possibility
of reformation on the materials on record cannot be ruled out. In such
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oondition, instead of déath,penalty, the punishment of life imprisoriment subject
to the provisions of remission, etc. under the Code of Criminal Procedure,
1973 would be adequate to meet the ends of justice.

4,9 . Inthe case of Mukesh (supra), Hon‘ble Supreme Court has referred
to the following cases: :

“Dhananjoy Chatterjee Vs. State of W. B [(1994) 28CC
220],a security guard who was entrusted with the security of
aresidential apartment had raped and murdered an eighteen
year old inhabitant of one of the flats in the said apartment,
between 5.30 p.m. And 5.45 p.m. The entire case of the -
prosecution was based on circumstantial evidence. However,
the Court found that it was a fit case for imposing death penalty.
Following observed of the Court while imposing dedth penalty
- is worth quoting :

" Inrecent years, the rising crime rate-particularly violent crime
against women has made the criminal sentencing by the courts
a subject of concern. Today there are admitted disparities.
Some criminals get very harsh sentences while many receive
grossly different sentence for an essentially equivalent crime
and a shockingly large number even go unpunished,-thereby
encouraging the criminal and in the ultimate making justice suffer
by weakening the system's credibility. Of course, it is not
possible to lay down any cut and dry formula relating to
imposition of sentence but the object of sentencing should be
to see that the crime does not go unpunished and the victim of
crime as also the society has the satisfaction that justice has
been done to it. In imposing sentences, in the absence of
specific legislation, Judges must consider variety of factors and
after considering all those factors and taking an over-all view
of the situation, impose sentence which they consider to be an
appropriate one. Aggravating factors cannot be ignored and
similarly mitigating circumstances have also 1o be taken into
consideration. ”

 In our opinion, the measure of punishment in a given case must
depend upon the atrocity of the crime; the conduct of the
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criminal and the defenceless and unprotected state of the victim.
Imposition of appropriate punishment is the manner in which
the courts respond to the society's cry for justice dgainst the
criminals. Justice demands that courts should impose
punishment fitting to the crime so that the courts reflect public
abhorrence of the crime. The courts must not only keep in
view the rights of the criminal but also the rights of the victim
of crime and the society at large while considering imposition
of appropriate punishment.

In case of Shankar Kisanrao Khade Vs. State of
Maharashtra [(2013) 5 SCC 546], the Hon'ble Supreme
Court after analysing various cases of rape and murder, wherein
death sentence was confirmed by the Apex Court, in paragraph
122 briefly laid down the grounds which weighed with the Court
in confirming the death penalty and the same read as under :

The principal reasons for confirming the death penalty
in the above cases include :

(1)  the cruel, diabolic, brutal, depraved and gruesome
nature of the crime (Jumman Khan vs. State of UP [(1991) 1
SCC 752], Dhananjoy Chatterjee Vs. State of W.B. [(1994)
2 SCC220], Laxman Naik Vs, State of Orissa (1994) 3 SCC
381, Kamta Tiwari Vs. State of MP [(1996) 6 SCC 250],
Nirmal Singh Vs. State of Haryana [(1999) 3 SCC 670], Jai
Kumar Vs. State of MP [(1999) 5 SCC 1], State. of Uttar
Pradesh v. Satish [(2005) 3 SCC 114], Bantu v. State of Uttar
Pradesh, [(2008) 11 SCC 113], Ankush Maruti Shinde Vs.
State of Maharashtra [(2009) 6 SCC 667], B.A. Umesh Vs.

~ High Court of Karnataka [(2011) 3 SCC 85], Mohd. Mannan

Vs. State of Bihar [(2011) 5 SCC 317] and Rajendra

Prahladrac Wasnik Vs. State of Maharashtra) [(2012) 4 SCC

N '

(2)  the crime results in public abhorrence, shocks the
judicial conscience or the conscience of society or the
community (Dhananjoy Chatterjee, Jai Kumar, Ankush Maruti
Shinde and Mohd. Mannan);
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(3) the reform or rehabilitation of the convictis riot likely or
that he would be a menace to soc1ety (Jai Kumar, B.A. Umesh

~ and Mohd. Mannan)

4 the victims were defenceless. (Dhananjoy Chatter_]ee
Laxman Naik, Kamta Tewari, Ankush Maruti Shinde, Mohd
Mannan and Raj endra Pralhadrao Wasnik); :

(5) the crime was eithier unproveked or that it was premeditated
(Dhananjoy Chatterjee, Laxman Naik, Kamta Tewari, Nirmal

.Singh, Jai Kumar, Ankush Maruti Shinde, B.A. Umesh and

Mohd. Mannan) and in three cases the antecedents or the prior
history of the convict was taken into consideration (Shivu,
B.A. Umesh and Rajendra Prahladrao Wasnik).

In Shankar Kisanrao Khade (supra) case wherein the
Hon'ble Supreme Court has exhaustively analysed the case’'of
rape and murder where death penalty was converted to that
of imprisonment for life and some of the factors that weighed
with the Court in such commutation. Paragraphs 106 reads.as
under: .

A study of the above cases suggests that there are several

reasons, cumulatively taken, for converting the death penalty
to that of imprisonment for life. However, some of the factors
that have had an influence in commutation include :-

(1) the young age of the accused (Amit v. State of Maharashtra
[(2003) 8 SCC 93] aged 20 years, Rahul aged 24 years,

. Santosh Kumar Singh Vs. State [(2010) 9 SCC 747] aged

24 years, Rameshbhai Chandubhai Rathod vs. State of Gujarat
[(2011) 2 SCC 764](2) aged 28 years and Amit v. State of
Uttar Pradesh [(2012) 4 SCC 107] aged 28 years);

(2) the p0351b111ty of reforming and rehabilitating the accused
(Santosh Kumar Singh and Amit.v. State of Uttar Pradesh)
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the accused, 1n01denta11y, were young when they committed -

the crime;,

(3) the accused had ﬁo prior criminal fecord (Nirmal Singh,
Raju, Bantu, Amit v. State of Maharashtra, Surendra Pal
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.Shivbalakpal, Rahul and Amit v. State of Uttar Pradesh);

(4) the accused was not likely to be a menace or threat or
danger to society or the community (Nirmal Singh, Mohd.

Chaman, Raju, Bantu, Surendra Pal Shivbalakpal [(2005) 3
SCC 127], Rahul vs. State of Maharashtra [(2005) 10 SCC
322] and Amit v. State of Uttar Pradesh).

(5) A few other reasons need to be mentioned such as the
accused having been acquitted by one the Courts (State of
Tamil Nadu v.  Suresh [{1998). 2 SCC 372], State.of
Maharashtra v. Suresh [{1998) 2 SCC 372], State of
Maharashtra vs. Bharat Fakira Dhiwar [(2002) 1 SCC 622],
Mansingh and Santosh Kumar Singh;

(6) the crime was not premeditated (Kumudi Lal vs. State of
UP [(1999) 4 SCC 108], Akhtar vs. State of UP [(1999) 6
SCC 60], Raju and Amrit Singh [(2006) 12 SCC 79]);

(7) the case was one of circumstantial evidence (Mansingh
and Bishnu Prasad Sinha [(2007) 11 SCC 467]).

In" one case, commutation was ordered since there was
apparently no ‘exceptional’ feature warranting a death penalty
(Kumudi Lalyand in another case because the Trial Courthad .
awarded life sentence but the High Court enhanced it to death
(Haresh Mohandas Rajput [(2011) 12 SCC 56]).

In case of Mukesh (supra) Hon'ble Supreme Court had held
that :

Where a crime is committed with extreme brutality and the
collective conscience of the society is shocked, courts must -
award death penalty, irrespective of their personal opinion as
regards desirability of death penalty. By not imposing a death
sentence in such cases, the courts may do injustice to the society
atlarge. :

The diabolical manner in whlch crime was committed leaves
one startled as to the pervert miental state of the inflictor. On
top of it, after having failed to kill her on the spot, by running
‘the bus over her, the victim was thrown half naked in the
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wintery night, with grie{zous injuties.” o ,

50.  Accordingly, this’ Court must also ascertam the mitigating and

aggravating circumstances pertaining to the cnme as also the crlmmal

51.  Nowthe residual question that remains to be decided is whether the
'death penalty is appropriate pumshment in the case?

52, The learned Government Advocate submitted that the present caseis

clearly a case which comes under the category of “rarest of rare” case as per
the decision of the Hon'ble Supreme Court in case of Mukesh (supra), Bachan

Singh [AIR 1980 SC 898] and Machhi Singh & Ors. [1983 AIR 957].
‘Taking into considerationthe offence and age of the victim, he submits that

this is a case of rape and brutal murder of an innocent and helpless young glrl
in her teens. - |

53.  Weare of the considered view that in the facts and c1rcumstances of
the case, it would be appropriate to impose the alternative pumshment for
life, following the guidelines given in the case of Selvam vs, State [AIR 2014
SC 1911] and Rajkumar vs. State of MP [(2014) 5 8CC 353] 1nstead of
death sentence.

54.  We seriously considered the mitigating ¢ c1rcumstances in favours of
the conviction: The appellant belongs to schedule tribé without criminal
antecedents

:55. " The prosecutlon has not proved the probability that the conviction

- cannot be reformed and rehabilitated and the probability that he would continue

to commit criminal acts and thereby would pose thireat to the society. Thus,
appeal filed by the appellant is partly allowed.

56. - Accordingly, we uphold the conviction of the appellant under Sectlons

' 449,376(A), 376(D) and 302 of IPC and Section 6 of Protection of Chlldren

from Sexual Offences Act, however, we set aside the death sentence awarded
to the appellant and instead direct him to undergo life imprisonment (life long

~ without remission) for the offences under Sections 449, 376(A), 376(D) and

302 of IPC. \

57. Accordingly, the reference made by the learned trial Cdurt is
discharged. Subject to above modification, for the aforesald reasons the-
cnmmal appeal 1s partly allowed.

T

- . dppeal partly allowed.
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, o ARBITRATION REVISION .
Before Mr. Justice Sanjay Yadav & Mr. Justice S.K. Awasthi
Arb.R. No. 01/2016 (Gwalior) decided on 24 August, 2017

_VIVA CONSTRUCTION CO. (M/S) ‘ ...Applicant
Vs. g
STATE OF M.P. & ors. ...Non-applicants

: A. ‘ Madhyastlmm Adlnkamn Adhiniyam, M.P. (29 of 1983),
Section 7-B — Appeal & Reference — Limitation — Computation — Held —
Under.clause 29 of agreement which is an arbitration clause, Superintending
Engineer is not rendered functus officio merely because a dispute is not
-decided within 60 days, a decision even after 60 days is a decision under
said clause and is appealable thereunder — Reference filed in terms of
Section 7-B read with appended proviso within stipulated time is
mamtamable Revision allowed. (Paras 10,13,15 & 16)
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5 o aeaRed @S @, @ sfava, A gufay 5 uo fare 31 eo a7 @
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2 qur S Ay afielw 2 — oORT 7—d weufow W@ wWOw @
ﬁrq'sﬁﬂft ﬁaﬂwa%fﬁavqﬂaﬁfwﬁmé—gﬁﬂmml

B. Madhyastham Adhikaran Adhiniyam, M.P. (29 of 1983),
Section 7-B— Term “Decision”—Held —An indecisiveness or an indecision
.on the part of Superintending E Engineer can never be construed to be a
“decision” giving rise to avail remedy of appeal, because unless the forum °
of final authority is exhausted, aggrieved person cannot avail the remedy
u/S 7-B of theAdhmlyam 0f 1983, B o (Para 12)

. mwwvaﬁéima;ﬁﬁw HH (1983, BT 29), IvT 7—d} —
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Cése referred: O .
. 2012 (4) MPLJ 212 ce !

Siddharth Jain, for the applicant.
Yogesh Chaturvedi, G.A. for the non-apphcants/ State. -

ORDER

‘ ".The Order "of the Court was. - passed by :
SANJAY Yapav, J. :- Petitioner vide this Revision under Section 19 of the
Madhya Pradesh Madhyastham Adhikaran Adhiniyam, 1983 (for brevity
“Adhiniyam, 19837 takes exception to'the Award dated 27.11.2015 passed
by the Madhyastham Adhikaran, whereby while finding the petitioner entitled
for Award of Rs.25,84,203/-, non-suited the petitioner on the finding that the
Appeal is not in consonance with the stipulations contained under Clause 29

of the Agreement, as such not tenable under Section 7B of the Adhiniyam,
1983. : , . -

+

1

2. Relevant facts giving rise to controversy briefly are that the petitioner’
entered into works contract with respondents on 02.01,2009 for construction
“of Kunwarpur to Burda road under district Shivpuri under CRF Scheme. The
. amount of tender was Rs.665.00 lacs. The tendef was accepted @ 14.30%
. below schedule of rates (SOR) = Rs.569,90,500.00; work order was issued

f on 02,01.2009. The completion period was 16 months to be reckoned after -
+ 30 days of issue of work order as per Clause 2 of Agreement No. 100/2008-
09. The due date of completion was scheduled as on 31.05.2010. As the

~ . work could not be completed within the scheduled time, an extension was
sought which was turned down and respondent opted to tenmnate the contract
under Clause 3(C) of the' Agreement. The contract was rescinded on
23.02.2011. Petitioner invoked Clause 29 of the Agreement requesting the
Superintending Engineer to allow the claims for losses and damages to the

petitioner through its letter dated 28. 02.2011. Superintending Engineer - -

rejected all claims by his order dated 16.06.2011. Aggrieved petitioner
" preferred an Appeal before the Chief Engineer on 23.06.2011. As the Chief
Engineer did not decide the Appeal, the petitioner after waiting for six months
- and before expiry of one year filed reference petition before the Madhyastham
* Adhikaran on 16.10:2012. The Adhikaran vide 1mpugned Award though held
the petitioner entitled for the amount as find mention in paragraph 12 of the
‘Award, yet non-suited the petitionér as the reference was not found
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maintainable as per Clause 29 of the Agreement.

3. The reasons find mention in paragraph 8 of the Award, wherein the
Adhikaran observed:-- ' ‘

8.(1) First and the foremost objection of the respondents is
that the reference petition being in contravention of clause 29
‘ of the contract agreement is not maintainable in view of the
law laid down by the larger bench of the High Court of M.P. in
the light of the decision rendered in Sanjay Dubey V. State of
M.P.. 2012 (4) MPLJ 212. The petitioner in paragraph 6 of
the reference petition has averred in specific that the dispute
arose on 23.2.2011 when the Respondent No. 2 took action
under clause 3(c) of the contract agreement. The petitioner
. being aggrieved by it, submitted dispute and quantified claim
before the S.E. on 28.2.2011. The reminder was also issued -
on (08.03.2011. The S.E. rejected all the claims vide office
letter dated 16.06.2011. The petitioner preferred an appeal
against it before the C.E. on 23.06.2011, which according to
the petitioner, was lying unattended at the time of filing of the
reference petition on 17.10.2012. '

(i) The respondents submitted that the petitioner having acted in
contravention of clause 29 of the contract agreemént, the
reference petition is not maintainable in view of the decision in
Sanjay Dubey's case (supra).

The relevant portion of clause 29 runs as under:-
“Arbitration Clause -

Clause 29 — Except as otherwise provided in
this contract all question and dispute relating
to the meaning of the specifications designs,
drawings and instructions herein before
mentioned and as to thing whatsoever, in any
way arising out of or relating to the contract
designs, drawings, whether arising during the
progress of the work or after the completion

- orabandonment thereof shall be referred tothe
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S.E. in writing for his decision within a period - -
of 30.days of such occurrence. Thereupon the-

S.E. shall give his written instructions and/or, .,
decisions within a period of 60 days of such - - -
request. This period can be extended by mutual
consent ofthe partles .

- Upon receipt of written instruétions or -
decisions, the parties shall promptly proceed
without delay to comply such instructionsor -
decisions. Ifthe S.E. fails to give his instructions .
or decisions in writing within a period of 60
days or mutually agreed time,after being . " .
requested if the parties are aggrieved against.."
the decision of the S.E. the parties may within
30 days prefer an appeal to the C.E. who shall
afford an opportunity to the parties of being
heard and to offer evidence in support of his
appeal. The C.E: will give his decision within
90 days. If any party is not satisfied with the
decision of the C.E., he can prefer such disputes -
for arbitration by a Tribunal constituted by the-
State Government from among the officers

" belonging to the Department-not below the

- rank of S:E. one Retired Chief Engineer of any
Technical Department and one serving officer
not below the rark of S.E. belonging to another
Technical Department.” - |

(m') Aforesaid clausé makes it obhgatory on the part of
the petitioner to submit dispute before the S.E. in writing fora
_decision within a period of 30.days of such occurrence.
. - According to the petitioner itself, the cause of action arose on
. 23.2.2011 when action under clause 3(c) of the contract
agreement was taken against it. The quanitified claim/dispute
submitted before the S.E. on28.2.2011 was well within time

as-per the contract agreemcnt In case of faiture on the part of

the S.E. to decide the dlspute w1th1n a period of 60 days or
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mutually agreed time, the party aggrieved was under a further
obligation toprefer appeal within 30 days. We have gone
through the order of the S.E. dated 16.6.2011 (Ex.D.4). It

* does not mention the consent / agreement of the respondents
in extending time to render the decision. There is no other
document to establish that the order on quantified claim was
passed on 16.6.2011 within extended period in mutually agreed
‘manner.

(iv)  Therespondents in paragraph 6 of written statement
have clearly denied that the S.E. decided the issue in mutually
extended period. The written statement is supported by affidavit
of the OIC. In this view of the matter, the petitioner was obliged
to prove that the order on quantified claim was passed by the
S.E. on 16.6.2011 within mutually agreed extended period. In
the absence of proof'in this regard, the petitioner was obliged
to prefer an appeal before the S.E. within 30 days on failure of
the S.E. to decide the quantified claim within a period of 60
days from the date of its receipt. According to the petitioner’
itself, the quantified claim was submittéd on 28.2.2011 and its
reminder was submitted on 8.3.2011. Accordingly, the appeal
ought to have been preferred before the C.E. in the absence
of mutually agreed extended period up to 30th May, 2011 (as -
per the submission of the quantified claim on 28.2.2011 and
8th June, 2011 (as per the submiission of the reminder on
8.3.2011). Instead, the petitioner submitted its appeal on
23.6.2011, which was beyond the period -prescribed
contractually by virtue of clause 29, and has, thus, contravened
the said clause. In the case of Sanjay Dubey (supra) the larger
bench of the High Court of M.P. hasobserved:-

. +*13.(i) Where the works contract contains a clause
like Clause 29, the jurisdicfion of the Tribunal can be
invoked only after approaching the Authority as
provided under the terms of the works contract.”

v " Afeeble attempt has been made to avail six months
 period of failure on the part of the S.E. to decide the dispute,
as provided in the proviso to sub-sec.(1) of Sec.7-B of the
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Madhya Pradesh Madhyastham Adhikaran Adhiniyam, 1983.
The provision is reproduced below for convenience:-

“[7-B. Limitation.-- [(1) The Tribunal shall nc;t admit
areference petition unless--

(a) thedispute is first referred for the decision of
the final authority under the terms of the works
contract; and

(b)  thewpetition to the Tribunal is made within one
year from the date of communication of the
decision of the final authority.

* Provided thatifthe final authority fails to decide
the disputes within a period of six months from the
date of reference to it, the petition to the Tribunal shall
be made within one year or the expiry of the said period
of six months.]”

. The aforesaid proviso applies in case of failure on the
part of the final authority to decide the dispute within a period
of six months from the date of reference to it. The words “Final
authority” has not been defined either in the contract agreement
or elsewhere in the present case. The word “Final” means, as
per the Black's Law Dictionary, as under:-

“Final. - Last; conclusive; decisive, definitive;
terminated; completed. In its use in reference to legal actions,
this word is generally contrasted with “interfocutory™.

According to clause 29 itself, the C.E. is the final
authority as per the contract agreement; whereas S.E. isthe '
initial/pre-final authority. Thus, proviso to sub-sec.(1) of
Sec.7-B (supra) does not get attracted in the present case.

In view of the aforesaid discussion, we uphold the
objection of the respondents and hold that the petitioner has
failed to establish that it has made compliance of clause 29 of
the contract agreement; and consequently, the reference petition
is found to be in contravention of clause 29 and is not
maintainable.” )
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4. The petitioner has confined to only one issue, i.e., the construction of
Clause 29 of the Agreément, It is urged that the Adhikaran has grossly erred
in construing the pr0v1510n under Clause 29 that once no action is taken by the .
Superintending Engineeroon an objection raised andunless the period is mutually
extended, the Superintending Engineer is abdicated of the jurisdiction to decide
the objection if not decided within 60 days. It is contendéd that this €rroneous .
construction of Clause 29 percolated in the analysis made by the Adhikaran
leading it to draw a conclusion that the petitioner ought to have filed the
reference under Section 7 of Adhiniyam; 1983 on or before 30.05.2011.

5. . Evidently, the date 30.05.201 1 construed to be the last date on which
the petitioner ought to have filed the reference is arrived at on the finding that
with the recession of contract on 23.02:2011 and the dispute being raised
before the Superintending Engineer on 28.02.2011 with the reminder submitted
0n 08.03.2011 on’a failure on the part of the Superintending Engineer in deciding
the matter within 60 days from the date of receipts, the Adhikaran has construed
that the Superintending Engineer would be functus officio unless the parties

-mutually agree for extension of time. This reasoning has led the Adhikaran
conclude that there being no mutual consent amongst the parties for extension
of time to pass Award, the reference ought to have been on or before
30.05.2011. Thus in the tacit opinion of the Adhikaran, the order passed by -
the Adhikaran on 16.06.2011 was not an order in the eyes of law and, therefore,
even an appeal before Chief Engineer was of no consequence

6. Respondents on their turn have supported the verdict by the Tribunal.
However, as against the findings as to entitlement of the petitioner, the
respondents have not challenged the same.

7. Cornsidered rival submission.

8. After careful reading, the reasons assigned by the Adhikaran and the
interpretation given to Clause 29, we beg to differ with the Adhlkaran

9. Clause 29 of the Agreement is an arbitration clause providing two tier -
- forum for resolution of a dispute arising out of or relating to a contract, the
forums are the Superintending Engincer and the Chief Engineer, who is final
departmental Authority to resolve the dispute. That, an inbuilt mechanism has
been provided with spemfied time within which the decision is to be taken.

For Superintending Engineer, the time within which the decision is to be taken
is 60 days. However, there is an additional clause that if the mutual agreement
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give their consent, this period 60 days is extendable. For how many days it is
to be extended is not provided: The clause is further silent as to the
cconsequences that if the decision is not taken within 60 days and if there isno
mutual consent whether the Superintending Engineer is prohibited from passing
the order.

10.  Inour con51dered opinion, thc Supermtcndmg Engineer is not functus

officio merely because the decision is not taken within 60 days. Had that

been the intention it could have been incorporated in the Clause that non-.
decision within 60 days or within extended period would render the dispute

" raised otiose. If that was the intention then there was no need to incorporate

the sentence “if the parties are aggrieved against the decision of the S.E., the

parties may within 30 days prefer an appeal to the C.E. who shall afford an-
opportunity to the parties of being heard and to offer evidence in support of
his appeal“ The appeal thus lies against a decision.

11. ., The expression “decision” has been construed to be:

“A word which has been used as signifying the judgment of
the Court; a judgment given by a competent tribunal; the
findings of fact; the finding by the Court upon which a decree
or judgment may be entered; the result of the deliberations of
a tribunal, See 18§ CLJ 128 :20IC 1:32 Cal 162: 13 Bom
LR 113 :35Bom 231:25Al1 109 : 30 IA 35 (PC): 5 Bom
LR 100 : 4 OC 66. The word 'decision' unless otherwise
qualified by the context, may possibly embrace matters both
of civil and criminal law. AIR 1930 PC 291 (PC). The refusal
of the judge to do a ministerial act can hardly, with propriety,
be called a 'ruling’ or 'decision’. 'Cruse v. Mc Queen,' (Tex.
Civ. App. 1894) (P1. See Law Lexion by P Ramanatha Aiyar,
4th Edition 2010 Page 1816). ~ -

12.  Inview whereof, an “indecisiveness” or an “indecision” on the part of
the Superintending Engineer can never be construed to be a “decision” giving
rise to avail the remedy of Appeal. Because unless the forum of final authority
is exhausted, aggrieved person cannot avail the remedy under Section 7-B of
the Adhiniyam, 1983.

13.  The question canbe examined from the angle of Section 7-B of the
Adhiniyam, 1983 which mandates that the reference under Section 7 is not
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admissible unless (i) the dispute is first referred for the decision of the final
Authority under the terms of works contract (i.e. clause 29) and (ii) the petition
is made within one year from the date of communication of the decision of the
final Authority. Proviso appended with Section 7-B of the Adhiniyam, 1983
stipulates that if the final Authority fails to decide the disputes within a period
of six months from the date of reference to it, the petition to the Tribunal shall
lie within one year of the expiry of six months. Thus, imperative it is that
before involving the forum before Adhikaran, the deparfmental remedy
" undoubtedly is in the case at hand the Chief Engineer and not the Superintending
Engineer is the final Authority. If the interpretation given by the Adhikaran is
" accepted and the Superintending Engineer has derelicted in discharging its
duty in deciding the Appeal within 60 days, then the aggrieved person is left
with no remedy because there being no decision, he cannot avail the remedy
of Appeal before the Chief Engineer nor can he file the reference. That, trite it
is thata person cannot be left remedyless.

14.  Reliance placed on behalf of the State on paragraph 9 of the decision
in Sanjay Dubey v. State of M. P, and another [2012 (4) MPLJ 212] hardly
" takes us anywhere in the present fact situation. Reading of paragraph 9 would
make it clear that the special Bench was concerned with the period of limitation
under Section 7-B as to how it is to be arrivéd at and not with the nuances of
Clause 29 as in the case at hand.

15.  Taking any view of the matter, we do not approve the conclusion arrived
by the Adhikaran qua Clause 29 of the Agreement. Accordingly, the decision,
that the Reference was not tenable, is set aside.

16.  That the dispute gua termination of contract on 23.02.2011 was raised
on 28.02.2011 wherein order was passed on 16.06.2011. Petitioner preferred
an appeal within 30 days on 23.06.2011. And the Appellate Authority having
failed to take decision thereon within 90 days, the petitioner was well within
the period of limitation. Since the Adhikaran had found the petitioner entitled
to certain claims and the petitioner has confined only to the issue regarding
Clause 29 of the Agreement, we hold that the Reference is maintainable and
the petitioner is entitled for the claim arrived at by the Adhikaran. The impugned
Award is modified to the extent above. There shall be no costs.

Order accordingly.
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oS CRIMINAL REFERENCE -
Before Mr. Justice J.K. Maheshwari & Mr. Justice Rajendra Mahajan, -
Cr.Ref. No. 1/2014 (Jabalpur) decided on 19 May, 2017

IN REFERENCE . foeT ...Applicant
Vs.
ASHOK & ors. ...Non-agpplicants

(Alongwith Cr.A. Nos. 3538/2014, 1075/2015, 3512/2014 & 3598/2014)

A. - Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 201,302 & 376(2)(g) r/'w -
34— Gang Rape and Murder — Death Sentence—Appreciation of Evidence
— Circumstantial Evidence & DNA Repart Prosecutrix was raped and
she alongwith her companion were murdered by appellants — Held — As
per DNA report, appellant’s DNA was matched and was found on
underwear and vaginal swab of prosecutrix— Evidence of seizure of mobile
phone & silver payal of prosecutrix and shoes of her companion duly
established and proved beyond reasonable doubt — Call details also
establishes commission of offence by appellants — Evidence shows that
. chain of circumstantizl evidence is complete — Case do not fall in category

of “Rarest of Rare” case — Death sentence modified to life imprisonment

— Criminal reference re] jected — Appeals allowed to such extent.-

(Paras 43 to 58, 60,61 & 83)

& gUS WIBUT (1860 T 45), GIRIC 201, 302 T 376(2)(cf}) wEIET
34 — GIHRD AT VT 5T — FYT0S — Qg o7 Jodlw+d — GRIRefaa~
wrey 7 Ly Ruie — afiareffrer g7 afmrel o1 gaceT fear T o
a1 9uS Wl S wiefl A wear Y wE off — wfifEiRa - Slwmy. Rad
& agar, aderefl @ e w1 fram fear = o o ' afvaiet 3
Fexfamr @i Ty WT R 9T T of — IR @ WiNEe B q
i) T uraa a2 S Wl @ S @ el F7 W ' w0 9 verfia-
ga ¥ o gRayed UlT 9 W wifdw g € — ara faawer #fl, arframeffror
ERT 9T HIRA a1 S el wxar 8 — e gufar @ fs sRRefae
‘wrEg #Y erer of @ — o, ke € e gwwor 3 aoft F @ arar
2 — Fogavs B! Aelad. SREN ¥ wuiaRa fear T — ?rrfb@.'a?ﬁé‘w
adrerR foar T — WWWWWI

B. Penal Code (45 0f 1860}, Sections 201, 302 & 376(2)(g) r/w
34 — Gang Rape and Murder — Circunistantial Evidence — Motive — Held
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.— In case’of murder based on circumstantial evidence, motive gains

significance —It is established that soon after rape of prosecutrix, she and.
- her companion was murdered so that they would not come forward to depose
against appellants. ) s (Para 65)

(A qUS Gledr (1860 BT 45), STy 201, 502 7 376(2)(H}) wEUloT
.34 — UPYR® el V7 ger — IRRsifoo wrewr — 8 — afvfeiRg —
aRfRrfieT wes W sraRa @ @ 9BY ¥, ¥ Ae UG FYar & — 9%
T fbar T @ 5 APl @ gt @ qRa Uz, Sus ger 9ue
el Bt wwr 9t T off aifs arflaneff @ v afirme 39 @ R we
T A - : _ .

C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 201, 302 & 376(2) (g) r'w
34 — Gang Rape and Murder — Death Sentence — Rarest of Rare Case -
Aggravating and Mitigating Circumstances — Held —Upon comparison of
aggravating and mitigating circumstances, the mitigating circumstances
havefar away outweighed the aggravating circumstances — Further, itis
not possible to identify which accused case falls in category of rarest of
rare case— Capital punishment imposed is altered to life imprisonment.
(Paras 81, 83 to 86)

T - TTS Wledr (1860 BT 45), AR 201, 302 T 376(2)(cf}) TEUT 34 —
WWWW—:W—W-#%W—W
72T F w¥d qcdlt gRRefar — afifEiRT — Teme W B ax ard
TRRefAl 91 gt == W, F9 w3 a1l TRReRAT Toaeer aRRufE
4 e Aeaqel ¥ — oo afiRew, 98 TwueeT wea e @ By few
AT FT gHeor faveas ¥ ARA g@eor 3 Ao F amar @ — SRR
TYETS Bl arsfladt sRErg § yRafda faar )

Cases referred:

7 (2001) 5 SCC 311, (2010) 9 SCC 747, AIR 2014 SC 932, (2014) 4
'SCC 69, 2014 (5) MPHT 45, 955 F.2d 786 (2d Cir. 1992), ILR (2012) MP
1351,2008 CxL.J. 107, (2012) 2 MPHT 182 DB (MP), 2013 CrL.R. (M.P.))-
79,2013 CrL.J. (M.P.)) 791, (2015) 1 SCC 67, (2015) 1 SCC 253, (2015) 6
SCC 632, (1983) 3 SCC 470, (1980) 2 SCC 684, (1998) 7 SCC 177, (1999)
3 SCC 19, (2003) 7 SCC 141, 2013 Cr.L.J. 1559, (1984) 4 SCC 116, AIR
1990 SC 79, AIR 2002 SC 3164, 2007 AIR SCW 2226, 1992 CrL.J. 1104
SC, (2013) 5 SCC 722, (1996) 10 SCC 193, AIR 2010 SC 2352, (2012) 10
SCC 464, (2012) 11 SCC 196; 2010 Cr.L.J. 3871,2010 (2) JLJ 104, (2012) 6
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SCC 107, (2002) 3 SCC 76, (2011) 12 SCC 56,(2009) 6 SCC 498, (2013) 5
SCC 546, (1998) 3 SCC 625, (2016) 8 SCC 313. -

Divya Kirti Bohrey, G.A. assisted by Manjeet Chakkal, P.L. for the
prosecution. ' ' _
S.K. Gangrade, for the accused-appellant in Cr.A. No. 3538/2014.
P.S. Gaharwar, for the accused-appellant in Cr.A. No. 1075/2015.
Krishna Dev Singh, for the accused-appellant in Cr.A. No. 3512/2014.
Amit Dubey and Abhinav Dubey, for the accused-appellant in Cr.A.
No. 3598/2014.

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of- the Court was delivered by :’
RAJENDRA MAHAJAN, J. :- Since the aforesaid criminal reference and criminal
appeals have arisen out of one and the same judgment dated 14.11.14 passed
by the learned Additional Sessions Judge, Pipariya, District Hoshangabad in
Sessions Trial No.200/10, they are being decided by this common judgment.

2. Vide the impugned judgment, the learned AST has held that the period
between 13.02.10 at about mid-noon and 15.02.10 at about 5:00 p.m. in the
agricultural field of Durjan Singh (PW-14) situated nearby village Samnapur
the accused-appellants committed gang-rape upon the deceased-prosecutrix,
and later murdered her and her companion deceased Deepak in furtherance
- . of common intention to conceal the evidence of gang-rape. Having held so,
the learned ASJ has convicted and sentenced the accused appellants as under:-

Sr.| Nameof | Penal sections of | Jail sentences | Fine Default jail
No.| accused Conviction sentences sentences
appellants ’ ‘ _
1 | Ashok () 376(2)g) IPC | Imprisonment | Rs.1000/- R.I. forsix
C forlife : months
(i) 302 r.w. 34 Death sentence| Rs.1000/- For each count
IPC (two counts) | for each count | for each count| R.I. forsix
: - months
(iii) 201 IPC ~ |R.J.forseven | Rs.1000/- R.I for six
years ' months
v R'al_njeevan (i) 376(2)(g) IPC | Imprisonment | Rs.1000/- R.I. forsix
o forlife - ) months
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(i1) 302 r.w. 34 IPC| Death sentence |Rs.1000/- For each counf
{two counts) for each count |for each count | R.I. forsix
. months
(i) 201 IPC R.1. forseven | Rs.1000/- ‘R.I forsix
years months
() 376(2)(g) IPC |Imprisonment |Rs.1000/- R.I forsix
for life months
3 | Kapil (ii) 302 r.w. 34 IPC | Death sentence | Rs.1000/- For each counj
(two counts) for each count | for each count| R.I. for six
months
(iii)201 IPC R.lL forseven |Rs.1000/- R.I for six
years months
(i) 376(2)(g) IPC | Imprisonment | Rs.1000/- R.1. for six
for life months
4 |[Ajju@ (ii) 302 r.w. 34 IPC | Death sentence | Rs.1000/- For each count
Ajay (two counts) for each count |for each count | R.I. for six
months
(iii) 201 IPC R.L forseven |Rs.1000/- R.1 for six
years - months
3. The learned Trial J udge has sent the proceedings for confirmation of

sentences of death awarded to the accused-appellants in order to comply
with the provisions of Section 366 of the Cr.P.C., whereas being aggrieved by
and dissatisfied with the impugned judgment, each of the accused-appellants
has preferred a separate appeal under Section 374 Cr.P.C.

4.

detail as it is entirely based upon the circumstantial evidence:-

(4.1) On 15.02.10, Rambagas (PW-21), the Kotwar of
village Samnapur, gave an oral intimation at the Police Station
Pipariya that two unknown dead bodies of young persons,
one male and one female, in semi-naked state are lying in the
agricultural field of Durjan Singh (PW-14), the resident of village
Samnapur, among the standing wheat-crop. The dead body of
man is identified as that of Deepak s/o Babulal Kushwaha a
resident of village Kalmesera of Hoshangabad district and the
dead body of the woman remains unidentified. Upon the

The prosecution case as unfolded during the trial is narrated below in
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aforesaid intimation, Sub Inspector Rai Singh Soni (not-
examined— due to his death in a vehicular accident before

recording of his statement in the trial court.) recorded marg:l-
intimation Ex.P-19 at Nos. 12/ 10 and 13/1 0 under Section 174"

Cr.h.C.

(4.2) Inthe nioming of 16.02. 10, Rai Singh Soni reached
the place of occurrence. First he prepared a spot map Ex.P-

2787

33 of the place where the dead bodies were lying in the -

presence of Laxman singh (PW-28). Thereafter, he prepared

" the inquest proceedings Ex.P-20 and Ex.P-34 of dead bodies

of Depak and unknown woman respectively in the presence
of witnesses namely Dinesh (PW-22), Laxman Singh (PW-
28), Ram Singh (PW-30), Rambagas (PW-21) and Narayan
Prasad (PW-51). The witnesses opined that both the deceased
were murdered and the woman was subjected to rape before-
being murdered. He also prepared Panchnamas Ex.P-22 to
Ex.P-25, showing the signs of scuffles, in the presence of
Laxman Singh and Rambagas. Vide seizure memo Ex.P-26,
he seized the deceased woman's clothes ndmely underwear,
Salwar, Dupatta (Stole) and Kurti which were in tomn condition
and upon which stains of blood and semen were present, as
also.a bunch of hair, some pieces of ears of wheat (Gehu Ki
Bali) and soil smeared with her vaginal swab. He also noticed
that a stump of ears of wheat was partly inside her vagina. Be
it noted that he had also recorded his said observations in the
aforesaid seizure memo. Vide seizure memo Ex.P-27, he seized

deceased Deepak's tornjeans.and a belt as also blood stained

soil and plain soil. Vide seizure memo Ex.P-28, he'seized a

" gent's chappal of right foot and a purse. Vide seizure memo

Ex.P-29, he seized a motorcycle bearing registration No. MP-
05-MP-1371 with deflated tyres which was parked some
distance away from the place of occurrence. In the course of
investigation, it is found that the mototcycle was registered in
the name of Laxmi Narayan (PW-26), who happens to be
nephew (the sister's son) of deceased Deepak. He prepared
the aforesaid seizure memos in the presence of Rambagas dnd
Laxman Singh. Pratap Singh (PW—S 8), the photographer- of
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the FSL Unit, took the photographs Ex.P-106 to Ex.P-123 of
both the dead bodies from various angles.

(4.3) Having completed all the legal requirements at the place
of occurrence, Rai Singh Soni sent both the dead bodies for
post-mortems to the Community Health Center Pipariya, where
on 16.02.10 Dr. A.K. Agrawal (PW-46) performed autopsy
on the dead body of deceased Deepak, and he and Dr. Anita
Sahu (not-examined) jointly conducted post-mortem
examination on the dead body of the deceased-prosecutrix.
Ex.P-66 and Ex.P-67 are the post-mortem reports of
deceased Deepak and the deceased-prosecutrix respectively.
As per the post-mortem examinations, they suffered homicidal
death and the deceased-prosecutrix was subjected to rape
before her death.

(4.4) Dr. AK. Agrawal also prepared a slide of sticky liquid
deposited on deceased Deepak's glans penis and cut off finger-
nails of his both hands and he and Dr. Anita Sahu also prepared
aslide of vaginal swab of the deceased-prosecutrix, cut offa
few strains of her pubic hairs, finger-nails of her both hands
for forensic tests/examinations.

(4.5) On the basis of the outcome of marg inquiry and
postmortem reports, on 16.02.10 Rai Singh Soni lodged an
FIR being Ex.P-88 and registered a case at Crime No.63/
2010 under Sections 302, 376, 201 and 34 of the IPC against
an unknown person.

(4.6) Onl17.02.1 O,_Suéhila Bai (PW-27) identified the dead
body of the deceased-prosecutrix, as her daughter, aged about

17 years, whereupon identification memo Ex.P-31 was
prepared by Rai Singh Soni.

(4.7) The investigation of the case was started under the
supervision of Rajesh Raghuwanshi (PW-57), the Sub
Divisional Police Officer, Pipariya on account of the seriousness
and gravity of the crime. He constituted an investigating team-
(for short 'the team') comprising Rai Singh Soni, Dinesh Singh
Chouhan @ D.S. Chouhan (PW-56), the S.I. of Police Station
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. Pipariya, Malkit Singh (PW-59), the SHO of Police Station
Shohagpur and Umed Singh (PW-54) ASIof Pohcc Station
Plpanya. . .

(4.8) At the prelnmnary stage of mves‘ugatlon, the team came
to know that both the deceased had mobile phones with them
at the time of incident, but they were not found onthe spot or
with their-dead bodies or nearby the place of occurrence.
Therefore, the perpetrator(s) of crime may have definitely
taken the mobile phones of the deceased with them afterthe
commission of ghastly crime and they may be using the mobile
phones. That is why, they thought that the culprits may be
nabbed with the help of International Mobile Equipmerit
Identity (for short TMEI') numbers of mobile phones, mobile
numbers and call-details records thereof.

(4.9) On22.02.10, Rai Singh Soni seized a carton/box of a
mobile phone of Motorola company from the possession of
Sushila Bai, the mother.of deceased-prosecutrix, vide seizure
memo Ex.P-32, whereupon IMEI No.35648-40028-49822
is printed. However, the case diary and the call details reveal
that he made the mistake while noting IMEI number in the
“seizure memo Ex.P-32. The last digit is, in fact, zero instead
of two. Thus, the correct IMEI number which is prmted on
the carton, is 35648-40028-49820.

(4.10) The team also traced that deceased Deepak purchased -
a prepaid SIM from the Idea Cellular Limited (for short the

| Idéa) in his name vide the application Ex.P-86 and he was

! allotted the SIM No.8991787107084727456 and Moblle
No0.97547-75495. -~

- (4.11) As per the call details of IMEI No.35648—40028—.
49820 supplied by the service provider companies, namely,_
the Bharti Airtel Limited (for short ‘the Airtel’) and the Vodafone
vide Ex.P-81 and Ex.P-60 respectively. Two SIMs bearing

: Mobile Nos.96_850:48589 and 95841-47788 were used for
f . aperiod between 14.02.10 and 23.02.10 in the mobile phone
of the said IMEI number.

L
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(4.12) Asperthe call details Ex.P-77, Ex.P-80 and Ex.P-82 .
provided by the Airtel, SIM of Mobile No.97552-33915 was
used in the mobile phone bearing IMEI No.35845-50206-
59230 for a period between 10.02.10 and 28.02.10 (as per
Ex.P-77, Ex.P-80) and SIM of Mobile N0.96308-46291 was
used in the mobile phone of aforesaid IMEI for a period
between 01.02.10 and 23.02.10 (as per Ex.P-82).

(4.13) Vide ‘Ex.P-I 02 to Ex.P-105, the Airtel also provided -
particulars as to whose name SIMs of some of mobile numbers
are issued. :

(4.14) The Idea provided call details Ex.P-142 of SIM of
Mobile No.97547-75495 for a period between 01.02.10 and
16.02.10 which was installed in a mobile phone bearmg IMEI
No.35845-50206-59230.

(4.15) On the basis of aforesaid call details and Ex.P-86,
Malkit Singh, a member of the team, found that the Airtel has
allotted SIM of Mobile N0.97547-75495 to deceased Deepak
in his own name and he had installed the SIM in the mobile
phone bearing IMEI No.35845-50206-59230. With that
mobile phone, deceased Deepak talked last time on 13.02.10
at about 2:58 p.m. At that time, his mobile phone was in the
range of Idea mobile tower located in village Dongrykheda.
Under the range of said tower, the place of occurrence falls.
Later, the SIM of mobile number 96308-46291 was installed
in the mobile phone. He also found that in the mobile phone of
the deceased-prosecutrix bearing IMEI No.35648-40028-
49820 SIM of Mobile Nos. 96850- 485 89 was 1nstalled and
used.

(4.16) Theteam traced that SIM of Mobile No.95841- 47788
was purchased by accused-appellant Kapil in the name of his
maternal uncle Rajesh Purvalia (PW-13) from Vikram Singh
(PW-49), who was the authorised distributor of SIMs of the
Vodafone. .

(4.17) On24.02.10, Rai Singh Soni seized a mobile phone of
the Slgmatel company with two mobile SIMs of the Airtel
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" bearing Mobile Nos. 96308-46291 and 97552-33915 from

the possession of Ashok s/o Bhurelal (PW-49) vide the seizure

memo Ex.P-6 in the presence of Ajab Slngh (PW-10) and -
‘Santosh (PW-50).

(4.18) On the basis of the information as stated in the
aforesaid para, on 02.03.10 Dinesh Singh; a team member,
arrested accused-appellant Kapil vide the arrest memo Ex.P-
53. On the same day, he interrogated him in the presence of

. 2791

Lakhanlal (PW-31) and Halke Bhaiya (PW-37). In the course

. of interrogation, he disclosed amongst other things that he and
“accused-appellant Ajju @ Ajay had taken the mobile phones

of the deceased-prosecutrix and deceased Deepak
respectively. He also disclosed that the SIM installed in the
mobile phone of the deceased-prosecutrix was removed, and
he installed the new SIM bearing Mobile No.96850-48589,
which was given to him by accused-appellant Ajju, He used
the said SIM for a period between 14.02.10 and 16.02.10.

" Later, he threw the original SIM and the SIM given by
“accused-appellant Ajju in a water canal flowing nearby village

Chirineta. Later, he used the mobile phohe with SIM of Mobile
No0.95841-47788. This SIM was given to him by his brother
Deepak (not-examined). He also disclosed that his soil stained
pants and shirt were kept in hi$ house. Upon the aforesaid
information, Dinesh Singh prepared disclosure statement Ex.P-
45. Pursuant to which, he seized one mobile phone of Motorola
company with a SIM bearing Mobile No.95841-47788 and
soil stained pants and shirt at his instance from his house in the
presence of aforesaid prosecution witnesses vide the Ex. P-
47.

(4.19) On 02.03.10, Dinesh Singh arrested accused-
appellant Ashok vide the arrest memo Ex.P-51 in the presence
of Lakhanlal and Halke Bhaiya. On the same day, he
interrogated him in their presence. Whereupon, accised-
appellant Ashok revealed amongst other things that he had
removed a pair of silver payals (anklets) of the deceased-
prosecutnx and kept the payals, his own mobile phone with

i



2792- In Reference Vs. Ashok (DB) . LLR.[2017]M.P.

the SIM, which he used before and after incident, and soil
stained pants and shirt in various places of his house.
Thereupon, Dinesh Singh drew his disclosure statement Ex.P-
41. On 05.03.10, he recovered a2 mobile phone of Nokia
Company model No.1028 with SIM of Mobile No.95755-
31130, the payals and soil stained clothes vide the recovery
memo Ex.P-42 at his instance in the presence of aforesaid
prosecution witnesses.

(4.20) On02.03.10, Dinesh Singh arrested accused-appellant
Ramjeevan vide the arrest memo Ex.P-52 in the presence of
Lakhanlal and Halke Bhaiya. On being interrogated by Dinesh
Singh, he disclosed that he had killed deceased Deepak by
hitting with a big stone on his head and threw it in the field
where the crime was committed, and he had hidden his soil
stained pants and shirt in the agricultural field of one Kapil
(not-examined) situated on the out-skirts of village Chirmeta.
Upon the said information, Dinesh Singh drew disclosure
statement Ex.P-43 and recovered the aforesaid articles at his .
instance vide the memos Ex.P-50 and Ex.P-57 in the presence
of the aforésaid prosecution witnesses. :

(4.21) On13.03.10, accused-appellant Ajju was arrested by
Dinesh Singh vide the arrest memo Ex.P-12 in the presence of
Sheikh Yakub (PW- 16) and Narsinghdas (not-examined). On
the same day, he was interrogated by him in the presence of
Laxman Singh and Halke Bhaiya. He disclosed amongst other
things that he took deceased Deepak's mobile phone, his shoes
and a pocket diary. He left his own chappals at the place of
occurrence as the same got stuck in mud. Later, he threw the
shoes in one agricultural field. He sold the mobile phone to
Ashok Raghuvanshi (PW-39) at Rs.450/-. He also stated that
at the relevant time he had a stolen motorcycle make Hero
Honda model CD-Dawn, which he has kept in the house of
Pooja's grandfather. Thereupon, Dinesh Singh drew his
disclosure statement Ex.P-35.

(4.22) On13.03.2010, Dinesh Singh vide the seizure memo
Ex.P-36 seized the shoes of deceased Deepak from the
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agricultural field of one Pop.Singh Raghuvanshi (not-
examined), which is situated on the out-skirts of village Kheriya,
at his instance in the presence of Laxman Singh and Hakle
Bhaiya. On 15.03.2010, he seized one motorcycle without
registration plate make Hero Honda CD-Dawn, soil stained
pants and shirt at his instance from the house of Pooja's
grandfather in the presence of Laxman Singh and Halke Bhaiya
vide the seizure memo Ex.P-37, but could not recover the
pocket diary and the chappals at his instance. In this connection,
he prepared search Panchnamas Ex.P-38 and Ex.P-39.

(4.23) On21.03.2010, Basant Kumar (PW-32) held the test
identification parade of seized articles in the presence of
Laxman Singh (PW-28) and Dinesh-s/o Chhotelal (PW-23).

In the identification parade, Meena Bai (PW-9), the wife of
deceased Deepak, identified a pair of shoes, one mobile phone,
one belt and one purse of her husband. Thereupon,
identification memo Ex.P-5 was prepared by said Basant
Kumar. -

(4.24) On 02.05.2010, accused-appellants, namely, Kapil,
Ashok and Ramjeevan and on 14.03.2010 accused-appellant
Ajju were medically examined by Dr. A.K. Agrawal (PW-46),
and he gave the reports Ex.P-69, Ex.P-72, Ex.P-73 and Ex.P-
74 respectively to the effect that they are capable of doing
sexual intercourse. He also noticed some minor healed-up
injuries on the person of accused-appellant Ramjeevan, which
he mentioned in his report Ex.P-73. In addition to the aforesaid
examinations, he prepared slides of their semen and cut offa
few of their pubic hairs and handed them over to Yashwant
(PW-19) and Sheikh Yakub (PW-16) in sealed packets for
foren51c tests.

(4. 25) On 05.05.2010, Kishore Shah (PW-33) held the test
identification parade of seized articles in the presence of
Harkishan (PW-18) and Preetam Singh (PW-44), in which
Sushila Bai, the deceased-prosecutrix's mother, identified one
mobile phone and one pair of payals as those of the deceased-
prosecutrix. In this regard, he prepared identification memo
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Ex.P-15

(4.26) In the course of investigation, Rai Singh Soni, Umesh
Singh (PW-54) and Dinesh Singh (PW-56) have recorded the |
case diary statements of all the prosecution witnesses.

(4.27) During the course of in\festi'gation, the police got
statements of Ashok s/0 Bhurelal and Ramvilash recorded under
Section 164 Cr.P.C. and the same are exhibited as Ex.P-62
and Ex.P-64 respectively. '

(4.28) The incriminating articles mentioned in the letter Ex.P--
144 were sent to the FSL Sagar for the purpose of forensic
tests and the DNA analysis/typing/proﬁling/fmger-printing.
Thereupon, the FSL sent the DNA. report Ex.P-143 and one -
unexhibited report pertaining to examinations of the samples
of soil collected from the place of offence and soil-stains found
on the clothes of the accused-appellants. The DNA report
Ex.P-143 has confirmed that the semen found in the vaginal- '
swab of the deceased-prosecutrix and on her underwear is of .
all the accused-appellants in addition to absconding accused
persons, namely, Vimlesh and Munda @ Parsram, who have-
absconded in the course of trial on 16.08.2013 (see para 8
for detail). '

5. Upon the seizure of incriminating articles at the instances of the accused-
appellants-and absconding'accused Munda @ Parsram and Vimlesh and the
DNA test report Ex.P-143, the team arrived at the ultimate conclusion that
the accused-appellants and the aforesaid absconding accused persons had
committed the ghastly crime. On 28.05.10, the police filed the charge-sheet
agai'r;st the accused-appellants and the absconding accused persons under

Sections 302, 376(2)(g), 201 and 34 IPC in the court of A.K. Nagotra, the

Judicial Magistrate First Class, Pipariya. The learned Magistrate committed
the case to the Sessions Court vide the committal order dated 23.06.2010.
Thereupon, the case is registered as Sessions Trial No.200/2010 and is made
over to the court of Additional Sessions Judge, Pipariya.

‘6.  Thelearned ASJ framed the charges against the accused-appellants
. and absconding accused persons under Sections 376(2)(g), 302 r.w. 34 (two
counts) in the alternative 302 (two counts), simpliciter, and 201 TPC. They

vy
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| : ‘
denied the charges and claimed to be tried.

7. The prosecution examined 61 witnesses, exhibited 144 documents
and marked all the seized articles in the support of its case, whereas the defence
exhibited 6 documents and examined one witnéss Dr. Sudhir Jaisani (DW-1)
in their defence. In the examinations under Section313 Cr.P.C., the accused-
appellants denied all the incriminating evidence and circumstances appearing
against them in the case. However, they admitted their arrests in the case.
They have taken the common defence of false implication in the case.

8. Itis worthwhile to mention at this stage that when the case was posted
for final arguments accused Vimlesh and Munda @ Parasram have escaped
from the custody of Sub- Jail Pipariya on 16.08.2013. The trial court has
declared them absconders vide order dated 06.06.2014 and ordered to
separate their trial. :

9. Upon the evaluation of evidence in the impugned judgment, the learned
AS]J has found the accused-appellants guilty for committing gang-rape upon
the deceased-prosecutrix and in furtherance of causing disappearance of the
evidence of the gang-rape they have murdered her and deceased Deepak.
Upon the aforesaid findings, the learned ASJ has convicted and sentencer

the accused-appellants as stated in para 2 of this judgment. '

10..  We have heard arguments advanced by the learned counsel for the
- "parties at length. For the purpose of convenience, we categorize broadly their
arguments under two heads “first” on the point of conviction and “second” on
the point of sentence . :

Point No.1

11. . Smt. Divyakirty Bohre, the learned Governmert Advocate, has
submitted that the prosecution case is entirely based upon the circumstantial
evidence, yet it has proved the guilt of the accused-appellants by
unimpeachable evidence and if all the circumstances, which are of conclusive
nature and tendency and which are not capable of being explained, are put
together, they form a complete chain pointing unerringly towards the guilt of
the.accused-appellants. She submitted that the DNA report Ex.P-143 itselfis
capable of proving conclusively the guilt of the accused-appellants. As to
reliability of the DNA report, she submitted that as per the research carried
out with the exception of identical twins not two individuals have the same
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DNA blue print. She submitted that it is not the defence of any of the accused-
appellants that he has twin siblings. Hence, the aforesaid possibility does not
exist in the case. She submitted that the DNA tests are carried out on the
basis of the DNA samples taken from the semen of the accused-appellants.
As per available research data, there is one chance in 300 -million that the
semen samples could have come from someone other than the specific
individual. In this regard, the learned counsel has placed a research paper on
record. She submitted that in the cases of Kamti Devi Vs. Poshi Ram ,
(2001) 5 SCC 311, Santosh Kumar Singh Vs. State through CBI , (2010)
9 SCC 747, and Nandlal Wasudeo Badwaik Vs. Lata Nandlal Badwaik ,
AIR 2014 SC 932, the Supreme Court has observed that the DNA report
must be accepted as scientifically accurate and exact science. She submitted

that the apex Court in the case of Anil Vs. State of Maharashtra, (2014)4

-SCC 69, affirmed the conviction of the acéused-appellant under Section 377
IPC placing reliance on the DNA report and a Division Bench of this High
Court in the case of Jitendra @ Jeetu and others Vs. State of M.P., 2014
(5) MPHT 45, confirmed the death sentence awarded to the appellants placing
mainly reliance on the DNA report. She submitted that in the present case, the
DNA report confirms that the accused-appellants committed gang-rape upon

the deceased-prosecutrix. She also brought to our notice that the U.S. Supreme
Court in the case of United States Vs. Jakobetz , [955 F.2d 786 (2d Cir.

1992)] had upheld the conviction of the rapist only on the basis of DNA.

. evidence available against him. She.submitted that the defence has not
challenged seriously in the crossexamination of Dr. A K. Agrawal (PW-46)
that both the deceased had suffered homicidal death. She concluded her
arguments by saying that the order of conviction passed by the learned ASJ is
based upon proper appreciation of evidence. Hence, there is no need on the
part of this court to interfere with it.

12.  Learned counsel for accused-appellant Ashok has submitted that
Lakhanlal (PW-31) and Halke Bhaiya (PW-37) are the witnesses of all the
arrest memos, the disclosure statements and the seizure/recovery memos of
the accused-appellants including the absconder accused persons. Lakhanlal
is a permanent resident of village Kalmesera of which deceased Deepak was
also resident (as per para 16 of his deposition). Halke Bhaiya is the cousin-
brother of deceased Deepak (as per para 20 of his deposition). Hence, they
are not independent witnesses of disclosure statement Ex.P-41 and recovery
memo Ex. P-42, therefore, they are not reliable witnesses. He submitted that

"
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an investigating officer tends to do padding of the prosecution case, Under
the circumstances, the testimony of Dinesh Singh, who is the author of aforesaid
disclosure statement and recovery memo, cannot be relied upon. Learned
ASJ has wrongly relied upon the recoveries of a pair of payals, a mobile -
phone and soil stained clothes at the instance of accused-appellant Ashok.
He submitted that as per the identification memo Ex.P-15, Kishore Shah (PW-
33) conducted identification parade for the seized articles. But, he has
- completely denied in his evidence to have conducted the identification parade
and to have got the articles identified by Sushila Bai (PW-27), the mother of
the deceased-prosecutrix. Moreover, she has admitted in her evidence that
she had identified the aforesaid articles at the police station. As peridentification
memo, the identification was held in the presence of Harkishan (PW-18) and
Preetam Singh (PW-44). Harkishan has admitted that he is the maternal-uncle
of the deceased-prosecutrix in para one of his deposition. Preetam Singh has
admitted in his cross-examination that he has merely put his signature upon
the identification memo at the police station. Since the identification of the
seized articles were not conducted following the due procedure, it is doubtful
that the articles namely payals and mobile phone belong to the deceased-
prosecutrix. He submitted that the prosecution had sent soil -stained clothes
seized from the possessions of the accused-appellants to FSL Sagar in order
to ascertain whether the samples of soil collected from the place of crime and
stains of soil found on their clothes are same in the texture and composition.
The FSL report thereof'is on record. But the prosecution has not exhibited it
in the course of trial. The FSL report being of scientific nature falls under
Section 293 Cr.P.C. and, therefore, it is admissible in evidence as per provision
of Section 294 Cr.P.C.. He submitted that for the aforesaid reasons the defence
can rely upon the unexhibited report. In this regard, reliance is placed by him
upon the decisions of this court rendered in cases of Brijlal Ghosi and another
Vs. State of M.P., ILR (2012) MP 1351, and State of M.P. Vs. Ghanshyam,
2008 Cr.L.J. 107. He submitted that according to the report, stains of soil
found on the seized clothes of accused-appellant Ashok and the samples of
soil collected from the place of occurrence are different in the texture and
composition. Thus, the FSL report disproves completely the presence of
accused-appellant Ashok at the place of occurrence. He submitted that the
" prosecution has not proved satisfactorily that the slide of vaginal swab of the
déceased-prosecutrix and the slide of accused-appellant Ashok's semen were
prepared taking all the necessary precautions and they were sealed properly
before sending to the FSL. In these circumstances, it is not safe to place
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absolute reliance upon the DNA report Ex.P-143, Upon the aforesaid
arguments, he submitted that there is no cogent and concrete evidence to -
connect accused-appellant Ashok to the crime, therefore, the impugned
" judgment insofar as it relates to accused-appellant Ashok is liable to be set
aside.

13.  Learned counsel for accused-appellant Ramjivan has adopted the
arguments raised by learned counsel for accused-appellant Ashok insofar as
the arguments support his case. Hence, there is no need to recapitulate the
farguments. He submitted that pursuant to disclosure statement Ex.P-43 of
accused-appellant Ramjivan, seizing officer Dinesh Singh had seized a stone
near the place of occurrence and his soil-stained clothes vide the seizure memos
Ex.P-44 and Ex.P-57 respectively. The police did not send the seized stone
to the FSL for forenisic test to-ascertain whether it has stains of human blood.
Since stones of all sizes are found everywhere, the seizure of a stone at his
instance does not have any evidentiary value without the forensic test. He
submitted that as per the unexhibited report of the FSL, the composition of
soil collected from the place of occurrence and the stains of soil found on his
seized clothes are different. Hence, the seizure of his soil-stained clothes does
not connect him with'the crime. Upon these arguments, he submitted that
there is no evidence at all on record to connect accused-appellant Ramjivan
even remotely to the crime. Therefore, the impugned judgment deserves to be
set aside against Ramjivan.

14, ~ Learned counsel for accused-appellant Kapil has also adopted the
arguments advanced by learned counsel for accused-appellant Ashok to the
extent which has direct relevancy to his case. He submitted that Dinesh Singh
recovered one mobile phone of the Motorola Company with SIM of Mobile
No.95841-47788 and seized his soil-stained clothes vide the seizure memo
Ex.P-47 from his house in pursuance of the disclosure statement Ex.P-45. As
per call'details Ex.P-60, the SIM of aforesaid mobile number was installed in
amobile phone bearing IMEI No.35648-40028-49820, whereas Rai Singh
seized a carton of mobile phone of the Motorola Company from the deceased-
prosecutrix's mother Sushila Bai bearing IMEI No.35648-40028-49822 vide
the seizure memo Ex.P-32. Thus, he had not recovered the mobile phone
from the possession of accused-appellant Kapil, which was alleged to be in
possession of the deceased-prosecutrix at the time of incident. He submitted
that as per the unexhibited FSL report, the composition of soil found on his
seized clothes are different from the composition of soil collected from the
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pIacc of occurrence, Hence, the seizuré of his so1I-sta1ned clothies does not
haveany ewdentlary value. With these Ssubmissions, “learned counsel submitted .
that there is no evidence on record to connect accused-appellant Kap1l to the
crime. He is, therefore, wrongly convicted and sentenced.

- 15, Learned counsel for accused-appellant Ajju@Ajay. has also supported -
the arguments raised on behalf of accused-appellant Ahsok (sic: Ashok) insofar
as they are relevant to his case. He submitted that on 24.02.10 vide the seizure
memo Ex.P-6 Rai Singh seized one mobile phone of the Sigmatel Company and
two SIMs of Mobile Nos.96308-46291 and 97552-33915 from the possession
of Ashok (PW-39), whereas the disclosure statement Ex.P-35 of him was recorded
by Dinesh Singh on 13.03.10 in which he revealed first time amongst other things
that he had sold the mobile phone of deceased Deepak to aforesaid Ashok at
Rs.450/-. If these facts are put together, he submitted, it is crystal clear that the
mobile phone was seized about 17 days prior to the recording of his disclosure
statement Ex.P-35. This fact proves amply that the mobile phone was not recovered
at his instance. He submitted that Ashok (PW-39) has denied in his evidence that
accused-appellant Ajju had sold him the mobile phone. Seizure witnesses namely
Ajab Singh (PW-=10) and Santosh (PW-50) s/o Tularam have also not supported
the seizure of mobile phone and aforesaid SIMs from the possession of said
Ashok. They are also declared hostile by the prosecution. He submitted that
there is no cogent and reliable evidence that the seized mobile phone belongs to
deceased Deepak. He submitted that Dinesh Singh recovered deceased Deepak’s
shoes vide the memo Ex.P-36 on the basis of his disclosure statement Ex.P-35
from the agricultural field of one Pohap Singh Raghuvanshi. However, the
. prosecytion had not made him a witness in the case. Laxman Singh and Halke
_ Bhaiya, who are the witnesses of disclosure statement Ex.P-35 and seizure memo
Ex.P-36, are interested witnesses. Hence, the recovery of deceased Deepak's
shoes at the instance of him are not proved beyond doubt. He submitted that vide
. the seizure memo Ex.P-37, Dinesh Singh seized one motorcycle and soil-stained
clothes at the instance.of him. There is no evidence on record that the seized
motorcycle was used in the comrnission of offence. As per the unexhibited FSL
report, the soil stains found onthe clothes of him are entirely different from the soil
collected from the scene of crime in composition, Hence, the seizure of his clothes
does not connect him to the crime. As such, there is no evidence worthy of credence
onrecord as to the involvement of him in the crime. . Hence, heis convicted and
sentenced upon eIroneous ﬁndmgs )
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' Point two

[6.  Learned Government Advocate has submitted that as per the DNA
report Ex.P-143, in the vaginal swab and on the underwear of the deceased-
prosecutrix traces of semien of not only all the four accused-appellants, but
also both the absconding accused persons are found. Thus, it proves that all
the six perpetrators committed gang-rape upon her. As per the post-mortem
reports of both the deceased, the deccased-prosecutrix suffered homicidal
death by strangulation, whereas deceased Deepak suffered homicidal death
on account of fracture in the temporal bone of his head. Thus, the mode of
their deaths proves that they were murdered in a cruel and barbaric manner.
As such, all the four accused-appellants and both the absconding accused are
beasts in the garb of human bodies. She submitted that in recent times many
cases are reported in the newspapers in which victims are first raped/gang-
raped and thereafter they are murdered by rapists with the criminal intent that
they could not come forward to give evidence against them in the courts. In
the instant case, the accused-appellants committed murder of the deceased-
prosecutrix and deceased Deepak with the aforesaid criminal intent. In the
circumstances, there is a crying need for sending messages on the part of the
courts to the rapists that the courts will award them only death sentences in
such type of cases. With these submissions, she prayed for confirmation of
death sentences awarded to the accused-appellants. In support of her
submissions, she relied upon the following cases in which death sentences are
confirmed; In reference Vs. Guddu @ Dwarikendra, (2012) 2 MPHT 182
DB (MP), State of M.P. Vs. Shyam Singh @ Bhima, 2013 Cr.L.R. (M.P)
19, In reference Vs. Sunil Balai, 2013 Cr.L.J. (M.P) 791, Mofil Khan and
another Vs. State of Jharkhand , (201 5)1SCC 67, Vasanta Sampat Dupare
Vs. State of Maharashira , (2015) 1 SCC 253, and Shatnam Vs. State of
U.P, (2015) 6.SCC 632.

17.  Percontra, learned counsels for the accused-appellants have submitted -
in one voice on the point of death penalty that the instant case does not pass
the test of “the rarest of rare case” as laid down by the Supreme Court in para
39 of its decision rendered in the case of Machhi Singh and others Vs. State
of Punjab , (1983) 3 SCC 470, and the guidelines given by the Supreme
Caurt in the aforesaid case and in the case of Bachan Singh Vs. State of
Punjab, (1980)2 SCC 684. They further submitted that the decree of brutality
in committing of murder and the numbers of murders are also not the criteria
for awarding death sentence, placing reliance upon the law laid down by the
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Supreme Court in the cases of Panchsheel Vs. State of UP., (1998) 7
SCC 177, Omprakash Vs. State of Haryana, (1999) 3 SCC 19 and Ram
Pal Vs. State of M.P. , (2003) 7 SCC 141. Upon these submissions, they
urged that if this court confirms the findings of convictions and sentences under
. Section 302 r.w. 34 (two counts) as imposed by the trial court, then each of
the accusedappellants be sentenced for life imprisonment in place of death
sentence thereunder.

18.+  After being heard learned counsels for the parties at length, we have
to satisfy ourselves first whether the trial court hasrightly convicted the
accused-appellants for the offences punishable under Sections 376(2)(g), 302
r.w. 34 and 201 IPC in view of the law laid down by the Supreme Court in
the case of Mohinder Singh Vs. State of Punjab , 2013 Cr.L.J. 1559.

19. Upon the perusal of the impugned judgment, we find that it suffers
from verbosity and the learned ASJ has not given specific findings as to what
circumstances are proved against each accused. However, it appears.to us
that the conviction of the accused-appellants is mainly based upon the DNA
report Ex.P-143. In the course of arguments, learned Government Advocate
has submitted that the prosecution has proved followmg circumstances against
the accused—appellants -

(i) At the time of incident both the deceased were in the company
of each other. o

(ii) Recovery of the deceased-prosecutrix's mobile phone with
the SIM of Mobile No0.95841-47788 from the possession of accused-
appellant Kapil. i '

(i) Accueed-appellant Ashok had used mobile phone of the
deceased-prosecutrix on 14.02.10 with SIM of mobile N0.95755331130
~ and he was found in possession of the deceased-prosecutnx s a pair of silver

payals. .

r

(iv) Recovery of deceased Deepak's mobile phone and shoes from
. the possession of accused-appellant Ajju. | -

(v)© The DNA report confirming that the decedsed-pfoeecunix was
subjected to gang-rape by all the four dccused-appellants.

(vij The autopsy reports confirmmg that both the deceased had
" suffered homicidal death.
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20.  Before analyzing the aforestated circumstances, it would be pertinent

to refer to some of the illuminating judgments in which legal principles are

propounded for convicting an accused solely on the basis of circumstantial
. evidence in a murder case.

21.  Inthe case of Sharad Birdhichand Sarda V. State of Maharashtra
(1984) 4 SCC 116, the Supreme Court has set out the following five golden-
principles for proving a case based on circumstantial evidence:-

@ the circumsiances from which the conclusion of guilt is
to be drawn must or should be.and not merely “may be” fully
established;

() the facts so established should be consistent only with
the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused, that is to say, they should
not be explainable on any other hypothesis except that the accused is -
guilty; ,

@)  the circumstances should be of & conclusive nature and
tendency; ' '

(iv)  theyshould exclude every possible hypothesis except
the one to be proved; and .

(v}  there must be a chain of evidence so complete as not

* to leave any reasonable ground for the conclusion consistent with the

innocence of the accused and must show that in all human probability
the act must have been done by the accused. '

In this case the Supreme Court has also held that the onus is on the
prosecution to prove that the chain is complete and the infirmity or lacuna in
the prosecution case cannot be cured by a false defence of plea.

22, . The Supreme Court had reiterated the same legal principles in the
cases of Padala Veera Reddy Vs. State of A.P. , AIR 1990 SC 79, and
Badh Raj alias Bodhu and others Vs. State of Jammu and Kashmir , AIR
2002 SC 3164, though they were restated in a different way. Almost similar
-view was also taken by the Supreme Court in State of Goa Vs. Sanjay
2007 AIR SCW 2226.

-23.  Inthe case of State of U.F. Vs. Ashok Kumar Shrivastava , 1992
Cr.L.J. 1104 SC, the Supreme Court has sounded a note of warning that
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great care must be taken in evaluating circumstantial evidence. Therein, itis

- pointed out that if the evidence relied upon'is reasonably capable of two

inferences, then one in favour of the accused must be accepted. It is also
pointedout that the circumstances relied upon must be found to have been
fully established and the cumulative effect of all the circumstances so established
must be consistent only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused.

24.  In the case of Raj Kumar Singh @ Raju @ Batiya Vs. State of
Rajsthan , (2013) 5 SCC 722, the Supreme Court after reiterating the same

_ principles as laid down in the case of Sharad Birdhichand Sarda (supra) has

held that in a criminal trial, suspicion no matter how strong, cannot and must
not be permitted to take place of proof.

25.  We may also make a reference to a decision of the Supreme Court
rendered in the case of C. Chenga Reddy Vs. State of A.P. , (1 996) 10 SCC
193, wherein it has been observed thus:- .

"21.In a case based on circumstantial evidence, the settled

'law is that the circumstances from which the conclusion of -
guilt is drawn should be fully proved and such circumstances -
must be conclusive in nature. Moreover, all the circumstances
should bé complete and there should be no gap left ir the .
chain of evidence. Further, the proved circumstances must be
consistent only with the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused
and totally inconsistent with his innocence." .

26.  In the case of Manu Sharma Vs. State NCT Delhi , AIR 2010 SC
2352, the Supreme Court in para 274 of the decision has held that where an
accused furnishes a false answeraasto a proved circumstance in his examination
junder Section 313 Cr.P.C., the court ought to draw an adverse inference
‘against the accused and such an inference shall be an additional circumstance

"~ for proving the guilt of him.

27.  In the case of Munish Mubar Vs. State of Haryana , (2012) 10
SCC 464, the Supreme Court has held that it is obligatory on the part of the
accused while being examined under Section 313 Cr.P.C. to furnish some
explanation with regard to incriminating circumstances associated with him.
‘The court must take note of such-explanation evenin a case of circumstantial
‘evidence so as to decide whether the chain is complete? The same view was
taken by the Supreme Court in the case of Pudhu Raja Vs. State , (2012) 11

}
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28.‘ In the case of Sanatan Vs. State of West BengaI 2010 Cr.L.J.
3871, the Supreme Court has observed as under when a case rests upon
circumstantial evidence. :

e

“That the circumstantial evidence is more reliable than eye

witness. The basic principle of circumstantial evidence is that

it should b~ consistent with the guilt of the accused and
_ inconsistent with innocence of the accused”

29.. ° In the case of Musheer Khan @ Badshah Khan and Anr. Vs. State '
of M.P., 2010 (2) JLJ 104, the Supreme Court has cited Lord Coleridge
who has stated that circumstantial evidence is like gossamer thread, light and
as unsubstantlal as the air itself as may vanish of merest of touch.

30.  SirAlfred Wills in his admirable book “Wills' Circumstantial Evidence
(Chapter VI)” lays down the following rules specially to be observed in the
case of circiimstantial evidence: (1) the facts alleged as the basis of any le gal
inference must be clearly proved and beyond reasonable doubt connected
with the factum probandum; (2) the burden of proof is always on the party

who asserts the existence of any fact, which infers legal accountability; (3) in
all cases, whether of direct or circumstantial evidence the best evidence must
be adduced which the nature of the case admits; (4) in order to justify the
inference of guilt, the inculpatory facts must be incompatible with the innocence
of the accused and incapable of explanation, upon any other reasonable
hypothesis than that of his guilt; and (5) if there be any reasonable doubt of
the gullt of thie accused, he is entitled as of right to be acqultted

3 1 : From a careful reading of the aforenoted decisions of the-Supreme
Court and the other material, it is crystal clear that the basic principle of criminal
law is that an accused is presumed to be innocent until his/her guilt is proved
and, therefore, in a case of circumstantial evidence it is necessary for the
prosecution to prove each fact which forms a chain of evidénce so complete
which leads to the inevitable and only conclusion of guilt of the accused. Ina
case of circumstantial evidence the facts established by the prosecution should
be consistent only with the hypothesis of guilt of the dccused, and the facts
should not indicate the'possibility of any other conclusion. The court hasa’
. dity to ensure that mere suspicion or conjectures would not take the place of
. legal proof and the prosecution has to produce clear, cogent and unimpeachable
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evidence which leads to the sole éohclusic_)n of guilt of the accused.

32. Now, we will proceed to test the clréhxhstantxal evidence mentioned
in para 19 on the touch stone of the propositions of law relating to the
circumstantial evidence. .

33.  SushilaBai (PW-27), the mother of the deceased-prosecutrik, has
testified in paras 5 and 8 that her deceased ddughter knew deceased Deepak
and he gave her a mobile phone on her birthday. She is not cross examined
upon her said statement by the defence. Therefore, her statement remains
uncontroverted. Upon which, it is held that both the deceased were on intimate
terms..

. 34, Dur_] an Smgh (PW— 14) and his son Mukesh (PW—25) have stated in

theif evidence that the police recovered two dead bodies from their agricultural
field. Laxman Singh (PW-28) has deposed that the police prepared a spot

. panchnama Ex.P-33 of the place where the two dead bodies were lying. There

is nothing in their cross-examinations to disbelieve them. Upon the evidence:
of the aforesaid witnesses and Ex.P-33, it is crystal clear that the dead hodies
of the two were lying adjacent to each other.

35.  Onthe basis of aforesaid evidence, we hold that t just before and at the
time of the incident both the deceased were in the company of each other.-
Thus the circumstance No.1 is proved by the prosecutlon beyond reasonable
doubts. ) -

36." Before dealing with the circumstances number (ii), (iii) and (1v), itis
relevant to consider the evidenice rendered by Pradeep singh (PW-36), Sai
Dutt Bohre (PW-52), Santosh Jadav (PW-53) and Rajesh Kumar Singh (PW-
55) who are the nodal officers of the niobile service provider companies,
namely, the Vodafone, the Airtel, the Reliance Communication and the Idea.
Pradeep Singh tendered in his evidence call details Ex.P-60 of a mobile phone
bearing IMEI No.356484002849820 for the period between 14.02.2010
and 23.02.2010. Sai Dutt Bohre tendered in his evidence call details of mobile
numbers 9755233915 and 9685048589 Ex.P- 77 and Ex.P-79 respectively -
for a period between 10.02.2010 and 28.02.2010 and call details of mobile
phones bearing IMEI Nos. 358455020659230 and 35648002849820 Ex.P- -
80 and Ex.P-81 for 4 period between 14.02.10 and 20.02.10, and, 14.02.10

* and 23.02.10 respectively. Santosh Jadhav provided call details of Mobile

No0.93030-87081 Ex.P-85 for a period between 01.02.10 and 21.02.10.
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Rajesh Kumar Singh has stated in his evidence that the Idea had allotted
deceased Deepak Mobile N0.97547-75495 upon his application vide Ex.P-
86. He further stated that as per call details Ex.P-142 the SIM of aforesaid
mobile number was used in the mobile phone bearing IMEI No.35 845-50206-
59230 for a period between 01.02.10 and 13.02.10. The aforesaid witnesses
are subjected to gruelling cross-examinations by the defence on the authenticity
of call details. They have stated that the call details are system generated,
therefore, there is no possibility of fabrication of call details and the same are
tamper-proof. In the case of Munish Mubar (supra), the Supreme Court has
relied upon the call details of the accused and the slain to prove the fact that
they were in contact with each other before the incident. Hence, we place
implicit reliance on the aforesaid call details.

37.  Sushila Bai (PW-27), the mother of the deceased-prosecutrix, has
deposed that she had given a carton of mobile phone of Motorola Company
to the police, which was seized by the police vide the seizure memo Ex.P-32
in the presence of Jitendra (PW-42) and Bablu (PW-43). Both the aforesaid
witnesses have corroborated the testimony of Sushila Bai. As per the seizure
memo Ex.P-32, Rai Singh Soni had seized the carton. It has been already
stated that he had died in a vehicular accident before recording of his statement
in the trial court. Upon the perusal of their evidence, we find that they are
independent witnesses and there is nothing adverse in their cross-examinations
to disbelieve their testimonies. Hence, their evidence is fully reliable. Moreover,
the seizure of the carton from the possession of Sushila Bai is not challenged
by the defence in her cross-examination. Relying upon the evidence of Sushila
Bai and the aforesaid seizure witnesses, we hold that Rai Singh Soni had
seized a carton of mobile phone of the Motorola Company from the possession
of Sushila Bai vide the seizure memo Ex.P-32 0n22.02.10.

38. Rai Singh Soni has mentioned in the seizure memo Ex.P-32 asthaton
the seized carton IMEI No.35648-40028- 49822 is printed. However, as .
per the case-diary and call details Ex.P-60, Ex.P-79, Ex.P-80 and Ex.P-81,
the team sought call details of mobile phone bearing IMEI No.35648-40028-
49820 from the concerned mobile service provider companies. Therefore, on
the basis of the aforesaid documents, we safely hold that Rai Singh Soni had
seized a carton vide seizure memo Ex.P-32 upon which IMEI No.35643-
40028-49820 is printed. However, he has written last digit “two” instead of
“zero™ in the seizure memo Ex.P-32 by mistake. For the aforesaid reasons,
the benefit of said mistake cannot be extended to accused-appellant Kapil as
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sought by his counsel in the course of arguments. -

39.  Dinesh Singh (PW-56), a member of the team, has deposed that on
02.03.10 he arrested accused-appellant Kapil before Lakhan Lal (PW-31)
and Halke Bhaiya (PW-37). Thereafter, he interrogated accused-appellant
Kapil before them. He disclosed him amongst other things that he had lifted
the mobile phone from the dead body of the deceased-prosecutrix. Thereafter,
he removed the original SIM and installed therein the SIM of Mobile
No0.96850-48589 which was given to him by accused-appellant Ajju. He
used the mobile phone with the aforesaid SIM for a period between 14.02.10
and 16.02.10. Later, he threw the original SIM and the aforesaid SIM in a
water canal passing nearby village Chirmeta. Thereafter, he installed the SIM
of Mobile No.95841-47788 in the mobile phone. The said SIM was given
him by his brother Deepak. Thereupon, he drew disclosure statement Ex.P-
45.0n 05.03.10, he recovered the mobile phone of the Motorola Company
with a SIM of Mobile No.95841-47788 and his soil-stained pants and shirt
from his house in the presence of aforesaid witnesses vide the seizure memo
Ex.P-47.Itis pertinent to mention here that Dinesh Singh could not recover
the original SIM of the deceased-prosecutrix and SIM of Mobile No.96850-
48589 at the instance of accused-appellant Kapil from the water canal. In
this regard, he has drawn search memo Ex.P-56.-

40.  LakhanLaland Halke Bhaiya have fully corroborated the version
given by Dinesh Singh. It has been argued by the defence that Lakhan Lal is
a permanent resident of village Kalmesera, the native place of deceased
. Deepak, and Halke Bhaiya is the cousin-brother of deceased Deepak. Hence,
they are interested witnesses. Consequently, their evidence is not reliable.
We find that they are put to gruelling cross-examinations on behalf of accused-
appellant Kapil, but there is nothing adverse in their cross-examinations to
draw the inference that they have given evidence being prejudiced against
accused-appellant Kapil. Therefore, we hold their testimonies reliable.

41."  Dinesh Singh is also subjected to lengthy cross-examination on behalf
of accused-appellant. However, there is nothing in his cross-examination to
disbelieve his evidence. It is pertinent to mention here that in the case of
Munish Mubar (supra), the Investigating Officer seized incriminating articles
from the possession of accused in the absence of public witnessées, but the
Supreme Court has relied upon the statement of the Investigating Officer. In
view of the above ratio, we may rely on the sole evidence of Dinesh Singh



2808 - In Reference Vs. Ashok (DB) - 1LR.[2017]M.P.

assuming for the sake of arguments that Lakha.n Lal and Halke Bha1ya are
interested witnesses. ;

42. On the basis of the aforesaid ev1dence we hold that Dinesh Singh
) seized a mobile phone of Motorola Company with SIM of Mobile No.95841-
47788 from the possession of accused-appellant Kapil. :

43.  As per call détails Ex.P-79 and Ex.P-81 for a period between
14.02.10 and 16.02.10 SIM of Mobile N0.96850-48589 was installed in a
mobile phone of IMEI No.35648-40028-49820. As per call details Ex.P-60
for a period between 21.02.10 and 23.02.10 the SIM of Mobile No.95841-
47788 was installed in the mobile phone of aforesaid IMEI number. It has
already been held that the mobile phone of aforesaid IMEI numiber belongs to
the deceased-prosecutrix. As per the Marg intimation report Ex.P-19, inquest
report of the deceased-prosecutrix Ex.P-34 and the statement of Dr. A K.
Agrawal (PW-16) on the timing of death of the deceased-prosecutrix, it can
be held that she was murdered between 13.02.10 and 15.02.10, but her mobile
phone was in use till 23.02.10. Accused-appellant Kapil has not given any
cogent explanation in his éxamination under Section 313 Cr.P.C. or otherwise
'as to how he has acquired the mobile phone of the aforesaid IMEI number
and the company.

44,  Inview of the aforesaid analysis of the evidence, we hold that the
- prosecution has proved circumstance No.2 beyond reasonable doubts that

the deceased-prosecutrix’s mobile phone was recovered from the possession

of accused-appellant Kapil and he had used the mobile phone till 23.02.10.

45.  Dinesh Singh (PW-56) has deposed that on 02.03.10 he airested .
accused-appellant Ashok in the presence of Lakhan Lal (PW—3 1) and Halke
Bhaiya (PW-37) vide the arrest memo Ex. P-51. On the same day, he quizzed
him in the presence of the aforesaid witnesses. He revealed amongst other
things that he had lifted a pair of silver payals from the dead body of the -
deceased-prosecutrix. He also disclosed that he had used the mobile phone
with a SIM and he had kept the aforesaid articles in an iron-box kept in one
- of the bedrooms of his house. On the basis of this information, he drew the
~ disclosure statement Ex.P-41. On 05.03. 10, he recovered a mobile phone of
the Nokia Company Model No.1028 with SIM N0.9575531130, one pair.of
silver payals and soil smudged clothes from his house in the presence of the
aforesaid witnesses vide the seizure memo Ex.P-42. Both the said witnesses
have fully corroborated the statement given by Dinesh Singh. All the three are
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put to lengthy cross-examinations by learned counsel of accused-appellant
Ashok. However, learned counsel has failed to elicit any evidence in favour
of him. Thus, we hold their testimonies are reliable. '

46.  While considering circumstance No.2, we have already held that
Dinesh Singh had seized the deceased-prosecutrix's mobile phone from the
possession of accused- appellant Kapil. As per call details Ex.P-81, on
14.02.10 SIM of Moblle No.95755-31130, which is seized by Dinesh Singh
from the possession of accused-appellant Ashok, was used in the mobile phone
of IMEI No.35648-40028-49820, which belonged to the deceased-
prosecutrix. Thus, the call details prove that accused-appellant Ashok had
used the mobile phone of the deceased—prosecutnx on 14.02.10, which
connects him to the crime.

47. - As per the identification memo' Ex.P- 15 on 05.05.10 Kishore Shah
(PW-33) had got one mobile phone and one pair of silver payals identified by
Sushila Bai (PW-27), the mother of the deceased-prosecutrix, in the presence
of Har Kishan (PW-18) and Preetam Singh (PW-44). However, Kishore Shah
has denied in his evidence having held the identification parade. Thereupon
the prosecution has declared him hostile. However, Sushila Bai has deposed
that in the identification proceedings she identified a mobile phone and one
pair of ‘silver payals amongst other things as those of her daughter/the
deceased-prosecutrix. Harkishan and Preetam Singh have deposed that
Sushila Bai had correctly identified the aforesaid articles intheir presence.
There is nothing adverse in the cross-examinations of Sushila Bai, Harkishan
and Preetam Singh to disbelieve their testimonies on the point. Hence, there
is no adverse impact upon the prosecutlon case because of Kishore Shah has
been declared hostile by the prosecution. Thus, we hold that Dinesh Singh
recovered the deceased-prosecutrix's silver payals from the possession of
accused-appellant Ashok. We find that he has not offered any explanation'in
his examination under Section 313 Cr.P.C. ot otherwise as to how he got .
possession over the deceased-prosecutrix's payals. Consequently, it is proved
that he had removed the seized payals from the dead body of the deceased-
prosecutrix. " .

48.  Inconclusion, we hold that the prosecutlon has proved circumstance
No.3 beyond reasonable'doubts that on 14.02.10 accused-appellant Ashok
had the mobile phone of the deceased-prosecutnx and her payals wh1ch were
recovered from his possessmn after her murder

[
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. 49.  Asperthe seizure memo Ex.P-6, on 24.02.10, Rai Singh Soni seized
a mobile phone of the Sigmatel Company with two SIMs of Mobile Nos.
96308-46291 and 97552-33915 of the Airtel on being produced by Ashok
Raghuwanshi (PW-39) in the presence of Ajab Singh (PW-10) and Santosh
(PW-15). However, they have denied the aforesaid seizure in their examination-
in-chief. Thereupon, they have been declared hostile by the prosecution. On
being cross-examined by the prosecution, Ashok Raghuwanshi in para 6 of
his evidence has admitted that SIM of Mobile No0.96308-46291 has been
issued in the name of his aunt Shanta Bai and he found SIM of Mobile
No.97552-33915 on a public way. It has already been held that IMEI number
- of deceased Deepak’s mobile phone is 35845-50206-59230. As per the call
details Ex.P-77 and Ex.P-80, the SIMs of aforesaid mobile number_s were
used in the mobile phone of aforesaid IME] number between 14.02.10 and
22.02.10, whereas deceased Deepak had beén murdered between 13.02.10
and 15.02.10. Thus, on the basis of the aforesaid call details, it is held that
aforesaid witnesses namely Ashok Raghuwanshi, Ajab Singh and Santosh have
given false evidence as to seizure of the mobile phone and the SIMs.

50.  Dinesh Singh (PW-56) has testified that on 13.03.10 he arrested
accused-appellant Ajju vide the arrest memo Ex.P-12 in the presence of Sheikh
Yakub (PW-16) and Narsinghdas (not-examined). On the same day, he -
interrogated him in the presence of Laxman Singh (PW-28) and Halke Bhaiya
(PW-37). He disclosed him that he had removed from the dead body of
deceased Deepak his mobile phone, shoes and pocket diary. Thereafter, he
pulled out the installed SIM out of the mobile phone and later sold the mobile
phone to Ashok Raghuwanshi (PW-39) at Rs.450/-, his chappals got stuck in
mud which he left near the scene of crime and put on deceased Deepak's
shoes, which he, later, threw in a field having standing wheat-crop. The filed
(sic:field) is nearby village Kheriya. Thereupon, he recorded his disclosure
statement Ex.P-35. On the same day, he recovered deceased Deepak's shoes
at his instance in the presence of the aforesaid witnesses from the said field
owned by Pohap Singh Raghuwanshi vide the seizure memo Ex.P-36.

51.  We have already held that deceased Deepak's mobile phone was
recovered from the possession of Ashok Raghuwanshi (PW-39). Thus, we
place reliance on that part of accused-appellant Ajju's disclosure statement
wherein he has stated to have sold deceased Deepak's mobile phone to Ashok
Raghuwanshi (PW-39), which, in turn, proves that accused-appellant Ajju,
had removed deceased Deepak’s mobile phone from his dead body.
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52. " Laxman Singh and Halke Bhaiya have corroborated in their evidence

. the aforesaid statement made by Dinesh Singh. Learned counsel for accused-

appellant Ajju has crossed them at length. But, he has failed to discredit their
evidence. Thus, we hold that Dinesh Singh has seized deceased Deepak's
shoes at the instance of accused-appellant Ajju.

53.  Basant (PW-32) has stated that on 21.03.10 he got one pair of shoes,
one belt, one purse and one mobile phone identified by Meena Bai (PW-9),
the wife of deceased Deepak, by mixing up other similar articles in size and
shape in the presence of Laxman Singh (PW-28) and Dinesh Singh s/o *
Chhotelal (PW-23). He further stated that Meena Bai had identified the
aforesaid articles amongst other articles as those of her husband/deceased
Deepak. He has proved the identification memo Ex.P-5. His evidence is fully
corroborated by the testimonies of Meena Bai, Laxman Singh and Dinesh.
They are subjected to tedious cross-examinations on behalf of accused-

appellant Ajju. However, there is nothing in their cross-examinations to ~

disbelieve them. It is pertinent to mention here that as per the seizure memos
Ex.P-27 and Ex.P-28 Rai Singh Soni seized a belt and a purse close to the

. dead body of deceased Deepak, therefore, only the identification of deceased

Deepak's shoes by his wife is material. Thus, we hold that deceased Deepak's
shoes are recovered at the instance of accused-appellant Ajju. .

54. It may be mentioned here that Dinesh Singh could not recover
deceased Deepak's pocket diary and accused-appellant Ajju's chappals which
he has stated to have left at the place of occurrence. In this regard, he has

prepared search memos Ex.P-38 and Ex.P-39. : '

35. Onthe basis of aforesaid evidence, we hold that prosecution has
proved circumstance No.4 beyond reasonable doubts that deceased Deepak's -
mobile phone and his shoes are recovered at the instance of accused-appellant
Afju. | '

56.  Dr.AK.Agrawal (PW-46) has testified that on 16.02.10 he and Dr.

" Anita Sahu (not-examined) had jointly performed the autopsy on the-dead

body of the deceased-prosecutrix. At that time, they had prepared slides of
her vaginal swab/smear, cut off a few strains of her pubic hairs, finger-nails of

. her both hands and removed her underwear from her person and thereafter

they sealed them in separate packets and handed them over to Constable
Kailash Chandra (PW-38) for forensic tests. He further testified to have done
medico-legal examinations of accused-appellants namely Kapil, Ashok and
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Ramjivan on 02.05.10 and accused-appellant Ajju on 14.03.10. He found
them capable of performing sexual intercourse and gave reports Ex.P-69,
Ex.P-72, Ex.P-73 and Ex.P-74 respectively. He further testified that he
prepared slides of their semen and cut off their some of pubic hairs and sealed
them in different packets and handed them over to Head Constable Yashwant
(PW-19). Both the aforesaid police constables have stated in their evidence
to have received sealed packets from Dr. A.K. Agrawal. Upon the perusal of
evidence appearing in the cross-examination of Dr. A K. Agrawal, we find
that his aforesaid evidence remains uncontroverted and unchallenged as he is
not substantially cross-examined on behalf of all the accused-appellants. Thus,
we hold that his evidence is reliable on the aforesaid points.

57. ° Head Constable Gopal Singh (PW-61) has stated in his evidence that
the seized articles had been sent to the FSL Sagar for forensic tests vide the
letter Ex.P-144. The letter bears signature of Rajesh Raghuwanshi (PW-57).
There is nothing in his cross-examination to disbelieve his evidence. Thus, we
place reliance upon his evidence.

58.  Dr. Pankaj Shrivsatava (PW-GO) has deposed that he has been posted
as Scientific Officer in the FSL Sagar since 09.09.08. He further stated that
he has been carrying out DNA tests since March, 2007. Before carrying out |
the DNA tests in the present case, he had tallied the impression of sample-
seal with those on sealed packets numbering 48 and found the same. He also
found the sealed packets were intact. Thus, he had not found any evidence of
tampering or interpolation. He further deposed that in the course of DNA
tests, he extracted DNAs from the source materials namely deceased-
prosecutrix's underwear and slides of her vaginal swab by using organic
extraction and deferential organic technique. He found that the source materials
contain DNAs of more than one person. Thereafter, with the same technique
he extracted DNAs of all accused-appellants namely Ashok, Ramjivan, Kapil
and Ajju from their semen-slides. Upon comparison and matching, he found
their DNAs on the underwear and the vaginal swab of the deceased-
prosecutrix. After the completion of DNA tests, he prepared his report Ex.P-
143 on 16.12.10, which runs into 8 pages and each page bears his signature.”

59. . Onthe perusal of cross-examination of Dr. Pankaj Shrivastava, we
find that general suggestions are given in his cross-examination on behalf of
the accused-appellants, which he has denied. Not only that one of the advocate
of the accused-appellants has misconception to the extent that the finger print
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expert and the DNA finger-printing expert are the one and the same person
and he has crossed Dr. Pankaj Shrivastava as if he were a finger print.expert.
Not a single question is put in his cross-examination as to his competency in
conducting DNAtests, his own cred1b111ty, accuracy of the methodology or
the procedure followed by him for DNA profiling or possibility of the samples
having been contaminated or tampered with. In the case of Sandeep Vs. State
of U.P., (2012) 6 SCC 107, the apex court has held that the burden of .
proving that the DNA report was vitiated for any reason was on the accused.
. From a perusal of cross-examination of this witness, we find that nothing is
elicited on behalf of the accused- appellants to cast a doubt either-on the
reliability of the testimony of the witness or the authenticity of the DNA report.

60." Inthe cases of Kamti Devi (supra), Santosh Kumar Singh's (supra)
and Nandlal Wasudeo Badwaik (supra), the Supreme Court has held that
the DNA report is scientifically accurate and exact science. In the cases of
Santosh Kumar Singh (supra) and Anil (supra), the Supreme Court hag
held on the basis of the DNA reports that deceased victims were sub_; ected to
rape and sodomy before belng murdered.

61. Inviewofthe aforesaid authorities, we place absolute reliance upon
the evidence of Dr. Pankaj Shirivastavaand his DNA report Ex.P-143. On
the basis of the aforesaid discussion, we hold that the prosecution has
‘estabhshed circumstance No.5 beyond reasonable doubts that the deceased-
prosecutrix was subjected to gang-rape by the accused-appellants.

62. Dr. AK. Agrawal (PW-46), in his evidence has stated that on
16.02.2010 hé and Dr. Anita Sahu were posted as Medical Officers at the
Community Health Center, Plpanya. Upon the requisitions of the Police Station
Pipariya, on that day he alone performed the autopsy on the dead body of
deceased Deepak and he and Dr. Anita Sahu jointly conducted the post-
mortem on the dead body of an unknown woman. He has further stated that
he has assessed the age of deceased Deepak near-about 24 years and found
following injuries on'his person.

- : External In]urles

® One contusmn on the right parietal temporal reglon
of head, size 8x4 C. m

>

@)  One contusion on theleft parletal region of: head size
10x3 c.m.
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63.

(1)

(iv)
W)

(vi)

(vii)

(Vi)

(ix)

(x)
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One contusion on the posterior side of head, size 8x3 .
c.m.

One contusion on the forehead, size 7x2 ¢.m.

One contusion on the back side of sdapular region of
right shoulder, size 12x5 c.m.

One contusion over the scapula of left shoulder, size
5x2 c.m,

One contusion over the frontal side of right hand arm,
size 10x4 c.m.

One contusion (size is not mentioned in the post-mortem
report) over the outer side of right forearm.

One contusion over the outer side of left arm, size 5x4
c.m.

One contusion over the outer side of left forearm, size
5X2 C.Im.

Internal Injuries
Right temporal bone of the head was broken, blood

clotted over the brain and its tissues were torn.

Opinion - All the injuries were ante-mortem in nature and caused
by ahard and blunt object. Breakage of the temporal bone of the
head was sufficient to cause death in ordinary course of nature.
The remaining injuries were simple in nature. All the injuries were
inflicted within six hours before the death. Deceased Deepak died
of shock and hemorrhage. He died 48 to 72 hours before the
post-mortem examination. The nature of his death was homicidal.
His postmortem report is Ex.P-66.

Dr. A.K. Agrawal has also stated that he and Dr. Anita Sahu had
assessed the age of the deceased woman near-about 24 years and found
folIowmg injuries on her person,

L

External Injuries -

Five abrasions caused by finger-nails over upper region
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of the right breast, each of the abrasions had the width -
about 1 c.m.

Gy  Fivemarks of finger-nails over lower region of the right
" breast, the width of each of the marks was 1 c.m.

(i)  Five brown marks of finger-nails over the right side of
- theneck.

(iv)  :One ligature mark around the neck which was below
the thyroid cartilage, the width of ligature mark was
1/2 c.m. and the margins of mark were brown.

‘(v)  Oneears of wheat with stalk was partly found into the
vagina.
Injuries No. (i) to (iii) were ante-mortem in nature
caused by finger-nails. Injury No.(iv) was caused by means

of a piece of rope or wire. All the injuries were caused within
two hours before the death.

Internal Injuries

Both the lungs were. swollen and red. Blood was
- present in the left and the right chambers of heart. The
remaining internal organs were red.

Opinjon - The cause of death' of deceased woman was
asphyxia due to strangulation. Signs of sexual assaults were
present indicating that the deceased-woman was subjected to
rape before her death. The mode of her death was homicidal.
The deceased-woman died 48 to 72 hours prior to the post-
mortem examination. Her post-mortem report is Ex.P-67.

64. Uponthe perusal of cross-examination of Dr. A.K. Agrawal we find
that the defence has not challenged seriously the mode of death of both the
deceased. Hence, we hold that the prosecution has proved circumstance No.6
beyond reasonable doubts that both the deceased have suffered homicidal
deaths. : -

65. . It is a settled law in a case of murder based upon the circumstantial
evidence, the motive gains significance. We have already held that the deceased-
~ prosecutrix was gang-raped and immediately thereafter she and deceased

~
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Deepak were murdered. Upon combining both the events, we also hold that
the motive behind the murders of both the deceased by the accused-appellants
was that they would not lodge the police report of gang-rape and come forward
to give evidence against them in respect of the gang-rape in the court of law.

66. . Itispertinent to mention at this stage that we have carefully considered -
the depositions of all the 61 prosecution witnesses but discussed the statements

of those prosecution witnesses in the judgment whose evidence have relevancy

even remotely from the point of views of the prosecution or the defence.

67.  We have seriously considered the value of unexhibited FSL report as
argued thereon by the defence. As per the report, the samples of s0il collected
from the scene of crime and the stains of soil found on the clothes seized from
the possessions of the accused-appellants are different in the composition
and the texture. We do not attach any importance to the report in view of the
overwhelming evidence against the accused-appellants being found reliable
by us after due discussion.

68.  Before proceeding to examine the evidence of lone defence witness Dr.
Sudhir Jaswani (DW-1), we mention herein that Dr. G.P. Khare (PW-45) took
the blood samples of all the accused-appellants for DNA tests. Dr. Sudhir Jaswani
in his evidence has stated that the Government of Madhya Pradesh had terminated
the services of Dr. GP. Khare on the ground that his MBBS Degree was found
- forged in the inquiry. Upon the said statement, it was argued by the defence that
Dr. GP. Khare was not qualified for taking blood samples of the accused-appellants
for the DNA tests. DNA analyst Dr. Pankaj Shrivastava (PW-60) has stated in
para 10 of his evidence that he had not obtained DNA profiling of the accused-
appellants from their blood samples. Hence, we hold that the evidence of this
witness has no evidentiary value at all. '

69.  Considering the cumulative effect of all the proved circumstances, we
hold the chain of circumstantial evidence is complete that unerringly points
that none other than the accused-appellants had committed the crime.
Therefore, the'trial court has not committed any error of law or facts in
convicting the accused appellants for the offences punishable under Sections
376(2)(g), 302 r.w. 34 (two counts) and 201 IPC. '

70.  Now, we shall proceed to deal with whether the imposition of death
sentence upon the accused-appellants by the trial court under Section 302
IPC holds any justification?
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71.  The Supreme Court has evolved the doctrine of “the rarest of the
rare” case in awarding the death sentence through its scores profouncements.
Hence the first point before us is whether the present case falls under the
category of the rarest of the rare case? - ‘ '

72.  Inthecase of Machhi Singh (_supra), the Supreme Court has observed

- in para 39 of the decision that the following questions may be asked and

answered as a test to determine the rarest of the rare case in which death
sentence can be inflicted.

@ Is there something uncommon ab out the crime which renders
sentence of imprisonment for life inadequate and calls fora death sentence?

- (b)  Are the circumstances of the crime such that there is no
alternative but to impose death sentence even after according maximum

‘weightage to the mitigating circumstances which speak in favour of the

offender?

73.  Tn the case of Lehna Vs. State of Haryana , (2002) 3 SCC 76, the
Supreme Court has defined in para 23 of the decision that “the rarest of rare”
case when the collective conscience of the community is so shocked, that it
will expect the holders of the judicial power centre to inflict death penalty
irrespective of their personal opinion as regards desirability or otherwise of
retaining death penalty, death senterice canbe awarded. The community may
entertain such sentiment in the following circumstances:-

" %(1) When the murder is committed in an extremely brutal,
grotesque, diabolical, revolting, or dastardly manner so as to
arouse intense and extreme indignation of the community.-

(2) When the murder is committed for a motive which evinces
total-depravity and meanness; e.g. murder by hired assassin
for money or reward,; or cold-blooded murder for gains of a
person vis-a-vis whom the murderer is ina dominating position

- _orinaposition of trust; or murder is committed in the course |
for betrayal of the motherland.

(3) When murder of a member of a Scheduled Caste or

minority community ete., is committed not for personal reasons
_but in circumstances which arouse social wrath, or in cases of

'bride burning' or 'dowry deaths' or when murder is committed

-
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in order to remarry for the sake of extracting dowry once again
or to marry another woman on account of infatuation.,

(4) When the crime is enormous in proportion. For instance
when multiple murders, say ofall or almost all the members of
a family or a large number of persons of a particular caste,
community, or locality, are committed.

~ (5) When the victim of murder is an innocent child, or ahelpless
woman or old or infirm person or a person vis-a-vis whom the
murderer is in a dominating position, ora public figure generally
. loved and respected by the community.”

74.  The Supreme Court in the case of Mofil Khan Vs. State of Jharkhand,
(2015) 1 SCC 67, in para 64 of its decision has expressed its view upon the
rarest of the rare case as under:- -

“The rarest of the rare case” exists when an accused would be
amenace, threat and antithetical to harmony in the society.
Especially in cases where an accused does not act on
provocation, acting on the spur of the moment but meticulously
executes a deliberately planned crime in spite of understanding
the probable consequence of his act, the death sentence may
be the most appropriate punishment.”

75.  The Supreme Court has ruled in para 20 of its Judgment rendered in
the case of Haresh Mohandas Rajput Vs. State of Maharashtra, (2011)
12 SCC 56, thus:- : '

“The rarest of the rare case comes when a convict would be
menace and threat to the harmonious and peaceful coexistenice
of the society. The crime may be heinous or brutal but may not
be in the category of “the rarest of the rare case”.

76.  The Supreme Court has laid down the test of the rarest of the rare
case in para 27 of its decision in the case of 4nil @ Anthony Arikswamy
Joseph (supra) thus:- .

“The rarest of the rare test depends upon the perception of
the society that is “society-centric” and not “Judge-centric”,
that is, Whether the society will approve the awarding of death
sentence to certain types of crimes or not. While applying that
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test, the court has to look into the variety of factors like
society's abhorrence, extreme indignation and antipathy td
certain types of crimes like sexual assault and murder of minor
girls, intellectually challenged minor girls, minors suffering from
physical disability, old and infirm women, etc.”

77.  In the case of Santosh Kumar Vs. State through C.B.1. (2010) %
SCC 747, the Supreme Court in para 98 has explained the phllosophy behind |
the rarest of the rare principle thus:-

“Undoubtedly, the sentencing part is a difficult one and often
exercises the mind of the court but where the option is between
a life sentence and a death sentence, the options are indeed
extremely limited and if the court itself feels some difficulty in
awarding one or the other, it is only appropriate that the lesser
sentence should be awarded. This is the underlying philosophy
behmd “the rarest of the rare” prmc1ple

78. In the case of Santosh Kumar Sat:shbhushan Bariyar Vs. Srate of
Maharashtra , (2009) 6 SCC 498, the apex Court held that the nature,
motive, and impact of crime, culpability, quality of evidence, socio economic
circumstances, impossibility of rehabilitation are some of the factors, the Court
may take into consideration while dealing with such cases.

79. Inthe case of Bachan Singh (supra), the Supreme Court has laid
down the following guidelines fo be applied to the facts to each individual
case where the question of imposition of death sentence arises:-

" (i) The extreme penalty of death need not be inflicted except
in the gravest cases of extreme culpability.

(ii) Before opting for the death penalty, the circumstances of
the 'offender’ also require to be taken into consideration along
“with the circumstances of the ‘crime’.

(iii) Life imprisonment is the rule and the death sentence isan
_exception. Death sentence must bé imposed only when life
imprisonment appears to be an altogether 1nadequate
" punishment baving regard to the relevant circumstances of the
crime, and provided, and only provided, the option to impose
sentence of imprisonment for life cannot be conscientiously
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exercised having regard to the nature and circumstances of the
crime and all the relevant circumstances.

(iv) Abalance-sheet of aggravating and mitigating circumstances
has to be drawn up and in doing so the mitigating circumstances
has to be accorded full weightage and a just balance has to be
struck between the aggravating and the mxtlgatmg
circumstances before the option is exercised.

80.  Inthe cases of Bachan Singh and Machhi Singh (supra), the Supreme
Court has enumerated following aggravating and mitigating circumstances for
consideration of awarding the capital punishment:-

Aggravating circumstances (crime test)

(1) Theoffences relating to the commission of heinous
crimes like murder, rape, armed dacoity, kidnapping, etc. by
the accused with a prior record of conviction for capital felony
or offences committed by the person having a substantial hlstory
of serious assaults and criminal convictions,

(2) The offence was committed while the offender
was engaged in the commission of another serious offence. -

(3) The offence was committed with the intention to
create a fear psychosis in the public at large and was committed
ina public place by a weapon or devise which clearly could be
hazardous to the life of more than one person.

(4) The offence of murder was committed for ransom
or like offences to receive money ormonetary benefits.

(5) Hired killings.

(6) The offence was committed outrageously for want
only while involving 1nhumane treatment and torture to the
victim.

(7) The offence was committed by a person while in
lawful custody.

(8) The murder or the offence was committed, to
prevent a person lawfully carrying out his duty like arrest or
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€2 When the crime is enormous in proportlon like

. making an attempt of murder of the entire fam1ly or members .

of a particular community.

(10) When the victim is innocent, helpless or aperson
relies upon the trust of relationship and social norms, like a
child, helpless woman, a ‘daughter or a niece staying with a

‘father/uncle and is inflicted with the crime by such a trusted

person.

(11) When murder is committed for amotive which
evidences total depravity and meanness. -

(12) 'When there is a cold-blooded murder without

: provocatlon

~ 2821

custody in a place-of lawful coﬁﬁnement of himsélf or another.
_For instance, murder is of a person who had acted in lawful
_dlscharge of his duty under Section 43 Cr.P.C.

(13) Thecrimeis commmed so brutally that i 1t prlcks' N

~or shocks not only the judicial conscience but even the

conscience of the society.
Mitigating circimstances (criminal test)

(1) The manner and circumstances in and under which

the offence was committed, for example, extreme mental.or .

emotional disturbance or extreme provocation in
contradistinction to all these situations in normal course.

(2) Theageofthe accusedisa rele\_ra_x_lt'consi&eratioﬁ
but nota determmatlve factor by itself.

- (3) The chances of the accused of not mdulglng in
commission of the crime again and the probability of the
accused being reformed and rehabilitated.

(4) The condmon of the accused shows that he was
mentally defective and the defect impaired his capacity to
appreciate the cucumstances ofhis cnmmal conduct

(5) The cucumstances which, in normal course of

-
¥ --"-
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life, would render such a behaviour possible and could have
the effect of giving rise to mental imbalance in that given situation
like persistent harassment or, in fact, leading to such a peak of
human behaviour that, in the facts and circumstances of the
case, the accused believed that he was morally justified i in
committing the offence.

(6) Where the court upon proper appreciation of

evidence is of the view that the crime was not committed ina

. preordained manner and that the death resulted in the course

of commission of another crime and that there was a possibility

of it being construed as consequences to the commission of
the primary crime.

) Where it is absolutely unsafe to rely upon the
testimony of a sole eyewitness though the prosecution has
brought home the guilt of the accused.

* However, we are aware that the Supreme Court in the case of Shankar
Kisanrao Khade vs. State of Maharashtra, (2013) 5 SCC 546, has stated
that the application of aggravating and mitigating circumstances needs a fresh
look in sentencing process. Aggravating circumstances relate to the crime while
mitigating circumstances relate to the criminal. A balance-sheet cannot be drawn
up for comparing the two. The considerations for both are distinct and
unrelated. In the sentencmg process boththe crime and criminal are equally
important.

81.  Inthe light of aforesaid legal position, we shall consider whether the
instant case falls within the category of rarest of the rare case? We visualise
that following are the aggravating and the mitigating circumstances.

Aggravating circumstances

(1) . Theaccused-appellants first committed gang-rape and thereafter they
murdered the deceased-prosecutrix and her companion deceased Deepak.
They were quite young and were murdered in a cruel and barbaric manner.

(2)  Inrecent past many cases are reported in the newspapers that rapist/
rapists first commits/commit rape/gang-rape and thereafter murder the victim-
girl/woman so that she would not depose against him/them in the courts. Hence,
there is an urgent need on the part of the courts to send strong messages to

-]



LL.R.[2017]M.P. In Reference Vs. Ashok (DB) . 2823

such criminal(s) that the court would deal with him/them with the severest
pumshment ie. capxtal punishment. :

(3)  The accused-dppellants had not committed the offence under the
influence of alcohoI or any other intoxicating substance.

@) The accused-appellants have absolutely no regard for the chastity of
a woman and the life and limb of a person.

Mmgatmg circumstances

(1) The prosecution has not produced any evidence against any of the
accused-appellants with regard to his criminal antecedents. Hence, we may
deduce that the accused-appellants being the first offenders are not menace
or threat to the society. :

(2) All the accused-appellants are in the age group of 25 to 30 years and
some of them are married.

(3)  Thereis no evidence on record as to which accused-appellant took a
lead to instigate other accused-appellants to commit the crime. Hence, it is
‘not possible for us to identify whose case among the accused—appellants falls
in the category of the rarest of the rare case.

4) Evidence on record reveals that the deceased-prosecutrix was
" unmarried girl, whereas deceased Deepak was married man. The deceased-
prosecutrix belonged to Kahar caste, while deceased Deepak was of
Kushwaha caste. Moreover, they were permanent residents of different places.

The deceased-prosecutrix was a resident of Sohagpur, whereas deceased
Deepak was a resident of village Kalmesera. Sushila Bai (PW-27), the mother
+ of the deceased-prosecutrix, has stated in her evidence that the deceased-
' prosecutrix had left the house, saying that she was going to Itarsi to meet her
* elder sister Pooja. Meena Bai (PW-9), the wife of deceased Deepak, has
stated in her evidence that her husband left the house, saying that he was
. going to village Bankhedi. Sushila Bai has also stated that deceased Deepak
gave a mobile phone to her deceased daughter on her birthday. The dead
bodies of both the deceased were found in the agricultural field close to each
other. If these facts are put together, it appears to us that both the deceased
had close physical intimacy. Hence, if may be that the accused-appellants
saw them in a compromising position which aroused them and they comini;ted
the crime. Thus, it can be said safely that the accused-appellants committed
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the offence at the spur of moment.

Upon the comparison of the aggravating and the mitigating
_circumstances, we find that the mitigating circumstances have far outweighed
the aggravatmg circumstances.

82. Thc Supreme Court in the case of Shankar Kisanrao Khede (supra)
has considered a slew of cases, where the victims were first subjected to
rape/gang-rape/sodomy and thereafter they were murdered by the accused/
accused persons, in which the Supreme Court has affirmed the death sentences
or converted the same into the life imprisonments.

83.  Thefacts of the present case are similar to those of the case of Ronny
Vs. State of Maharashtra , (1998) 3 SCC 625. In that case, three accused
persons in the age group of 23 to 25 years had committed three murders and
a gang-rape. The Supreme Court commuted their death sentences to
imprisonments for life on the ground that it was not possible to identify whose
case would fall in the category of “the rarest of the rare” case. We have already
stated under the head of mitigating circumstance that it is not possible to identify
whose accused-appellant case falls in the category of rarest of the rare case.
Keeping in view the facts of case-law, we are not inclined to affirm the capital
punishmient as imposed by the learned Trial Judge upon the accused-appellants.

84.  Now,the point remains to be decided by us is what will be appropriate
sentence to be given to the accused-appellants. .

85.  Taking the global view of the present case and keeping in mind the law
laid down it: the aforenoted rulings, we alter the capital punishment awarded
to each of the accused-appellants into the imprisonment for life for each of the
two counts under Section 302 r.w. 34 IPC.

86. Intheresult,

(1) - The criminal reference of 1 of the year 2014 made by the leamed Trial

Judge for confirmation of death sentences awarded to the accused-appellants
under Section 302 r.w. 34 IPC (two counts) is rejected. However, the order
of convictions under Sections 201, 376(2)(g) and 302 r.w. 34 (two counts)
IPC is upheld. '

(2)  All the appeals filed by the accused-appellants are allowed to the
extent that they would suffer life-imprisonment for each count under Section
302 r.w. 34 IPC instead of capital punishment.
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(3)  Each of the accused-appellants would suffer RI for 7 (seven) years.
under Section 201 IPC, RI for life under Section 376(2)(g) IPC and RI for
life for each of the two counts under Section 302 r.w. 34 IPC. Keeping in
view the law laid down by the supreme court in the case of Muthuramalingam
wnd others Vs. State , represented by Inspector of Police, (2016) 8 SCC
313, each of the accused-appellants shall suffer first jail sentence under section
201 IPC and thereafter life imprisonments awarded to him under sections
376(2)(g) and 302 r.w. 34 (two counts) IPC “concurrently .

(4)  The fine sentences with default jail sentences as imposéd ‘t;y the trial
court upon each of the accused-appellants shall remain as they are.

87.  Before parting with this case, we would say a few words upon the
DNA test/profiling/finger-printing. It is a recently developed impeccable .
scientific technique in determining the identity of a person alleged to be involved
in crime provided the crime-related DNA samples are properly collected, not.
tampered with or not conitaminated and the DNA analyst correctly matches
them with duly obtained DNA sample from the person concerned. Now-a-
days, the DNA profiling is being increasingly used by the investigating agencies
to nab culprits especially in those cases where the ocular evidence is not
_forthcoming. To safeguard the interests of culprits, the persons who have -
collected crime-related DNA samples and the DNA analysts are required to
be cross-examined effectively by their advocates. It is only possible when
they know the areas where the DNA samples collectors may make irregularities
in collecting them or the DNA analysts may make mistakes at the time of
matching the DNA profilings. Keeping in view the aforesaid, we request the
State Bar Council of Madhya Pradesh to make efforts to enlighten lawyers as
to how the aforesaid persons can be effectively crossed by arranging lectures
of experts of the DNA field and by making lawyers available exhaustive
reading-materials in this regard. We have come across that in the United State
(sic:States) of America if the prosecution case is entirely based upon the DNA
evidence, then it is mandatory for the prosecuting concerned agency to get
the DNA samples analyzed by the two recognized laboratories without
disclosing each other the fact that the DNA samples are also sent for analysis
to another laboratory as well. If the reports of both the laboratories are same,
then the prosecution is launched. Hence, we also request to the investigating
agencies to follow the suit in this regard.

88.  Copies of thisjudgment be sént to the Bar Council of Madhya Pradesh
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and the Principal Home Secretary to the State Government of M.P. Bhopal
. for information and taking steps in respect of recommendations made by us in
para 87.of this judgment. ‘

Order accordiﬁgly.
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' CRIMINAL REFERENCE
Before Mr. Justice S.K. Seth & Mr. Justice H.P. Smoh
_Cr.Ref, No. 1/2017 (Jabalpur) decided on 10 August, 2017

IN REFERENCE .- . ...Applicant.
Vs. _
RAJESH @ RAKESH & anr. ‘ -..Non-applicants

(Alongwith Cr.A. No. 83/2017 & Cr.A. No. 84/2017)

A Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 364-A, 201 & 120-B —
Kidnapping & Murder of Minor Boy — Conviction — Death Sentence —
Circumstantial Evidence — Presumption — Held — Case based on
_circumstantial evidence —No eye witness — As per postmortem report,
cause of death due to cut of neck by sharp cutting object — As per DNA
report, DNA of hairs found in fingers of deceased was similar to DNA
profile of appellant — Having proved the factum of kidnapping for
- ransom, inference of consequential murder of kidnapped person is liable
“to be presumed — Substantive evidence on record to establish
- kidnapping of deceased followed by his murder at the hands of
appellants —- Con}uctlon upheld - Appeals dismissed. (Para 46 & 47)

P, TS IedT (1860 &7 45), GRTY 302, 364—F, 201 T 120—d —
FUTTIY FIAF FT YIEVT T 8l — T — gegave — TRRYfo= oy
— gygreoy — AfAf iR — gevor o aer w amaRa @ — oY
agelf wieh TE — T wderer gREET B ITER, oY BT FRY gRAR B
# TR A T T owrer G R — Ay wiidET @ srEr, qOe @
S’ 1 R gl 7 AL adarefl $ e S e o — fedd
% T uEer o1 9o i 8 WM W, =ugd @l @) gRonfie sar @
Frepd 31 Saemeen &1 wmr wren @ — 7w wnfie B ¥y afes IR ARy
m%%mmmmmmmmmﬁﬁmaﬁﬁ_
a’mﬁﬁ;'ﬂm{@ﬂs‘ i @R |

B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 364-A 201 & 120-
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B and Evidence Act (1 of 1872), Section 106 — Burden of Proof— Held
— When it is duly established that deceased was kidnapped by
appellants, section 106 of the Act of 1872 places onus on them to
produce material to show the release of deceased from their custody — .
In absence thereof, it has to be accepted that custody remained with
them till deceased was murdered. . (Para 47)

. g Giedr (1860 ®T 45) &INTY 302, 364—V, 201 T 120—d7
YT WIET AT (1872 @7 1), FRT 106 — 6T 7T 97 — ARG —
WY 4T WHE 9 ¥ enfya far war @ % qae &1 ervever adtareffrer
gIRT T war o, 1872 @ afafRm ) g 106 99 W, ST AfRem A
|/ qaF F BIST FET T TG WY URGT HA HT AR Sred T —
@] auRerfy §, 78 Wer fFar s g 5 qae 31 s 8 e
T 9% ST ABPRET § 2T

C. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Sections 302, 364-A, 201 & 120-
B — Kidnapping & Murder of Minor Boy — Sentence — Held — Looking to
nature and way of committing offence, no possibility of any reform and
rehabilitation of appellants — Appellants having no value for human life,
carrying extreme mental perversion not worthy of human condonation —
Approach of accused reveals a brutal mindset of highest order — Death
sentence confirmed — Aggravatmg and Mitigating circumstances
enumerated and discussed on facts of the case. (Paras 50 to 55)

T TUE GIeaT (1860 BT 45), €TV 302, 364—F, 201 T 1204}
— JIIGIT AP FT UV VT gl — FUSIR ¥ — ARfEiRa — sarry
PG B B IR SR 7 F | gy, adarefr ¥ gaR W@
i B B F9Ear-T@ — srfiareffror s e e & ge Y,
Sa! s AFtae fagfa amda Wagr @ i @ - aftge @
gfiesivr oA Bife B JwY JFfaear voe sdl @ - g TSRy B
qfte & I — YHT F T’ W YemeN) vd THRAr $H &3+ arel)
TRRRAT wafera v fadfaa & 1) :

Cases referred:

(1984) 4 SCC 116, (1997) 7 SCC 156, (2001) 4 SCC 375, (2011)
12 SCC 56, (2012) 4 SCC 257, (2012) 4 SCC 289, (1971) 3 SCC 759,
(2013) 10 SCC 421, (2015) 6 SCC 632.

Ajay Shukla, G.A. for the apphcant/State in Cr. Ref. No. 1/2017 and
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for the respondent/State in Cr.A. Nos. 83/2017 & 84/2017.

S.C. Datt with Kishwar Khan, for the accused/non-applicants in
Cr.Ref. No. 1/2017, for the accused/appellant in Cr.A. No. 83/2017 and for
the accused/appellants in Cr.A. No. 84/2017. :

JUDGMENT

The Judgment of the Court was delivered by :
H.P.SiNGm, J. :- The instant Criminal reference No.1/2016 has been referred
by the learned III Addl. Sessions Judge, Jabalpur, against the same judgment
dated 29.12. 2016, passed in Sessions Trial No.560/2013, against-which the
accused/ Om Prakash Yadav and Rajesh @ Rakesh have preferred Criminal
Appeal No.83/2017 and Criminal Appeal No.84/2017, respectively, therefore,
all these matters are being decided by this common judgment.

2. The learned Il Addl. Special Judge vide judgment dated 29.12.2016 in

S.T.N0.560/2013 convicted the accused/appellant Omprakash for offence
punishable under Sections 364-A r/w Sec. 120-B of IPC and sentenced to undergo
life imprisonment and fine 0of Rs.2000/- in default R.I. For two months, whereas,
appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja Yadav have been convicted for offences
punishable under Sections 364-A r/w 120-B of IPC and they are sentenced to
death sentence each, and fine amount of Rs.1000/- each, in defauit of payment of
fine amount, they are sentenced to R.I for two months each. They have been
further convicted for offence punishable under Section 302 r/w 120-B of IPC,
and sentenced to undergo death sentence each and fine of Rs.1,000/- each, in
default of payment of fine amount, they are sentenced to R.I. for two months each
and convicted under Section 201 of IPC, they are sentenced to undergo R.I. for
five years each with fine 0of Rs.500/-each and in default of fine, R 1. for one month
each. Since death sentence was passed by the Court below, therefore, the death
reference is referred to this Court,

3. Being aggrieved with the aforesaid judgment, conviction and sentences,
the accused/appellants has preferred Criminal Appeal No.83/2017 and
Criminal appeal No.84/2017.

4. The prosecution case, in short, is that on 26.3.2013 at about 9:00

PM, Ajit Pal @ Boby, aged about 15 years, had gone to see “Holika” and

thereafter he did not return to home. Thereafter, the mother of Ajit Pal @
Boby, Rajwant Kaur (PW/1), her brother Mitthu @ Amarjeet and neighbourer,
accused/appellant Om Prakash Yadav went Gurudwara at Gwarighat and

ENY)
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searched about Ajit Pal @ Boby, but they did not find Ajit Pal @ Boby.
Thereafter, Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) lodged a missing report Ex.P/1 on
27.3.2013, at 16:15 PM about missing of her son Ajit Pal @ Boby, at.
Gwarighat outpost of Police Station Gorakhpur, District Jabalpur, which was
registered by Head Constable Ganesh Singh (PW/6) vide Missing Person -
No.46/13.

5. Further, prosecution story is that ont 28.3.2013, Mitthu @ Amarjeet
(PW/2) and accused/appellant Om Prakash Yadav were returning and as soon
as they reached Gwarighat, then Amarjeet @ Mitthu (PW/2) received a call
from mobile phone No.8305620342, on his mobile phone No.9300434520.
The caller identified himself as 'Khan' and stated that Boby is in his custody.
The caller demanded a ransom of Rs.50 ]acs and also asked him to have a
talk with the mother of Boby. The caller threatened that in case of non-payment
of ransom or in case of disclosing the incident to police, he will cut the neck of
Ajit Pal @ Boby. Consequently, the mobile phone was disconnected. When
Amarjeet @ Mitthu (PW/2) was receiving call, at that time, accused/appellant
'Om Prakash was present with him. Thereafter, Amarjeet @ Mitthu (PW/2)
went to Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) and stated about that call and when he was
stating about said call, again another call came, then the brother of Rajwant
Kaur (PW/1), Amarjeet (PW/2) gave his mobile phone to her. When she was-
talking with that caller, the mobile phone fell down, which was picked up by
accused/appellant Om Prakash. Accuased (sic:accused)/appeliarit Om Prakash
was talking with that caller and asked him where the said ransom has to be
_ brought. Thereafter, Monu alias Taranjeet Singh Gujral (PW/10) by his own
mobile had taken that mobile phone and started to talk with the said caller,
" but mobile was disconnected. Monu alias Taranjeet Singh Gujral (PW/10)
himself has dialed again and asked the caller and requested to have a talk
with the Boby, then Boby talked with him and consequently mobile phone
was disconnected. Said Monu alias Taranjeet (PW/10) told that Boby shouted
"Mammi Main Boby Main Boby” and started weaping. Monu has further
stated that the said sound was not that of Boby and he gave the number of
that caller in writing to Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) and suggested her to lodge a
report in the police Station. Thereafter, Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) informed-the
police. After completing inquiry about missing person report, SHO Shri R.S.
Parmar (PW/16), of Police Station Gorakhpur, recorded the FIR on 28.3.2013 .
vide Crime No0.273/2013 Ex.P/35 for offence punishable under Sections 364-
A & 365 of IPC.
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6. During the course of investigation, SHO Shri R_S. Parmar (PW/16), .
on the basis of aforesaid facts, appeared from caller of kidnapper of Boby,
- demand of ransom from mobile No.8305650342 and on the basis of enquiry
report Ex.P/35 submitted by Nodal Officer Bharti Airtel Limited, Indore, Sai
Datt Bohre (PW/15) and Santosh Jatav (PW/17), Nodal Officer of Reliance
Company, on the basis of call details of said mobile number took appellant
Rajesh @ Rakesh into custody and recorded his memorandum statement
Ex.P/8. As per memorandum on the denotation of accused/appellant Rajesh
@ Rakesh reached along with the witnesses, namely, Jitendra Singh(PW/8)
and Malkit Singh, near Khandari Nala and got prepared the spot map vide
- Ex.P/13. Thereafter, the dead body of Ajit Pal @ Boby, which was in the
well, contained in a plastic bag was got taken out and from the said dead
.body, certain flock of hair antangle of handful of the deceased, gunny bag and
shaw] roped in neck; were seized and for that Seizure Panchnama Ex.P/12
was prépared. From the spot, blood stained soil and plain soil, plastic chappal
were seized vide seizure memo Ex.P/9. On the same date, i.e.29.3.2013, 0n .
the basis of memorandum of accused/appellant Rajesh in presence of witnesses
near the spot, one empty Macdowel bottle was seized vide Ex.P/10. Onthe
indication of accused/appellant Rajesh in presence of same witnesses, one
. knife was seized vide seizure memo Ex.P/11. Spot map was prepared as
Ex.P/14. During investigation, after giving notice Ex.P/2, inquest memo of
dead body of deceased Ajit Pal (@ Boby was prepared by Shri R.S. Parmar
(PW/16) in presence of witnesses, as Ex.P/3. Thereafter, the dead body was
sent for postmortem examination vide Ex.P/11 through Constable Sushil
(PW/12). The postmortem of dead body of decéased Ajit Pal @ Boby was
conducted by Dr. Vivek Shrivastava (PW/ 7), vide Ex.P/7. On outer
examination of dead body of deceased, he found following injuries :-

(@ ingised wound (cut throat wound) measuring 12 cm x
0.2 cmx 4 cm present over frond of neck just below thyroid
cartilage, cutting the underlying skin. Soft tissues, blood vessels.
(carotids, veins and arteries), nerves, trachea essophagous upto
vertebra. Deep infilteration of clotted blood present in the
surrounding tissues . :

(@}  superficial cut throat wound (incised) measuring 7 cm
x 0.2 cm x 0.3 cm present just below the above injury. The
margins of the above two wounds are clear cut. Deep
infilteration of clotted blood present.
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On interior examination of dead body of deceased, he found following
injuries :-

Scalp, craniel & vertebrae are healthy. Sillo, brain and spinal

cord were found semi-liquified (half were melted), ribs and
pneumonia were healthy, already stated about throat and breath
vessels, both lungs were blackish, perchornium and trachea,

spleen, galbladder and kidneys were found melted. There were

no blood in big vessels.

He opined that the death of deceased was caused within 3 to 5 days
ofhis examination. The cause of death was haemorrhagic shock which was
caused due to cut of neck by sharp cutting object. According to him, the cut
wound on the neck was sufficient to cause death in ordinary course of nature
and death was likely to be homicidal in nature.

7. The cloths of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby were packed and sealed by
Dr. Vivek Shrivastava (PW/7) and handed over the same to the concerned
Constable. The seized knife was also examined by doctor Vivek Shrivastava
(PW/7) and opined that the knife was stained by some rusty spot and death .
of deceased can be caused by that knife. After examination, he packed and
sealed that knife and handed over to the concerned Constable for its
examination by FSL. One mobile (Intex) and one mobile (Micromax) were
also seized from the accused/appellant Raja Yadav vide Ex.P/19. All these
articles were taken into custody by Investigating Officer R.S. Parmar (PW/16)
and handed over to the concerned Constables vide Ex.P/40 and Ex.P/41
Summary report of call details were taken vide Ex.P/42.

8. Blood samples of accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh Yadav and
accused/appellant Raja Yadav were taken, preserved and sealed packets of
seized articles were sent to F.S.L. Sagar. As per the report of FSL Sagar
Ex.P/44, DNA profile of hair stranded in the finger of right hand of deceased
Ajit Pal @ Boby of male profile i.e. Ex.A(ID 7905) is similar to that of DNA
. Profile of accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh Yadav i.e. Ex.B(ID-7906)
whereas the DNA Profile of accused/appellant Raja Yadavi.e. Ex.C(ID-7907)
is different.

9. After investigation police filed charge sheet before the concerned
Judicial Magistrate First Class, who committed the case to the Sessions Judge.
A charge was framed against them under Section 302, 364-A, 120-B and
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201 of the IPC. The accused/appellants abjured the guilt. they took plea that

they have been falsely implicated in the case, they were brought to trial. In

their statements under Section 313 of Cr.P.C., the appellants pleaded false

implication. Appellant Om Prakash also placaded an alibi and claimed that he

had been admitted at Rohaniya Varansi for treatment. They have also taken

deferice that police had taken their blood samples by creating pressure and
thereafter, false case has been made against them. In his defence, the appellants

examined Dr. Ajay Bhandari(DW/1), Princy Thakur (DW/2) and Dr. Sandeep

Kumar (DW/3). '

10.  Learned SessionsJ udgc, after considering the prosecution evidence
convicted and sentenced the accused/appellants as mentioned above.

11. We have considered the rival submissions of learned counsel for the
parties and perused the records.

12.  Learned Govt. Advocate appearing on behalf of the respondent/State
has submitted that there is enough clinching material evidence to hold guilty
the accused/appellants for commission of offence. Learned Govt. Advocate,
further submitted that as per the DNA profile test done by FSL Sagar, it is
clearly proved that there is cogent evidence against the accused/appellants,
and they are found guilty of ¢ommission of the offence, because DNA of
accused/appellants and DNA profile of the hair stranded in the finger of right
hand of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby, which clearly indicates that accused/
appellants had committed murder of the deceased in brutal manner. The
matching of DNA profile with the dead body cannot be termed as a co-
incidence. This is the important piece of evidence which on meticulous
examirnation are corroborative evidence and cannot be overlooked. The blood
samples of accused/appellants have been kept in proper custody and were -
sent for test without tampering. Therefore, the same cannot be questioned.
Hence, it is a rarest of rare case and trial Court has rightly awarded death
sentence against the accused/appellants. : '

13.  Shri Datt, learned counsel for the accused/appellants submits that -
learned trial Court has failed to appreciate the factual aspects of the case and
has wrongly framed charge against them. He further submitted that appellants
have been falsely implicated in this case as there are material discrepancies,
contradictions, omissions and improvements in the statements of prosecution
witnesses. He further submits that the findings recorded by learned Sessions
Judge are erroneous and not based on proper appreciation of evidence available
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on record. No ingredients are available in the present case, which connect

. the accused/appellants in the crime. Learned counsel for appellants has drawn

our attention to the statements of prosecution witnesses and tried to convince

* us that the whole case is based on circurnstantial evidence and the prosecution

has failed to prove its case beyond reasonable doubt. It is contended that the
Court below has given its findings on presumptions, surmises and conjectures,
therefore, is liable to be set aside. He further contends before us that there is
no direct evidence available on record to prove the guilt of the accused/
appellants. Learned counsel for the accused/appellants further submits that

_ the circumstantial evidence should be unimpeachable and in the present case

no such unimpeachable evidence is available on record, therefore, the learned
Court below erred in holding the appellants guilty. He prays for acquittal of
the appellants by setting aside the judgment of the lower Court.

14.  There is no eye witness of the incident in this case and accordingly,
conviction of accused/appellants is based on circumstantial evidence.

15.  Now, the question for our consideration is whether the deceased
Ajit Pal @ Boby had died unnatural death during period of 9:00 PM of
26.3.2013 to 1:45 PM of 29.3.2013? and was his death homicidal ?

16.  Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) ‘mother of the deceased has stated that on
26.3.2013 at about 9:00 PM Ajit Pal @ boby had gone somewhere out of the
house to see “Holika™and thereafter he did not return. Rajwant Kaur (PW/1),
mother of deceased Ajit Pal @ boby, Amarjeet Singh @ Mitthu (PW/2), who is
brother of Rajwant Kaur and maternal uncle of deceased, Pooran Singh (PW/3),
who is father of sister-in-law of Rajwant Kaur (PW/1), Jitendra Singh (PW/8),
who is son of brother of mother of deceased, Taranjeet Gujral @ Mullu, who is .
neighbour of deceased, in a voice and sound have stated that deceased Ajit Pal
@ Boby had died. They had seen the dead body of the deceased. They had
stated in one voice and sound that dead body of the deceased was taken out from
the well contained in a plastic gunny bag. They have also stated that they had séen
cut injury on the neck of dead body of deceased. Certain flock of hair entangled
with the finger of deceased, gunny. bag, shawl roped in neck were seized and
panchnama was prepared. Spot map vide Ex.P/13 was prepared. Investigating
Officer, R.S. Parmar (PW/16) has stated that he discovered the dead body of
deceased on the basis of memorandum statement of appellant Rajesh (@ Rakesh

. on 29.3.2013 at about 13:45 PM and has prepared inquest mémo Ex.P/3 of
dead body of deceased in presence of witnésses after giving notice Ex.P/2 to

~4
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them. Amarjeet Singh @ Mitthu (PW/2) has also supported the statement of R.S.
Parmar (PW/16) and stated that proceedings of inquest memo was conducted
before him. Above all witnesses have stated that they have seen the cut injury on
the neck of the deceased and as per their opinion deceased had died due to that
injury and other injuries caused on the neck of deceased. The dead body of
deceased was sent to Medical College Jabalpur for postmortem by R.S. Parmar
(PW/16). Dr. Vivek Shrivastava (PW/7) had conducted the postmortem
examination of the dead body of the deceased on 30.3.2013. He has stated that
as per his report Ex.P/7, he found following injuries :-

(1) incised wound (cut throat wound) measuring 12 cm x
0.2 cm x 4 cm present over frond of neck just below thyroid

" cartilage, cutting the underlying skin. Soft tissues, blood vessels
(carotids, veins and arteries), nerves, trachea essophagous upto
vertebra. Deep infilteration of clotted blood present in the
surrounding tissues .

(ii) superficial cut throat wound (incised) measuring 7 cm

% 0.2 cm x 0.3 cm present just below the above injury. The
margins of the above two wounds are clear cut. Deep
infilteration of clotted blood present.

On interior examination of dead body of deceased, he found following injuries:-

Scalp, cranie] & vertebrae are healthy. Sillo, brain and spinal
-cord were found semi-liquified (half were melted), ribs and
pneumonia were healthy, already stated about throat and breath
vessels, both lungs were blackish, perchornium and trachea,
spleen, galbladder and kidneys were found melted. There were
nobloodin big vessels.

He opined that the death was caused within 3 to 5 days of his
examination. The cause of death was due to haemorrhagic shock which was
caused due to cut of neck by sharp cutting object. According to him, the cut

. wound on the neck was sufficient to cause death in ordinary course 6f nature
and death was likely to be homicidal in nature,

Accordingly, cause of death of the deceased was haemorrhage and
shock due to cut of neck by sharp cutting object. The appellants have shown
their ignorance on this point, which does not rebut the prosecution case. Thus,
it is well proved that deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby had died an unnatural death
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during the period 9:00 PM of 26.3. 2013 to 1:45 PM of29.3 2013 and his
death was homicidal.

17. . Now,the questions arise arewhether appellants c('mspired to kidnap
the deceased for ransom ? and in compliance of conspiracy whether the
appellants had kidnapped the deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby for alleged ransom
and they had killed Ajit Pal @ Body for that ransom ?

18.  Themother of deceased, Rajwant Kaur (PW/ 1) has stated that deceased

Ajit Pal @ Boby was her son, aged about 15 years and he studied upto 5th —

Class. She has further stated that she had sold her house for a sum 0f Rs.60 lacs
on 22.5.2013 to one Kirti Tiwari. She has further stated that on 26.5.2013, at
about 9:00 PM in the night his son, deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby, had gone somewhere
out of the house to see "Holika' and thereafter he did not return to home. She
thought that he went to the house of his maternal uncle. On the next day, i.e.
27.3.2013, her daughters after enquiring the matter informed her that deceased
did not go to the house of his maternal uncle, then she asked about her son from
her relatives on phone. She went to Gurudwara, near Gwarighat, and searched
about her son, but she could not get him and thereafter lodged missing report of
her son in Gwarighat outpost of Police Station Gorakhpur, Dlstnct Jabalpur vide
Ex.P/1, which was duly signed by her .

-

i 19. Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) has further stated that on 28.3.2013, her brother

Amarjeet @ Mitthu (PW/2) and her neighbour appellant Om Prakash Yadav
went to Gurudwara of Gwarighat to search the deceased, but they could not
get her son. When they were returning to home, Amarjeet @ Mitthu (PW/2)
received a phone of a person, who was introducing himself as Khan and told
that deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby was in his possession, asked him to send
Rs.50 lacs and thereatened that if the said money is not sent to him, he will kill
Ajit Pal @ Boby by cutting his neck. On reaching house, when Amarjeet
Singh was stating above conversation to her, then again said Khan called him,
which was received by Amarjeet Singh in the meantime, he gave the phone to
Rajwant Kaur (PW/1). She further stated that at that time, that person was
stating as follows:-

4.... " @ A VT &, qrErT St W ey F 2, gs?uamaﬂzr
wTR Preranett 2R ok gEe i ar e et eafa @t e, O
3§ R S @ Tl PIC PR ET B G| H BT Q6T Tl Al
g el e ¥ ar Prerar Y (f5e A 99 R R TR B Y
€ B A G | I B | B A meﬂ‘s’mﬁmaﬁ
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In her cross-examination, she has stated that she did not state above
statements to the police in her statement Ex.D/1. It was not asked that why
had she not stated in her statement Ex.D/1. Police had taken her statement on
28.3.2013. Upto that date, it was not known to her that appellant Rajesh was
involved in that crime, but appellant-Om Prakash and her son accused Rajesh
were pretending to help him and due to that she had not stated the role of
appellant Om Prakash and his son. She was understanding them as her
aspicious thinker. In this circumstances, her above statement cannot be said
to be unreliable. Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) has stated in her cross-examination
that appellant Rajesh was his neighbour and she knew him from his childhood.
At the time of taking on phone, she had recognized the voice of Rajesh, but
she did not disclose his name because the life of her son was in danger. She
has not explained why did she not state the above facts in her statement before
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‘ police, if all these were in her personal knowledge Perusal of Ex. D/1 also

reflects that these statements are not there.

20.  Amarjeet Singh @ Mitthu (PW/2), has stated that on 28.3.2013, he

. with appellant Om Prakash went to Gurudwara, Gwarighat to search Ajit Pal

@ Boby, but they did not get him. He further stated that at 9:28 AM, he
received a call on phone of a person introducing himself as a Khan, who was
telling that Ajit Pal @ Boby was in his possession and asked him to send
Rs.50 lacs. He further stated that number of his mobile is 9300434520 and
he received the call of number 8305620342 on his above mobile phone number.
He has supported the statement of Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) that he went to
Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) with appellant Omprakash and at the same time, he
received call from same mobile phone. He gave his mobile phone to his sister -
Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) and at the time 6f conversation, the mobile phone fell
from her hand, thereafter appellant Omprakash picked up cell phone and

* started talking and he was asking that where he should come with alleged

ransom. Appellant Omprakash was abusing on phone. He further stated that
thereafter Taranjeet Gujral @ Monu (PW/10) dialed the same number by his
own number and asked to have a talk with Boby. Thereafter, he heard the a
voice and then Taranjeet Gujral @ Monu (PW/10) said that said voice is not

. that of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby. Taranjeet Gujral @ Monu (PW/10) noted
* down the above mobile phone number and gave the same to Rajwant Kaur
" (PW/1). Rajwant Kaur (PW/ 1) has stated that she had given the above mobile

number to police. Taranjeet Gujral @ Monu (PW/10) has supported the
version of Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) and Amarjeet Singh (PW/2) and stated that

- on28.3.2013, when he was going to his dairy farm, then he saw that mother

of Boby was talking on phone and during conversation, she started weaping.

Thereafter, appellant Om Prakash took that mobile phone and started
conversation with kidnapper and asked where he should bring the money and
abused the said kidnapper. He further stated that he took that mobile phone,
but the same got disconnected and then he dialed that number by his own
mobile phone. As per his statement, he saved the said mobile phone number
in his mobile phone and before the trial Court he had shown the saved number
as 8305620342. He has further stated that he does not know the name of
holder of sim number 8305620342. In his statement, Taranjeet Singh @ Monu

(PW/ 10), had stated the above facts to police at the time of recording of his

statement under Section 161 of Cr.P.C. and if that version was not written by
the police, then he cannot say anything.
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21. . Investigating Officer, R.S. Parmar (PW/16) has stated that he had
collected the call details of mobile phone number 8305620342 by which ransom
was demanded. From cyber cell, he got information that said sim was used
from mobile phone of IMIE number 358327028551270 and on that mobile
phone, sim number 9993135127 was being used, which was in the name of
appellant Om Prakash Yadav.

22. | Santosh Jadhav (PW/17), posted as Assistant Nodal Officer of
Reliance Company, at Reliance Communication, Mansarowar Complex,
Bhopal, since February 2011, has stated that on asking by Superintendent of
Police Jabalpur, he provided call details of mobile number 8305620342 through
e-mail taken out by using software of computer of Call Details Company,
which is in his possession and control. The user I.D. And password thereof is
also with him. The call details Ex.P/35-A, containing two pages and relates to
the mobile number 8305620342 for the period w.e.f. 6.3.2013 t0 28.3.2013
and produced in the Court. He further states that mobile phone of IMEI
N0.358327028551270 is used in the aforesaid call details. The aforesaid call
details have been duly signed as per provisions of Section 65-B of the Evidence
Actvide certificate Ex.P/36, which was produced in defence and when defence
counsel had raised the question in respect of Ex.D/6, then it revealed that
- mobile phone No.8305620342 was handed over to Bhuraji, S/o Deepu, R/o
House No.433, Gandhi Ward, Tehsil & District Jabalpur.

23.  Amarjeet Singh @ Mitthu (PW/2) has stated that he has received the
call on his mobile phone No0.9300434520 from mobile phone
No0.8305620342. During cross-examination, in para 21 he has stated that
neither his mobile phone nor sim was seized by the police, but in the cross-
examination it was not asked that he was not having mobile phone
No0.9300434520. It is clear from Ex.P35-A that on 28.3.2013 from 9:35 to
9:50 hours, there were calls from mobile phone No. 8305620342 having IMEI
No.358327028551270 on the mobile phone N0.9300434520 which belongs
to Amarjeet @ Mitthu.

24.  Sai Datt Bohre (PW/15), posted as Nodal Officer in Bharti Airtel
Ltd. Indore, has stated that he is authorised to provide call details of mobile
number 9993135127 from 1.3.2013 to 28.3.2013 to Superintendent of Police
Jabalpur through E.mail. The aforesaid call details were procured by him by
using software through computer provided by the company and he is authorised
to do so by the company. On demand by the police by using I.D. Password,
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he providedcall details IMEI detail to.police or other investigating agency
. through E.mail. He has stated that mobile number 9993135127 was issued in
the name of appellant Om Prakash R/o 1200/CH Gwarighat, Jabalpur, During
‘recording of his statement, he has produced application form which was
produced by consumer Om Prakash along with his LD. Call details sent by
him'to Superintendent of Police Jabalpur is present on record. He further
stated that he had appeared along with the record. The certificate of call
details of mobile number 9993135127 is Ex.P/33 and certificate of IMEI
358327028551270 is Ex.P/34 and same were duly signed by him. In his
cross-examination, he has stated that he does not know the name of holder of
sim number 8305620342 and police had not inquired about this number, but
inquired about call details and IMEI Number of above sim number.

25..  Investigating Officer, R.S. Parmar (PW/16), has further stated that on
this information, he took Rajesh @ Rakesh in his custody and on interrogation
before Jitendra Singh alias Sonu (PW/8) and Malkit Singh, he gave information
that he will get recovered the dead body of the deceased from the well and knife
from the Nala situated behind his house. He wrote down his memorandum statement
as Ex.P/8 and took signature and thereafter on his information, he reached at the
well from where dead body of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby was taken out contained
ina plastic gunny bag after cutting the rope by which that gunny bag was tied.

After giving notice to the witnesses, he prepared inquest memo of the dead body

of the deceased vide Ex.P/12, He further stated that dead body was identified by
mother of the deceased, Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) as body of Ajit Pal @ Boby.

. Panch witnesses of memorandum and seizure of dead body, namely, Jitendra
alias Sonu (PW/8), who has supported the statement of Investigating Officer R.S.
Parmar (PW/16) and stated that on 29.3.2013, police has interrogated appellant -
Rajesh, who has stated that dead body of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby was found
in the well of Narmada Nagar. Thereafter, his memorandum was prepared vide

. Ex.P/8 duly signed by him. It is further stated by Jitendra alias Sonu (PW/8) that
they reached near well with appellant Rajesh where appellant Rajesh told about
the said well. In the well, dead body wrapped in gunny plastic bag was seen in the
water, which was taken out and recovered. The statements of these witnesses
cannotbe denied.

26.  Insupport of the prosecution case, Investigating Officér R.S. Parmar
(PW/16) has stated that after réceiving the information that alleged mobile
phone No.8305620342, operated from the mobile phone of appellasnt
(sic:appeliant) Om Prakash i.e. 9993135127, he went to Narmada Nagar,
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Gwarighat to the house of accused/appellants and had taken accused/appellant
Rajesh @ Rakesh into custody, taken him to police station, interrogated him

before witnesses Jitendra @ Sonu and Malkit Singh.on 29.3.2013 at 13:45,
then he disclosed about seizure of dead body from the well and knife from

Nala, The memorandum of Rajesh @ Rakesh was recorded by this witness

vide Ex.P/8 duly signed by him and accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh.

Jitendra Singh (PW/8) has also supported the version of R.S. Parmar (PW/

16) and stated about his arrest at P.S. Gorakhpur. On interrogration by Town

Inspector of Police, he has stated that dead body is in the well at Narmada
Nagar, Gwarighat.

27. R.S. Parmar (PW/16) has stated that he had prepared spot map
Ex.P/13 0n29.3.2013 at 15:15 before witnesses Jitendra and Malkit Singh,
which was supported by Jitendra Singh (PW/6). R.S. Parmar (PW/16) has"
deposed in his deposition that on the basis of information given by accused/
appellant Rajesh, he gave notice vide Ex.P/2 to Panchas and in presence of
panchas, he preparéd inquest memo vide Ex.P/3. The dead body was kept in
white coloured sack tied from by black coloured rope. The said sack was cut
and opened by Dashrath Barman. The neck and face of dead body was
wrapped with shawl. Half of the néck was shown to be cut towards right side
by sharp edged weapon. In the finger of right hand, some hairs were found-
and putrid smell was coming out from the dead body. This witness has put his
signature on Ex.P/3, confirmed the stuck hair in the right hands' finger of dead’
body which were taken out and sealed. Plastic sack and shawl were also
sealed vide seizure memo Ex.P/12, duly singed and confirmed the same. The .
dead body was said to be of Ajit Pal @ Body (sic:Boby).

28.  R.S.Parmar(PW/16) has further stated in his statement that on 29.3.2013,
on the basis of information given by accused/appellant Rajesh, he has taken bloods
from inner and outside of cement vessel, plain soil and blood stained soil, black
plastic chappal kept in cement vessel, in presence of witnesses, sealed the same
‘and prepared seizure memo as Ex. P/9. On the basis of information given by appellant -
Rajesh, one bottle of Mc. Dowell No.1 was also seized vide Ex.P/10, which was
duly signed and confirmed. On the same day, on the basis of memorandum
‘'statements of appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh Ex.P/8, blood stained knife, which was
taken out by appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh from Nala and after production thereof,
- the same was seized, sealed and signed vide Ex.P/11. Jitendra Singh (PW/8) has
also supported the version of R.S.Parmar (PW/16) and $tated that he had singed
(sic:signed) Ex.P/11. On showing the knife mentioned as Article 'A', he said that
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this is the knife which has been seized by the police. He futther stated that on
29.3.2013, on the basis of information of appellant Rajesh, spot map Ex.P/14
was prepared. Jitendra Singh (PW/8) has also stated that arrest memo Ex.P/
36A, of accused/appellant Rajesh, was prepared and signed by R.S. Parmar and
this fact cannot be denied during cross-examination of Jitendra Singh (PW/8).
Jitendra Singh (PW/8) in his deposition has stated that search memo, about sim
from the house of accused/appellant, is Ex.P/37. He stated that on 30.3.2013,
the sim could not to be traced out by R.S. Parmar (PW/16). Ex.P/38 is also
search Panchnama.

29.  Onthe basis of information given by appellant Rajesh, police officials
reached Gwarighat and searched about broken sim, which could not be traced
out. On 31.3.2013, Jitendra (PW/8), who was on police remand during
interrogation at P.S. Gorakhpur, in the presence of witnesses Bambam and
Surjit, has stated in his memorandum statement that said mobile was kept
with his brother Brajesh and he shall get it seized. On the same day,at 15
hours, Ex.P/16 was prepared in which appellant Rajesh has said that he shall
get seized blood stained cloths which were kept in the dairy under Khali-
Chuni ina room. It is also stated by this witness that on the basis of information
given by appellant Rajesh vide Ex.P/16, T-shirt, blood stained black colour

1 Jeans were seized vide Ex.P/18 duly stated to be written and signed by said
R.S. Parmar. It is also stated to be confirmed that on 31.3.2013, in the presence
of witnesses accused/ appellant has been arrested vide Ex.P/20.

30. Bambam @ Shaiwal (PW/9) is the witness of Ex.P/15, Ex.P/16 and
Ex.P/18, and confirmed the contentions made therein in the presence of
 accused appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh with regard to the fact of concealment
'of cloths under Khali in the dairy, the seizure thereof by police and arrest of
appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh @ Raja by putting his signatures on Ex.P/15,
P/16, P/18 and P/20. On 31.3.2013, accused Brajesh was taken into custody |
by R.S. Parmar (PW/16) for interrogation, who has stated about concealment
of mobile of his brother in a room and on the basis of Ex.P/17, intex mobile
having duel sim and micromax mobile containing sim N0.9993135127, were
stated to be seized from the possesion of accused Brajesh vide Ex.P/19.
Accused Brajesh has been arrested vide Ex.P/21 duly signed and confirmed

by R.S. Parmar (PW/16). Bambam @ Shaiwal(PW/9) have supported the
statements of R.S. Parmar (PW/16) and signed to be proved the version
mentioned in Ex.P/17, Ex.P/19 and Ex.P/21.

”
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31.  Invesigating Officer R.S. Parmar (PW/16) has deposed that he had
written a letter Ex.P/39 dt. 2.4.2013, duly signed by him to Chief Medical
Officer, Victoria Hospital, Jabalpur for taking the blood samples of accused
appellants-Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja Yadav. Dr. P.K. Sharma (PW/5) has
deposed in his deposition that on 2.4.2013, the accused/appellants were
brought for the said purpose in the hospital. He further stated that in presence
of witnesses Bambam @ Shaiwal(PW/9) who was of deceased side and Shiv
Prakash, who was the witness of accused/appellants side, their biood samples
were taken out, sealed and handed over to the police for DNA tesf. Blood
sample of accused/appellant Rakesh @ Rajesh was taken and Panchnama
vide Ex.P/5 was prepared and blood sample of accused/appellant Raja was
taken and Panchnama vide Ex.P/6 was prepared. Thereafter, Dr. PX. Sharma
(PW/5) has deposed, that he had signed Ex.P/5 and Ex.P/6, which were signed
by other witnesses also, clearly show that on 2.4.2013 at 18:55 hours, the
blood samples of accused/appellants Rajesh and Raja Yadav were taken on
the same day and Panchnama was prepared in presence of witnesses.

32.  Itisclear from para 3 of cross-examination of Dr. PX. Sharma (PW/5)
that blood samples of accused/appellants were taken by technician, but who
has taken the blood samples, his name is not mentioned in Ex.P/5 and Ex.P/6.
This witness has not taken biood samples of accused/ appéllants. From para
4 of his cross-examination, it is clear that persons from whom blood samples
were taken, their identity has not been mentioned. There is no mention about
handing over of blood samples to the police constable and in para 5, name of
constable to whom the blood samples were given, has also not been mentioned.
This witness could not state in his statement in para 7 that on what time he had
come to take blood samples, but he has stated that it is true that blood samples
Ex.P/5 & Ex.P/6 were collected by him at about 10-10:30, because on that
day police personnel had came to him at 10-10:30 to 11:00 and he had
completed the proceedings within half an hour. It is denied by Dr. P.K. Sharma
(PW/5) that he did not go to hospital in the evening at 5-6 PM, and also
denied that he had not taken any sample and also denied that he had signed
Panchnama Ex.P/5 and P/6 at the instance of police, thereby, it is clear that
sealed samples were taken and handed over by Dr. P.D. Sharma (PW/5) to
constable. It is also denied by Dr. P.K. Sharma (PW/5) that blood samples
were not taken by him or before him by the technician. On the basis of not
mentioning each and every particulars in Ex.P/5 and Ex.P/6, it cannot be said
that credibility thereofis doubtful. '
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33."  ShivPrakash (PW/4) is the brother of accused/appellant Raja Yadav.
This witness has not supported the assertion of Dr. P.K. Sharma (PW/5) and
signatures put on Ex.P/5 and Ex.P/6. He has been declared hostile and in his
cross-examination by prosecution, he denied the suggestion of prosecution
that he is not giving true statement with a view to save his brother. Shaiwal @
Bambam (PW/9) had accepted his signatures on Ex.P/5 and Ex.P/6 and stated
that on 2.4.2013 at 6:00 PM in the evening at Victoria Hospital Dr. P.K.
Sharma (PW/5) had taken blood samples of appellants Raja and Rajesh vide
Panchnama Ex.P/5 and Ex.P/6 and at that time, brother of appellant Raja and
uncle Shiv Prakash (PW/4) were present. This version is contradictory to his
statement mentioned in para 17, wherein he has stated that blood samples of
appellant Raja and Rajesh were taken by Dr. Pramod Sharma in a syringe,
but this anomaly does not make doubtful about taking of blood samples of
appellants Raja and Rajesh. _

34,  R.S.Parmar (PW/16) has deposed that he had sent all articles seized
during investigation to FSL Sagar through Superintendent of Police Jabalpur.

He further deposed that he sent séaled hairs stuck in the finger of right hand
of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby, blood samples of acccused/appeliants Rajesh
and Raja Yadav to FSL Sagar vide memo Ex.P/40. He also deposed that he
sent other seized articles as per draft Ex.P/41. He had also stated about
preparation of summary of call details vide Ex.P/42. He further deposed that
he had received the report from FSL Sagar as Ex.P/43 and DNA report as
Ex.P/44. From perusal of Ex.P/43, itis clear that on 22.4.2013, 10 sealed
packets and on 29.3.2013 seized articles A-soil, B-Chappal, C-Chappal,
D-Plastic sack, E -Shawl, F-cloth, G-knife from possession of accused
appellant Rajesh, T. Shirt of Ajit Pal @ Boby, Lower, Handkerchief, as Article
H1,H2, H3 & Full pant of Raja Yadav, T-Shirt, I-1 and I-2, Lower, T-shirt,
underwear of appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh, as Article J1, J2 and J3 were
produced and the same were chemically examined. Blood stained Articles A,
C,D,E,F,G H1,H2,H3,11,12,J1 & J2 were also chemically examined. As
per report Ex.P/43, human blood was found on Articles G, 11,12, J1,J2 and
J3. Due to decomposition, blood found on on Articles A, D, E,F, HI, H2 &
H3, their blood group could not be ascertained. No sufficient blood was found
on Article C. From above reports it is clear that on Article G-knife seized
from accused appellant Rajesh Yadav, his cloths Article I1,12 and cloths of
appellant Rajesh, Article J1, J2 and J3, human blood was found. -

35. R.S.Parmar (PW/16) has deposed that he had received the report of
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DNA finger printing unit of State Forensic Science Laboratory, Sagar as Ex.
P/44 1t is settled law that the evidence of the expeits is admissible in evidence
in terms of section 45 of the Evidence Act, 1872. It can be read without
proving of its contents. Its truthness has not been challenged. As per report
Ex. P/44, on examination of blood of accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh
and Raja Yadav and hairs stuck found in the finger of right hand of deceased
Ajit Pal @ Bobby, it was found that DNA source found on hair Ex. A (1D-
7905), DNA profile of male was found. Male DNA profile found on hair
stuck, found in the finger of the deceased Ex. A (1D7905) and DNA found on
the blood of appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh Ex. B (ID-7906) are similar but,
male DNA profile found on hair stuck, found in the finger of the deceased, Ex.
A(1D-7905) and DNA found on the blood of appellant Raja Yadav, Ex.C
. ID-7907 are not similar. Thus DNA profile of stuck of hairs found in the finger

of the deceased was same as the DNA profile of blood of Rajesh @ Rakesh.

36.  The DNA test report maching the DNA profile of blood of appellant
Rajesh @ Rakesh as well as hair found in the finger of dead body of deceased
or the curcumstances, which definitely and unerringly indicate towards the
guilt of the said appellant/accused. The maching of DNA profile with the dead
body or hair found in the finger of the deceased cannot be termed as co-
incidence. This is the important piéce of evidence, which is on maticulous
examination or corroborative evidence and cannot be overlooked.

37.  Pooran Singh (PW/3), knowing the identity of appeliants on the basis
of name and face, has stated that deceased Boby was the son of his daughter's
sister-in-law. Previously the appellants had visited his house. He went to the
house of Rajvinder Kaur (PW/1) at Narmada Nagar to give the sweet on Holi
Festival in the evening hours after performing his duty at Guru Govind Singh
Khalsa School. When he was going to his house and reached near railway
crossing at 9:00 PM from her daughter's house, then on way, he met with
appellants Raja, Rajesh and deceased Ajit @ Boby and asked Boby that itis
9:00 PM and why he did not go to home, then Boby replied that ke is going to
see Holika. Thereafter, Pooran Singh (PW/3) went to bus-stand by an auto-
rickshaw to go to his house at Saliwada. On 28.3.2013, his-daughter had
called him alleging that Boby was kidnapped and ransom of Rs.50 ldcs is
demanded. On the next day i.e. 29.3.2013, again he received call of his
daughter that dead body of Boby was found in a well; which was being taken
out at the instance of appellants Raja and Rajesh. This witness has also attended



LL.R.[2017]M.P. In Reference Vs. Rajesh @ Rakesh (DB) 2845
‘the cremation of deceased Boby on 30.3.2013.

38.  Further, Pooran Singh (PW/3) has stated that when he went to attend
the cremation of deceased Boby, then near railway crossing hie met with Town
Inspector and told that on 26.3.2013 deceased was with appellants Rajesh
and Raja. In para 3 of his cross-examination, he has stated that his daughter
is the aunt (Mami) of deceased Boby and her house is situated at a distance
of 15-20 kms where he went by an autorickshaw along with other passengers.
He went alone to his daughter's house. During cross-examination, he has also
stated that he received the information about kidnapping of deceased Boby
on 28.3.2013, but at that time, he did not give this information to the police.
In para 7, he further stated that deccased Boby was seen with appellants
Raja and Rajesh on 26.3.2013, but he has not stated this fact to anyone
except police. Pooran Singh (PW/3), in para 8 of his cross-examination, he-
deposed that in morning hours at 10:30 AM, he met with Town Inpsector and
on the same day in the evening at 5:00 PM, his statement was recorded in the
police station, but he denied to become a witness in respect of the fact that
deceased Boby was seen by him last time along with appellants Raja and
Rajesh. He also denied that he gave the statements as per Town Inspector's
version. Thus, looking to the aforesaid aspects, the statement of Pooran Singh
(PW/3) is contradictory and, therefore, cannot be believed. Accordingly,
prosecution is failed to prove that deceased was lastly seen with appellants-
Raja and Rajesh. Thus, there is no evidence of last seen of deceased with
appellants-Raja and Rajesh.

39.  The solitary contention advanced by the learned counsel for the
accused/appellants on the merits of the case was, that the prosecution had
ventured to substantiate the allegations levelled against the appellants only on
the basis of circumstantial evidence. It was sought to be pointed out, that in
the absence of direct evidence, the slightest of a discrepancy, depicting the
possibility of two views would exculpate the accused of guilt, on the basis of
benefit of doubt. Before dealing with the circumstantial evidence relied upon
against the accused/appellants, learned counsel invited our attention to the.
legal position declared by the Apex Court, on the standard of proof required
for recording of conviction, on the basis of circumstantial evidence.

40. The Apex Court in the case of Sharad Birdhichand Sarda Vs. State
of Maharashtra [(1984) 4 SCC 116] has laid down the golden principles of
standard of proof, required in a case sought to be established on the basis of
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circumstantial evidence. In this case Hon'ble Apex Court has observed as
follows :- ‘

“152. A close analysis of this decision would show that the following
conditions must be fulfilled before a case against an accused can be said tobe
fully established:

(D the circumstances from which the conclusion
of guilt is to be drawn should be fully established.

It may be noted here tht this Court indicated that the
circumstances concerned 'must or should'and not 'may
be'established. There is not only a gramatical but a legal
distinction between 'may be proved' and 'must be or should
be proved as was held by this Court in Skivaji Sahebrac
Bobade V. State of Maharashtra: 1973 Cr.L.J. 1783 where -
the following observtions were made : N

Certainly, it is a primary principle that the accused must be
and not merely may be guilty before a court can convict, and
the mental distance between 'may be 'must be' is long and
divides vague conjectures from sure conclusions.

(2)  thefacts so established should be consistent only with
the hypothesis of the guilt of the accused, that is to say, they
should not be explainable on any other hypothesis except that
the accused is guilty. .

(3)  thecircumstances should be of 2 conclusive nature and
tendency.

(4)  they should exclude every possible hypothesis except
the one to be proved, and

(5)  there must be a chain of evidence so complete as not
to leave any reasonable ground for the conclusion consistent
with the innocence of the accused and must show that in all
human probability the act must have been done by the accused.

153. These five golden principles, if we may say so, constitute
. the panchsheel of the proof of a case based on circumstantial
evidence.”
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41.  Further, in the case of Tanviben Pankajkumar Divetia Vs. State of
. Gujarat, (1997) 7 SCC 156, the Apex Court in paras 45 & 46 has held thus :-

“45. The principle for basing a conviction on the basis of
circumstantial evidence has beeri indicated ina number of decisions
-of this Court and the law is well settled that each and every
incriminating circumstances must be clearly established by reliable
and clincing evidence and the circumstances so proved must form
achan of events from which the only irresistible conclusion about
the guilt of the accused can be safely drawn and no other
hypothesis against the guilt is possible, This Court has clearly
sounded a note of caution that in a case depending largely upon
circumstantial evidence, there is always a danger that conjecture
or suspicion may take the place of legal proof. The court must
satisfy itself that various circumstances in the chain of events have
been established clearly and such completed chain of events must
be such as to rule out a reasonable likelihood of the innocence of
the accused. It has also been indicated that when the important
link goes, the chain of circumstances gets snapped and the other
circumstances cannot in any manner, establish the guilt of the
accused beyond all reasonable doubts. It has been held that the
Court has to be watchful and avoid the danger of allowing the
suspicion to make the place of legal proof for some times,
unconsciously it may happen to be a short step between moral
certainly and legal proof. It has been indicated by this Court that
there is a long mental distance between 'may be true' and 'must
be true' and the same divides conjectures from sure conclusions.
(Jharlal Das Vs. State of Orissa : 1991 3 SCC 27).

46.  We may indicate here that more the suspicious
circumstances, more care and caution are required to be taken
otherwise the suspicious circumstances may unwittingly enter
the adjudicating thought process of the Court even though the
suspicious circumstances had not been clearly established by
clinching and reliable evidences. It appears to us that in'this
case, the decision of the Court in convicting the appellant has
been the result of the suspicious circumstances entering the
adjudicating thought process of the Court.”
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Itisalso the legal position that where there was any vacuum in evidence,

the circumstantial evidence could not be relied upon. The Apex Court in the
case of Sucha Singh Vs. State of Punjab [(2001) 4 SCC 375], has held that .
each aspect of the criminal act alleged against the accused, had to be
established on the basis of material of a nature, which would be sufficient to
lead to the inference that there could be no other view possible, than the one
arrived at on the basis of the said circumstantial evidence. In para 19, it is

observed by the Apex Court as under :-

'«19. Learned senior counsel contended that Section 106 of
the Evidence Act is not intended for the purpose of filling up
the vacuum in prosecution evidence. He invited our attention
to the observations made by the Privy Council in Attygalle
Vs. R. (AIR 1936 PC 169, and also in Stephen Seneviratne
Vs. The King : AIR 1936 PC 289. In fact the observations
contained therein were considered by this Court in an early
decision authored by Vivian Bose, J. In Shambhu Nath
Mehra Vs. State of Ajmer, AIR 1956 SC 404. The statement
of law made by the learned Judge in the aforesaid decision has
been extracted by us in State of West Bengal Vs. Mir
Mohammad Omar, 2000 (8) SCC 382. It is useful to extract
a further portion of the observation made by usinthe aforesaJd
decision:

“33.  presumption 6f fact is an inference as to
the existence of one fact from the existence of
some other facts, unless the truth of such inference
is disproved. Presumption of fact isa rule in law
of evidence that a fact otherwise doubtful may be
inferred from certain other proved facts. When
inferring the existence of'a fact from othr set of
proved facts, the court exercises a process of
reasoning and reaches of logical conclusion as
the most probable position. The above principle
has gained legislative recognition in India when
Section 114 is incorporated in the Evidence Act.
It empowers the Court to presume the existence
of any fact which it thinks likely to have happened.
In that process the court shall have regard to the
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common cours¢ of natural events, human conduct
etc. Inrelation to the facts of the case.”

20.  We pointed out that Section 106 of the
Evidence Act is not intended to relieve the prosecution of its
burden to prove the guilt of the accused beyond reasonable

. doubt, but the section would apply to cases where prosecution
has succeeded in proving facts for which a reasonable inference
can be drawn regarding the existence of certain other facts,
unless the accused by virtue of special knowledge regarding
such facts failed to offer any explanation which might drive the
court to draw a difference inference.”

43.  From the aforesaid scenario, it is clear that the prosecution had placed
sufficient material on the record of the case to substantiate the factum of
kidnapping and murder of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby. Be that as it may,
without drawing any such inference, we would still endeavour to determine,
whether the prosecution had been successful in establishing the factum of
kidnapping and murder of the deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby, at the hands of the
accused/appellants. In so far as the instance aspect of the matter is concerned,
reference may be made to the statements of Rajwant Kaur (PW/1), her brother
Mitthu @ Amarjeet (PW/2) and Taranjeet Gujral @ Monu (PW/10) wherein -
they affirmed that on 25.3.2013 at about 9:00 PM deceased AjitPal @ Boby
had gone somewhere out of the house to see Holika, but he did not return.
Thereafter, during search, when Amarjeet Singh @ Mitthu PW/2 was returning
from Gurudwara, then Mitthu received a call on mobile phone. The caller was
introducing himselfas Khan and he was telling that Ajit Pal @ Boby was in his
possession and he asked him to send Rs.50 lacs towards ransom. The mobile
phone number of that caller was 8305620342 and he received that call on his
mobile phone number No.9300434520. Thereafter, when Amarjeet Singh
(PW/2) was stating about conversion to her sister, namely, Rajwant Kaur _
(PW/1), then again said person introducing himself as Khan, called on mobile
No0.9300434520 then he handed over the mobile phone to Rajwant Kaur
(PW/1). Thereafter, said Khan had talked to Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) and stated
that her son was in his possession and demanded Rs.50 lacs as ransom. During
conversation, the mobile pone fell down from her hand, thereafter appellant-
Om Prakash picked up that mobile phone and started talking and asked that
where he should come with said ransom. Appellant-Om prakash was abusing
on phone. Appellant Om Prakash suggested Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) for
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immediate release of Rs.1 lakh for liberation of Ajit Pal @ Boby. Thereafter,
Taranjeet Gujral @ Monu (PW/10) dialed the same number by his own mobile
phone number and then gave that number of said Khan i.e. 8305620342 to
Rajwant Kaur (PW/1) with advise to inform the police about mobile phone
number 8305620342. Thereafter, on collecting call details of mobile number
8305620342, by which ransom was demanded from cyber cell, it was found
that the said sim was used from phone of IMIE number 358327028551270
and on that mobile phone sim number 9993135127 was being used which
was in the name of appellant Om Prakash Yadav. It is also clear from EX.P/
35-A that on 28.3.2013 from 9:35 to 9:50 hours, there were calls from mobile
phone number 8305620342 having IMEI No.358327028551270 on mobile
No0.9300434520 which belongs to Amarjeet Singh @ Mitthu (PW/2) and by
the statement of Sai Datt Bohre (PW/15), Nodal Officer of Bharti Airtel
Limited, mobile number 9993135127 was issued in the name of appellant-
Om Prakash. Seizure of dead body of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby from the
well, kept in a plastic sack, murder of the deceased, seizure of knife stained
with human blood, on production of appellant-Rajesh Yadav, recovery of cloths
of appellants-Raja and Rajesh @ Rakesh Yadav, stained with human blood,
which have been established beyond reasonable doubt, itself prove that
accused-appellants had committed the offence. Demanding of ransom on phone
and informing that deceased was with appellants-Raja and Rajesh @ Rakesh
and thereafter finding of dead body of deceased Boby, in absence of any
contrary material evidence produced by appellants, it has to be accepted that
deceased Ajit Pal (@ Boby was in the custody of appellants.

44.  Based onthe evidence noticed in the aforesaid paragraphs, there can
be no doubt whatsover, that the accused/appellants had kidnapped Ajit Pal
@ Boby and had taken him away, and demanded ransom of Rs.50 lacs,
therefore, stands duly established.

45.  The material question to be determined is, whether the aforesaid
circumstantial evidence is sufficient to further infer, that the accused/appellants
had committed the murder of Ajit Pal @ Boby. According to the learned
counsel for the appellants, there is no evidence whatsoever, on record of the
case, showing the accused/ appellants participation of the accused/appellants
in any of the acts which led to the death of Ajit Pal @ Boby. It was, therefore,
the submission of the learned Senior counsel for appellants that even though
the accused/appellants may be held guilty of having kidnapped Ajit Pal @
Boby, since it had not been established that he had committed the murder of

v



[LR[2017MP. ~ InReference Vs. Rajesh @ Rakesh (DB) 2851

- Ajit Pal @ Boby; they cannot be held gullty of murder in'the facts of this case.

~ 46. Having gwen our thoughtful consuierahon to the subm]ssmn advanced
at the hands of learned Senior counsel for the appellants, we are of the view

that the instant submission is wholly misplaced and fallacious. In so far as the
instant aspect of the matter is concerned, reference may be made to the
judgment rendered by the Apex Court in Sucha Singh’ Vs. State of Punjab,
(2001) 4 SCC 375 wherein it was held as tunder :

“21. We are mindful of what is frequently happening during
these days. Persons are kidnapped in the sight of others and

' are forcibly taken out of the sight of all others and later the.
kidnapped are killed. If a legal principle is to be laid down
that for the murder of such Kidnapped, there should necessarily
be independent evidence apart from the circumstances
enumerated above, we would be providing a safe jurisprudence
for protecting such criminal activities. India cannot now afford
to lay down any such legal prmcxple insulating the marauders .
of their activities of killing kidnapped innocents outside the
ken of others.”

- A perusal of the aforesaid determination would reveal, that having

- proved the factum of kidnapping, the inference of the consequenti al murder

of the kidnapped person, is liable to be presumed. We are one with the
aforesaid conclusion. The logic for the aforesaid inferénce is simple. Once the
person concerned has been shown as having been kidnapped, the onus would

shift on the kidnapper to establish how and when the kidnapped individual

' came to be released from his custody. In the absence of any such proof

produced by the kidnapper, it would be natural to infer/presume, that the

. kidnapped person continued in the kidnapper's custody, till he was eliminated.

The instarit conclusion would also emerge from Section 106 of the Indlan
Evidence Act, 1 872 whichis bemg extracted heremunder

*“106. Bm‘den of provmg fact especially w1th1n knowledge-.
When any fact is especcially within the knowledge of any -
person, the burden of proving that fact is upon | him.”

(a) When a person does an act with some intention other
than that which the character and circumstances of the act
suggest, the burden of proving that intention is uponhim.
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(b)  Aischarged with travelling ona railway without a ticket,
the burden of proving that he had a ticket is on him.”

47.  Since in the facts and circumstances of this case, it has been duly
established, that Ajit Pal @ boby had been kidnapped by the accused/
appellants; the accused/appellants have not been able to produce any material
on the record of this case to show the release of Ajit Pal @ Boby from his
custody. Section 106 of the Indian Evidence Act, 1872 places the onus on
them. In the absence of any material produced by the accused/appellants, it
has to be accepted, that the custody of Ajit Pal @ Boby had remained with
the accused/appellants, till he was murdred. The motive/reason for the accused/
appellants, for taking the extreme step was, that ransom as demanded by the
accused/appellants, had not been paid. When the accused/appellants Rajesh
@ Rakesh was detained on 29.3.2013, he had made a confessional statement
in the presence of Jitendra Singh @ Sonu (PW/8) stating that his uncle Raju
had caught hold deceased and he committed murder by cutting his neck,
whereupon his body was put into gunny bag and thrown into the well and he
had hidden the knife near the drain. It was, thereafter, on pointing out of him
the dead body of deceased was recovered from the aforesaid well keptina
‘gunny bag as stated by accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh. Dr. Vivek
Shrivastava (PW/7) concluded, after holding the postmortem of the dead body
of deceased, that he had died due to haemorrhagic shock, which was caused
due to cut of neck by sharp cutting object. On pointing of accused/appellant
Rajesh @ Rakesh, blood stained knife was seized. Dr. Vivek Shrivastava
(PW/7) opined, on perusal of seized knife that injury found on the neck of
dead body of deceased would be caused by said knife. Accused/appellant
Raja was also detained on 31.3.2013 and he had made a confessional statement
in presence of witness Bambam (@ Shaiwal, stating that he caught hold the
hands of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby and accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh
by cutting his neck, caused murder of deceased and whereupon his body was
put into a gunny bag and thrown the same in the well. He further stated that
during commission of murder, his cloths were stained with blood of deceased.
He further stated that he had concealed that cloths in his dairy under the 'Khali-
Chuni'. On the pointing out of him, blood stained cloths were seized. The
instant evidence clearly nails all the accused/appellants to be the perpetrator
of kidnapping of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby for alleged ransom and also nails
the accused/appellants Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja Yadav as perpetrator of
murder of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby, due to not receiving the alleged ransom.
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In view of the factual and legal position dealt with herein above, we have no .

doubt in our mind that the prosecution has produced substantive material to
establish not only the kidnapping of deceased Ajit Pal @ Boby at the hands
of all accused/appellants Om Prakash, Rajesh @ Rakesh & Raja Yadav, but

also his murder at the hands.of accused/appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja

Yadav.

48.  Trial Court convicted the accused/ appellant Om Prakash for offence
punishable under Section 364-A r/w Section 120-B of IPC and sentenced to _
. undergo life imprisonment and fine of Rs.2,000/-,in default R.1. for two months
whereas appellant Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja Yadav have been convicted
for offence under Section 364- A r/w Section 120-B of IPC and they are
sentence to death sentence each and fine amount of Rs.1,000/-, in default
R.L for two months each. They have been further convicted for offence
punishable under Section 302 r/w Section 120-B of IPC and sentenced to
undergo death sentence each and fine of Rs.1,000/- each and in default of

* payment, R.L for two months and they have been also convicted under Section
201 IPC and sentenced to undergo R.1. for five years each, with fine of
Rs.500/- each, in default of fine, R.1. for one month each. The pi.mishment of
co-accused Om Prakash under Section 364-A r/w Section 120-B of IPC is
-not a matter of dispute before us as it has not been contested by the prosecution

by preferring any appeal. The minimum sentence for the offence punishable

under Section 364-A of IPC is life imprisonment and thus there is no need to
consider the quantum of sentence against appellant Om Prakash.

49.  So far senténce of accused/appellants Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja
Yadav is concerned, their learned counsel assailed the death sentence imposed
by the trial Court. During the course of hearing, it was the vehement contention
of the learned counsel for the accused-appellants, that infliction of life
.imprisonment, in the facts and circumstances of this case, would have satisfied
the ends of justice. It was also the contention of the learned counsel for the
' accused-appellants, that the facts and circumstances of this case are not
sufficient to categorize the present case’as a 'rarest of arare case’, wherein
ohly the death penalty would meet the ends of justice. To__substantlate the

contention of learned counsel for appellants, we may profitably refer to the:

decision of the Apex Court in the case of Haresh Mohandas Rajput Vs.
State of Maharashtra, (2011) 12 SCC 56, wherein, having taken into
consideration earlier judgments, Apex Court delineated the circumstances in
which the death penalty could be imposed. Reliance was placed on the

-~
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following observations recorded therein:-

“Death Sentence * When Wﬁrranted:)

“18. The guidélines laid down in Bachan Singh v. State.of

Punjab, (1980) 2 SCC 684, may be culled out as under:.

(1) The extreme penalty of death need not be inflicted except

. in gravest cases of extreme culpability. . .

" (i1) Before opting for the death penalty, the circumstances of -

the 'offender' also require to be taken into consideration

- alongwith the circumstances of the ‘crime’. ~

. (iii) Life imprisonment is the rule and death sentence is an

exception. In other words, death sentence must be imposed
only when life imprisonment appears to be an altogether
inadequate punishment having regard to the relevant
circumstances of the crimie, and provided, and only provided,

_ the option to impose sentence of imprisonment for life cannot
. be.conscientiously exercised having regard to the nature and
circumstances of the crime and all the relevant circumstances.

(iv) A balance sheet ofaggravating and mitigating circumstances

* hastobe drawn up and in doing so, the mitigating circumstances

have to be accorded full weightage and just balance has to be
struck between the aggravating and the mitigating circumstances
before the option is exercised.

19. In Machhi Singh and Ors. v. State of Punjasecb, (1983)
2 SCC 684, this Court expanded the "rarest of rare”
formulation beyond the aggravating factors listed in Bachan
Singh to cases where the "collective conscience” of a community
is so shocked that it will expect the holders of the judicial
powers centre to inflict death penalty irrespective of their
personal opinion as regards desirability or otherwise of retaining
death penalty, such a penalty can be inflicted. But the Bench in
this case underlined that full weightage must be accorded to

the mitigating circumstances in a case and a just balance had

to be struck between aggravating and mitigating circumstances.

Ina
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20. "The rarest of the rare case” comes when a convict would . .
be a menace and threat to the harmonious and peaceful co-
existence of the society. The crime may be heinous or brutal
but may not be in the category of "the rarest of the rare case".
There must be no reason to believe that the accused cannot
be reformed or rehabilitated and that he is likely to continue
criminal acts of violence as would constitute a continuing threat
to the society. The accused may be a menace to the society
and would continue to be so, threatening its peaceful and
harmonious co-existence. The manner in which the crime is
committed must be such that it may result in intense and
extreme indignation of the community and shock the collective
conscience of the society. Where an accused does not act on
any spur-of-the-moment provocation and indulges himselfin

. adeliberately-planned crime and meticulously executes it, the
death sentence may be the most appropriate punishment for
such a ghastly crime. The death sentence may be warranted
where the victims are innocent children and helpless women.
Thus, in case the crime is committed in 2 most cruel and
inhuman manner which is an extremely brutal, grotesque,
diabolical, revolting and dastardly manner, where his act affects
the entire moral fiber of the society, e.g. crime committed for
power or political ambition or indulging in organized criminal
activities, death sentence should be awarded. (See: C.
Muniappan and Ors. v. State of Tamil Nadu, AIR 2010 SC
3718; Rabindra Kumar Pal alias Dara Singh v. Republic of
India, (2011) 2 SCC 490; Surendra Koli v. State of U.P. and
Ors., (2011) 4 SCC 80; Mohd. Mannan (supra); and Sudam
v. State of Maharashtra, (2011) 7 SCC 125).

21. Thus, it is evident that for awarding the death sentence,
there must be existence of aggravating circumstances and the
consequential absence of mitigating circumstances. As to

“-whether death sentence should be awarded, would depend
upon the factual scenario of the case in hand.”

50.  The Apex Court in Ramnaresh & Ors. Vs. State of Chhattisgarh,
.(2012) 4 SCC 257 has laid down the principles about death sentence and life
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imprisonment as follows :

“The death sentence and principles governing its
conversion to life imprisonment.”

56. Despite the transformation of approach and radical changes
in principles of sentencing across the world, it has not been
possible to put to rest the conflicting views on sentencing policy.
The sentencing policy being a significant and inseparable facet
of criminal jurisprudence, has been inviting the attention of the
Courts for providing certainty and greater clarity to it.

*57. Capital punishment has been a subject matter of great

social and judicial discussion and catechism. From whatever
point of view it is examined, one undisputable statemeit of
law follows that it is neither possible nor prudent to state any
universal formula which would be applicable to all the cases of
criminology where capital punishment has been prescribed. It
shall always depend upon the facts and circumstances of a
given case. This Court has stated various legal principles which
would be precepts on exercise of judicial discretion in cases
where the issue is whether the capital punishment should or
should not be awarded.

58. The law requires the Court.to record special reasons for
awarding such sentence. The Court, therefore, has to consider
matters like nature of the offence, how and under what
circumstances it was committed, the extent of brutality with
which the offence was committed, the motive for the offence,
any provocative or aggravating circumstances at the time of
commission of the crime, the possibility of the convict being
reformed or rehabilitated, adequacy of the sentence of life
imprisonment and other attendant circumstances. These factors
cannot be similar or identical in any two given cases.

59. Thus, it is imperative for the Court to examine each case
on its own facts, in light of the enunciated principles. It is only
upon application of these principles to the facts ofa given case
that the Court can arrive at a final conclusion whether the case
in hand is one of the 'rarest of rare' cases and imposition of

(L)}
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death penalty alone shall serve the ends of justice. Further,
the Court would also keep in mind that if such a punishment
alone would serve the purpose of the judgment, in its being
sufficiently punitive and purposefully preventive.

XXX XXX XXX XXX

72. The above judgments provide us with the dicta of the
Court relating to imposition of death penalty. Merely because

. acrime is heinous per se may not be a sufficient reason for the

imposition of death penalty without reference to the other

" factors and attendant circumstances.

73. Most of the heinous crimes under the IPC are punishable
by death penalty or life imprisonment. That by itself does not
suggest that in all such offences, penalty of death alone should
be awarded. We must notice, even at the cost of repetition,
that in such cases awarding of life imprisonment would be a
rule, while 'death’ would be the exception. The term 'rarest of
rare' case which is the consistent determinative rule declared
by.this Court, itself sug gests that it has to be an exceptional
case.

74. The life of a partlcular individual cannot be taken away

except according to the procedure estabhshed by law and that -

is the constitutional mandate. The law contemplates recording
of special reasons and, therefore, the expression 'special’ has
to be given a definite meaning and connotation. 'Special
reasons' in contra-distinction to ‘reasons' simpliciter conveys
the legislative mandate of putting a restriction on exercise of
judicial discretion by placing the requirement of special
reasons.

75. Since, the later judgments of this Court have added to the
principles stated by this Court in the case of Bachan Singh
(supra) and Machhi Singh (supra), it will be useful to restate
the stated principles while also brlnglng them in consonance,

with the recent judgments.

76. The law enunciated by this Court in its recent judgments,
as already noticed, adds and elaborates the principles that were
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stated in the case of Bachan Singh (supra) and thereafter, in
the case of Machhi Singh (supra). The aforesaid judgments,
primarily dissect these principles into two different
compartments - one being the 'aggravating circumstances' while
the other being the 'mitigating circumstances'. The Court would
consider the cumulative effect of both these aspects and
normally, it may not be very appropriate for the Court to decide
the most significant aspect of sentencing pelicy with reference
to one of the classes under any of the following heads while
completely ignoring other classes under other heads, To balance
the two is the primary duty of the Court. It will be appropriate
for the Court to come to a final conclusion upon balancing the
exercise that would help to administer the criminal justice system
better and provide an effective and meaningful reasoning by
the Court as contemplated under Section 354(3) Cr.P.C.

Aggravating Circumstances:

(1) The offences relating to the commission of heinous crimes
like murder, rape, armed dacoity, kidnapping etc. by the
accused with a prior record of conviction for capital felony or
offences committed by the person having a substantial history
of serious assaults and criminal convictions.

(2) The offence was committed while the offender was engaged
in the commission of another serious offence.

(3) The offence was committed with the intention to create a
fear psychosis in the public at large and was committed in a
public place by a weapon or device which clearly could be
hazardous to the life of more than one person.

(4) The offence of murder was committed for ransom or like
offences to receive money or monetary benefits.

.(5) Hired killings.

(6) The offence was committed outrageously for want only
while involving inhumane treatment and torture to the victim.

(7) The offence was committed by a person while in lawful
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(8) The murder or the offence was committed to prevent a
person lawfully carrying out his duty like arrest or custody ina
place of lawful confinement of himself or another. For instance,
murder is of a person who had acted in lawful discharge of his
duty under Section 43 Cr.P.C.

(9) When the crime is enormous in proportion like making an
attempt of murder of the entire family, or members of a
partlcu]arcommumty

(10) When the victim is innocent, helpless or a person relies
upon the trust of relationship and social norms, like a ¢hild,
helpless woman, a daughter or a niece staying with a father/ -
uncle and is inflicted with the crime by such a trusted person.

(11) When murder is committed for a motive which evidences
total depravity and meanness.

(12) When there is a cold blocded murder without provocation.

(13) The crime is committed so brutally that it pricks or shocks
not only the Jud1c1a1 conscience but even the conscience of the
society.

Mitigating Circumstances:

(1) The manner and circumstances in and under which the
offence was committed, for example, extreme mental or
emotional disturbance or extreme provocation in
contradistinction to all these situations in normal course.

(2) The age of the accused is a relevant consideration but not
a determinative factor by itself,

(3) The chances of the accused of not indulging in commission
of the crime again and the probability of the accused being
reformed and rehabilitated.

(4) The condition of the accused shows that he was mentally
defective and the defect impaired his capacity to appreciate
the circumstances of his criminal conduct.
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(5) The circumstances which, in normal course of life, would
render such a behaviour possible and could have the effect of
giving rise to mental imbalance in that given situation like
persistent harassment or, in fact, leading to such a peak of
human behaviour that, in the facts and circumstances of the
case, the accused believed that he was morally justified in
committing the offence.

(6) Where the Court upon proper appreciation of evidence is
of the view that the crime was not committed in a preordained
manner and that the death resulted in the course of commission
of another crime and that there was a possibility of it being
construed as consequences to the commission of the primary
crime. :

(7) Where it is absolutely unsafe fo rely upon the testimony of
a sole eye-witness though prosecution has brought home the
guilt of the accused.

77. While determining the questions relateable to sentencing
policy, the Court has to follow certain principles and those
principles are the loadstar besides the above considerations in
imposition or otherwise of the death sentence.

Principles:

(1) The Court has to apply the test to determine, if it was the
'rarest of rare' case for imposition of a death sentence.

(2) In the opinion of the Court, imposition of any other
punishment, i.e., life imprisonment would be completely
inadequate and would not meet the ends of justice.

(3) Life imprisonment is the rule and death sentence is an
exception.

(4) The option to impose sentence of imprisonment for life
cannot be cautiously exercised having regard to the nature and
circumstances of the crime and all relevant considerations.

(5) The method (planned or otherwise) and the manner (extent
of brutality and inhumanity, etc.) in which the crime was
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committed and the circumstances leading to commission of
such heinous crime.

78. Stated broadly, these are the accepted indicators for the
exercise of judicial discretion but it is always preferred not to
fetter the judicial discretion by attempting to make the excessive

.enumeration, in oné way or another. In other words, these are

the considerations which may collectively or otherwise weigh
in the mind of the Court, while exercising its jurisdiction. It is
difficult to state it as an absolute rule. Every case has to be
decided on its own merits. The judicial pronouncements, can
only state the precepts that may govern the exercise of judicial
discretion to a limited extent. Justice may be done on the facts
of each case. These are the factors which the Court may
consider in its endeavour to do complete justice between the
parties.

79. The Court then would draw a balance-sheet of aggravating
and mitigating circumstances. Both aspects have to be given
their respective weightage. The Court has to strike a balance
between the two and see towards which side the scale/balance
of justice tilts. The principle of proportion between the crime
and the punishment is the principle of 'just deserts' that serves
as the foundation of every criminal sentence that is justifiable.
In other words, the 'doctrine of proportionality’ has a-valudble
application to the sentencing policy under the Indian criminal
jurisprudence. Thus, the court will not only have to examine
what is just but also as to what the accused deserves keeping
in view the impact on the society at large.

80. Every punishment imposed is bound to have its effect not
only on the accused alone, but'also on the society as a whole.
Thus, the Courts should consider retributive and deterrent

aspect of punishment while imposing the extreme punishment
of death.

81. Wherever the. oﬁ'enee whichis commltted manner in which

itis commltted its attendant c1rcumstances and the motive
and status of the victim, undoubtedly brings the case within
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the ambit of 'rarest of rare’ cases and the Court finds that the
imposition oflife imprisonment would be inflicting of inadequate
punishment, the Court may award death penalty. Wherever,
the case falls in any of the exceptions to the 'rarest of rare’
cases, the Court may exercise its judicial discretion while
imposing life imprisonment in place of death sentence.”

51. The Apex Court on a decision in the case of Brajendra Singh Vs.

State of Madhya Pradesh, (2012) 4 SCC 289, having followed the decision

rendered in Ramnaresh & Ors. Vs. State of Chhattisgarh (cited supra)
*further held as under:- ‘

“38. First and the foremost, this Court has not only to examine
whether the instant case falls under the category of 'rarest of
rare’ cases but also whether any other sentence, except death
penalty, would be inadequate in the facts and circumstances
of the present case.

39. We have already held the Appellant guilty of an offence
under Section 302, Indian Penal Code for committing the
murder of his three children and the wife. All this happened in
the spur of moment, but, of course, the incident must have
continued for a while, during which period the deceased
Aradhna reccived burn injuries as well as the fatal injury on
the throat. All the three children received injuries with a knife
similar to that-of the deceased Aradhna. But one circumstance
which cannot be ignored by this Court is that the prosecution
witnesses have clearly stated that there was arift between the
couple on account of her talking to Liladhar Tiwari, the
neighbour, PW10. Even if some credence is given to the
statement made by the accused under Section 313 Cr.P.C.
wherein he stated that he had seen the deceased and PW10 in -
a compromising position in the house of PW10, it also supports
the allegation of the prosecution that there was rift between
the husband and wife on account of PW10. It is also clearly
exhibited ini the FIR (P-27) that the accused had forbidden his
wife from talking to PW10, which despite such warning she
persisted with and, therefore, he had committed the murder of
her wife along with the children.”
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-52. The Apex Court in the case of Mukesh & another Vs, State for

NCT of Delhi and others [Criminal Appeal No.607-608 of 2017, arising
out of S.L.P. (Cri.) Nos. 3119-3120 of 2014] with Criminal Appeal No.
609-610 of 2017 arising out of SLP (Criminal) No. 5027-5028 of 2014
referring to pronouncement in the case of Bachan Singh (Supra) Machhi
Singh (Supra), Ramnaresh and others vs. State of Chhattisgarh (2012) 4
SCC 257, has also tried to lay down a nearly exhanstive list of aggravating
and mitigating circumstances. It would be apposite to refer to the same here :

“Aggravating Circumstances :

(1) The offences relating to the commission of heinous crimes
like murder, rape, armed dacoity, kidnapping etc. by the
accused with a prior record of conviction for capital felony or

- offences committed by the person having a substantial history
of serious assaults and criminal convictions,

(2) The offence was committed while the offender was engaged
in the commission of another serious offence.

-(3) The offence was committed with the intention to create a

fear psychosis in the public at large and was committedin a
public place by a weapon or device which clearly could be
hazardous to the life of more than one person. -

' (4) The offence of murder was committed for ransom or like
offences to receive money or monetary benefits.

(5) Hired killings,

(6) The offence was committed outrageously for want only
while involving inhumane treatment and torture to the victim.

(7) The offence was committed by a person while in lawful
custody.

(8) The murder or the offence was committed to prevent a
person lawfully carrying out his duty like arrest or custodyina
place of lawful confinement of himself or another. For instance,
murder is of a person who had acted in lawful discharge of his
duty under Section 43 Cr.P.C. When the crime is enormous in
proportion like making an attempt of murder of the entire family
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or members of a particular community. When the victim is
innocent, helpless or a person relies upon the trust of relationship
and social norms, like a child, helpless woman, a daughter or
aniece staying with a father/uncle and is inflicted with the crime
by such a trusted person.

(9) When murder is committed for a motive which evidences
total depravity and meanness.

(10) When there is a cold blooded murder without provocation.

(11) The crime is committed so brutally that it pricks or shocks
not only the judicial conscience but even the conscience of the
society.

Mitigating Circumstances:

(1) The manner and circumstances in and under which the
offence was committed, for example, extreme mental or
‘emotional disturbance or extreme provocation in
contradistinction to all these situations in normal course.

(2).The age of the accused is a relevant consideration but not
a determinative factor by itself.

(3) The chances of the accused of not indulging in commission
of the crime again and the probability of the accused being
reformed and rehabilitated.

(4) The condition of the accused shows that he was mentally
defective and the defect impaired his capacity to appreciate
the circumstances of his criminal conduct.

(5) The circumstances which, in normal course of life, would
render such a behaviour possible and could have the effect of
giving rise to mental imbalance in that given situation like
persistent harassment or, in fact, leading to such a peak of
human behaviour that, in the facts and circumstances of the
case, the accused believed that he was morally justified in |
committing the offence.

(6) Where the Court upon proper appreciation of evidence is
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of the view that the crime was not committed in a preordained
manner and that the death resulted in the course of commission
of another crime and that there was a possibility of it being-
construed as consequences to the commission of the primary
crime.

(7) Whereitis z{bsolutely unsafe to rely upon the testimony of
a sole eye-witness though prosecution has brought home the
guilt of the accused.” : :

53.  We are one with the learned counsel for the accused-appellants, on
the parameters prescribed by the Apex Court, for inflicting the death sentence. -
Rather than deliberating upon the matter in any further detail, we would venture

~ toapply the parameters laid down in the judgments of Apex Court to determine
whether or not life imprisonment or in the alternative the death penalty, would
be justified in the facts and circumstances of the present case. We may first
refer to the aggravating circumstances as under:- ‘

(i) The accused-appellants have been found guilty of the
offence under Section 364A of the Indian Penal Code. Section
364Ais beipg"extractqd hereunder:-

*364A. Kidnapping for ransom, etc.'Whoever kidnaps or
abducts any person or keeps a person in detention after such
kidnapping or abduction and threatens to cause death or hurt
to such person, or by his conduct gives rise to a reasonable
apprehension that such person may be put to death or hurt, or
causes hurt or death to such person in order to compel the
Government or any foreign State or international inter-
governmental organization or any other person to do or abstain
from doing any act or to pay a ransom, shall be punishable
with death, or imprisonment for life, and shall also be liable to
fine.”

A perusal of the aforesaid provision leaves no room

for any doubt, that the offence of Kidnapping for ransom .
- accompanied by a threat to cause death contemplates
‘punishment with death. Therefore, even without an accused
actually having committed the murder of the individyal
kidnapped for ransom, the provision contemplates the death

5
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penalty. Insofar as the present case is concerned, there is no
doubt, that the accused-appellants have been found to have
kidnapped Ajit Pal’@ Boby for ransom, and accused/
appellants, Rajesh (@ Rakesh and Raja Yadav have also
actually committed his murder. In the instant situation therefore,.
the guilt of the accused-appellants Om Prakash, Rajesh @
Rakesh and Raja Yadav (under Section 364 A of the Indian
Penal Code) must be considered to be of the gravest nature,
justifying the harshest punishment prescribed for the offence.

' (it) The accused-appellants Rajesh (@ Rakesh and Raja Yadav
have also been found guilty of the offence of murder under
Section 302 of the Indian Penal Code. Section 302 of the
Indian Penal Code also contemplates the punishment of death
for the offence of murder. It is, therefore apparent, that the
accused-appellants Rajesh @ Rakésh and Raja Yadav are guilty
of two heinous offences, which 1ndependently of one another
provide for the death penatty. :

(iii)- The accused/appellants Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja Yadav

caused the murder of child of about 15 years. The facts and

circumstances of the case do not depict any previous enmity

between the parties. There is no grave and sudden provocation,

which had compelled the accused to take the life of an innocent

child. The murder of a child, in such circumstances makes this
" acase of extreme culpablhty

(iv) Kidnapping of a child was committed w1th the motive of
carrying home a ransom. On account of the non-payment of
. ransom, a minor child's murder was.committed. This fact
demonstrates that the accused had no value for human life.
The instant circumstance demonstrates extreme mental
perversmn not worthy of human condonation. '

(v) The manner in which the child was mitrdered,and the
approach and method adopted by the accused, disclose the
traits of outrageous criminality in the behaviour of the accused.
The child was first murdered by cutting his neck by a sharp
edged weapon and the dead body of the child was then tied in
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a gunny bag, and ﬁnally the gunny bag was thrown into a well.
All this was-done, in a well thought out and planred manner.
This approach of the accused reveals a brutal mindset of the
highest order.

(vi)All the aforesaid aggravating circumstances are liable to
be considered in the background of the fact, that the child
was known to the accused-appellants. The child and accused/
appellants were same locality. Murder was therefore
committed, not of a stranger, but of a child with whom the
accused were acquainted. This conduct of the accused-
appellants, places the facts of this case in the abnormal and
heinous category. :

(vii) The choice of kidnapping the particular child for ransom,

was well planned and consciously motivated. The parents of

the deceased had three children’ two daughters and one son'.

Kidnapping the only male child was to induce maximum fear

in the mind of his parents. Purposefully killing the sole male

child, has grave repercussions for the parents of the deceased.
i Agony for parents for the loss of their only male child, who
would have carried further the famxly lineage, and is expected
to see them through their old age, is unfathomable. Extreme
! misery caused to the aggrieved party, certainly adds to the-
; aggravating circumstances,

'54.  As against the aforesaid aggravating circumstances, learned counsel
- 'for the accused-appellants has pomted out following mitigating
.c1rcumstances -

(i) The chances of the accused/appellants Rajesh @

' Rakesh and Raja Yadav of not indulging in commission

- of the crime again and the probability of the accused/
appellants being reformed and rehabilitated.

()  The age of the accused/appellants Rajesh @ Rakesh
. isa relevant con51derat10n

Except aforesaid mitigating cucumstanccs Iearned counsel for the
accused/appellants could not point out any other mitigating circumstances.

|
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So far young age of the appellant Rajesh (@ Rakesh is concerned, there is no
mitigating circumstance for commutation to life, as has been held in the case of
Bhagwan Swarup Vs. State of U.P. (1971) 3 SCC 759, Deepak Rai Vs.

State of Bihar (2013) 10 SCC 421 and.Shabhnam Vs. State of Uttar
Pradesh (2015) 6 SCC 632. So far as the accused/appellants Rajesh @
Rakesh and Raja Yadav of not indulging in commission of the crime again and
the probability of the accused/appellants being reformed and rehabilitated is
concerned looking to the nature and way of committing above offence, in our
considered view, there is no possibility of any reform and rehabilitation.

55.  Thus, viewed on the parameters laid down by Apex Court, in the
decisions mentioned above, we have no choice, but to affirm the death
penalty imposed upon the accused-appellants Rajesh @ Rakesh and Raja
Yadav by the trial Court.

56. Inviewofthe above, we find no justification whatsoever, in interfering
with the impugned judgment of the trial Court, either on merits or on the quantum
of punishment.

57.  The property seized be-destroyed after the appeal period is over.

58.  Inview of the foregoing discussions, we confirm the death sentence
awarded by the trial Court and dismiss Cr.A.No.83/2017 and Cr.A.No.84/
2017,

Ordered accordingly.

Order accordingly.

LL.R. [2017] M.P., 2868
MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice J.K. Maheshwari
M.Cr. °. No. 3305/2012 (Jabalpur) decided on 4 September, 2017

AMITA SPFRIVASTAVA (SMT.) & ors. ...Applicants
Vs. : )
STATE OF M.P, & anr. ...Non-applicants

A. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 415 & 420 and Criminal
Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 — Cheating and Forgery —
Ingredients — Applicants/land owners entered into agreement to sale with

-“A” whereby a cheque of Rs, 1 lakh was paid as advance which was later
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dishorioured - Vide noticé, agreement was cance!le(i and applicants efitered

into fresh agreement with “B” whereby a cheque of Rs. 10 lakh was paid
as advance—Due to objection raised by “A”; subsequent agreement was
not finally executed and “B” also failed to pay the remaining amount —
Applicants cancelled subsequent agreement and returned the advance
amount to “B”, who filed private complaint whereby cognizance taken by
Court — Held - Petitioners were bonafide, there is no deception with
fraudulent or dishonest intention — Complaint and order taking cognizance
quashed — Application allowed. (Paras 10 to 12, 14 & 15)

®. . TUS GIRGT (1860 BT 45) GIT 415 T 420 VT TUg -giHar
WIET, 1973 (1974 BT 2), GRT 482 — BT wq FEVTT — HEw —
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B. Penal Code (45 of 1860), Section 415 & 420 — Cheating
—Ingredients of — Discussed and explained. (Paras 7, 8, 13 & 14)

W IUS GIOTT (1860 BT 45). GIT 415 T 420 — BT — B WeH
—i fadfim v we fivd - - .

I C. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482 —

. Circumstances where jurisdiction wS 482 Cr.P.C. can be invoked, discussed

and explained, specifying the guidelines of the Apex Court. (Para9)
T TUS AU GGl 1973 (1974 BT 2), GINT 482 — aRRwRET,
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S.C. Datt assisted by Kishwar Khan, for the applicants. ~
Anil Khare assisted by J.S. Hora, for the non-applicant No. 2.

. " ORDER

J.K. MAHESRWARI, J. :- This petition under Section 482 of the Cr.P.C.
has been filed by the accused challenging the order taking cognizance dated
06.09.2011 on a private complaint filed by complainant for the offence
punishable under Section 420 of the IPC and issuing the summons by JMFC,
. Bhopal in R.T. No. 7977/2012: It is also prayed that the complaint filed by

respondent No.2 may be quashed. -

2. The facts unfolded to file present petition are, land of Khasra Nos.
101, 102, 108, 109 and 99/6 having area of 2.02 hectare, 1.20 hectare, 0.82
hectare, 0.81 hectare, total area 4.85 hectare and 0.07 Acre 32x100 sq.ft.
adjacent to main road of village Chhapri, Patwari Halka No. 32 of Tehsil
Huzur, District Bhopal is owned by petitioner No.1, Panchamlal and Smt. '
Chandrawati who agréed to sale the said land to one Harnath Singh, to which
they entered into an agreement dated 135.1 .2007 for a sum of
Rs.2,07,00,000/-. In furtherance to the said agreement, an amount of
Rs.1,00,000/- was paid and the remaining part of the amount was agreed to
- pay on or before 15.3.2007. As per the terms of the agreement, cheque of
Rs.1,00,000/- of Standard Chartered Bank given by Harnath, was
_dishonoured. He gave a notice on 6.2.2007 to the seller, to return the said
cheque and take the amount in'cash or through DD, however, the sale-deed
may be possibly executed prior to the outer date i.e. 15.3.2007. On 14.2.2007,
Harnath again gave a notice to petitioner No. 3 (power of attorney holder)
mentioning the same fact and making further request for measurement of the
land in question. Petitioner No. 1 and other sellers gave its reply to the notice
.stating that on account of non-compliance of the terms of the agreement and
issuing the notice unnecessarily, the agreement dated 15.1 2007 is automatically
cancelled and the notice send by him is based on absolutely false and baseless
allegation. In the agreement to sale, one Mukesh Shrivastava was the witness,
who in fact was a middleman (broker). After giving reply to the said notice
and cancelling the agreement, petitioners, Chandrawati and Panchamlal have
entered into an agreement with complainant Hemant Raghuvanshi on 31.3.2007
for the same property for the sale consideration of Rs. 2,53,47,000/-'and

/
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., Rs. 10,00,000/- was paid by them by way of advance to the petitioners. The

‘complainant published a public notice in the newspaper regarding purchase
of the said land on which Hamath Singh submitted his objection stating that
agreetent to sale was executed earlier with him on 15.1.2007. However, on
receiving the said objection, notice was given by complainant on 3.5.2007
Annexure P-16 to petitioners.and other seller making a request that dispute
with Harnath may be settled under intimation to them, otherwise he may not
be in a position to make the payment of the remaining amount of consideration.
Reply to the said notice was given by the petitioners on 13.6.2007 contending
that complainant has not complied the terms of the agreement regarding
payment of remaining amount of consideration, therefore, it is cancelled and

“amount of Rs.10,00,000/- paid by him in advance, is hereby returned to them
through cheque, which may kindly be acknowledged under intimation to the
petitioners. A copy of the notice given to the complainant alongwﬂh the cheque
has also been filed.

3. It is also known that Harnath Singh filed a suit seeking declaration for
unilateral cancellation of his agreement to sell and the property in question
cannot be sold by the petitioners to any other person, however, perpetual
injunction to not to interfere in their possession was sought. Duzing pendency
of the suit amiendment was sought seeking relief of specific performance of
contract. The complainant of this case has applied under Order 1 Rule 10 of

.the CPC to join him as a party, but it was rejected, however, the fact remains

s that the complainant was not a party to the said civil litigation. It has also been
brought to the notice that in the said case, judgment was delivered by 12th
ADJ, Bhopal on 18.9.2012 dismissing the suit against which first appcal is
pending before this Court.

4. The complainant of this case has filed a private complaint inter alia
contending that in Clause 3 of thé agreement dated 31.3.2007, it is stated
that the suit land has not been agreed to sale, bequeathed, gifted, mortgaged
with any Bank or financial institution and not kept o1 attached for the purpose
of surety. However, prior to entering into agreement to sale dated 31.3.2007
previous agreement to sale was executed in the name of Harnath Singh on
15.1.2007 was not disclosed to him. However, the said act would come within
the purview of cheating, therefore, they may be punished for commission of
the forgery. On recording the statements of Harnath Singh, as well as Mukesh
Shrivastava, middle man in the earlier agreement, the court took the cognizance
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- summoning the petitioners. On receiving notice of the complaint, this petitién
has been filed to Set aside the order taking cognizance and to quash the prlvate
complaint filed by the respondent No.2. :

5. Learned Senior Counsel appearing on behalf of the petmoners referring
the provision of Section 415 of the IPC has strenuonusly urged that looking to
the facts of the present case first agreement was cancelled giving a notice to
earlier intended purchaser and thereafter the agreement was entered with the
complainant to sell the same property. On receiving the notice by the petitioners
from the complainant, it was replied contending that he has not complied the
terms of agreement and in case there appears some dispute, the amount of
advance given by the complainant may be taken back through cheque. In the
sequel of the said facts, there was no fraud or dishonest intention to induce
the complainant for delivery of the amount of consideration. It is also not a
case wherein the purchaser has been induced to do or omit to do anything
which he would not do or omit, if he was not so deceived with an intent to
cause harm to that person in body, mind, reputation or property. It is said that
there is no dishonest concealment of the fact, which may come within the
purview of deception. Learned Senior Counsel further referring the definition
clause of dishonesty and fraud contends that looking to the facts of the case,
if earlier agreement was cancelled by him giving a notice prior to-thé second
agreement with the complainant. But, on public notice, due to objection of the
first intended purchaser and also by the subsequent, the amount of advance
received was offered to take back by the complainant, however, in such situation
none of the ingredients specified for cheating in Section 415 of the IPC are
available in the present case. In the said factual backdrop, relying upon the
judgment of State of Haryana and others Vs. Ch. Bhajanlal and others
reported in AIR 1992 SC 604, it is submitted that present case falls within the
purview of direction No. 3 and 7 of the said judgment, however, exercising
the inherent powers under Section 482 of the Cr.P.C. order taking cognizance
passed by the Court, may be set aside. Learned senior counsel, relying upon
the judgment of Rajiv Thapar and others Vs. Madan Lal Kapoor reported
in (2013) 3 SCC 330 urged, the present case falls under all the circumstances
specified in Para 30 of the said judgment more specifically looking to the
judgment of the Court whereby the suit filed by Harnath seeking specific
performance has been dismissed against which appeal is pending but
considering the said document, it can safely be presumed that earlier agreement
dated 15.1.2017 was cancelled by notice dated 22.2.2007, which is
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recognized by the Court in the judgment and in the said situation, if subsequent »
agreement was entered into on 31.3.2007 without disclosing the said fact, it .
would not come within the purview of dishonest concealment of the facts with
dishonest intention, therefore, order taking cognizance passed by the trial
Court particularly considering the statement of a person namely Mukesh
Shrivastava, who was the middle man and known to both the parties and now
deposed in favour of complaint and Harnath Singh, intended purchaser in first
agreement who remained unsuccessful in the civil case and relying their
statements, the cognizance taken by the court is not in accordance to law. It is
said that the land belongs to the petitioners who entered into.agreement to
sale twice; but amount of consideration have not been paid in full to them by
both the intended purchaser, however, it is a case wherein petitioners were
cheated, therefore, the complaint is liable to be quashed setting aside the
order taking cognizance.

- 6. Per contra learned Senior Counsel representing the complainant/

respondent No. 2 has placed heavy reliance on the judgment of the Apex
Court in the case of Iridium India Telecom Limited Vs. Motorola
Incorporated and others reported in (2011) 1 SCC 74 to contend that after
entering into the agreement with Harnath Singh on 15.1.2007 subsequent
agreement was entered with the complainant on 31.3.2007. In the subsequent
agreement, the fact regarding earlier agreement to sale has not been disclosed,
therefore, it would come Wwithin the purview of deceiving the complainant
fraudulently or dishonestly to take the amount of consideration causing loss to
him. It is urged, deception of not disclosure of the earlier agreement from the

' complainant while entering into subsequent agreement with him would

amounting to dishonest concealment of the fact.and it would come within the
purview of definition of cheating. Learned senior counsel referring paragraphs
64 and 75 of the said judgment contends that in the facts of the case, the said
judgment is fully applicable and the arguments as advanced by the petitioners
to prove their bonafide, do not come within the purview of concealment or
dishonest or fraudulent intention, which can be gathered after recording
evidence during trial. It is urged, at present the averements of the complaint
and material brought before the court may be taken into consideration,
however, looking to the same, prima facze ingredients to commit offence

‘under Section 420 of the IPC is made out against the petitioners, therefore,

the trial Court has rightly taken the cognizance in the matter. Reliance hasalso .
been placed on the judgments of the Apex Court in Lee Kun Hee, President,
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Samsung Corporation, South Korea.and others Vs. State of Uttar Pradesh
and others reported in (2012) 3 SCC 132, Indian Oil Corporation Vs.
NEPC India Ltd. and others reported in (2006) 6 SCC 736 and also Sushil
Suri Vs. Central Bureau of Investigation and another 1eported in (2011) 5
SCC 708 and in the case of Inspector of Police;, CBI Vs. B. Raja Gopal
and others reported in (2002) 9 SCC 533. It is contended that if the amount
due is paid by accused at a later stage it can not be accepted for innocence
and not enough to quash the private complaint. In such circumstances, it is
urged, complaint filed by the complainant and the order taking cognizance
may be mdintained.

7. After having heard learned Senior counsel representing the parties
and on perusal of the facts of the present case and looking to the order
impugned, it reveals, the trial Court has taken the'cognizance on 6.9.2011
registering a complaint under Section 420 of the IPC looking to the averments
made in the private complaint and the statements of complainant, Harnath
Singh and Mukesh Shrivastava. Section 420 of the IPC deals the punishment
for cheating and dishonestly inducing delivery of property. Cheating has been
defined in Section 415 of the IPC, however, to understand the ingredients of
cheating, first of all, it is required to be referred, therefore, Section 41 5 ofthe
IPC is reproduced as thus :- :

415. Cheating.- Whoever, by deceiving any person,
fraudulently or dishonestly induces the person so deceived to
deliver any property to any person, or to consent that any
person shall retain any property, or intentionally induces the
person so deceived to do or omit to do anything which he
would not do or omit if he were not so deceived, and which

- act or omission causes or is likely to cause damage or harm to
that person in body, mind, reputation or property, is said to
“cheat™,

Explanation.- A dishonest concealment of factsis a deceptioii
within the meaning of this section.

8. Meaning thereby, it is essential that there must be a deception by the

accused to the person so deceived with fraudulent and dishonest intention. To
"such deception, person must be induced either to deliver the property.to any
person or consent that any person shall retain any property. From the later

-
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part of the said section, it reveals that the accused by deception intentionally
to the person deceived either to do or omit to do anything, which he would
not do or omit, if not deceived, the said act and omission must cause damage
or harm to that person in body, mind, reputation or property. However, in‘the
facts of the case, it is required to analyze whether ingredients of Section 415
of the IPC are available to take cognizance by the Court in the complaint filed
against the petitioners.

9. At this juncture, while invoking the jurisdiction under Section 482 of
the Cr.P.C. the circumstances, in which inherent powers of the High Court
can be invoked may be explained. The Apex Court in the judgment of Rajiv -
Thapar (supra) in Paragraphs 29 and 30, specified the guidelines whereupon
the Court must exercise the jurisdiction under Section 482 of the Cr.P.C.
However, Paragraphs 29 and 30 of the said judgment are reproduced thus:-

29, The issue being examined in the instant case is the
jurisdiction of the High Court under Section 482 Cr.P.C., if it
chooses to quash the initiation of the prosecution against an
accused at the stage of issuing process, or at the stage of
committal, or even at the stage of framing of charges. These
are all stages before the commencement of the actual trial.
The same parameters would naturally be available for later
stages as well. The power vested in the High Court under
Section'482 Cr.P.C. at the stages referred to hereinabove,
would have far-reaching consequences inasmuch as it would
" negate the prosecution's/complainant's case without allowing
the prosecution/ complainant to lead evidence. Such a
determination must always be rendered with caution, care and
circumspection. To invoke its inherent jurisdiction under
Section 482 CrPC the High Court has to be fully satisfied that
the material produced by the accused is such that would Jead
to the conclusion that his/their defence is based on sound,
- reasonable, and indubitable facts; the material produced is such
as would rule out and displace the assertions contained in the
charges levelled against the accused; and the material produced
is such as would clearly reject and overrule the veracity of the
allegations contained in the accusations levelled by the
prosecution/ complainant. It should be sufficient to rule out,
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reject and discard the accusations levelled by the prosecution/
complainant, without the necessity of recording any evidence.
For this the material relied upon by the defence should not
have been refuted, or alternatively, cannot be Jjustifiably refuted,
being material of sterling and impeccable quality. The material
relied upon by the accused should be such as would persuade
areasonable person to dismiss and condemn the actual basis
of the accusations as false. In such a situation, the judicial
conscience of the High Court would persuade it to exercise its
power under Section 482 CrPC to quash such criminal
proceedings, for that would prevent abuse of process of the
court, and secure the ends of justice. )

30. Based on the factors canvassed in the foregoing paragraphs;
we would delineate the following steps to determine the veracity
of a prayer for quashment raised by an accused by invoking
the power vested in the High Court under Section 482 CrPC.

30.1. Step one: whether the material relied upon by the
accused is sound, reasonable, and indubitable i.e. the material
is of sterling and impeccable quality?

30.2. Step two: whether the material relied upon by the
accused would rule out the assertions contained in the charges
leveiled against the accused i.e. the material is sufficient to
reject and overrule the factual assertions contained in the
complaint i.e. the material is. such as would persuade a
reasonable person to dismiss and condemn the factual basis
of the accusations as false?

30.3. Step three: whether the material relied upon by the
accused has not been refuted by the prosecution/complainant;
and/or the material is such that it cannot be justifiably refuted
by the prosecution/complainant? '

30.4. Step four: whether proceeding with the trial would
result in an abuse of process of the court, and would not serve
the ends of justice? '

30.5. Ifthe answer to all the steps is in the affirmative, the
judicial conscience of the High Court should persuade it to
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quash such criminal proceedings in exercise of power vested
in it under Section 482 CrPC. Such exercise of power, besides
doing justice to the accused, would save precious court time,
which would otherwise be wasted in holding such a trial (as
well as proceedings arising therefrom) specially when it is clear
that the same would not conclude in the conviction of the
accused. -

10.  Inthe present case to conceptualize commission of offence on the
basis of allegation alleged in the private complaint may be seen. On perusal, it
reveals that petitioner Nos. 1 and 2 along with other are the owners of the
piece of land as described in previous paragraphs. Petitioner No. 3 is the
power of attorney holder of petitioner Nos. 1 and 2. Petitioner No, 3 had
entered into an agreement with one Harnath Singh on 15.1.2007 for the said
piece of land and agreed to sell such property for a sum of Rs.2.07 Crores.
As per the terms of the agreement, Rs.1 Lakh was paid in cash and a cheque
of Rs.1 Lakh of Standard Chartered Bank was given, which was dishonoured.
Harnath gave a notice due to dishonouring of his cheque to the seller on
6.2.2007 to take the said amount in cash from him or through DD thereby
sale-deed may be executed in terms of the said agreement prior to 15.3.2007.
Similar notice was also given to petitioner No. 3 power of attorney holder on
14.2,.2007. It is noted here, if cheque given by a purchaser has been
dishonoured, either he has to offer the amount along with said notice or to
pay the sum in cash to show his bonafide, it was not required to issue two
notices by him to the sellers, who agreed to sell his property having worth of
more than Rs.2 Crores for which only Rs.1 Lakh was said to be paid in
advance to which cheque given to petitioners was dishonoured. The time was
the essence of the contract for execution of the sale deed prior to 15.3.2007
but the remaining amount was not paid. Petitioners and other seller gave the
reply to the notice on 22.2.2007 referring various clauses of the agreement
and also referring dishonouring of the cheque. By the said notice, agreement -
entered with him on 15.1.2007 was automatically cancelled in terms of the
agreement. Petitioner No. 3 has also given reply on the same guideline offering
the amount, which was given by Harnath Singh through cheque, canceling the -
said agreement. Thereafter owners of the land through petitioner No. 3 entered
into subsequent agreement dated 31.3.2007 for the same piece of land for a
sum of Rs.2,53,47,000/- and advance of Rs.10 Lakhs has been received
from the complainant. The complainant published a public notice in the
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newspaper. In response to the said public notice, Harnath submitted an.

objection referring the earlier agreement to sale with him, however, the
complainant of this case gave notice to the petitioners and other owners on
3.5.2007 making request that in Clause No. 5 of the agreement, It was
mentioned that if any dispute regarding title arise with any persons, it would
be the responsibility of the owner to settle it, so that he may be in a position to
make payment. In reply to the notice, petitioners clarified the situation stating
that as per the terms of the agreement, keeping its photocopy to them. In case
any issue arises with Harnath Singh, it would be the responsibility of the sellers,
however, if the complainant is not ready to abide by the terms and conditions
of the agreement, they are responsible for their misdeeds. The reply to the
notice was sent to the Advocate and also to the party and a copy of cheque of
Rs. 10 Lakhs was offered to the complainant keeping its photocopy which is
filed in record. It is true, the said cheque has not been encashed by the
complainant but all these facts are relevant for the purpose of understanding,
whether petitioners were having any fraudulent or dishonest intention to induce
the complainant to deliver the money to him and would it constitute an offence
of cheating by such act and omission. The said fact is also relevant to understand
explanation attached to Section 415 of the IPC to demonstrate that in the
facts of the case, is there any dishonest concealment, which would come within
the purview of deception. In this respect, it is to observe here that the present
= complaint is filed by complainant Hemant Raghuvanshi, who is the subsequent
intended purchaser. One Mukesh Shrivastava, who is the witness in the first
agreement being middle man and Harnath Singh intended purchaser in first
agreement to sell and complainant of this case have deposed against petitioners
under Section 200 of the Cr.P.C. On the other hand the petitioners, have their
_own land and owner thereof, want to sell the same to which entered into first
agreement with Harnath Singh on 15.1.2007 who for a total sum of Rs.2,07
Crores paid the advance sum of Rs.1 Lakh only by the cheque which was
dishonoured then he gave the notice. In reply to the same by way of notice
dated 22.2.2007, the said agreement was cancelled by petitioners unilaterally,
because terms of the agreement regarding payment have not been complied
. within time schedule. After cancellation of the said agreement, petitioners have
entered into the subsequent agreement with the complainant of this case on
31.3.2007 who gave sum of Rs.10 Lakhs towards advance. On public notice,
an objection was raised by previous intended purchaser Harnath Singh. In
‘reply to the notice given to petitioners, the responsibility has been taken by
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them to settie the same with Harnath Singh or in case he is ready offered the
amount of advance to return them through the cheque of Rs.10 Lakhs signed
by the petitioners. However, in such circumstances for selling of the land of
his own to which two intended purchasers have come forward, who have not
made the payment of the amount of consideration and for the pretext one or
another want to grab the property without making the payment of consideration
to which civil suit filed by the previous intended purchaser has dismissed
decided by the Court. Inthe said facts, in my considered opinion, there cannot
be any fraudulent or dishonest intention of the petitioners to deceive the
complainant. '

11.  Section 24 of the IPC defines “Dishonestly” whereby anything done
with intention of causing wrongful gain to one person or wrongful loss to another
person. Section 25 of the IPC defines “Fraudulently” whereby any act done
with intent to defraud him but not otherwise, is said to be done fradulently. In
the present case when the first intended purchaser has not fulfilled the terms
and conditions of the agreement, the amount which was given by him, has
been returned through cheque by power of attorney holder. Thereafter as per
subsequent agreement the intended purchaser, who is the complainant in the.
present case, also not paid the amount of consideration by not fulfilling the
condition of the agreement, mainly due to objection of the first intended
purchaser, this private complaint is filed. In my considered opinion, it would
not come within the purview of cheating as its ingredients are not made out in
the facts of the present case, therefore, present case is squarely covered by
Clause 3 of the judgment of the Supreme Court in the case of State of Haryana
and others Vs. Ch. Bhajanlal and others (supra). '

12. In addition to the aforesaid, it is also required to observe here that
petitioners are the owners and power of attorney holder of their own land,
they wanted to sell it to the aspirant purchaser. The first agreement was entered
on 15.1.2007 with one Harnath, which was cancelled by issuing a notice on
72 2.2007. The civil suit filed by Harnath Singh was dismissed vide judgment
dated 18.9.2012 deciding issue No. 2 against him holding that cancellation of
previous agreement vide notice dated 22:2.2007 is valid. Though appeal is
pending against the said judgment but primarily the judgment of the Court can
be taken to be documents.of unimpeachable character subject to decision by
the High Court. Thereafter, petitioners who were willing to sell it,.entered into
second agreement with the subsequent intended purchaser, who is complainant
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of this case, who paid an amount of Rs.10 Lakh in advance. However,
remaining amount of consideration has not been paid within the time so specified

though in reply to the notice on the issye of objection by Harnath, petitioners .

“have taken the responsibility to take up the matter with Harnath Singh, but the
terms of agreement were not complied with, however, petitioners have given

filed this complaint wherein first intended purchaser, middie man and witnesses
of first agreement have deposed against them under Section 200 of the Cr.P.C.

However, in the said facts in my considered opinion, the present complaint
also falls within the purview of direction No. 7 of the Jjudgment of State of
Haryana and others Vs. Ch, Bhajanlal and others (supra), therefore, in my

considered opinion it is a fit case to invoke the jurisdiction under Section 482

of the Cr.P.C.

13. '_ At this stage, the judgments relied upon by learned Senior counsel for )

the respondents may be dealt with looking to the facts of this case. In the case
of Iridium India Telecom Limited (supra), the Court referred the facts of
that individual case whereby for business transaction, an agreement was entered
into and in furtherance to the said agreement huge amount of public money
was invited from the public and thereafter the deception was found from the
terms of the said agreement because the basis to which that money was
collected was not found correct; however, the Court referring the provision of
Section 415 of'the IPC, in the facts of the given case opined that the act of the
respondent comes within the purview of Section 415 of the IPC, to which at
the stage of taking co gnizance, interference made by the High Court, was not
found justifiable. In the case of Lee Kun Hee, President, Samsung
Corporation, South Korea (supra), the issue was also with respect to business
transaction and that consequentially required to execute the bill of exchange
and in the facts of that case the trial Court has taken cognizance because
prima facie ingredients of Section 415 of the IPC were found, however,
obsetving the same, interference was declined.

14.  Similarly, in the czse of Sushil Suri (supra), in the factual backdrop, in
a Bank scheme, land was taken fraudulently on the basis of the documents
which were not correct, however, the Court referring all the provisions and
other provisions déclined to interfere in the case. In the case of Indian Qil
Corporation «(supra), the Court found breach of contract and also the-
ingredients of Section 415 of the IPC was made out looking to the facts of the
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said case, it was held that High Court not justified in quashing the complaint. .
The judgment of Inspector of Police, CBI Vs. B. Raja Gopal and others

(supra) relied upon on the pretext that return of the amount at later stage

would not absolve the accused from the responsibility of the commission of
offence, is also of no help to the petitioner comparing the facts of the said

case and of the present case. The facts of this case indicate the bonafide of
the petitioners as discussed above, there is no deception with fraudulent or

dishonest intention by the petitioners, thcrefore , judgment as relied by the

respondents is of no help to them.

15.  Inview ofthe foregoing discussion, the case at hand is one of the case
wherein the evidence brought by the complainant are not sound, reasonable
and indubitable and not of sterling, unimpeachable character looking to the =
factual scenario as discussed above. In thatview of the matter, the private
complaint and the direction issued by the Court to take cognizance is not
justified and liable to be quashed in exercise of power under Section 482 of
the Cr.P.C,

16.  Resultantly, this petition succeeds and is hereby allowed. The order
taking cognizance stands quashed. The private complaint filed by respondent

.No. 2 also stands quashed. In the facts of the case, parties to bear their own
costs,

Application allowed.
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MISCELLANEOUS CRIMINAL CASE
Before Mr. Justice GS. Ahluwalia
M Cr.C. No. 10446/2017 (Gwalior) decided on 30 November, 2017

PRABAL DOGRA : ...Applicant

Vs.
SUPERINTENDENT OF POLICE, GWALIOR

" & STATE OF M.P. ‘ Non—apphcants

A. Criminal Procedure Code, 1 973 (2 0f 1974), Section 482
— Police Investigation — Scope & Jurisdiction — Held — Court in
exercise of powers u/S 482 Cr.P.C. cannot direct the police to investigate
the case from-a particular point of view and cannot superyise
investigation by issuing directions as to in what manner it is to be done,
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as the investigation is the domain of police — Court can interfere with
investigation where investigating officer acted in violation of any
statutory provisions of law putting personal liberty of person in jeopardy
or investigation is not bonafide or investigation is tainted being baised
or malafide - No allegation against any investigating officer —
Application dismissed. (Paras 13 to 15, 20 & 23)

@ gUs Ffbar afear, 1973 (1974 @7 2), GRT 482 — yforg
g1 — arfar g FfersRar — afafiaiRa — =marag gvs wfwar diear
B ORT 482 @ ot wirmal © AT ' gHIT w1 IAwer frdt fafirse
gfedinr @ o= 2y yfew o fRfim 7 s 9@ gur PRy e
T A9 BT wddA T FX waar 5 g fow Qfy ¥ e s 2,
TP adyor g &1 AR 83 2 — ey 90T § EWe Y
gHdl & Wl I=awvr AR ¥ @iy 91 e waFar & gae 7 sl
gy faftr @ foeft At @ Sudel &1 Sedww fear & Ar edwor
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B. Criminal Procedure Code, 1973 (2 of 1974), Section 482
and Constitution — Article 21 — Police Investigation — Documents —
Held — Where material produced by accused is such to conclude that
his defence is based on sound, reasonable and indubitable facts and
same rules out the assertions made in complaint, High Court can always
lIook into those documents, even at an early stage of trial — Free and
fair investigation is the fundamental right of accused as guaranteed
under Article 21 of Constitution. (Para 18 & 19)
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Rajiv Sharma, for the applicant.
Girdhari Singh Chauhan, P.P. for the non-applicants-State,
Arun Kumar Barua, for the complainant.

ORDER

G.S. AIILUWALIA, J. :- This application under Section 482 of Cr.P.C.
has been filed seeking a direction to the police to conduct fair and impartial
investigation in Crime No0.350/2017 registered by Police Station Kampoo,
Gwalior as well as for a directing the S.H.O. of concerning Police Station/

investigating officer to get the injured medically examined by the Medical

Board.

2. The necessary facts for the disposal of the present application in short
are that complainant Avneesh Sharma, lodged a police complaint on 31~7-
2017 at Police Station Kampoo Distt. Gwalior, alleging therein that-on 30-7-
2017, at about 11:40 P.M., when he was returning back after leaving one
Vikram Bhadauria, one swift car came there, and the applicant along with
other co-accused persons alighted from the swift car and accusing that the
complainant had killed the father of the applicant in the year 2008, the applicant,
fired a gun shot on the complainant, causing injury on the back side of the
head of the complainant. Another gunshot was fired, however, it missed. The
co-accused Golu Parmar, fired another gunshot, but it also missed. Other co-
accused persons were shouting that the complainant should not be spared.
As Dheeru Bhargav and other persons came on the spot, and after noticing
them, the accused persons, including the applicant went away. The police
registered the F.I.R. in crime no.350/2017 for offence under Section 307, 34

of LP.C. The complainant was sent for medical examination.

3. The applicant made an application to the Superintendent of Police,
Gwalior and the Collector, Gwalior to conduct a free and fair investigation
and to get the complainant medically examined by a Medical Board, but as
no heed-was paid, therefore, the present application has been filed seeking
aforementioned directions. The prayer of the applicant in the present case is
as under :-
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“Itis, therefore, most respectfully prayed that the petition filed
by the petitioner may kindly be allowed and issuing direction
to respondents to conduct the fair and impartial investigation
into matter and also to issuing the direction to the concerning
S.H.O., Police Station Kampoo, to.conduct medical
examination of injured Avneesh Sharma @ Raja by the Medical
Board Distt. Gwalior in connection with crime No.350/2017
registered at P.S. Kampoo, Dist. Gwalior for offence
pumshable under Section 307,34 of LP.C., in the interest of
]ustlce

4. It is. submitted by the Counsel for the applicant, that free and fair
investigation is the fundamental right of the accused, as guaranteed under Article
21 of the Constitution of India and therefore, it is obligatory on the part of the
police to conduct the investigation from all necessary and possible angles. It is
. submitted that the complainant-s an influential person being the leader of
Congtess Party and in connivance with the Doctors, a false M.L.C. has been
got prcpared to the efféct that the complainant has suffered firearm i injury,
whereas in fact, no injury was sustained by the complainant. Thus, it was
directed that the respondents may be directed to conduct the investigation jn
free and fair manner and further the complainant may be got medically examined
; by the Medical Board, Gwalior.

5. Per contra, it is submitted by the Counsel for the State that it has

. been alleged by the applicant, that the complainant has got the forged M.L.C.
report prepared in connivance with the Doctor, however, the Doctor has not
been made a party to this application. When an'allegation of mala fide is
made against a person, then he should have been made a party to this petition,

" inorderto answer the allegations and in absence of necessary party, the petition
is bad and is liable to be dismissed. It is further submitted that there is no
allegation against the investigating officer, to prima facie show that the

investigation in free and fair manner is not being done. The applicant by this

application, merely seeks indulgence of this Céurt so that the complainant
may be re-examined by the Medical Board. The incident had taken place on
30- 7-2017 and after 4 months, no useful purpose would be served by getting
the complamant examined by Medical Board. It is further submitted that it is
well established principle of law that the Courts should not supervise the
investigation, and the investigation is the prerogative of the Police. In absence
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of any allegation of mala fides against the investigating officer, the present
application is not maintainable,

6. Heard the learned Counsel for the parties.

7. The complainant was medically examined by C.M.O./Medico-legal
Officer, Casualty, J.A. Hospital, Gwalior on 31-7-2017 and found the following
injury : '

"A cutting shaped wound present over scalp occipital region.
Size 8x2cm placed superficially. Direction Oblique right to left
upward. Blackening, tattooing, burning present. Firearm
inj ury-" .

Thus, aécording to the Doctor, a gunshot injury was found on the
back of the head of the complainant. '

8. Now, the centripetal question for determination is that to what extent,
the High Court in exercise of power under Section 482 of Cr.P.C. can issue
direction to the investigating officer. :

The Supreme Court in the case of Sidhartha Vashisht qlias‘Manu

Sharma vs. State (NCT of Delhi) reported in 2010 6 SCC 1 has held as
. ‘under :-

"'197. In the Indian criminal jurisprudence, the accused is
placed in a somewhat advantageous position than under
different jurisprudence of some of the countries in the world, -
The criminal justice administration system in India places human

: rights and dignity for human life at a much hi gher pedestal; In
our jurisprudence an accused is presumed to be innocent till
proved guilty, the alleged accused is entitled to fairness and
true investigation and fair trial and the prosecution is expected
to play balanced role in the trial of a crime. The investigation
should be judicious, fair, transparent and expeditious to ensure
compliance with the basic rule of law. These are the fundamental
canons of our criminal jurisprudence and they are quite in
conformity withthe constitutional mandate contained in Articles
20-and 21 of the Constitution ofIndia,
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198. A person is entitled to be tried according to the law in
force at the time of commission of offence. A person could not
be punished for the same offence twice and most significantly
cannot be compelled to be a witness against himself and he
cannot be deprived of his personal liberty except according to
the procedure established by law. The law in relation to
investigation of offences and rights of an accused, in our
country, has developed with the passage of time. On the one
hand, power is vested in the investigating officer to conduct
the investigation freely and transparently. Even the courts do
not normally have the right to interfere with the investigation. It
exclusively falls in the domain of the investigating agency. In

_ exceptional cases the High Courts have monitored the
investigation but again within a very limited scope. There, on
the other a duty is cast upon the Prosecutor to ensure that
rights of an accused are not infringed and he gets a fair chance
to put forward his defence so as to ensure that a guilty does
not go scot-free while an innocent is not punished. Evenin the
might of the State the rights of an accused cannot be
widermined, he must be tried in consonance with the provisions
of the constitutional mandate. The cumulative effect of this
constitutional philosophy is that both the courts and the
investigating agency should operate in their own independent
fields while ensuring adherence to basic rule of law.

199, Itis not only the responsibility of the investigating-agency
but as well as that of the courts to ensure that investigation is
fair and does not in any way hamper the freedom of an individual
except in accordance with law. Equally enforceable canon of
_the criminal law is that the high responsibility lies upon the
investigating agency not to conduct an investigation in taintéd
and unfair manner. The investigation should not prima facie be
indicative of a biased mind and every effort should be made to
bring the guilty to law as nobody stands above law dehors his
position and influence in the society. ' .

200.In dehmer’i Devi v. Delhi Admn 1988 Supp. SCC 482
it has been held that the record of investigation should not
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show that efforts are being made to protect and shield the
guilty even where they are police officers and are alleged to
have committed a barbaric offence/crime. The courts have even
declined to accept the report submitted by the investigating
officer where it is glaringly unfair and offends basic canons of
the criminal investigation and jurisprudence. Contra veritatem
lex nunquam aliquid permittit: implies a duty on the court
to accept and accord its approval only to a report which is the
result of faithful and fruitful investigation. The Court is not to
accept the report which is contra legem but (sic) to conduct
judicious and fair investigation and submit a report in
accordance with Section 173 of the Code which places a
burden and obligation on the State Administration. The aim of
criminal justice is two-fold. Severely punishing and really or
sufficiently preventing the crime. Both these objects can be -
achieved only by fair investigation into the commission of crime,
sincerely proving the case of the prosecution before the court
and the guilty is punished in accordance with law.

201. Historically but consistently the view of this Court has
been that an investigation must be fair and effective, must
proceed in proper direction in consonance with the ingredients
of the offence and not in haphazard manner. In some cases
besides investigation being effective the accused may have to
prove miscarriage of justice but once it is shown the accused
would be entitled to definite benefit in accordance with law.
The investigation should be conducted in a manner so as to
draw a just balance between citizen’s right under Articles 19
and 21 and expansive power of the police to make
investigation. These well-established principles have been

. stated by this Court in Sasi Thomas v. State, (2006) 12 SCC
421 State (Inspector of Police) v. Surya Sankaram Karri
(2006) 7 SCC 172and I.T. Antony v. State of Kerala (2001)
6 SCC 181.”

The Supreme Court in the case of VK. Sasikala Vs. State réported-
in (2012) 9 SCC 771 has held as under :-
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"12. The parameters governing the process of investigation of
a criminal charge, the duties of the investigating agency and
the role of the courts after the process of investigation is over
and a report thereof is submitted to the court is exhaustively
laid down in the different Chapters of the Code of Criminal
Procedure, 1973 (CrPC). Though the power of the
investigating agency is large and expansive and the courts have
aminimum role in this regard there are inbuilt provisions in the
Code to ensure that investigation of a criminal offence is
conducted keeping in mind the rights of an accused to a fair
process of investigation. The mandatory duty cast on the
' investigating agency to maintain a case diary of every
investigation on a day-to-day basis and the power of the court
under Section 172(2) and the plenary power conferred in the
High Courts by Article 226 of the Constitution are adequate
safeguards to ensure the conduct of a fair investigation."

The Supreme Court in the case of Pooja Pal Vs. Union of India
reported in (2016) 3 SCC 135 has held as under:-

"'86. A trial encompasses investigation, inquiry, trial, appeal
and retrial i.e. the entire range of scrutiny including crime
detection and adjudication on the basis thereof.
Jurisprudentially, the guarantee under Article 21 embraces both
the life and liberty of the accused as well as interest of the
victim, his near and dear ones as well as of the community at
large and therefore, cannot be alienated from each other with
levity. It is judicially acknowledged that fair trial includes fair
investigation as envisaged by Articles 20 and 21 of the
Constitution of India. Though well-demarcated contours of
crime detection and adjudication do exist, if the investigation
~ isneither effective nor purposeful nor objective nor fair, it would
be the solemn obligation of the courts, if considered necessary,
to order further investigation or reinvestigation as the case may
be, to discover the truth so as to prevent miscarriage of the
justice. No inflexible guidelines or hard-and -fast rules as such
can be prescribed by way of uniform and universal invocation
and the decision is to be conditioned to the attendant facts
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and circumstances, motivated dominantly by the predication
of advancement of the cause of justice.

87. Any criminal offence is.one against the society at large

2889

casting an onerous responsibility on the State, as the guardian -

and purveyor of human rights and protector of law to discharge
its sacrosanct role responsibly and committedly, always
accountable to the law-abiding citizenry for any lapse. The
power of the constitutional courts to direct further investigation
or reinvestigation is a dynamic component ofits jurisdiction to
exercise judicial review, a basic feature of the Constitution
and though has to be exercised with due care and caution and
informed with self-imposed restraint, the plenitude and content
thereof can neither be enervated nor moderated by any
legislation.

88. The expression “fair and proper investigation” in criminal
jurisprudence was held by this Courtin Vinay Tyagiv. Irshad
Ali(2013) 5 SCC 762 to encompass two imperatives; firstly,
the investigation must be unbiased, honest, just and in
accordance with law; and secondly, the entire emphasis has
to be to bring out the truth of the case before the court of
competent jurisdiction. e

89. Prior thereto, in the same vein, it was ruled in Samaj
Parivartan Samudaya v. State of Karnataka (2012) 7 SCC
407 that the basic purpose of an investigation is to bring out
the truth by conducting fair and proper investigation in
accordance with law and to ensure that the guilty are punished.
It held further that the jurisdiction of a court to ensure fair and
proper investigation in an adversarial system of criminal
administration is of 'd higher degree than in an inquisitorial
system and it has to take precaution that interested or influential
persons are not able to misdirect or hijack the investigation,
50 as to throttle a fair investigation resulting in the offenders,
escaping the punitive course of law. Any lapse, it was
proclaimed, would result in error of jurisdiction.

90. That the victim cannot be afforded to be treated as an
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alien or total stranger to the criminal trial was reiterated by this
Court in Rattiram v. State of M. P. (2012) 4 SCC 516 It was
postulated that the criminal jurisprudence with the passage of
‘time has laid emphasis on victimology, which fundamentally is
the perception of a trial from the viewpoint of criminal as well
as the victim when judged in the social context.

91. This Court in NHRC v. State of Gujarat (2009) 6 SCC
767 did proclaim unambiguously that discovery, investigatiofi
and establishment of truth are the main purposes of the courts
of justice and indeed are raison d’étre for their existence.”

The Supreme Court in the case of Nahar Singh Yadav V. Umon of
Indiareported in (2011) 1 SCC 307 has held asunder :-

"21. Reverting to the main issue, a true and fair trial is sine qua B
non of Article 21 of the Constitut_ion, which declares that:

“21. Protection of life and personal liberty.— No person
shall be deprived of his ‘life’ or ‘personal liberty’ except
accordlng to procedure established by law.”

It needs no emphasis that a criminal trial, which may result in
depriving a person of not only his personal liberty but also his
life has to be unbiased, and without any prejudice for or against
the accused. An impartial and uninfluenced trial is the
fundamental requirement of'a fair trial, the first and the foremost
imperative of the criminal justice delivery system. If a criminal
trial is not free and fair, the criminal justice system would
undoubtedly be at stake, eroding the confidence of a common
man in the system, which would not augur well for the society
at large. Therefore, as and when it is shown that the public
confidence in the fairness of a particular trial is likely to be
seriously undermined, for any reason whatsoever, Section 406
CrPC empowers this Court to transfer any case or appeal
from one High Court to another High Court or from one criminal
court subordinate to one High Court to another criminal court
of equal or superior jurisdiction subordinate to another High
Court, to meet the ends of justice. :
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22. It is, however, the trite law that power under Section 406.

CrPC has to be construed strictly and is to be exercised
sparingly and with great circumspection. It needs little emphasis
that a prayer for transfer should be allowed only when there is
a well-substantiated apprehension that justice will not be
dispensed impartially, objectively and without any bias. In the
absence of any material demonstrating such apprehension, this
Court will not entertain application for transfer of a trial, as
any transfer of trial from one State to another implicitly reflects
upon the credibility of not only the entire State judiciary but
also the prosecuting agency, which would include the Public
Prosecutors as well. '

23. InZahira Habibulla H. Sheikh v. State of Gujarat (2004)
4 SCC 158 while explaining the import of the expression “fair
trial”, this Court had observed that: (SCC p. 184, para 36)

“36. ... Fair trial obviously would mean a trial before
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an impartial judge, a fair prosecutor and atmosphere -

of judicial calm. Fair trial means a trial in which bias or
prejudice for or against the accused, the witnesses, or
the cause which is being tried is eliminated. If the
witnesses get threatened or are forced to give false
evidente that also would not result in a fair trial. The
failure to hear material witnesses is certainly denial of
fair trial.” .

24. In Maneka Sanjay Gandhi v. Rani Jethmalani (1979) 4
'SCC 167 speaking for a Bench of three learned Judges of this
* Court, V.R. Krishna Iyer, J. said: (SCC p. 169, para 2)

). Assurance of a fair trial is the first imperative of the
dispensation of justice and the central criterion for the
court to consider when a motion for transfer is made
is not the hypersensitivity or relative convenience of a
party or easy availability of legal services or like mini-
grievances. Something more substantial, more
compelling, more imperilling, from the point of view of
public justice and its attendant environment, is
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necessitous if the court is to exercise its power of .
transfer. This is the cardinal principle although the
circumstances may.be myriad and vary from case to
case. We have to test the petitioner’s grounds on this
touchstone bearing in mind the rule that normally the
complainant has the right to choose any court having
jurisdiction and the accused cannot dictate where the

" case against him should be tried. Even so, the process
of justice should not harass the parties and from that
angle the court may weigh the circumstances.”

. 25. In Abdul Nazar Madani v. State of T.N. (2000) 6 SCC
204 dealing with a sirnilar application, this Court had echoed
the following views: (SCC pp. 210-11, para 7) '

*7. ... The apprehension of not getting a fair and
impartial inquiry or trial is required to be reasonable
and not imaginary, based upon conjectures and-
surmises. If it appears that the dispensation of criminal
justice is not possible impartially and objectively and
without any bias, before any court or even at any place,.
the appropriate court may transfer the case to another
court where it feels that holding of fair and proper trial
is conducive. No universal or hard-and-fast rules can

* be prescribed for deciding a transfer petition which
has always to be decided on the basis of the facts of
each case. Convenience of the parties including the
witnesses to be produced at the trial is also arelevant
consideration for deciding the transfer petition. The
convenience of the parties does not necessarily mean
the convenience of the petitioners alone who
approached the court on misconceived notions of
apprehension. Convenience for the purposes of transfer
means the convenience of the prosecution, other
accused, the witnesses and the larger interest of the
society.” '

26. In X. Anbazhagan v. Supdt. of Police (2004) 3 SCC

v

[0
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767 this Court had an occasion to deal with the prayer for
transfer of a criminal trial from Tamil Nadu to another State
mainly on the ground of apprehension of political interference
in the trial, While finally directing the transfer of the case to the
State of Karnataka, the Court observed thus: (SCCp. 784,
para 30) :

“30. Free and fair trial is sine qua non of Article 21 of
the Constitution. It is trite law that justice should not
only be done but it should be seen to have been done.
If the criminal trial is not free and fair and not free
from bias, judicial fairness and the criminal Justice
system would be at stake shaking the confidence of
the public in the system and woe would be the rule of
law. It is important to note that in such a case the
question is not whether the petitioner is actually biased
but the question is whether the circumstances are such
that there is a reasonable apprehension in the mind of
the petitioner.”

27. Recently, in Amarinder Singh v. Parkash Singh Badal,
(2009) 6 SCC 260 while dealing with two transfer applications
preferred uhder Section 406 CrPC on the ground that with
the change in State Government, the trial was suffering setback
due to the influence of the new Chief Minister as also the lack
of interest by the Public Prosecutor, P. Sathasivam, J., speaking
for a three-Judge Bench has observed thus: (SCC p. 273,
paras 18-20)

“18. For a transfer of a criminal case, there must be a
reasonable apprehension on the part of the party to a
case that justice will not be done. It is one of the
principles of administration of justice that justice should
not only be done but it should be seen to be done. On
the other hand, mere allegations that there is
apprehension that justice will not be done in a given .
case does not suffice. In other words, the court has
further to see whether the apprehension alleged is
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reasonable or not. The apprehension must not only be
entertained but must appear to the court to be a
reasonable apprehension.

19. Assurance of a fair trial is the first imperative of the
dispensation of justice. The purpose of the criminal trial is to

. dispense fair and impartial justice uninfluenced by extraneous
considerations. When it is shown that the public confidence in
the fairness of a trial would be seriously undermined, the
aggrieved party can seck the transfer of a case within the State
under Section 407 and anywhere in the country under Section
406 CrPC.

20. However, the apprehension of not getting a fair and
impartial inquiry or trial is required to be reasonable and not
imaginary. Free and fair trial is sine qua non of Article 21 of
the Constitution. If the criminal trial is not free and fair and if it
1s biased, judicial fairness and the criminal justice system would
be at stake, shaking the confidence of the public in the system.
The apprehension must appear to the court to be a reasonable
one.” '

The Supreme Court in the case of Manohar Lal Sharma Vs. Principal
Secretary and others reported in AIR 2014 SC 666 has held as under :

"29. In the criminal justice system the investigation of an offence
is the domain of the police. The power to investigate into the
cognizable offences by the.police officer is ordinarily not -
impinged by any fetters. However, such power has to be
exercised consistent with the statutory provisions and for
legitimate purpose. The Courts ordinarily do not interfere in
the matters of investigation by police, particularly, when the
facts and circumstances do not indicate that the investigating
officer is not functioning bona fide. In very exceptional cases,
however, where the Court finds that the police officer has
exercised his investigatory powers in breach of the statutory
provision putting the personal liberty and/or the property of
the citizen in jeopardy by illegal and improper use of the power
or there is abuse of the investigatory power and process by

|
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the police officer or the investigation by the police is found to
be not bona fide or the investigation is tainted with animosity,
the Court may intervene to protect the personal and/or property.
rights of the citizens."

9. Article 20 of the Constitution of India reads as under :

"20. Protection in respect of conviction for offences.—
(1) No person shall be convicted of any offence except for
violation of a law in force at the time of the commission of the
act charged as an offence, nor be subjected to a penalty greater
than that which might have been inflicted under the law in force
at the tinie of the commission of the offence.

(2) No person shall be-prosecuted and punished for the same
offence more than once.

(3) No person accused of any offence shall be compelled to
be a witness against himself."

Article 21 of the Constitution of India reads as under :-

“21. Protection of life and personal liberty.—No person
shall be deprived of his life or personal liberty except according
to procedure established by law."

10.  Thus,Article 20 and 21 of Constitution of India, guarantee protection
to the citizens of India that no person accused of any offence shall be compelled
to be a witness against himself and no person shall be deprived of his life or
personal liberty except-according to procedure established by law and no
one shall be prosecuted and punished for the same offence more than once.

11.  Thepersonal liberty of a person cannot be curtailed except according
to procedure established by law. The Supreme Court in the case of Pooja -
‘Pal(supra) has held that a trial encompasses investigation, inquiry, trial, appeal '
and retrial i.e. the entire range of scrutiny including crime detectlon and
adjudication on the basis thereof.

-12. . The Supreme Court in the case of Shatrughan Chauhan Vs. Union

of India reported in (2014) 3 SCC 1, has held as under :-
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'57. Another vital aspect, without mention of which the present
discussion will not be complete, is that, as aforesaid, Article
21'is the paramount principle on which rights of the convict
are based, this must be considered along with the rights of the
victims or the deceased’s family as also societal consideration
since these elements form part of the sentencing process as
well. It is the stand of the respondents that the commutation of
sentence of death based on delay alone will be against the
victim’s interest."

The Supreme Court in the case of Karan Singh Vs. State of Haryana
reported in (2013) 12 SCC 529 has held as under :-

"16. The investigation into a criminal offence must be free fiom
any objectionable features or infirmities which may giverise to
an apprehension in the mind of the complainant or the accused,
that investigation was not fair and may have been carried out
with some ulterior motive. The investi gating officer must not
indulge in any kind of mischief, or cause harassment either to
the complainant or to the accused. His conduct must be entirely
impartial and must dispel any suspicion regarding the
genuineness of the investigation. The invest gating officer, “is
not merely present to strengthen the case of the prosecution
with evidence that will enable the court to record a conviction,
but to bring out the real unvarnished version of the truth”. Ethical
conduct on the part of the investi gating agency is absolutely
essential, and there must be no scope for any allegation of
mala fides or bias. Words like “personal liberty” contained in
Atrticle 21 of the Constitution of India provide for the widest
amplitude, covering all kinds of rights particularly, the right to
personal liberty of the citizens of India, and a person cannot
be deprived of the same without following the procedure
prescribed by law. In this way, the investigating agencies are
the guardians of the liberty of innocent citizens. Therefore, a
duty is cast upon the investigating officer to ensure that an
innocent person should not suffer from unnecessary harassment
of false implication, however, at the same time, an accused
person must not be given undue leverage. An investigation
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cannot be interfered with or inifluenced even by the-courts.
Therefore, the investigating agency must avoid entirely any kind
of extraneous influence, and investigation must be carried out

. with equal alacrity and fairness irrespective of the status of the
accused or the complainant, as atainted investigation definitely
leads to the miscarriage of criminal justice, and thus deprives
aman of his fundamental rights guaranteed under Article 21 of
the Constitution. Thus, every investigation must be judicious,
fair, transparent and expeditious to ensure compliance with
the rules of law, as is required under Articles 19, 20 and 21 of
the Constitution."

The Supreme Court in the case of Babubhai Vs. State of Gujarat
reported in (2010) 12 SCC 254 has held as under :-

"38. Unless an extraordinary case of gross abuse of power is
made out by those in charge of the investigation, the court
should be quite loathe to interfere with the investigation, a field
of activity reserved for the police and the executive. Thus, in
case of a mala fide exercise of power by a police officer the
court may interfere. (Vide S.N. Sharma v.- Bipen Kumar
Tiwari, (1 970) 1 SCC 653)" '

13.  Thus, itisclear that only when a person who has been arraigned as an
accused points out that investigation is being done because of extraneous
influence, or mala fide, or bias or in short that the investigation is a tainted
investigation, and an extraordinary case of gross abuse of power by the
investigating officer is made out, only then the Courts can interfere in the
matter and can issue directions for ensuring free and fair investigation.

14. The next question for determination is that whether an accused can
seek a direction to the investigating officer, to investigate the matter from his
angle of defence or not?.

The word “Fair” means free from any biases, mala fides, arbitrariness.
Thus, unless and until, an aillegation of bias, or mala fides is alleged against .
the investigating officer, pointihg out the instances, prima facie proving beyond
reasonable doubt, that the investigating officer, is indulged in tainted, biased
investigation, it cannot be said that the investigating which is being done by
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the investigating officer, is not free and fair. The words “free and fair” are
relative words. A free and fair investigation for some one, may be a tainted

investigation for another. Therefore, it is obligatory on the part of person, .

alleging tainted investigation, to make outa strong and a case beyond doubt,
that the investigating officer for one reason or the other, is biased against the
accused or is conducting tainted investigation with mala fides. Merely because
the person arraigned as an accused feels that he has been falsely implicated,
he cannot seek direction for the police to conduct the investigation from his
defence point of view also.

I5.  Itiswell established principle of law that investigation is the domain of
the police.

The Supreme Court in the case of S. M. Datta Vs. State of Gujarat,
reported in (2001) 7 SCC 659 has held as under :-

"2. Since the decision of the Privy Council in Khwaja Nazir
Ahmad (King Emperor v. Khwaja Nazir Ahmad (1944) 71
14 203) and till this day there is existing one salutary principle
that in normal circumstances, the law courts would not thwart
any investigation and criminal proceedings initiated must be
allowed to have their own course under the provisions of the
Code. The powers of the police ought to stand unfettered to

"investigate cases where they suspect or even have reasons to
suspect the commission of a cognizable offence and the first
information report (FIR) discloses such offence. The Judicial
Committee in the decision of Nazir Ahmad observed: (AIR p.
22)

“In Their Lordships’ opinion, however, the more serious
aspect of the case is to be found in the-resultant
interference by the court with the duties of the police.
Just as it is essential that everyone accused of a crime
should have free access to a court of justice so that he
may be duly acquitted if found not guilty of the offence
with which he is charged, so it is of the utmost

. importance that the judiciary should not interfere with
the police in matters which are-within their province
and into which the law imposes upon them the duty of
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enquiry. In India, as has been shown, there is a statutory
right on the part of the police to investigate -the
circumstances of an alleged cognizable crime without
requiring any authority from the judicial authorities, and
it would, as Their Lordships think, be an unfortunate
.result if it should be held possible to interfere with those
statutory rights by an exercise of the inherent
jurisdiction of the court. The functions of the judiciary
and the police are complemeéntary, not overlapping,
and the combination of individual liberty with a due
observance of law and order is only to be obtained by
leaving each to exercise its own fiinction, always, of
course, subject to the right of the court to intervene in
an appropriate ¢ase when moved under Section 491
of the Criminal Procedure Code to give directions in
the nature of habeas corpus. In such a case as the
present, however, the court’s functions begin when a
_charge is preferred before it and not until then.”

3, It is paramount to note however, that the observations of

" Lord Porter in Nazir Ahmad stand qualified by inclusion of

the following: (AIR p. 22)

“No doubt, if no cognizable offence is disclosed, and
still more if no offence of any kind is disclosed, the
police would have no authority to undertake an
investigation....” ’

4. The qualified statement of the Judicial Committee however
stands noted in Sanchaita Investment (State of W.B. v.

Swapan Kumar Guha,-(1982) 1 SCC 561). Incidentally, -

Sanchaita Investment and subsequent decisions, including

- Bhajan Lal (State of Haryana v. Bhajan Lal 1992 Supp (1)
SCC 335 ) and Rajesh Bajaj (Rajesh Bajaj v. State NCT of

Delhi (1999) 3 SCC 259) in one tune stated that if an offence

is disclosed the court will not interfere with an investigation -

and will permit investigation into the offence alleged to have
been committed. If, however, the materials do not disclose an
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offence, no investigation should normally be permitted.

5. The approach of this Court and the law as laid down by the

Judicial Committee in Nazir Ahmad cannot but be termed to

. be in accordance with the principles of justice. While liberty
of an individual are “sacred and sacrosanct” and it is a bounden
obligation of the court to protect them but in the event of
commission of a cognizable offence and an offence stand
disclosed in the first information report, interest of justice
requires further investigation by the investigating agency.
Needless to record that investigation of an offence is within
the exclusive domain of the police department and not the law
courts. In the event of disclosure of an offence, it is a duty
incumbent to investigate into the offence and bring the offender
to book in order to serve the cause of justice and it is only
thereafier the investigating officer submits the report to the court
with a prayer to take cognizance of the offence under Section
190 CrPC and it is on submission of the report that the duty of
the police ends, subject however to the provisions as contained

- in Section 173(8) of the Code. There is thus a clear and well-
defined area of operation and demarcated function in the field
of investigation of crimes and its subsequent adjudication. In
this context reference may be made to the decision of this
Court in State of Bihar v. J.A.C. Saldanha, (1980) 1 SCC
554.

6. While an offence if disclosed in the FIR ought not to be
thwarted at the initial stages, but in the event however, the
materials do not disclose an offence, no investigation should
normally be permitted. It is in this context this Court in
Sanchaita Investment observed: (SCC pp. 597-98, para 65)

“65. In my opinion, the legal position is well settled.
The legal position appears to be that if an offence is
disclosed, the court will not normally interfere with an
investigation into the case and will permit investigation
into the offence alleged to be completed; if, however,
the materials do not disclose an offence, no investigation

-



LLR.[2017]M.P. * Prabal Dogra Vs. S.P. Gwalior 2901

should normally be permitted......... .

‘ The Supreme Court in the case of D. Venkatasubramaniam vs. M.K.
Mohan Krishnamachari reported in (2009) 10 SCC 488, has held as under:-

"17. Be it noted that there is no allegation of dereliction of any
duty on the part of the investigating agency. There is also no
allegation of any collusion and deliberate delay on the part of
the investigating agency in the matter of investigation into the -
case that had been promptly registered on the information
lodged by the respondent. The petition almost reads hke a
civil suit for recovery of the money.

18. As noted hereinabove, the petition has been filed within
one week of registration of the crime by which time the police
had already started serious investigation as is evident from the
material available on record. It is also required to notice that
noné of the appellants have been impleaded as party-
‘respondents to the petition filed under Section 482 of the Code.
The State represented by its Sub-Inspector of Police, Central
Crime Branch, Egmore, Chennai alone was impleaded as the
respondent. The investigating agency in its counter filed in the
High Court stated that afier obtaining necessary legal opinion,
a case was registered and “commenced the investigation™. It
is also stated in categorical terms that the police had “inquired
all the connected witnesses, recorded their statements and also
collected the material documents and confirmed commission
" of cognizable offences by all the accused™.

19. The High Court, within a period of one month from the
date of filing of the petition, finally disposed of the same
observing that, ’ :

“it is obligatory on the part of the respondent police
to conduct investigation in accordance with law,
including recording of statements from witnesses, arrest,
seizute of property, perusal of various documents and
filing of chargesheet. It is also needless to state that if
any account is available with the accused persons, or
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any amount is in their possession and any account is
maintained in a nationalised bank, itis obligatory on
the part of the respondent police to take all necessary

" stepsto safeguard the interest of the aggrieved persons
in this case™.

The Court accordingly directed the police to expedite and
‘complete the investigation within six months from the date of

_ receipt of a copy of the-order. The said order of the High
Court is impugned in these appeals.

* ¥ % -k

25. It is the statutory obligation and duty of the police to
investigate into the crime and the courts normally ought not to
interfere and guide the investigating agency as to in what manner
the investigation has to proceed. In M.C. Abraham v. State
of Maharashtra (2003) 2 SCC 649 this Court observed:
(SC€C pp. 657-58, para 14)

. *14. ... Section 41 of the Code of Criminal Procedure
provides for arrest by a police officer without an order

. from a Magistrate and without a warrant. The section

- gives discretion to the police officer who may, without
.. anorder from a Magistrate and even without a warrant,
arrest any person in the situations enumerated in that
section. Itis open to him, in the course of investigation,

“to arrest any person who has been concerned with any
_cognizable offence or against whom reasonable’
complaint has been made or credible information has
been received, or a reasonable suspicion exists of his
having been so concerned. Obviously, he is not
expected to act in a mechanical manner and in all cases

to arrest the accused as soon as the report is lodged.
In appropriate cases, after some investigation, the .
investigating officer may make up his mind as to whether

it is necessary to arrest the accused person, At that
stage the court has no role to play. Since the power is
discretionary, a police officer is not always bound to
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arrest an accused even if the allegation against him is
of having committed a cognizable offence. Since an
arrest is in the nature of an encroachment on the liberty
of the subject and does affect the reputation and status
of the citizen, the power has to be cautiously exercised.
‘Tt depends inter alia upon the nature of the offence
alleged and the type of persons who are accused of
" having committed the cognizable offence. Obviously,
the power has to.be exercised with caution and
circumspection.”

26. It is further observed: (M.C. Abraham case, SCC pp
659-60, para 17)

«“17. The principle, therefore, is well settled that it is
for the investigating agency to submit a report to the
Magistrate after full and complete investigation. The
investigating agency may submit a report finding the
allegations substantiated. It is also open to the
investigating agency to submit a report finding no
material to support the allegations made in the first
information report. It is open to the Magistrate
concerned to accept the report or to order further
enquiry. But what is clear is that the Magistrate cannot
direct the investigating agency to submitareport that - .
is in accord with his views. Even in a case wheret
report is submitted by the investi gating agency finding
that no case is made out for prosecutlon, itisopento
the Magistrate to disagree with the report and to'take
cognizance, but what he cannot do is to direct the
investigating agency to submit a report to the effect
that the allegations have been supported by the material
collected during the course of investigation.”

. 27. This Court while observing that it was not appropriate for
the High Court to issue a direction that the case should not
only be investigated but a chargesheet must be submitted, held:
(M.C. Abraham case, SCC p. 660, para 18)
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“18. ... In our view the High Court exceeded its
]unsdlctlon in making this direction which deserves to
be set aside. While it is open to the High Court, in
appropriate cases, to give directions for prompt
investigation, etc. the High Court cannot direct the
investigating agency to submit a report that is in .
accord with its views as that would amount to
unwarranted interference with the investigation of
the case by inhibiting the exercise of statutory power
by the investigating agency.”

16.  Ttisawell established principle of law that the prosecution cannot be
compelled to file those documents, on which it does not want to place reliance.
Ifthe prosecution is directed to investigate the matter from the defence point
of view of the accused, then it would mean, that by issuing such a direction, a
Court has also issued a direction to the prosecution to file even those
documents, on which the prosecution otherwise does not want torely. Itisa
well established principle of law that a prosecution document, even if it remains
unexhibited, can be relied upon by an accused, if the said document is in
favour of the accused,.or even at the time of framing charge, the prosecution
document, in favour of the accused has to be taken into favour.

The Supreme Court in the case of State of M.P. Vs. Sheetala Sahai
and othersteported in (2009) 8 SCC 617 has held as under :-

"52. In this case, the probative value of the materials on record
has not been gone into. The materials brought on record have
been accepted as true at this stage, It is true that at this stage
even a defence of an accused cannot be considered. But, we
are unable to persuade ourselves to agree with the submission -
of Mr Tulsi-that where the entire materials collected during
"investigation-have been placed before the court as part of the
chargesheet, the court at the time of framing of the charge
could only look to those materials whereupon the prosecution
intended to rely upon and ignore the others which are in favour
of the accused.

53, The question as to whether the court should proceed on
the basis as to whether the materials brought on record even if

~
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given face value'and taken to be correct in their entirety dlsclose
commission of an offence or not must be determined having
regard to the entirety of materials brought on record by the
prosecution and not on a part of it. If such a constructlon is
made, sub-section (5) of Section 173 of the Code of Criminal
Procedure shall become meaningless.

" 54.The prosecution, having regard to the right of an accused
to have a fair investigation, fair inquiry and fair trial as
adumbrated under Article 21 of the Constitution of India,
cannot at any stage be deprived of taking advantage of the-
materials which the prosecution itself has placed on record. If
upon perusal of the entire materials on record, the court arrives
at an opinion that two views are possible, charges can be <~
framed, but if only one and one view is possible to be taken, -
the court shall not put the accused to harassment by asking
him to face a trial. (See State 6f Maharashtra v. Som Nath
Thapa, (1996) 4 SCC 659)

The Supreme Court in the case of State of Orissa Vs Debendra
- Nath Padhi reported (2005) 1 SCC 568 has held as under :-

"23. As aresult of the aforesaid discussion, in our view, clearly
the law is that at the time of framing charge or taking
cognizance the accused has no right to produce any material.
Satish Mehra case holding that the trial court has powers to
consider even materials which the accused may produce at
the stage of Section 227 of the Code has not been correctly -
decided.

% * £ %

29. Regarding the argument of the accused having to face the
trial despite being in a position to produce material of
unimpeachable character of sterling quality, the width of the
powers of the High Court under Section 482 of the Code and
Article 226 of the Constitution is unlimited whereunder in the
iﬁterqsts of justice the High Court can make such orders as
may be necessary to prevent abuse of the process of any court

W
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or otherwise to secure the ends of justice within the parameters
laid down in Bhajan Lal case."

17.  Thus, itis clear that where the accused cannot be permitted to produce
any document in his favour even at the stage of framing of charge, then in
-exercise of powers under Section 482 of Cr.P.C., the High Court cannot
direct the prosecution to investigate the matter from the defence point of view
of the accused. The basic purpose of investigation is to find out the truth in the
allegations made by the complainant against as accused. Safeguards have been
provided under Section 169 of Cr.P.C. itself. If the investigating officer after
concluding the investigation comes to a conclusion that the allegations made
by the complainant are false, then it can file a closure report, Thus, it is clear
that the investigating officer has to conduct the investigation from all possible

angles, and after the final report is filed, then it would be open to the accused ..

or to the victim, to show that the said final report is not worth acceptance.

When a closure report is filed, the complainant is entitled for hearing by the
Magistrate, before acceptance of the closure report, and where the charge
sheet is filed, the accused will have a right to argue on the question of discharge
or framing of charges or even proving his defence by leading cogent evidence
or by'showing preponderance of probabilities. The Supreme Court in the
case of Rajiv Thapar Vs. Madan Lal Kapor reported in (2013) 3 SCC 330
has held as under :

"30. Based on the factors canvassed in the foregoing
paragraphs, we would delineate the following steps to determine
the veracity of a prayer for quashment raised by an accused
by invoking the power vested in the High Court under Section
482 CrPC:

30.1. Step one: whether the material relied upon by the
accused is sound; reasonable, and indubitable i.¢. the materlal
- is of sterling and impeccable quality?

30.2. Step two: whether the material relied upon by the
accused would rule out the assertions contained in the charges
levelled against the accused i.e. the material is sufficient to
reject and overrule the factual assertions contained in the
complaint i.e. the material is such as would persuade a

s
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. reasonable person to dismiss and condemn the factual basis
+ of the accusations as false?:

30.3. Step three: whether the material relied upon by the
accused has not been refuted by the prosecution/complainant;

. and/or the material is such that it cannot be justifiably refuted

by the prosecution/complainant?

30.4. Step four: whether proceedmg with the trial would result

2907 -

in an abuse of process of the court, and would not serve the

ends of justice?

30.5. If the answer to all the steps is in the affirmative, the
judicial conscience of the High Court should persuade it to
quash such criminal proceedings in exercise of power vested
in it under Section 482 CrPC. Such exercise of power, besides
doing justice to the accused, would save precious court timie,

which wouild otherwise be wasted in holding such a trial (as
well as proceedmgs arising therefrom) specially when it is clear
that the same would not conclude in the conviction of the
accused.” :

The Supreme Court in the case of Prashant Bharti Vs. State (NCT

of Delhi) reported in (2013) 9 SCC 293 has held as under :-

"22. The proposition of law, pertaining to quashing of criminal
proceedings, initiated against an accused by a High Court under
Section 482 of the Code of Criminal Procedure (hereinafter
referred to as “CrPC”) has been dealt with by this Court in
Rajiv Thapar v. Madan Lal Kapoor, (2013) 3 SCC 330
wherein this Court inter alia held as under: (SCC pp. 347-49,
paras 29-30)

“29. The issue being examined in the instant case is
the jurisdiction of the High Court under Section 482
CrPC, if it chooses to quash the initiation of the
prosecution against an accused at the stage of issuing
process, or at the stage of committal, or even at the
stage of framing of charges. These are all stages before
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the commencement of the actual trial. The same
parameters would naturally be available for later stages
as well. The power vested in the High Court under .
Section 482 CrPC, at the stages referred to
hereinabove, would have far-reaching consequences,
inasmuch as it would negate the prosecution’s/
complainant’s case without allowing the prosecution/
complainant to lead evidence. Such a determination
must always be rendered with caution, care and
circumspection. To invoke its inherent jurisdiction under
Section 482 CrPC the High Court has to be fully
satisfied that the material produced by the accused is
such that would lead to the conclusion that his/their
defence is based on sound, reasonable, and indubitable
facts; the material produced is such as would rule out
and displace the assertions contained in the charges
levelled against the accused; and the material produced
is such as would clearly reject and overrule the veracity
of the allegations contained in the accusations levelled
by the prosecution/complainant. It should be sufficient .
to rule out, reject and discard the accusations levelled
by the prosecution/complainant, without the necessity
- of recording any evidence. For this the material relied
upon by the defence should not have been refuted, or
- alternatively, cannot be justifiably refuted, being material
of sterling and impeccable quality. The material relied
upon by the accused should be such as would persuade
areasonable person to dismiss and condemn the actual
basis of the accusations as false. In such a situation,
the judicial conscience of the High Court would
persuade it to exercise its power under Section 482
CrPC to quash such criminal proceedings, for that
would prevent abuse of process of the court, and secure
the ends of justice."

18.  Thus, it is clear that where the material produc-:ed by the accused is
such that would lead to the conclusion that his/their defence is based on sound,

I
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reasonable and indubitable facts, and the same would rule out the assertions
contained in the complaint, the High Court can always look into those
documents.

19. Article 21 of Constitution of India provides that no one shall be
deprived of his personal liberty’ except in accordance with procedure
established by law. Thus, it is clear that where the accused isina position to
prima facie prove that his documents are sound, reasonable and indubitable,
then the same can be looked into, even at an early stage of trial, otherwise,
. the accused is always entitled to prove his defence in the Trial by either by
showing preponderance of probabilities or by leading cogent and reliable
evidence.

20.  Freeand fair investigation is the fundamental right of the accused as
guaranteed under Article 21 of the Constitution of India, however, the Courts
have limited power to interfere with the investigation as the investigation is the
prerogative/domain of police. The Court cannot supervise the investigation
and cannot issue directions to the investigating officer, to investigate the case
from a particular point of view. The Courts can always interfere with the
investigation, when it is shown that the investigating officer has acted in violation
of any statutory provision of law putting the personal liberty of a person in
jeopardy or the investigation is not bona fide or the Investigation is tainted
being biased or mala fide. Thus, in nutshell, where allegations against the
investigating officers are made and when the same are found to be proved,
only then the Court can interfere with the investigation. However, where a
prayer is made that the police be directed to investigate the matter from the
accused's point of view, then the Courts cannot interfere with the matter. Even
otherwise, the mala fides of an informant may not be sufficient to interfere
with the investigation.

The Supreme Court in the case of Renu Kumari Vs. Sanjay Kumar
and Others reported in (2008) 12 SCC 346 has held as under :-

"11. As noted above, the powers possessed by the High Court
under Section 482 Cr.P.C. are very wide and the very plenitude
of the power requires great caution in its exercise. The court
muist be careful to see that its decision, in exercise of this power,.
is based on sound principles. The inherent power should not
* be exercised to stifle a legitimate prosecution. The High Court
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being the highest court of a State should normally refrain from
giving a prima facie decision in a case where the entire facts
are incomplete and hazy, more so when the evidence has not
been collected and produced before the Court and the issues
involved, whether factual or legal, are of magnitude and cannot
be seen in their true perspective without sufficient material. Of
course, no hard-and-fast rule can be laid down in regard to
cases in which the High Court will exercise its extraordinary
jurisdiction of quashing the proceeding at any stage. It would
not be proper for the High Court to analyse the case of the
complainant in the light of all probabilities in order to determine
whether a conviction would be sustainable and on such .
premises arrive at a conclusion that the proceedings are to be
quashed. It would be erroneous to assess the material before
it and conclude that the complaint cannot be proceeded with.
When an information is lodged at the police station and an
offence is registered, then the mala fides of the informant would
be of secondary importance. It is the material collected during
the investigation and evidence led in the court which decides
the fate of the accused person. The allegations of mala fides
against the informant are of no consequence and cannot by
themselves be the basis for quashing the proceedings”.

. (See Dhanalakshmi v. R. Prasanna Kumar (1990 Supp SCC
686), State of Bihar v. P. P. Sharma (1992 Supp (1) SCC
222), Rupan Deol Bajaj v. Kanwar Pal Singh Gill (1995(6)
SCC 194) , State of Kerala v. O.C. Kuttan (1999(2) SCC
651), State of U.P. v. O.P. Sharma(1996 (7) SCC 705),
Rashmi Kumar v. Mahesh Kumar Bhada (1997 (2) SCC 397),
Satvinder Kaur v. State (Govt. of NCT of Delhi) (1999 (8)
SCC 728) and Rajesh Bajaj v. State NCT of Delhi State (1999
(3) SCC 259).

The above position was again reiterated in State of Karnataka
v. M. Devendrappa (2002) 3 SCC 89, State of M.P. v. Awadh
Kishore Gupta (2004) 1 SCC 691 and State of Orissa v. Saroj
Kumar Sahoo (2005) 13 SCC 540, SCC pp. 547-50, paras
8-11.”
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21.  Ttiswellestablished principle of law that the free trial is the fundamental
right of the accused as well as of the complainant. If the Court supervises the
investigation by issuing directions to the investi gating officer, and compels the
investigating officer to form his opinion based on the directions of the Court,

then nothing would be left in the Trial Court.

The Supreme Court in the case of Manohar Lal Sharma (Supra) has
held asunder :

"39. However, the investigation/inquiry monitored by the court
does not mean that the court supervises such investigation/
inquiry. To supervise would mean to observe and direct the
execution of a task whereas to monitor would only mean to
maintain surveillance. The concern and interest of the court in
such “Court-directed” or “Court-monitored” cases is that there
is no undue delay in the investigation, and the investigation is
conducted in a free and fair manner with no external
interference. In such a process, the people acqudinted with
facts and circumstances of the case would also have a sense
of security and they would cooperate with the investigation
given that the superior courts are seized of the matter, We find
that in some cases, the expression “Court-monitored” has been
interchangeably used with “Court-supervised investigation™.
Once the court supervises an investigation, there.is hardly
anything left in the trial. Under the Code, the investigating officer
is only to form an opinion and it is for the court to ultimately
try the case based on the opinion formed by the investigating
officer and see whether any offence has been made out. If a
superior court supervises the investigation and thus facilitates
the formulation of such opinion in the form of a report under
Section 173(2) of the Code, it will be difficult if not impossible
for the trial court to not be influenced or bound by such opinion..

Then trial becomes a farce. Therefore, supervision of
investigation by any court is a contradiction in terms. The Code
does not envisage such a procedure, and it cannot either. In
the rare and compelling circimstances referred to above, the
superior courts may monitor an investigation to ensure that the
investigating agency cenducts the investigation in a free, fair
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and time-bound manner without any external interference.” .

22.  Ifthe facts of this case are considered, then it would be clear that no
allegations have been made by the applicant against the investigating officer,
but on the contrary, the basic allegations are that he is being falsely implicated
by the complainant.

The Supreme Court in the case of Lalita Kumari Vs. State of U.P.
reported in (2014) 2 SCC 1 has held as under :-

"120. In view of the aforesaid discussion, we hold:

120.1. The registration of FIR is mandatory under Section
154 of the Code, if the information discloses commission of a
cognizable offence and no preliminary inquiry is permissible in
such a situation.

120.2. If the information received does not disclose a
cognizable offence but indicates the necessity for an inquiry, a
preliminary inquiry may be conducted only to ascertain whether
cognizable offence is disclosed or not.

120.3. Ifthe inquiry discloses the commission of a cognizable
offence, the FIR must be registered. In cases where preliminary
ihquiry ends in closing the complaint, a copy of the entry of
such closure must be supplied to the first informant forthwith
and not later than one week. It must disclose reasons in brief
for closing the complaint and not proceeding further.

120.4. The police officer cannot avoid his duty of registering '
offence if cognizable offence is disclosed. Action must be taken
against erring officers who do not register the FIR if information
received by him discloses a cognizable offence.

120.5. The scope of preliminary inquiry is not to verify the
veracity or otherwise of the information received but only to
ascertain whether the information reveals any cognizable
offence. i :

120.6. As to whiat type and in which cases preliminary inquiry
is to be conducted will depend on the facts and circumstances

i
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of each case. The category of cases in which preliminary inquiry
may be made are as under:

(@) Matrimonial disputes/family ciisputes
(bj Commercial offences

(c) Medical negligence cases

(d) Corruption cases

(e} Cases where there is abnormal delay/laches in initiating
criminal prosecution, for example, over 3 months’ delay in
reporting the matter without satisfactorily explaining the reasons
for delay.

The aforesaid are only illustrations and not exhaustive of all
conditions which may warrant preliminary inquiry.

120.7. While ensuring and protecting the rights of the accused
and the complainant, a preliminary inquiry should be made
time-bound and in any case it should not exceed 7 days. The
fact of such delay and the causes of it must be reflected in the
General Diary entry.

120.8. Since the General Diary/Station Diary/Daily Diary is
the record of all information received in a police station, we
direct that all information relating to cognizable offences,
whether resulting in registration of FIR or leading to an inquiry,
must be mandatorily and meticulously reflected in the said diary
and the decision to conduct a preliminary inquiry must also be
reflected, as mentioned above."

23. - Thus, where a complaint is made disclosing the commission of
cognizable offence, then it is mandatory on the part of the police to register
the F.LR. In the present case, the allegations made in the F.1.R., do disclose
the commission of cognizable offence. Thus, the police did not commit any
mistake by registering the F.LR. in the matter. Whither the allegations made
in the F.L.R. or case diary statements of the witnesses are worth reliable or
not, it is for the investigating officer to form its opinion after concluding the
investigation. This Court cannot supervise the investigation by issuing directions



2914  Rabiya Bano Vs. Rashid Khan (DB) . L.L.R.[2017]M.P.

as to in what manner the investigation is to be done. It is the prerogative of the
investigating officer unless and until, it is shown that the investigating officer is
doing a biased investigation because of some extraneous considerations or
mala fides. This Court in exercise of powers under Section 482 of Cr.P.C.
cannot direct the police to investigate the case from a particular point of view
also. There is no allegation against the investigating officer with regard to
dereliction from duties. Even the investigating officer has not been made a
party to this petition. Even the Doctor who had examined the complainant and
has given the M.L.C. report, has not been made a party to this application,
therefore, the allegations of mala fides against him can not be considered.
No allegations of mala fides have been made against the concerning Doctor,
except by mentioning that a false M.L.C. report has been prepared in
connivance with the Doctor. Further more, whether the M.L.C. report was
right or manipulated, can be proved during Trial while cross examining the
concerning witness.

24, Thus, this Court is of the view that no case is made out by the applicant
warranting any direction to the investigating officer in the matter.

25.  Theapplication failsand is hereby dismissed.

- Application dismissed.
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